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NOTICE TO INVESTORS

Our Company accepts full responsibility for theoimhation contained in the Placement Document arttieo
best of its knowledge and belief, having made edlsonable enquiries, confirms that the Placementident
contains all information with respect to our Compand the Equity Shares, which is material in tbetext of

this Issue. The statements contained in the PlatebDwecument relating to our Company and the EgBlgres
are, in material respects, true and accurate ahanigbeading. The opinions and intentions expreseeite
Placement Document with regard to our Company hadEquity Shares are honestly held, have beenadach
after considering all relevant circumstances, a®ell on information presently available to our Canypand

are based on reasonable assumptions. There atberdarcts in relation to our Company and the Bg8ltares,

the omission of which would, in the context of tlesue, make any statement in the Placement Document
misleading in any material respect. Further, allsomable enquiries have been made by our Company to
ascertain such facts and to verify the accuracgliafuch information and statements. The Globalo@bnator
and Book Running Lead Manager and the Co-Manade€C{BRLM and Co-Manager”) have not separately
verified all of the information contained in the aBément Document (financial, legal or otherwise).
Accordingly, neither the GC-BRLM and Co-Managerr any of their respective members, employees, @uns
officers, directors, representatives, agents dliadffs make any express or implied representati@rranty or
undertaking, and no responsibility or liability &cepted, by the GC-BRLM and Co-Manager, as to the
accuracy or completeness of the information coethiim the Placement Document or any other inforonati
supplied in connection with the Equity Shares pegubto be issued pursuant to this Issue. Each perso
receiving the Placement Document acknowledgesstlet person has relied on neither the GC-BRLM aod C
Manager nor on any person affiliated with the GCLBRand Co-Manager in connection with its investigat

of the accuracy of such information or its investindecision, and each such person must rely oovits
examination of our Company and the merits and tiiskslved in investing in the Equity Shares isspedsuant

to the Issue.

No person is authorized to give any informatiortamake any representation not contained in theefiant
Document and any information or representation swtcontained must not be relied upon as having been
authorized by or on behalf of our Company or the BRL.M and Co-Manager. The delivery of the Placement
Document at any time does not imply that the infation contained in it is correct as at any timessgjuent to

its date.

The Equity Shares have not been approved, disappred or recommended by any regulatory authority in
any jurisdiction. No regulatory authority has passel on or endorsed the merits of this Issue or the
accuracy or adequacy of the Placement Document. Amgpresentation to the contrary may be a criminal
offence.

The distribution of the Placement Document andisisee may be restricted by law in certain jurigdics. As

such, the Placement Document does not constitntepraay not be used for or in connection with, aerobr

solicitation by anyone in any jurisdiction in whisbich offer or solicitation is not authorized oratwy person to
whom it is unlawful to make such offer or solicitat. Accordingly, the Equity Shares in this Issuaymmot be
offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and neitlitbe Placement Document nor any Issue materiabmmection
with the Equity Shares issued pursuant to thiselsaay be distributed or published in or from anyrdoy or

jurisdiction, except under circumstances that wfiult in compliance with any applicable rules aagulations
of any such country or jurisdiction.

In making an investment decision, investors mustoa their own examination of our Company and tirens

of the Issue, including merits and risk involvedveéstors should not construe the contents of theeRtent
Document as legal, tax, accounting or investmenicad Investors should consult their own counsed an
advisors as to business, legal, tax, accountingralated matters concerning this Issue. In addith@ither our
Company nor the GC-BRLM and Co-Manager are makimg representation to any offeree or subscriber of
Equity Shares pursuant to this Issue regardindetipaity of an investment in the Equity Shares bgtsofferee
or subscriber under applicable legal, investmensimilar laws or regulations. Each subscriber & Hyuity
Shares in this Issue is deemed to have acknowledegpsented and agreed that it is eligible t@shvn India
and in our Company under Indian law, including Gkav1ll of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and thatstnot
prohibited by the SEBI or any other statutory adtiofrom buying, selling or dealing in securitieBach
subscriber of Equity Shares in this Issue also ewkedges that it has been afforded an opportunitsetjuest
from our Company and review information relatingotor Company and such Equity Shares.
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You are reminded that you have accessed the att@®laeement Document on the basis that you aresape
into whose possession the Placement Document mégwiielly delivered in accordance with the lawstioé
jurisdiction in which you are located and you magt mor are you authorized to deliver or forwardsthi
document, electronically or otherwise, to any otperson. If you have gained access to this trarsanis
contrary to the foregoing restrictions, you will bleable to purchase any of the securities desctieein.

Actions That You May Not Take: You should not reply by e-mail to this announcetmend you may not
purchase any securities by doing so. Any replyesimail communications, including those you genelsgte
using the “Reply” function on your e-mail softwavei)l be ignored or rejected.

You may not and are not authorized to (1) forwarddeliver the Placement Document, electronically or
otherwise, to any other person or (2) reproducén Rlacement Document in any manner whatsoever. Any
forwarding, distribution or reproduction of the B¢nent Document in whole or in part is unauthorized
Failure to comply with this directive may resultanviolation of the applicable laws of the Unitetht8s or
any other relevant jurisdiction.

You are responsible for protection against virusegand other destructive items.Your use of this e-mail is
at your own risk and it is your responsibility ttkeé precautions to ensure that it is free fromseésuand other
items of a destructive nature.

REPRESENTATIONS BY INVESTORS

By subscribing to any Equity Shares under the Isgoa are deemed to have acknowledged and agreed as
follows:

= you are a qualified institutional buyer as definedRegulation 2(1)(zd) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations
("QIB") and undertake to acquire, hold, manage ispake of any Equity Shares that are allocatedto y
for the purposes of your business in accordande @litapter VIl of the SEBI ICDR Regulations;

= you confirm that if allotted Equity Shares pursunthe Preliminary Placement Document and Placémen
Document, you shall not, for a period of one (1aryfom the date of allotment, sell the Equity ®isaso
acquired otherwise than on a recognized stock exggha

= you are, and at the times the offer of Equity Skavas made to you and your buy order for the Equity
Shares was originated you were, located outsid&ttied States (within the meaning of Regulation S)

= you are aware that the Equity Shares have not taeehwill not be, registered under the regulatiohthe
SEBI or under any other law in force in India. Theeliminary Placement Document has not been vdrifie
or affirmed by the SEBI or the Stock Exchanges aitidnot be filed with the Registrar of Companidhe
Preliminary Placement Document has been filed whitn Stock Exchanges. A copy of the Placement
Document will be filed with the Stock Exchanges avil be displayed on the websites of our Company
and the Stock Exchanges;

= you are entitled to subscribe for the Equity Shareder the laws of all relevant jurisdictions whigbply to
you and that you have fully observed such laws @lntdined all such governmental and other consents i
each case which may be required thereunder andligmhwath all necessary formalities;

»= you are entitled to subscribe to the Equity Shareder the laws of all relevant jurisdictions andttiiou
have all necessary capacity and have obtainedeakssary consents and authorities to enable you to
commit to this participation in the Issue and tofgen your obligations in relation thereto (incladi
without limitation, in the case of any person onos behalf you are acting, all necessary consents a
authorities to agree to the terms set out or refeto in the Placement Document) and will honowhsu
obligations;

= you confirm that, either: (i) you have not partetipd in or attended any investor meetings or ptatens
by our Company or our agents ("Company Presen&fjionith regard to our Company or the Issue; 9r (ii
if you have participated in or attended any CompBrgsentations: (a) you understand and acknowledge
that the GC-BRLM and Co-Manager may not have kndgdeof the statements that our Company or our
agents may have made at such Company Presentatidnare therefore unable to determine whether the
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information provided to you at such Company Presté@nis may have included any material misstatements
or omissions, and, accordingly you acknowledge ttaiGC-BRLM and Co-Manager have advised you not
to rely in any way on any information that was pdad to you at such Company Presentations, and (b)
confirm that, to the best of your knowledge, yowéhaot been provided any material information thas

not publicly available;

neither our Company nor the GC-BRLM and Co-Manager making any recommendation to you or
advising you regarding the suitability of any tractsons that you may enter into in connection with
Issue. Your participation in the Issue is on thsibahat you are not and will not be a client ¢ (BC-
BRLM and Co-Manager and that the GC-BRLM and Co-dtgrdo not have any duty or responsibility to
you for providing the protection afforded to thegspective clients or customers or for providingiegl in
relation to the Issue and are in no way actingfidaciary capacity;

you are aware and understand that the Equity Staamedeing offered only to QIBs and are not being
offered to the general public. Further, you areraveand understand that the allotment of the Edbiitgres
shall be on a discretionary basis;

you have made, or been deemed to have made, dsadygl the representations set forth under "Temsf
Restrictions";

you have been provided a serially numbered coghe@flacement Document and have read the Placement
Document in its entirety, including, in particul#ine section entitled "Risk Factors";

that in making your investment decision, (i) yowéaelied on your own examination of our Compang an
the terms of the Issue, including the merits asksrinvolved, (ii) you have made and will continaenake
your own assessment of our Company, the EquityeShand the terms of the Issue, (iii) you have delie
upon your own investigations and resources in diegido invest in the Equity Shares, (iv) you have
consulted with your own independent advisors oentlise have satisfied yourself concerning, without
limitation, the effects of local laws, includingyaapplicable securities law, and (v) you have teBelely

on the information contained in the Placement Dceninand no other disclosure or representation Iy ou
Company or any other party and (vi) you have rezeiall information that you believe is necessary or
appropriate in order to make an investment decisiaaspect of our Company and the Equity Shares;

the GC-BRLM and Co-Manager has not provided youhvahy tax advice or otherwise made any
representations regarding the tax consequencé® dEdquity Shares (including but not limited to thsue
and the use of the proceeds from the Equity ShaYes) will obtain your own independent tax advicenfi

a reputable service provider and will not rely be GC-BRLM and Co-Manager when evaluating the tax
consequences in relation to the Equity Sharesugiey but not limited to the Issue and the usehef t
proceeds from the Equity Shares). You waive anéegot to assert any claim against the GC-BRLM and
Co-Manager with respect to the tax aspects of theitz Shares or as a result of any tax audits by ta
authorities, wherever situated;

you have such knowledge and experience in finararidl business matters as to be capable of evajuatin
the merits and risks of the investment in the Bg&hares and you and any accounts for which you are
subscribing to the Equity Shares (i) are each @bleear the economic risk of the investment inEeity
Shares, (ii) will not look to our Company and /tbe GC-BRLM and Co-Manager for all or part of any
such loss or losses that may be suffered, (iii)adole to sustain a complete loss on the investimetite
Equity Shares, (iv) have no need for liquidity witspect to the investment in the Equity Shared, (&h
have no reason to anticipate any change in yoauwristances, financial or otherwise, which may cawse
require any sale or distribution by you of all arygart of the Equity Shares allotted to you punsue the
Issue;

that, where you are subscribing for the Equity 8bdor one or more managed accounts, you reprasent
warrant that you are authorised in writing by eaabh managed account to subscribe to the EquitseSha
for each managed account and to make (and you yenelie) the acknowledgements and agreements
herein for and on behalf of each such account,imgatie reference to "you" to include such accgunts
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you are not a Promoter and are not a person refatdge Promoters, either directly or indirectlydayour
bid does not directly or indirectly represent therRoter or promoter group or person related to the
Promoters of our Company;

you have no rights under a shareholders' agreeorewmbting agreement with the Promoters or persons
related to the Promoters, no veto rights or righappoint any nominee director on the Board of Qoes

of our Company other than such rights acquiredhéndapacity of a lender not holding any Equity 8baf

our Company, and that shall not be deemed to lesop related to the Promoter;

you have no right to withdraw your Bid after thelBlosing Date;

you are eligible to Bid for and hold Equity Shasesallotted together with any Equity Shares held/dy
prior to the Issue. You further confirm that yowlding upon the issue of the Equity Shares shall no
exceed the level permissible as per any applidakleor regulation;

the Bids submitted by you would not eventually teButriggering a tender offer under the Secusitand
Exchange Board of India (Substantial AcquisitiorStfares and Takeovers) Regulations, 1997, as amhende
(the "Takeover Code");

to the best of your knowledge and belief, togethi¢gh other QIBs in the Issue that belong to the sam
group or are under common control as you, therabot under the present Issue shall not exceed 50% o
the Issue Size. For the purposes of this represemtga) the expression 'belong to the same grshall
derive meaning from the concept of ‘companies utigersame group' as provided in sub-section (11) of
Section 372 of the Companies Act, 1956 (the "Corgmaict"); and (b) "control" shall have the same
meaning as is assigned to it by clause (c) of Reigul 2 of the Takeover Code;

you shall not undertake any trade in the Equityr&haredited to your depository participant accauniil
such time that the final trading approval for trguiey Shares is issued by the Stock Exchanges;

you are aware that in-principle approvals undeug#a?4(a) have been received from the Stock Exe&sang
and application for listing and trading for the gBhares shall be made after allotment of Eq8itares;

you are aware and understand that the GC-BRLM ant@nagerwill have entered into a memorandum of
understanding with our Company whereby the GC-BRirM Co-Manager have, subject to the satisfaction
of certain conditions set out therein, undertakenuse their reasonable endeavours as agent of our
Company to seek to procure subscription for theitigghares;

that the contents of the Placement Document arkisixely the responsibility of our Company and that
neither the GC-BRLM and Co-Manager nor any persdimg on their respective behalf has, or shall have
any liability for any information, representation siatement contained in the Placement Documeahgr
information previously published by or on behalfooir Company and will not be liable for your degisto
participate in the Issue based on any informatiepresentation or statement contained in the Planem
Document or otherwise. By accepting a participaiiorhis Issue, you agree and confirm that you have
neither received nor relied on any other informaticepresentation, warranty or statement made kgnor
behalf of the GC-BRLM and Co-Manager or our Companyny other person and, to the greatest extent
permitted by law, neither the GC-BRLM and Co-Mamager our Company nor any other person will be
liable for your decision to participate in the ledoased on any other information, representati@myamty

or statement that you may have obtained or recem@ther contained in the Placement Document or
otherwise;
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Subject to, as stated in the preceding clauserete only information you are entitled to rely, amd on
which you have relied in committing yourself to arg the Equity Shares, is contained in the Placeme
Document, such information being all that you de@oessary to make an investment decision in regpect
the Equity Shares and that you have neither redeivar relied on any other information given or
representations, warranties or statements madéeysC-BRLM and Co-Manager (including any view,
statement, opinion or representation expressedyrresearch published or distributed by the GC-BRLM
and Co-Manager or their respective affiliates or @ew, statement, opinion or representation exg@dsy
any staff (including research staff) of the GC-BRIlavid Co-Manager or their respective affiliatespor
Company and the GC-BRLM and Co-Manager will notikle for your decision to accept an invitation to
participate in the Issue based on any other infaonarepresentation, warranty or statement;

you agree to indemnify and hold our Company and2ieBRLM and Co-Manager harmless from any and
all costs, claims, liabilities and expenses (intlgdegal fees and expenses) arising out of oloimection
with any breach of the representations and waeariti this paragraph. You agree that the indensgty
forth in this paragraph shall survive the resaletted Equity Shares by or on behalf of the managed
accounts;

that our Company, the GC-BRLM and Co-Manager, amdrespective affiliates and others will rely oe th
truth and accuracy of the foregoing representatimasranties, acknowledgements and undertakingshwvh
are irrevocable;

all statements other than statements of histofi@etl included in the Placement Document, including,
without limitation, those regarding our Companyfshcial position, business strategy, plans andativies

of management for future operations (including demment plans and objectives relating to our
Company's completed projects, projects under dewedmt and future projects), are forward-looking
statements. Such forward-looking statements invédvewn and unknown risks, uncertainties and other
important factors that could cause actual resaltset materially and adversely different from futuesults,
performance or achievements expressed or impliedugh forward-looking statements. Such forward-
looking statements are based on numerous assumptegarding our Company's present and future
business strategies and the environment in whichCaumpany will operate in the future. You should no
place undue reliance on forward-looking statemewtsich speak only as at the date of the Placement
Document;

Our Company assumes no responsibility to updatechriye forward-looking statements contained in the
Placement Document;

that you are eligible to invest in India under agggble law, including the Foreign Exchange Manageme
(Transfer or Issue of Security by Person Residantsi@e India) Regulations, 2000, as amended frame ti
to time ("Security Regulations"), and have not bpeshibited by the SEBI from buying, selling or teg

in securities;

you understand that the GC-BRLM and Co-Manager atchave any obligation to purchase or acquire all
or any part of the Equity Shares purchased by gdbe Issue or to support any losses directly diréctly
sustained or incurred by you for any reason whatsoé connection with the Issue, including non-
performance by our Company of any of our respeativégations or any breach of any representations o
warranties by our Company, whether to you or otlssw

that you are a sophisticated investor who is septorsubscribe to the Equity Shares in this Issme/dur
own investment and not with a view to distributiém particular, you acknowledge that (i) an investtin

the Equity Shares involves a high degree of ristt Hhat the Equity Shares are, therefore, a spécalat
investment, (ii) you have sufficient knowledge, Bigtication and experience in financial and bussnes
matters so as to be capable of evaluating the snamitl risk of the purchase of the Equity Shared,(&ip

you are experienced in investing in private placenteansactions of securities of companies in alarm
stage of development and in similar jurisdictiomsl dave such knowledge and experience in financial,
business and investments matters so as to rendecapmable of evaluating the merits and risks ofryou
investment in the Equity Shares; and
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= that each of the acknowledgements and agreementsitsabove shall continue to be true and acclatate
all times up to and including the Allotment of tEguity Shares and the listing and commencement of
trading of Equity Shares, wherever the context neayire.

OFF-SHORE DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS (P-NOTES)

Foreign Institutional Investors as defined under 8EBI ICDR Regulations or their sub-accounts (toge
referred to as "FlIs"), including FIlI affiliates dhe GC-BRLM and Co-Manager, were permitted under
Regulations 15A(1) of the Securities and Exchangar® of India (Foreign Institutional Investors) Régions,
1995, as amended, to issue, deal in or hold, affesderivative instruments such as participatorgsoequity
linked notes or any other similar instruments aglatbquity Shares allocated in the Issue (all su€stwore
derivative instruments referred to herein as "PeNt for which they may receive compensation fribva
purchasers of such instruments. SBRie Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreigritlii®nal
Investors) (Amendment) Regulations, 2008, as furdmeended by the Securities and Exchange Boarddid |
(Foreign Institutional Investors) (Second AmendmeRegulations, 2008 ("Amendment Regulations") has
stated that no FIl shall issue any offshore deiveainstruments to any person other than a persgulated by
an appropriate foreign regulatory authority, theyt should be issued after compliance with ‘knowrydient’
norms and the FlIs are required to cancel, redaeciose out such offshore derivative instrumentsssaed to

a person other than a person regulated by an ajqeforeign regulatory authority, before March 2009.
Flls are also required to ensure that no furth&rdsor transfer is made of any P-Notes issued ton drehalf of

it to any person other than a person regulated rbagpropriate foreign regulatory authority. Furtheo
subaccount shall, directly or indirectly, issueshbfire derivative instruments: and the offshore vddérie
instruments issued directly or indirectly by a sdzount, before the commencement of the Amendment
Regulations and outstanding as at such commencesheafitbe cancelled or redeemed or closed out &efor
March 31, 2009. Flls are also required to furnisforimation, regarding such P-Notes in such fornmat at
such intervals as is prescribed by SEBI from timérhe.

P-Notes have not been and are not being offeresblor pursuant to the Placement Document. Neither th
Preliminary Placement Document nor the Placementubent contains or will contain any information
concerning P-Notes or the issuer(s) of any P-Natet)ding, without limitation, any information ragding any
risk factors relating thereto.

Any P-Notes that may be issued are not securiiesup Company and do not constitute any obligatiofis
claims on, or interests in our Company. Our Compaasy not participated in any offer of any P-Notesn the
establishment of the terms of any P-Notes, or éngifeparation of any disclosure related to any RedAny P-
Notes that may be offered are issued by, and detygbe obligations of, third parties that are elated to our
Company. Our Company does not make any recommendasi to any investment in P-Notes and does not
accept any responsibility whatsoever in conneotith any P-Notes.

Any P-Notes that may be issued are not securifiéseoGC-BRLM and Co-Manager and do not constiautg
obligations of, or claims on, the GC-BRLM and Co+ger.

Prospective investors interested in purchasingRxMotes have the responsibility to obtain adeqdatelosure

as to the issuer(s) of such P-Notes and the tensisanditions of any such P-Notes from the issyiefsuch
P-Notes. Neither SEBI nor any other regulatory adth has reviewed or approved any P-Notes or any
disclosure related thereto. Prospective investaraieged to consult with their own financial, legatcounting
and tax advisors regarding any contemplated investrim P-Notes, including whether P-Notes are idsue
compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OF THE STOCK EXCHANGES

As required, a copy of the Preliminary Placementiwoent has been submitted to the Stock Exchandes. T
Stock Exchanges do not in any manner:

Q) warrant, certify or endorse the correctness or detapess of any of the contents of the Preliminary
Placement Document;
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(2 warrant that our Company's Equity Shares issuesuaut to this Issue will be listed or will contintge
be listed on the Stock Exchanges; or

3) take any responsibility for the financial or otlerundness of our Company, its management or any
scheme or project of our Company;

and it should not for any reason be deemed or ngesto mean that the Preliminary Placement Doctimas
been cleared or approved by the Stock Exchangesyperson who desires to apply for or otherwisguaes

any Equity Shares of our Company pursuant to thésié may do so pursuant to an independent inquiry,
investigation and analysis and shall not have daiyncagainst the Stock Exchanges whatsoever byneak
any loss which may be suffered by such person cpmsg to or in connection with such
subscription/acquisition, whether by reason of himg stated or omitted to be stated herein or for ether
reason whatsoever.
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ENFORCEMENT OF CIVIL LIABILITIES

Our Company is a limited liability company incorpted under the laws of India. Substantially alediors and
executive officers of our Company are residentidfa and a substantial portion of the assets ofi persons
and of our Company are located in India. As a testuimay not be possible for investors to effestvice of
process upon our Company or such persons outsitie ém to enforce judgments obtained against sactigs
outside India.

Recognition and enforcement of foreign judgmentgprisvided for under Section 13 of the Code of Civil
Procedure, 1908 (the "Civil Code") on a statutoagib. Section 13 of the Civil Code provides thdbraign
judgment shall be conclusive regarding any maitreccty adjudicated upon except:

(a) where the judgment has not been pronounced byra aocompetent jurisdiction;

(b) where the judgment has not been given on the nadritee case;

(c) where it appears on the face of the proceedingstheajudgment is founded on an incorrect view of
international law or a refusal to recognize the tdindia in cases to which such law is applicable;

(d) where the proceedings in which the judgment waaiobt were opposed to natural justice;

(e) where the judgment has been obtained by fraud; or

() where the judgment sustains a claim founded oradbr of any law than in force in India.

Under the Civil Code, a court in India shall, ugbe production of any document purporting to beedifted
copy of a foreign judgment, presume that the judgmeas pronounced by a court of competent jurigatict
unless the contrary appears on record.

India is not a signatory to any international tyeat relation to the recognition or enforcementfofeign
judgments. Section 44A of the Civil Code provideattwhere a foreign judgment has been rendered by a
superior court, within the meaning of such Section,any country or territory outside India whicheth
Government has by notification declared to be dprecating territory, it may be enforced in Indig b
proceedings in execution as if the judgment hacdhlbeedered by the relevant court in India. Howe@argtion

44A of the Civil Code is applicable only to mongtalecrees not being of the same nature as amoayéble

in respect of taxes, other charges of a like nadui a fine or other penalties.

The United Kingdom, Singapore and Hong Kong havenbdeclared by the Central Government to be
reciprocating territories for the purposes of Setd4A.

A judgment of a court of a country which is noeaiprocating territory may be enforced only by & spon the
judgment and not by proceedings in execution. Sustit has to be filed in India within two yearsrfr the date
of the judgment in the same manner as any othefiled to enforce a civil liability in India. Itsi unlikely that a
court in India would award damages on the samestmsia foreign court if an action was brought ididn
Furthermore, it is unlikely that an Indian courtwia enforce foreign judgments if that court werettod view
that the amount of damages awarded was excessiuwgcamsistent with public policy. A party seeking t
enforce a foreign judgment in India is requireadbdain approval from the RBI to execute such a felgt or to
repatriate outside India any amount recovered, wadcannot assure that such approval will be fortting
within a reasonable period of time, or at all, leattconditions of such approvals would be accegtalblis
uncertain as to whether an Indian court would ex&dioreign judgments that would contravene or w&la
Indian law. We cannot assure you that Indian coamt¥/or authorities would not take a longer amafritme
to adjudicate and conclude similar proceedingfdir respective jurisdictions.
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PRESENTATION OF FINANCIALAND OTHER INFORMATION

Our Company publishes its financial statementsupdes. Our Company's financial statements inclideein
have been prepared in accordance with Indian GAARess otherwise indicated, all financial data e t
Placement Document are derived from our Compamésifial statements prepared in accordance wittaind
GAAP. Indian GAAP differs in certain significantggects from International Financial Reporting Stadd
("IFRS"), US GAAP and other international accougtsystems.

Our Company's fiscal year commences on April lamheyear and ends on March 31 of the succeeding sea

all references to a particular fiscal year areh® twelve-month period ended on March 31 of thatry&he
audited consolidated financial statements of oum@any for the years ended March 31, 2007, Marct26Q8

and March 31, 2009 (the "Audited Consolidated FainStatements") that appear in the Placement Dect
were prepared in accordance with Indian GAAP. Thaudited financial results (limited reviewed) foetfirst
quarter ended June 30, 2009 (the "Unaudited Jurset€uResults") that appear in the Placement Doaume
have been prepared by our Company pursuant to €&Lisf the Listing Agreements with the Stock Exues

in India. The Audited Consolidated Financial Stagets and the Unaudited June Quarter Results are
collectively referred to herein as the "Financit&ments".

In the Placement Document, all references to "yare"to the prospective investors in the Equity 8hdssued
pursuant to the Issue, all references to "Indiad & the Republic of India and all references te th
"Government" are to the Government of India (unléss context otherwise requires). All references to
"Rupees” or "Rs." are to the lawful currency ofitndAll references to "U.S. dollars"”, "dollars”,"/$USD" and
"US$" are to the lawful currency of the United 8tatof America. All references to "£" are to the fiaw
currency of the United Kingdom. All references & are to the lawful currency of the member statethe
European Union that adopted it as the single cayreAll references to "AED" are to the lawful cungy of the
United Arab Emirates.

In the Placement Document, certain monetary amcwnie been subject to rounding adjustments; aaogirdi
figures shown as totals in certain tables may eatibarithmetic aggregation of the figures whigktcpde them.

-10-
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INDUSTRY AND MARKET DATA

Information regarding markets, market size, masketre, market position, growth rates and otherstrghdata
pertaining to our Company's business containetierPlacement Document consists of estimates baseédta
reports compiled by professional organisations amalysts, on data from other external sources,cndur
knowledge of our revenues and markets. In somescdkere is no readily available external informati
(whether from trade associations, government baaliegher organisations) to validate market-relatadlyses
and estimates, thus requiring our Company to ralynternally developed estimates. While we have pited,
extracted and reproduced market or other industtg tfom external sources, including third pardesndustry
or general publications, our Company has not inddestly verified such data. We cannot assure pialent
investors of the accuracy and completeness of takek no responsibility for, such data. Our Compakes
responsibility for accurately reproducing such infation but, subject to the next sentence, acaspt@irther
responsibility in respect of such information aratad Our Company confirms that such information dath
have been accurately reproduc8Bdveral reports also expressly disclaim legal nesipdity and liability of the
person/ organisation preparing the report for asg lor damage resulting from the contents of segorts.
Accordingly, we and the GC-BRLM and Co-Manager @b take any responsibility for the data, projecsion
forecasts, conclusions or any other informationtaimed in this section. Certain information conggirherein
pertaining to prior years is presented in the fafmestimates as they appear in the respective ts#pswurce
documents. The actual data for those years may samificantly and materially from the estimates so
contained. Similarly, while our Company believesiitternal estimates to be reasonable, such estnietve
not been verified by any independent sources amdCampany cannot assure potential investors abeiv t
accuracy.

-11-
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The Placement Document includes statements thabareay be deemed to be, "forward-looking statesien
These statements express views of the managemeotiro€Company and expectations based upon certain
assumptions regarding trends in the Indian andnatenal financial markets and regional economtés,
political climate in which our Company operates anbder factors. These forward-looking statements loa
identified by the use of forward-looking terminojpgncluding, among other, the words "believestiteates”,
"anticipates”, "expects", "intends", "may", "will"plans" or "should" or, in each case, their negatr other
variations or comparable terminology or by discossiof strategies, plans, objectives, goals, fuawents,
projects under development, future projects ornitiv@s. All statements regarding our Company's etquk
financial condition and results of operations, bass plans, and prospects, are forward-lookingrsints.
These forward-looking statements include statemant$o our Company's business strategy, projeaierun
development, future projects, revenue, profitapiind other matters discussed in the Placement rDecu
regarding matters that are not historical factseyrhppear in a number of places throughout theeRiant
Document and include statements regarding the tiote) beliefs or current expectations of our Compa
concerning, among other things, the results of atpmrs, financial condition, liquidity, prospectgrowth,
strategies and dividend policy of our Company ddibdustry in which we operate.

By their nature, forward-looking statements invokreown and unknown risks and uncertainties bec#usg
relate to events, and depend on circumstances,ntiagt or may not occur in the future. Forward-logkin
statements are not guarantees of future performaDoe Company's actual results of operations, fir@n
condition, liquidity, dividend policy and the dewpment of the industry in which we operate may ediff
materially from the impression created by the fowwlmoking statements contained in the Placement
Document. In addition, even if the results of ofierss, financial condition, liquidity and dividemqmblicy of our
Company and the development of the industry in twhie operate are consistent with the forward-logkin
statements contained in the Placement Documersetresults or developments may not be indicativesilts

or developments in subsequent periods.

Important factors that could cause actual resuitd aroperty valuations to differ materially from rou
expectations include, but are not limited to, thiéofving:

= the performance of the real estate market andréngajling condition of the real estate markets;

= changes in the Slum Rehabilitation Scheme curréntffect;

= the effect of changes in our accounting policies;

»= impairment of our interests in land and availapitf suitable insurance;

= conditions on development rights and possible ndifilshent of such conditions;

= our ability to manage our growth effectively;

= our ability to acquire development rights over &iddal lands outside Mumbai;

= our ability to develop and market developmentsroppsed new lines of business;

= the extent to which sale proceeds differ from aumdl valuations;

= costs and availability of building supplies;

= the outcome of legal or regulatory proceedings ictvwe, our subsidiaries, associates or joint weyst or
partnerships are a party to or might become invblae

= changes in government policies and regulatory astibat apply to or affect our business; and

= our ability to compete effectively, particularly imew markets and business lines.

Additional factors that could cause actual resylé&sformance or achievements to differ materialigiude, but
are not limited to, those discussed under "Riskdfat, "Management's Discussion and Analysis ofRaial
Condition and Results of Operations" and "Busin@ssrview". These forward-looking statements speslly o
as of the date of the Placement Document. Our Cognpand the GC-BRLM and Co-Manager expressly
disclaim any obligation or undertaking to releasiligly any updates or revisions to any forwardkiog
statement contained herein to reflect any changesui Company's expectations with regard theretanyr
change in events, conditions or circumstances aohwdmy such statements are based.

-12 -



P\

Ackruti Citymited - Placement Document

The forward-looking statements contained in thec&i@ent Document are based on the beliefs of the
management of our Company, as well as the assumsptimde by, and information currently availabletie,
management of our Company. Even though our Compeetigves that the expectations reflected in such
forward-looking statements are reasonable at tfig,twe cannot assure investors that such expesgatiill
prove to be correct. Given these uncertaintiesestors are cautioned not to place undue reliancsuch
forward-looking statements. If any of these riskel aincertainties materialise, or if any of our Camgs
underlying assumptions prove to be incorrect, oom@any's actual results of operations or finanoieddition
could differ materially from that described hereais anticipated, believed, estimated or expectedwAtten

and other forward-looking statements attributaloleotir Company in the Placement Document are exgress
qualified in their entirety by reference to thes@tionary statements.

-13-
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DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY

Definitions of certain terms used in the Placenizotument

In the Placement Document, unless the context wikerindicates, all references to "Ackruti”, ourdi@pany"
and the "Issuer" are to Ackruti City Limited, argétterms "we", "us" and "our" are to Ackruti Citymited our
subsidiaries, joint ventures, associates and pattipefirms.

The following list of defined terms is intended tbe convenience of the reader only and is not esthae.

Terms
Ackruti City Limited
or Company /"the
Company" / "our
Company" /"we" /"us"'/
"our

Ackruti Group / Akruti
Group

Allocated or Allocation

Allotment or Allotted

Allottee

Bid-cum-Application
Form

Articles / Articles of
Association

AS

ASSOCHAM
Auditors

Board of Directors or
Board

Bid

Bidders

Bidding Period/
Bidders/Issue Period/
Bid/lssue Period

Bid Closing Date/
Bid/lssue Closing Date

Description
Ackruti City Limited, a public limited company ingeorated under the Companies
Act and whose registered office is at Akruti TraGentre, Road No.7, Marol
MIDC, Andheri (E), Mumbai 400093, India. (Formerknown as Akruti City
Limited)

Our Company together with our subsidiaries, joirgntures, associates and
partnership firms

The determination of successful Bidders pursuantdeipt of Bid-cum-Application
Form from QIBs by our Company in consultation witte GC-BRLM and Co-
Manager in compliance with Chapter VIl of the SHBDR Regulations

Unless the context otherwise requires, the allotmafn Equity Shares to the
successful Bidders pursuant to this Issue

QIBs who are allotted Equity Shares pursuant t® [ggue

The form which the QIBs are required to complete axurn to the GC-BRLM and
Co-Manager, and pursuant to which they apply ferAlotment of Equity Shares

Articles of Association of Ackruti City Limited

Accounting Standards as issued by the Institutehafrtered Accountants of India
Associated Chambers of Commerce and Industry o&Ind

Dalal & Shah, and Doshi Doshi & Associates, ChaderAccountants, joint
statutory auditors, Mumbai

Board of Directors of Ackruti City Limited or a Canittee constituted thereof.
An indication of interest to subscribe for EquithaBes of our Company, made
pursuant to a Bid-cum-Application Form

QIBs who have made a Bid

The period between the Bid Opening Date and Bicsi@tpDate, inclusive of both
dates, during which QIBs may submit their Bids

Monday, September 07, 2009, i.e. the date on wbighCompany (or the GC-
BRLM and Co-Manager on behalf of the Company) sbedise acceptance of duly
completed Bid-cum-Application Forms for the Issinem QIBs

-14 -
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Terms
Bid Opening Date/
Bid/lIssue Opening Date
BOLT
BSE
CAGR

CAN or Confirmation
of Allocation Note

CDSL

Citygold

Civil Code or Code
Committee

Companies Act or
Companies Act, 1956

DCR
Directors

Delisting Guidelines

Depositories Act

Depository

Depository Participant
EGM

Equity Shares

Erstwhile SEBI
Guidelines/Erstwhile
SEBI DIP Guidelines
Equity Shareholders /
Shareholders

Escrow Agent /
Collection Bank/
Escrow Bank/
Designated Bank

Escrow Cash
Account/Escrow

Ackruti Citymited - Placement Document

Description
Thursday, September 03, 2009, i.e. the date onhmbic Company (or the GC-
BRLM and Co-Manager on behalf of our Company) sbathmence the acceptance
of duly completed Bid-cum-Application Forms for ttesue, from QIBs
BSE's online trading facility
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited

Compounded Annual Growth Rate

The valid, binding and irrevocable contract for QéBs to pay the entire Issue
Price for all the Equity Shares allocated to sutBgursuant to this Issue

Central Depository Services (India) Limited

Citygold Management Services Private Limited

The Code of Civil Procedure, 1908 of India, as atieeh
Committee of the Board of Directors

The Companies Act, 1956 of India, as amended

Development Control Regulations for Greater Bomi®&g1
Board of Directors of Ackruti City Limited

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delistiof Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009, as amended

The Depositories Act, 1996, as amended

A depository registered with SEBI under the Semsgitand Exchange Board of
India (Depositories and Participant) Regulatiorg96l, as amended

A depository participant as defined under the D#prss Act
Extraordinary General Meeting

Equity Shares with full voting rights of Ackruti i Limited of face value of
Rs.10/- each, unless otherwise specified in théesdthereof

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Disg®sand Investor Protection)
Guidelines, 2000, as replaced by the SEBI ICDR Reiguns

Persons holding Equity Shares of Ackruti City Liedf unless otherwise specified
in the context thereof

HDFC Bank Limited

A special bank account opened by our Company edtitihckruti City - QIP
Escrow Account" with the Escrow Agent in terms loé tarrangement between our
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Terms
Account

FDI

FEMA

Fll

FIl Regulations

Financial Year or
Fiscal Year or
Fiscal

Floor Price

FSMA

GAAP

GDP

Global Co-ordinator
and Book Running
Lead Manager and the
Co-Manager

Gol or Government
GoM

IAS

IFRS

Income Tax Act or IT
Act

India
Indian GAAP

Insider Trading
Regulations

Issue

Ackruti Citymited - Placement Document

Description
Company, GC-BRLM and Co-Manager and the Escrow Agen

Foreign Direct Investment in an Indian companyadeordance with applicable law

The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, as amdenadd the regulations
framed thereunder

Foreign Institutional Investor (as defined underct®a 2(f) the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Foreign Institutional Ista¥s) Regulations, 1995, as
amended) registered with SEBI under applicable lawsdia

Securities and Exchange Board of
Regulations, 1995, as amended

India (Foreigntitit®nal Investors)

A period of twelve months ending March 31 of thartigular year, unless
otherwise stated

Rs. 500.60 per Equity Share calculated in accomlamith Clause 13A.3 of the
Erstwhile SEBI Guidelines, which corresponds to iatijpon 85 of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations

The Financial Services and Markets Act, 2000 ofUhéed Kingdom

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

Gross Domestic Product

Anand Rathi Advisors Limited and Pioneer Investcoirpited

Government of India, unless otherwise specified
Government of Maharashtra

International Accounting Standards
International Financial Reporting Standards

The Income Tax Act, 1961 of India, as amended

The Republic of India
Generally accepted accounting principles followethidia

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prébibiof Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992, as amended

The offer and issuance of the Equity Shares to iQedl Institutional Buyers,
pursuant to Chapter VIl of the SEBI ICDR RegulasoThe Equity Shares offered
pursuant to this Issue are being offered and soigide the United States in
reliance on Regulation S.
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Terms
Issue Price
Issue Size
Indian Stock
Exchanges/ Stock
Exchanges
Listing Agreements
MCGM/BMC
MHADA
MIDC
Memorandum /
Memorandum of
Association

MMRDA

MOU

Mutual Fund
Non-Resident Indian(s)
or NRI

NSDL

NSE

OCB or Overseas
Corporate Body

PAN
Pay-In Date

Placement Document

Preliminary Placement
Document

QIBs or Qualified
Institutional
Buyers

Ackruti Citymited - Placement Document

Description
A price of Rs. 501/- per Equity Share, finalisedday Company, in consultation
with the GC-BRLM and Co-Manager
The issue of 6,035,871 Equity Shares aggregatiist3023.97 million
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and the National St&xchange of India
Limited
The agreement executed by a listed company with eaStock Exchanges
Municipal Corporation of Greater Mumbai
Maharashtra Housing Areas Development Authority

Maharashtra Industrial Development Corporation

The Memorandum of Association of Ackruti City Lirad

Mumbai Metropolitan Regional Development Authority

Memorandum of Understanding executed among our @amnpnd the GC-BRLM
and Co-Manager

A mutual fund registered with SEBI under the Sd@siand Exchange Board of
India (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996, as amended

Non-Resident Indian, as defined under FEMA

National Securities Depository Limited
National Stock Exchange of India Limited

A company, partnership, society or other corporbtely owned directly or
indirectly to the extent of at least 60% by NRIsliding overseas trusts, in which
not less than 60% of beneficial interest is irrealdg held by NRIs directly or
indirectly and which was in existence on Octobe2@)3 and immediately before
such date was eligible to benefits under the gémpamission granted to OCBs
under the FEMA

Permanent Account Number
The last date specified in the CAN sent to QIBsadicable

The Placement Document dated September 10, 200@dis® accordance with
Chapter VIII of the SEBI ICDR Regulations

The Preliminary Placement Document dated Augus2809 issued in accordance
with Chapter XIII-A of the Erstwhile SEBI Guidelisgnow rescinded and replaced
by the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

A Qualified Institutional Buyer as defined underdgRtation 2(1)(zd) of the SEBI
ICDR Regulations
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Terms
RBI

Registrar of Companies

or RoC

Registered Office

Regulation S

Relevant Member State

SCRA

SCRR

SEBI

SEBI Act

SEBI RegulationdSEBI

ICDR Regulations

Security Regulations

SEZ
SEZ Act
SFA
SICA

Slum Rehabilitation
Scheme

SPV

SRA

State

State Government
Stock Exchanges
STT

Subsidiaries

Ackruti Citymited - Placement Document

Description
The Reserve Bank of India

The Registrar of Companies, Mumbai having its effat situated at Everest, 100
Marine Drive, Mumbai 400002, Maharashtra, India

The registered office of our Company located atwikfrade Centre, Road No.7,
Marol MIDC, Andheri (E), Mumbai 400093, India

Regulation S under the U. S. Securities Act

Each Member State of the European Economic Aredchahas implemented the
Prospectus Directive 2003/71/EC

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 195@ndfa, as amended
The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 195Mdia, as amended
The Securities and Exchange Board of India

The Securities and Exchange Board of India Act2188 amended

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issbie€Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009, as amended

The Foreign Exchange Management (Transfer or Is§uBecurity By a Person
Resident Outside India) Regulations, 2000

Special Economic Zone established in accordandetivit SEZ Act

The Special Economic Zone Act, 2005 of India, asaded

Securities and Futures Act, Chapter 289 of Singapor

The Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisiohst) 1985, of India, as amended
A slum rehabilitation scheme sanctioned by the SRRAper the provisions of the
Maharashtra Slum Areas (Improvement, ClearanceRatevelopment) Act, 1971,
the Maharashtra Regional and Town Planning Act,6186d the provisions of the
Development Control Regulations for Greater Mumbab1

Special Purpose Vehicle

Slum Rehabilitation Authority set up under the Mashtra Slum Areas
(Improvement, Clearance and Redevelopment) Act]183 amended

Any state in the Republic of India
Government of a State

BSE and NSE

Securities Transaction Tax

The subsidiaries of our Company
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Terms

Takeover Code

TDR
Town Planning Act
UK

U. S. Securities Act

Ackruti Citymited - Placement Document

Description

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Subiatafsxcquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 1997, as amended

Transferable Development Rights
Maharashtra Regional and Town Planning Act, 1966
The United Kingdom of Great Britain

U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended
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DETAILS OF GLOBAL CO-ORDINATOR AND BOOK RUNNING LEA D MANAGER AND THE CO-
MANAGER AND OTHER ADVISORS TO THE ISSUE

Company Secretary

Mr. Chetan Mody

Akruti Trade Centre

Road No.7,

Marol MIDC, Andheri (E),

Mumbai — 400093.

India

Tel: +91-22-6703 7400

Fax: +91-22-2821 8230

E-mail: chetan.mody@ackruticity.com
Website: www.ackruticity.com

Global Co-ordinator and Book Running Lead Manager ad the Co-Manager

Anand Rathi Advisors Limited

Global Co-ordinator and Book Running Lead Manager
11" Floor, Times Tower, Senapati Bapat Marg
Lower Parel,

Mumbai — 400 013.

Tel: +91-22-4047 7000

Fax: +91-22-4047 7070

E-mail: ackruti.gip@rathi.com

Website: www.rathi.com

SEBI Registration Number: MB / INM000010478
Contact Person: V. Prashant Rao / Akshay Bhandari

Pioneer Investcorp Limited

Co-Manager

1218, Maker V, Nariman Point

Mumbai — 400 021.

Tel: +91-22-6618 6633

Fax: +91-22-6618 6623

E-mail: ackrutigip@pinc.co.in

Website: www.pinc.co.in

SEBI Registration Number: MB/INM000002988
Contact Person: Satish Acharya / Ojas Mody

Legal Advisor to the Issuer Legal Advisor to the Global Co-ordinator and
Book Running Lead Manager and the Co-Manager

Rajani Associates Crawford Bayley & Co.

204-207, Krishna Chambers Advocates and Solicitors

59, New Marine Lines State Bank Buildings,"4floor

Churchgate N. G. N. Vaidya Marg

Mumbai 400 020 Fort, Mumbai 400023

Tel: +91-22-4096 1000 Tel : +91-22-2266 8000

Fax: +91-22-4096 1010 Fax: +91-22-2266 0355

E-mail: sangeeta@rajaniassociates.net E-mail: sanjay.asher@crawfordbayley.com
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SUMMARY OF BUSINESS

The following summary provides an overview of tiermation contained in the Placement DocumentaBse
this is a summary, it does not contain all the infation that may be important to you. You shouladréhe
entire Placement Document, including the Financahtements, before you decide to invest in thetEqui
Shares. There are risks associated with any inveastnSome of the particular risks in investing hie Equity
Shares are set out in the section entitled "Riskt®&ia". You should read that section carefully befgou
decide to invest in the Equity Shares. In thisisactunless the context otherwise requires, refegsrto "we",
"us", "our" and "our Company" refer to Ackruti Cityimited our subsidiaries, joint ventures, assoesaand
partnership firms taken as a whole. Unless othezwisted, the total square footage numbers providetiis
section for projects undertaken by us through asses / joint ventures represent the total squaretdge of
development undertaken by the relevant joint venéurd not our proportionate interest in such squaage.
The data below in respect of acreage, square fatagl similar information relating to our Companiaads
and developments is based on management estimadehas not been independently appraised or verified
Reliance on such data should accordingly be limifddo see the risk entitled 'Our statements a¢as under
development are based on management estimatesaaedniot been independently appraised’, in the @ecti
entitled "Risk Factors".

We are a real estate development company baseduimbisi, India. At present, our primary businesshis t
development of commercial and residential propgr@ur operations include the identification anduasition

of land and land development rights and the plaprexecution and marketing of our projects. Our carcial
business operations involves us developing, sebind leasing of commercial office space, includaffice
towers and information technology parks, with au®n properties attractive to the information testbgy
(“IT), information technology enabled services THS”) and business processing outsourcing ("BPO")
enterprises. Our residential business operatioraa us developing multi-unit residential apartinkeuildings
with residences ranging from one bedroom flatsighdr end five bedroom flats.

A key focus area of our business has been reakedtavelopment on slum rehabilitation land, pursuarihe
Slum Rehabilitation Scheme ("SRS") initiated by tBeM in 1992, whereby in return for developing new
residential buildings for former slum dwellers, t8®@M grants us either the right to develop a proporof
former slum land for our own purposes or Transflerddevelopment Rights (“TDRs”), which permit us to
develop land in certain parts of Mumbai locatedsimlg the relevant slum area. Since undertakindisirreal
estate development project in 1989, we have deedi@pproximately 9.34 million square feet of depelb
area, of which approximately 6.51 million squaretfer approximately 70%, has been developed ah aade
available to us for development through our pagstition in slum rehabilitation projects. We have eleped
new dwellings on, and handed over free of chargpraximately 4.67 million square feet of residehtipace
on these slum rehabilitation lands to provide hogidor former slum dwellers. We have used the ramngi
slum rehabilitation lands made available to useweedbp approximately 1.84 million square feet déahble area
as commercial, residential and IT park projectst @articipation in slum rehabilitation projectsMumbai has
allowed us to obtain strategically located land dar real estate development projects at a lowst tt@an we
would have otherwise incurred for the purchaseoofigarable, developable urban land in Mumbai. THarua
development of approximately 2.83 million squaretf@r approximately 30%, has been developed throwg
slum rehabilitation projects.

Of the approximately 9.34 million square feet ofeahle area that have been developed by us since ou
Company’'s incorporation, we have developed appratély 3.97 million square feet independently, or
approximately 42% of such land, and approximate87 5million square feet, or approximately 58%, basn
developed either in partnership with other companie the real estate sector, as part of joint wentu
arrangements, or as part of a consortium.

Historically, we have focused our business on esthte development in Mumbai. However, as partusf o
growth strategy, we have expanded into Pune, THao@rat, Jaipur and Bengaluru, and intend to ectpaur
business into other cities, particularly where we &iture potential for our operations. We alseridtto further
diversify our business lines by selectively expigrnew concepts for large scale development psjscich as
townships, serviced apartments and hotels.
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In respect of our ongoing projects under develogmas of June 30, 2009 we have development rights f
approximately 13.04 million square feet of landeargrimarily located in Mumbai and other urban aréaf this
area, approximately 1.68 million square feet regméslum rehabilitation land and approximately 5Indllion
square feet represent land acquired or leased fhinth parties. We expect to develop approximatedy0Q
million square feet on these lands, of which apjnaxely 16.63 million square feet will be saleablea and
the balance approximately 2.37 million square fdfetonstructed new dwellings will be handed oveefiof
charge to former slum dwellers. In addition to #fsve, we expect to be granted approximately 1000square
feet of TDRs.

In respect of our future projects, as of June 8092 we have also initiated steps to acquire devedmt rights
over an additional approximately 17.89 million scuéeet of land area, primarily located in Mumbadather
urban areas. Our management expects, based onapplizoning regulations, to develop approximaBsy34
million square feet on these lands, of which apjnately 35.21 million square feet will be saleablea and
the balance approximately 4.13 million square f#etonstructed new dwellings will be handed oveefiof
charge to former slum dwellers. In addition to d®ve, we expect to be granted approximately 4D4sgdare
feet of TDRs.

Our sales, on a consolidated basis, have grownGAGR of 68.22% from Rs. 1,984.75 million for theay
ended March 31, 2007 to Rs. 5,616.35 million far slear ended March 31, 2009. Our profit after tax.a
consolidated basis, has grown at a CAGR of 108.62% Rs. 766.91 million for the year ended March 31
2007 to Rs. 3,337.63 million for the year ended d¥a31, 2009.
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SUMMARY OF THE ISSUE

This following is general summary of the termshef issue; this summary should be read in conjunocivih,
and is qualified in its entirety by more detailedarmation appearing in the Placement Documentluitiog

"Risk Factors".
Company / Issuer
Issue

Issue Price per Equity
Share

Issue Size

Equity Shares
outstanding prior and
after the Issue
Eligible Investors
Listing

Transferability
Restriction

Ranking

Use of Proceeds

Company Lock-up

Promoter Lock-up

Ackruti City Limited

6,035,871 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each for cash @ice of Rs. 501/- per Equity
Share, aggregating to Rs. 3023.97 million

501/-
The Issue of 6,035,871 Equity Shareseggting to Rs. 3023.97 million.

66,700,000 Equity Shares are issued and outstamctingediately prior to the Issue.
Immediately after this Issue, 72,735,871 Equityr8kavill be issued and outstanding.

QIBs as defined in Regulatiof)®£d) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Our Company shall make applications to 8teck Exchanges to obtain Listing and
Trading approvals for the Equity Shares offeredulgh the Placement Document.

The Equity Shares being allotted pursuant to t#8sié¢ shall not be sold for a period of
one year from the date of Allotment except on agedised stock exchange in India.
Please refer to the section entitled "Selling Retgtins" and "Transfer Restrictions"

relating to the sale of the Equity Shares.

The Equity Shares being issued pursuathigdssue shall be subject to the provisions
of our Company's Memorandum and Articles of Asdimieand shall rankari passu

in all respects with the existing Equity Shareduding rights in respect of dividends.
The shareholders will be entitled to participate dividends and other corporate
benefits, if any, declared by our Company afterdaée of allotment, in compliance
with the Companies Act. Shareholders may attendvaie in shareholders' meetings
in accordance with the provisions of the Compa#iiesand our Company's Articles
of Association. Also, see "Description of the Eguhares".

The proceeds of the Issue areatstinto be approximately Rs. 3,023.97 million,
before deducting the Issue expenses.

Subject to compliance with applicable laws and k&ipns, we intend to use the net
proceeds received from the Issue to fund our varepansion plans, meet long-term
working capital requirements, repay debts and figr@her permissible uses.

Our Company has agreed that neitheor any person acting on its behalf will (i)
issue, offer, sell, lend, mortgage, assign, cohti@sell, contract to sell or issue, sell
any option or contract to purchase, purchase amipropr contract to sell or issue,
grant any option, right or warrant to purchased|esr otherwise transfer or dispose of
(or publicly announce any such action), directlyirirectly, any Equity Shares or
any securities convertible or exchangeable intexercisable for, or substantially
similar to, any Equity Shares for a period of 9§<d&om the date of the MOU. For
further details please refer the section entitlddlatement” of the Placement
Document.

Each Promoter and each membehefptomoter group has entered into a lock-up
agreement in effect during the period commencinghendate of the MOU and ending
on the date falling 90 days after the date of tHeUM For further details please refer
the section entitled “Placement” of the Placementunent.
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Risk Factors Prior to making an investment decisionhis Issue, please refer sections entitled
"Risk Factors", "Financial Statements" and "Managets Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations".

Security Codes ISIN: INE703H01016
BSE Code: 532799
NSE Code: ACKRUTI - EQ
Bloomberg: AKCL:IN
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SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF OUR COMPANY

The selected audited consolidated financial infaéiomafor the years ended March 31, 2007, March2208
and March 31, 2009 and the unaudited financiallteglimited reviewed) for the quarter ended Jufe 2009
should be read in conjunction with our Companydited consolidated financial statements and sclesdahd
notes thereto and our Company’s unaudited finamesults (limited reviewed) for the quarter endade] 30,
2009 included in the Placement Document.

The selected audited consolidated balance sheatadhat profit and loss data for the years ended Madg
2007, March 31, 2008 and March 31, 2009 and cash dlata for the years ended March 31, 2008 and Marc
31, 2009 set forth below have been derived from@umpany's audited consolidated financial statesnort
such years, which have been prepared in accordaiticéndian GAAP and have been audited jointly bgl&

& Shah, Chartered Accountants together with (i) idd3oshi & Associates, Chartered Accountants, fa t
years ended March 31, 2008 and March 31, 2009 igndi@al D. Doshi, Chartered Accountants, for thear
ended March 31, 2007, joint statutory auditorspuf Company.

Neither the information set forth below nor therfiat in which it is presented should be viewed ansparable
to information prepared in accordance with IAS/IFBt®ther accounting principles.

Indian GAAP differs in certain material respectnfrlAS and IFRS.
The selected Financial Statements set forth belmwld be read in conjunction with "Management'scDésion

and Analysis of Financial Condition and ResultsQgferations” and our financial statements includedhée
Placement Document.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 °T MARCH 2009, 2008 AND 2007

Particulars
SOURCES OF FUNDS
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
Share Capital
Reserves and Surplus

Share Application Money
LOAN FUNDS

Secured Loans
Unsecured Loans

DEFFRRED TAX LIABILITY (Refer Note 4)
MINORITY INTEREST

TOTAL
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
FIXED ASSETS
Gross Block
Less:- Depreciation and Amortisation
Net Block
Capital Work — in — progress

INVESTMENTS

DEFFRRED TAX ASSET (Refer Note 4)
CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES
Inventories

Sundry Debtors

Cash and Bank Balances

Other Current Assets

Loans and Advances

LESS: CURRENT LIABILITIES AND
PROVISIONS

Current Liabilities

Provisions

NET CURRENT ASSETS

MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE (to the extent
not written off)
Loan Processing Fees and Other Finance Charges

TOTAL
Notes forming part of the Accounts
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Rs. in million
Schedule 2009 2008 2007
A 667.00 667.00 667.00
B 9,755.61 6,491.81 4,311.46
10,422.61 7,158.81  4,978.46
42.00 112.69 -
C
8,488.93 5,520.21 2,819.84
2,079.83 2,771.74  2,058.92
10,568.76 8,291.95 4,878.76
- - 1.32
1.85 19.78 1.19
21,035.22 15,583.23  9,859.73
D
759.90 1,256.47 1,037.34
109.55 212.13 144.53
650.35 1,044.34 892.81
331.22 104.72 2.67
981.57 1,149.06 895.48
E 3,025.41 2,276.47 2,746.84
103.72 316.95 -
F
7,729.94 4,351.21  1,584.27
4,517.39 45.41 716.02
109.75 402.84  1,333.47
740.83 323.73 2.58
6,153.15 8,926.58 3,570.58
19,251.06 14,049.77  7,206.92
G
2,142.71 1,548.84 659.72
240.03 660.18 329.79
2,382.74 2,209.02 989.51
16,868.32 11,840.75 6,217.41
20 56. - -
21,035.22 15,583.23  9,859.73
(0]
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2009,

2008 AND 2007

Particulars

Income
Sales and Income from Operations
Surplus on Sale of Interest in Project executealigin
subsidiary company
Share of Profit from Joint Ventures and Partnership
Firms (Net)
Other Income

TOTAL
Expenditure
Cost of Construction
(Increase) in Inventories
Purchase of Transferable Development Rights (TDR)
for Trade
Share of Loss from Joint Ventures and Partnership
Firms (Net)
Employment Costs
Administrative, Selling and General Expenses
Cost allocated to contractual interest in projects
executed through Associates, etc. amortised
Project Expenses written off
Interest and Finance Charges
Depreciation and Amortisation

TOTAL
Profit Before Tax, Before Minority Interest And
Share Of Profit / (Loss) Of Associates
Add/ (Less) : Provision for Taxation
- Current Tax
- Deferred Tax (Charge) / Credit
- Fringe Benefit Tax
- Wealth Tax
Profit After Tax, Before Minority Interest And
Share Of Profit / (Loss) Of Associates
Add / (Less) :
Share of Profit / (Loss) from Associate Companies
Minority Interest
Profit For The Year
Add / (Less) :
Balance brought forward from previous year
Capitalised towards issue of Bonus Shares
Amount Available For Appropriation
Appropriations :
Interim Dividend
Tax on Interim Dividend
Proposed Dividend
Tax on Proposed Dividend
General Reserve
Debenture Redemption Reserve
Balance carried to Balance Sheet
Earning per share of Rs. 10 each (Basic and Dilutgd
(Refer Note 9) (in Rs.)
Notes forming part of the Accounts
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Rs. in million

2008-09 2007-08 2006-07

5,028.27 3,340.01,894.76
376.90 - -

0.02 49.55 -

211.16 308.54 95.27
5,616.35 3,698.13 1,990.03

418585  2,398.46  1,031.53
(4,439.31)  (2,139.70) 45973)
- - 34.23

- - 5.28
148.70 69.67 67.33

B69. 223.92 169.36
58.51 - -

36.20 - -
1,402.25 615.37 9099.
57.13 69.31 62.10

1,818.49 1,237.03 1,110.00
3,797.86 2,461.10 880.03

(340.78) (403.47)  (115.09)

(213.02) 31451 512
(1.63) (1.66) (2.31)
(0.18) (0.25) (0.09)

3,242.25 2,370.23 767.66

92.03 (0.88) (0.76)
3.35 0.85 0.01
3,337.63  2,370.20 766.91

1,8954  20.31 460.95
- - 502
5233.06 2,391 1,175.36

- 120.06 -

- 20.40 -
66.70 46.69 100.05
17.11 7.93 17.00

0.12 300.00 38.00
- - 1,000.00
5,149.13 1,895.43 20.31
50.04 35.54 12.56
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEARS ENDE D

MARCH 31, 2009 AND 2008

Particulars
I CASH FLOW ARISING FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
Net Profit before Tax as per Profit and Loss Aatou
Add / (Deduct) :
Interest and Finance Charges
Project Expenses Written Off
Depreciation and Amortisation
Dividend from Current Investments
Profit on Sale of Current Investments
Interest Income
Minority Interest (Loss)
Provision for doubtful advances
Contractual Interest in projects executed througho&iates, etc. amortised
Loss / (Surplus) on Sale / Discardment of Fixedets$Net)

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes
Add / (Deduct) :

(Increase) in Inventories

(Increase) / Decrease in Trade and Other Receivable

(Increase) in Contractual Interests in Projectseterl through Associates, etc.

Increase in Trade Payables
Direct Taxes Paid

Net Cash Flow in the course of Operating Activitie

Il CASH FLOW ARISING FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Inflow / (Outflow) on account of :

Fixed Assets (Net)

Dividend from Current Investments

Profit on Sale of Current Investments

Interest Income

(Increase) in Loans and Advances (Including tow&ildare Application)
Acquisition of Joint Ventures and Subsidiaries (Net

Other Long term Investments Acquired (Net)

Current Investments Disposed off (Net)

Net Cash Flow in the course of Investing Activitis

I CASH FLOW ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Inflow / (Outflow) on account of :

Increase in Secured Loans

Increase/(Decrease) in Unsecured Loans

Share Application Money

Interest and Finance Charges

Dividend Paid

Securities Premium Account

Tax on Dividend Paid

Share Issue Expenses

Net Cash Flow in the course of Financing Activities

Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivats (I+1+111)
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Rs. in milio
2008-09 2007-08
3,797,86 2,461.10
1,402.25 615.37
36.20 -
57.13 69.31
(4.75) (22.15)
- (15.44)
(180.70) (231.28)
3.35 0.85
80.59 -
58.51 -
29.72 (1.43)
1,482.30 415.23
5,280.16 2,876.33
(2,773.09) (2,739.88)
(1,027.88) 1,453.92
(455.06) (321.15)
421.78 898.51
(313.29) (351.65)
(4,147.54) (3,968.09)
1,132.62 (1,091.76)
(233.16) (346.30)
4.75 22.15
- 15.44
180.70 231.28
(1,201.68) (1,831.85)
(861.20) (421.70)
(100.75) (1,446.64)
31.05 1,917.20
(2,180.29) (1,860.42)
2,900.02 2,655.14
(729.76) 672.16
- 95.79
(1,402.30) (613.99)
(46.69) (220.01)
9.98 -
(13.71) (37.41)
- (48.07)
717.54 2,503.61
(330.13) (448.57)
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Particulars 2008-09 2007-08

Add: Balance at the beginning of the year 350.08 761.09
Balances acquired on acquisition of Joint Ventureand Subsidiaries 58.14 37.56
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the close of the year 78.09 350.08
Reconciliation of Cash and Bank Balances givencineSule F, is as follows:-

Cash and Bank Balances 109.75 402.84
Less: Margin Money Balances (31.66) (52.76)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the close of the year 78.09 350.08

Note: The Accounting Standard AS-21 on 'Consolideféancial Statements' has become applicable to ou
Company for the first time for the financial yeaxdeng March 31, 2007. Hence previous years fighgge not
been compiled and disclosed. Further it is notirakto present the consolidated cash flow statémior the
years ending March 31, 2006 and March 31, 2007¢esithe opening balances which are relevant for
compilation of cash flows for 2006 — 2007, are anilable.
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RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

LIMITED REVIEW REPORT FOR THE QUARTER ENDED JUNE 30 , 2009

DALAL & SHAH DOSHI DOSHI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
252, Veer Savarkar Marg, 203, Sharda Chambers No. 1
Shivaji Park, 31, Keshaviji Naik Road
Dadar, Narsi Natha Street
Mumbai — 400 028 Mumbai — 400 009

LIMITED REVIEW REPORT

The Board of Directors,
ACKRUTI CITY LIMITED

We, M/s. Dalal & Shah (D&S) and M/s. Doshi Doshi &ssociates (DDA), have jointly reviewed the
accompanying statement of Unaudited Consolidatedrigial Results oACKRUTI CITY LIMITED (the
Company), its subsidiaries, joint ventures and @ases (collectively referred to as “the group®r the three
months ended 30June, 2009. These unaudited consolidated finanesallts of the group have been prepared
by the Company's Management on the basis of sepamaérim financial statements and other financial
information relating to the subsidiaries, joint uges and associates, for the period under reviBus
statement of unaudited consolidated financial tssulhich has been initialled by us for identifioatpurposes
only, has been prepared by the Company pursua@aose 41 of the Listing Agreements with the Stock
Exchanges in India. The statement of unauditedalmtaed financial results together with the ‘Notdgereto
which form an integral part thereof, is the resloitis/ of the Company’s management and has begmaved

by its Board of Directors. Our responsibility is issue a report on these financial statements baseour
review.

The consolidated financial results incorporatefthancial results of (i) one subsidiary and oneoaige which
have been reviewed by D&S; (ii) fourteen subsidigrione joint venture and three associates whica haen
reviewed by DDA; and (iii) three subsidiaries, nijént ventures and seven associates which have bee
reviewed by other auditors. Our report on the uitaddconsolidated financial results, to the extidwety have
been derived from such interim financial statemestbased solely on the report of such other atslit

The consolidated financial results also incorporatehe results of a subsidiary, three joint venturesand
two associates, the financial statements of whichatie been compiled by the management but have not
been reviewed by auditors.

We conducted our review in accordance with the &ethon Review Engagement (SRE) — 2400, Engagements
to Review Financial Statements issued by the itstiof Chartered Accountants of India. This staddeaguires

that we plan and perform the review to obtain matieassurance as to whether the financial statsraeatree

of material misstatement. A review is limited priha to inquiries of company personnel and anabftic
procedures applied to financial data and thus pesviess assurance than an audit. We have notpedaan
audit and accordingly, we do not express an auygiition.

Based on the limited review carried out by us,taged abovesubject to the consequential effect, if any, on
account of possible adjustments in respect of thénfincial statements, that have not been reviewed by
auditors, nothing has come to our attention that causes uselieve that the accompanying statement of
unaudited consolidated financial results prepdiedy in all material aspects, in accordance viita applicable
Accounting Standards notified pursuant to the Camgsa (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 as per @ecti
211(3C) of the Companies Act, 1956, and other reisegl accounting practices and policies, has remased
the information required to be disclosed in terrh€lause 41 of the Listing Agreement, including thanner

in which it is to be disclosed, or that it conta#émgy material misstatement.
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Further, on the basis of the records made avail@bles for our verification and the information,péanations
and representations made to us by the managemenhawe to state that, the information relating He t
aggregate amount of public shareholdings and tbmgter and non-promoter group (both pledged/encuecbe
and non-encumbered) as disclosed in the aforetgtehgent is in accordance therewith.

For and on behalf of For and on behalf of
DALAL & SHAH DOSHI DOSHI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
SHISHIR DALAL VIRAL DOSHI
Partner Partner
MembershiE No.: 37310 Membership No.: 105330
Mumbai: 7™ August, 2009
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Consolidated unaudited financial results for the fist quarter ended June 30, 2009

Particulars

Income

Net Sales / Income from Operations

Surplus on sale of Interest in Project

Other Operating Income

Expenditure

(Increase) / Decrease In Stock In Trade & WIP
Cost of Construction

Depreciation & Amortization

Employees Cost

Other Expenditure

Profit from Operations before Other Income, Insere
and Exceptional Items

Other Income

Profit before Interest and Exceptional Items
Interest and Finance Charges

Profit after Interest but before Exceptional Items
Exceptional Items

Profit (+)/ Loss (-) from Ordinary Activities bafe Tax
Tax Expenses

Net Profit (+)/ Loss (-) from Ordinary Activitieafter
Tax

Extraordinary Items

Net profit for the period
Goodwill on Acquisition Written off

Pre acquisition Loss
Minority Interest
Share of Profit /(Loss) from Associates (Net)
ConsolidatedNet Profit

Paid up Equity Share Capital

Face Value (in Rs)

Reserves excluding Revaluation Reserves as pendeala

sheet of previous accounting year

Basic & Diluted EPS before Extraordinary items Rs)
Basic & Diluted EPS after Extraordinary items (18.R
Public Shareholding — Number of Shares
Percentage of Public Shareholding

Promoters and Promoter Group Shareholding
Pledged / Encumbered

Number of Shares

Percentage of Shares (as a % of the total shaiagabé
Promoter and promoter group)

Percentage of Shares (as a% of the total shaielcafp
the Company)

Non-encumbered

Number of Shares

Percentage of Shares (as a% of the total shaiabaf
Promoter and promoter group)

Percentage of Shares (as a % of the total shpilcaf
the Company)
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Quarter ended

June 30
2009 2008
Unaudited Unaudited
409.40 2,344.20
409.00 2,343.40
0.40 0.80
(59.70) 163.80
(988 (1,418.00)
376.70 1,465.60
11.50 47.10
40.40 17.40
100.60 51.70
469.10 2,180.40
35.00 44.40
504.1 2,224.80
363.60 296.20
140.50 1,928.60
140.50 1,928.60
74.20 220.70
66.30 1,707.90
66.30 1,707.90
(5.30) (0.10)
3.10 -
0.30 1.70
35.80 (0.50)
100.20 1,709.00
667.00 667.00
10.00 10.00
1.50 25.62
1.50 25.62
6,700,000 703000
10.04 10.04
29,323,000
48.87
43.96
30,677,000
51.13
46.00

Rs. in million
Year ended
March 31
2009

Audited
4,351.60
3,970.80
376.90
3.90
309.80
(4,545.70)
4,185.90
57.10
148.70
463.80
4,041.80

207.20
4,249.00
1,802.2
2,846.80

2,846.80
294.80
2,552.00

2,552.00
0(10)
0.10
3.30
92.00
2,647.30
667.00
10.00

9,755.60
39.69
39.69

6,700,000

10.04

28,588,712
47.65
42.87

31,411,288
52.35

47.90
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The above consolidated results were reviewed byAtidit Committee and thereafter approved by the
Board of Directors at their respective meetingslf@i August 07, 2009. The Statutory Auditors have
carried out a limited review of the Unaudited Cditsded Financial Results for the first quarter exhd
June 30, 2009. The consolidated financial resuéésabmitted to the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited
(BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Limi@5E) and made available on the Company’'s
website — www.ackruticity.com and on the websites BSE (www.bseindia.com) and NSE
(www.nseindia.com).The Company has already pulbtisteestandalone results, which were reviewed
by the Audit Committee and thereafter approvedhayBoard of Directors at their respective meetings
held on July 29, 2009.

The revenue recognition policy presently followedthe Company is that, the revenue from sale of
incomplete projects is currently recognized on thesis of percentage of completion method,
determined on the basis of physical proportionhef work completed, as certified by the Company's
technical personnel, in relation to a contract graup of contracts within a project, only aftee thiork
has progressed to the extent of 40% of the totakwwolved.

At the meeting of the Audit and Compliance Commaitté the Directors of the Company held on July
29, 2009 to consider the Unaudited Standalone EiabResults for the First Quarter ended June 30,
2009, the Audit and Compliance Committee has recenu®d to realign the Revenue Recognition
norms for its percentage of completion method bagéu those norms that are generally followed in

the Industry so as to make the financial resulteparable.

The Board, on recommendation of the Audit and Caanpe Committee of the Directors of the

Company, has decided that the revenue recogniticyppresently followed by the Company be

changed by the Company such that going forward fleenSecond Quarter of the current financial
year, revenue from sale of incomplete projectsdmmgnized in stages upon incurring of 25% of the
project cost and upon receipt of 10% of unit salestderation.

During the quarter under review (i) Akruti CampusResearch and Education Pvt Ltd, Akruti City
Farming Pvt Ltd, Akruti City Knowledge Pvt Ltd, Alkti City Venture Capital Pvt Ltd, Akruti City
Venture Capital Management Pvt Ltd, Akruti GuestliRvt Ltd, Akruti Security Plates Pvt Ltd,
Citygold Education Research Ltd, Citygold Farming Btd, Harmony Erectors Pvt Ltd and Oracle
Shelters Pvt Ltd became subsidiaries of the Compamng (ii) Agreem Properties Ltd ceased to be a
subsidiary and has now become an associate.

The consolidated financial results have been pezpar accordance with Accounting Standards AS -
21 "Accounting Standards on Consolidated FinanBtatements"; AS - 27 “Financial Reporting of
Interests in Joint Ventures”; and AS - 23 “Accougtfor Investments in Associates in Consolidated
Financial Statements.

The Company operates in the business of real edéatelopment which as per Accounting Standard
AS - 17 is presently the only reportable busineggrent. The Company is primarily operating in India
which is considered as a single geographical segridée consolidated financial results incorporate
the results of subsidiaries, joint ventures andaases, including Akruti Warehousing Ltd (AWL) and
Akruti Security Plates Pvt Ltd (ASPPL), both sulisitts of the Company which are yet to commence
commercial operations. The operations of theseidiabes would fall within segments separate from
the existing one of builders and developers. Howegensolidated segment information would be
given once AWL and ASPPL commence operations. Dmsalidated financial results also incorporate
the results of a subsidiary, three joint ventured two associates, the financial statements of livhic
have been compiled by the management but havea®t keviewed by the respective auditors. The
incorporated revenues and net results of thestesndire not material.

Inventory carrying costs include interest and offir@ance charges as per the principles of Accogntin
Standard AS-16 (Borrowing Costs).
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6. Status of investors’ complaints for the quarterezhdune 30, 2009 :
Opening : Nil ; Received : 6 ; Resolved : 6 ; @igs: Nil.

7. Figures of the previous period / year, have beeamowged / reclassified, wherever necessary, to
conform to those of the current period.
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RISK FACTORS

Investment in Equity Shares of our Company invodvbigh degree of risk. Investors should carefatiynsider
the risks described below before making an investrdecision. If any of the risks described belowualty
occur, our Company's business, results of operatiand financial condition may be adversely affectad
trading price of our Equity Shares may decline god may lose all or part of your investment. Unlgsscified
or quantified in the relevant risk factors belowetfinancial implications of any of the risks men#gd below
may not be possible to quantify. The risks enuradraerein below are not exhaustive. We may be ciutge
several other risks, some of which may not be ptis&nown to us. Any one or more risks not enuteera
herein below, if they occur, may have a materialeade impact on our Company's business, results of
operations and financial condition. The PlacememicDment also contains forward-looking statemengs th
involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual resuttsuld differ materially from those anticipated these
forward-looking statements as a result of certaanotérs, including the considerations described heknd
elsewhere in the Placement Document. Prospectivestors should pay particular attention to the féett we
are an Indian company and are subject to a legal amgulatory environment which may differ in cemtai
respects from that of other countries. Prior to fngkan investment decision, prospective investard a
purchasers should carefully consider all of theoinfiation contained in the Placement Document (idiclg the
financial statements incorporated in the Placeni2mtument).

RISKS RELATED TO OUR COMPANY

We are dependent on the performance of, and preuagilconditions affecting, the real estate market in
Mumbai and other areas where we propose to developprojects.

Historically, we have focused our real estate dgwelent activities in and around the city of Mumbaiia,
and have recently forayed into other cities in Westindia. To date, all of our completed real estat
developments and the majority of our projects untteelopment are located in and around Mumbai amgP
As a result, our business, prospects, results efatipns and financial condition have been and eafitinue to
be heavily dependent on the performance of, andapieg conditions affecting, the real estate marke
Western India in general, and Mumbai in particular.

The real estate market in Mumbai and surroundiegamay perform differently from, and be subjeantorket
and regulatory developments different from, reahtesmarkets in other cities or areas in India. ¥danot
assure you that the demand for our real estatelag@wents in Mumbai will continue to grow, or willoh
decrease, in the future. The real estate marketuimbai may be affected by various factors outsidecmntrol,
including prevailing local economic conditions, olgas in the supply of and demand for propertiesparable
to those we develop, and changes in applicable rgowvental schemes including those relating to slum
rehabilitation in Mumbai. These and other factorayntontribute to changes in real estate prices thad
availability of land in Mumbai, and may adverselfeat our business, prospects, results of operatimd
financial condition. We have recently expanded iotioer cities, including Surat, Vadodara and Jaipirere
we do not have prior experience of executing afithgeprojects in these areas. The real estate etankthese
cities may be affected by factors similar to thtsat may affect the real estate market in Mumba ether
factors beyond our control, which may adverselyeeffour business, prospects, results of operatoms
financial condition.

Our ability to obtain suitable development sitescagenerate revenues could be adversely affectecry
changes to the slum rehabilitation schemes currgnith effect in Mumbai.

Of the nearly 9.34 million square feet of buildiagea that we have developed to date, approxim&&ly
million square feet, or 70%, has been developethod over which we obtained development rights ugio
our participation in slum rehabilitation projects Mumbai. To date we have constructed over 10,00 in
Mumbai to house slum dwellers.

Our slum rehabilitation projects are developed pans$ to the Slum Rehabilitation Scheme containethé
Development Control Regulations for Greater Bomba991 (the "DCR") promulgated by the MCGM
exercising its powers under the Maharashtra RebamhTown Planning Act, 1966 (the "Town Planningt\

In consideration for the construction of units bum dwellers, we receive development rights fodlén the
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cleared former slums, or transferable developmights ("TDRs") for the construction of buildingsseWwhere
in Mumbai that we may use in connection with oureotprojects or may sell to third parties. Our ipito

obtain suitable building sites for our projectsMimmbai in the future, and our cost of acquiring elepment
rights over such sites, could be adversely affebiedny changes to the Slum Rehabilitation ScheheeDCR,
the Town Planning Act, any other regulations goirggrsuch matters or any changes in their interpioetaor

implementation. If the slum rehabilitation scheneseffect in Mumbai were to significantly change log

terminated, we may be required to purchase devielepgand from third parties at significantly inceea cost,
and may not be able to acquire development rights sufficient suitable land at acceptable costoiar future
development projects.

Our revenues could be adversely affected by charigeke TDR regime in Mumbai.

We and other developers are subject to municiairphg and land use regulations in effect in theridai area
which limit the maximum square footage of complébedding we may construct on plots to specifiedoanmnts,
calculated as a ratio to the land surface of edoh im place of development rights over clearedrier slum
land, we also sometimes receive TDRs as compenstdioour development of permanent housing for slum
dwellers. TDRs permit developers to use developmégiits generated elsewhere in the event that the
applicable planning and land use regulations fpadicular plot do not allow full utilization of éhgenerated
development rights. We own TDRs which we have aeguas a result of our involvement in slum rehtdiibon
projects. In the past, we have derived revenuas Bales of TDRs to third parties. Use of TDRs igjett to
various rules, regulations and conditions, whichyrha modified by the government from time to tink@r
example, in Mumbai, TDR's can be utilized by thgdyuwnly in areas that are north of the slum lamere the
TDRs are generated. However, if the regulationsewsranged to disallow the sale or utilisation of RED
and/or planning and land use regulations in Mumbaie to be significantly relaxed or terminated sot@a
permit additional building square footage to bestnrcted on existing plots, the TDRs we hold, ogimihold

in future, may become less valuable and we mayledve significant value from their sale in theuiwt, which
might affect our results of operations and finahc@ndition.

We recognize revenue based on the ‘Percentage ahg@etion Method’ of accounting on the basis of our
management’s estimates of the project cost. Ourerayes may fluctuate significantly from period to fed.

We recognize the revenue generated from our retiddesnd commercial projects on the ‘Percentage of
Completion Method’ of accounting. Under this methsale revenue is recognized on the basis of theafdhe
percentage of the physical proportion of work caetgdl, as certified by our Company’s technical pens
against the total estimated cost of constructiothef project. We cannot assure you that these astgwill
match with the actual cost incurred in respechebe projects. The effect of changes to estimate=cbgnized

in the financial statements of the period in whiglch changes are determined. Therefore, our revenue
recognition is based on the number of projectsdhatify for such revenue recognition that are uredecution
during a particular period. This may lead to sigwifit fluctuations in our revenues from period ¢oipd.

Prior to July 1, 2009, we recognized sale revemdeuthe ‘Percentage of Completion Method’ of acting

only if the cost of the physical proportion of wartkmpleted on the last date of the financial stat@swas at
least 40% of the total construction cost of thegmbas estimated by the management. From Jul9d9,2ve
have recognized sale revenue under the ‘Percenfagempletion Method’ of accounting only if the aat cost
of the physical proportion of work completed on tast date of the financial statements is at 18&8b of the
total construction cost of the project as estimégthe management and upon receipt of 10% ofsahéts. The
change to our ‘Percentage of Completion Methodbaating policy will result in a change in the pretgion

of the effects of transactions on our financiatestzents. In particular, such change may resultie evenue
being recognized earlier in the life of a projenter the method in effect from July 1, 2009 in canigpn than
when recognized in the life of a project under thethod in effect prior to July 1, 2009. This maywéa

significant impact on the amount of revenue recoeghifor a particular project in a particular quageen if the
total amount of revenue recognized for such projentld have been the same under either method.

In the event of any change in law or Indian GAARtttequires a change in the method of revenue nétog,

the financial results of our operations may be sshlg affected. For the details of the method oferaie
recognition, see the paragraph titled Significamicdunting Policies — Revenue Recognition in thetisec
entitled "Management’s Discussion and AnalysisioBRcial Conditions and Results of Operations".
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Our title and development rights over land may héct to various legal defects and the uncertairtythe
title to our real estate assets could have a matieaidverse impact on our current and future revenue

A sizeable portion of our existing land reservessists of land occupied by slums and/or land betantp the
Government or other statutory authorities. The titl our existing land reserves and land for whiehseek to
obtain development rights that does not belonghto Government or the statutory authorities (i.edlgor
development other than pursuant to SRS and PPBd&Bpjmay be fragmented and the land, in many cases
have multiple owners. Additionally, some of our jeis are being executed through joint ventures in
collaboration with third parties. In some of thggejects, the title to the land may be owned by onmore of
such third parties. In such instances, there canobassurance that the persons with whom we emt@rjgint
ventures or collaboration agreements have cldarttitsuch land.

Also, our title and development rights over land subject to various title-related legal defects the may not
be able to fully identify, resolve or assess. While seek to retain local lawyers to issue legahiopis
confirming our title to lands in connection withrquurchase of land from third parties, our rightgeéspect of
these lands may be compromised by improperly erecutnregistered or insufficiently stamped convegan
instruments in the property's chain of title, unsegyed encumbrances in favour of third partieghtd of
adverse possessors, ownership claims of spoussbherfamily members of prior owners, or otheetitlefects
that we may not be aware of. Such or other titfeats may result in our loss of title or developineghts over
land, and the cancellation of our development pilan®spect of such land, thereby negatively imipgcour
business and financial condition. Our failure tdait good title to a particular plot of land may terélly
prejudice the success of a development for whieh fhot is a critical part, and may cause us tdewaff
substantial expenditures in respect of a project.

We also face various practical difficulties in Wgig the title of a prospective seller or lessérpooperty.
Indian law, for example, recognises the abilitypefsons to effectuate a valid mortgage on an ustesgid basis
by the physical delivery of original title documertb a lender. Adverse possession under Indiaralaw gives
rise upon 12 years occupation to valid ownershgpts as against all parties, including governmaitities that
are landowners, without the requirement of redistna of ownership rights by the adverse possessor.
Furthermore, under Indian law, a married persoaimstproperty rights in land alienated by theirus@if such
married person has not consented to such alienaffectively requiring consent by each spouselitdéaad
transfers in order for a transferee to receive gated In addition, Indian law recognises the cgpicof a Hindu
Undivided Family, whereby all family members jointbwn land and must consent to its transfer, inolgd
minor children, absent whose consent a land transfgy be challenged by such non-consenting family
member. Our title to land may be defective as alte$ a failure on our part, or on the part ofreoptransferee,

to obtain the consent of all such persons. As #¢aisfer in a chain of title may be subject to éhaad other
various defects, our title and development rightsrdand may be subject to various defects, of whie may
not be aware. We may face claims of third partieswnership or use of the land after purchasinghtaining
development rights in respect of land, and whespudes can not be resolved through accommodatidths w
such claimants, we may lose our interest in thd.ldultiple property registries exist, and veritica of title is
difficult.

Further, property records in India have not bedly ftomputerised and are generally maintained méyuath
physical records of all land related documentscilgire also manually updated. This updating procassake
a significant amount of time and can result in maacies or errors and increase the difficulty bfaming
property records and/or materially impact our &piio rely on them. As a result, the title of tlealrproperty in
which we may invest may not be clear or may beoinbd

Legal disputes arising in respect of land title take several years and considerable expensedlvees they
become the subject of legal proceedings and the@ome can be uncertain. Under Indian law, a éideument
generally is not effective, nor may be admittedea&lence in court, unless it has been registeret thie
applicable land registry and applicable stamp thaty been paid in respect of such title documerd.faiture of
prior landowners to comply with such requirementsymesult in our failing to have acquired validetior
development rights. Further, there are also remerds to cancel the title in revenue records, aidré to do
so may also lead to an imperfect title and chaksrtg title.
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In addition to exposing us to legal disputes, tieeutainty of title to land may make the acquisitiand
development process more complicated, impede &amsftitte and adversely affect our valuations,ichhin
turn may have a material adverse effect on oumiessi, results of operations and financial condition

Prospective investors should note that in connectidgth the Issue, the Domestic Legal Counsel to the
Company, Domestic Legal Counsel to the GC-BRLM @odManager or the GC-BRLM and Co-Manager have
not provided any opinions or other assurancesspa of land title.

We have not yet obtained title certificates for sewf our properties. Further, the title certificasereceived by
us in respect of certain properties do not providesolute confirmation of our title to, or developmierights
in respect of, such properties.

We have not yet obtained title certificates frorndblawyers in respect of some parcels of land bdickvwe
intend to develop portions of projects that areasncbnstruction or that are planned as future ptsjeTitle
certificates prepared and delivered by local lawyeho are generally knowledgeable with respecbc¢allland
records provide us with additional comfort regagdour Company’s title to such parcels or its depsient
rights with respect to such parcels. Further, titletificates delivered to our Company for someppries may
not provide absolute confirmation of or title to, development rights in respect of, such propeftes/arious
reasons, including, among other things, (i) thealdawyers not having full access to local landores; (ii)
objections raised to public notices issued by Idawlyers in respect of the relevant properties) fiending
litigation with respect to such properties; ang {he existence of agreements entered into withicipal/local
authorities in respect of such properties. In aoldjtcertain title certificates are issued in thend of opinions,
findings, or investigation reports instead of ie florm of title certificates. For these reasonscamnot assume
that title certificates conclusively confirm outlei to, or development rights in, properties foriethwe have
received such title certificates. Any uncertaintitharespect to title to property or developmenthtiyto
property may expose us to legal disputes, may nta&edevelopment process more complicated, impede
transfer of title and adversely affect our valuasiowhich in turn may have a material adverse efbacour
business, results of operations and financial ¢mrdi

We may not be able to acquire or register all oryaof the lands for which we have entered into MOUSs.

We enter into MOUs for some of the properties thatacquire prior to acquiring such properties. Vdarmot

assure you that such lands will be conveyed tdhas,we will be successful in acquiring them ort thre will be

successful in registering them in the name of cam@any or in the name of our Subsidiaries, Assesjaloint
Ventures and Partnerships among others. We alswotassure you that these lands will be acquirethet
prices set forth in the respective MOUs. In sonsances, price increases may even cause us toadeuo

acquire these lands. Any such development couldcaféur business, prospects, results of operatoms
financial condition.

We are not able to obtain title insurance guaranieg title or land development rights. While we fol due
diligence procedures in relation to land acquisitipwe cannot assure that such procedures would l¢ad
acquisition of a defect-free title.

Title insurance is not commercially available imibnto guarantee title or land development rightseispect of
land. The difficulty of obtaining title insurance India means that title records provide only foegumptive
rather than guaranteed title, and that we facesumed risk of loss of lands we believe we own egés in or
have development rights over.

Prior to undertaking each project, we conduct dligethce and assessment exercises in relation tewship of
the property to be developed. Once we have idedtifi plot which may be suitable for development, we
together with our local lawyers, conduct title stes and due diligence investigations in respedard we
desire to develop, including a review of land ovehgp records, and publish a notice in newspapetisaan
official publication requesting any persons claighownership of the land to state their claims. We aeek to
retain local lawyers to issue legal opinions caniitg our interests in lands in connection with purchase of
land from third parties. In spite of such efforse can provide no assurance that we have val@ditlrights in
respect of all of the land we believe we own orehdevelopment rights over and are unable to inagegnst
such risk.
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A lack of title insurance, coupled with difficulsen verifying title to land, may increase our egpre to third
parties claiming title to the property. This couédult in a delay in us selling the property orreadoss of title
to the property, affect valuations of the propeny,otherwise materially prejudice the developmehthe
property which could in turn have an adverse eff@etour business, results of operations and fiédnci
condition.

We may not be successful in identifying suitableojcts, which may hinder its growth.

Our ability to identify suitable projects is fundantal to our business and involves certain risksutiing
identifying and acquiring appropriate land, appgglto the tastes and price points of our resideatiel
commercial customers, and understanding and regppia their expectations and demands by anticipatie
changing trends.

Further, in identifying new SEZ projects, we needake into account land use regulations, the algily and
commitment from the State government to provide site infrastructure, the requirement for suitable
rehabilitation of project affected persons, thedlarproximity to resources such as water and ébégirthe
target sectors, expectations of its SEZ custonmerslation to the infrastructure and amenitieséghovided as
also their perception of the State.

We cannot assure that our Company would be suedeissidentifying suitable projects that meet marke
demand in the future. If we fail to anticipate aredpond to consumer requirements, we could losenpat
clients to competitors, and be involved with losaking, unviable, unsaleable or unprofitable prgett the
costs for rehabilitation are higher than the est@uacosts, our profitability may be adversely intpdc Any
failure to identify suitable projects, build or ddop saleable properties or anticipate and resporulistomer
demand in a timely manner could have an adverseteffin our business, results of operations anddiaa
condition.

Our business is dependent on the availability ofareestate financing in India. Difficult conditionsin the
global capital markets and the economy generallyvhaaffected and may continue to materially adveysel
affect our business and results of operations andyrcause us to experience limited availability ahfis.

The real estate market is significantly affected dianges in government policies, economic condition
demographic trends, employment and income level$ iaterest rates, among other factors. Economic
developments outside India have adversely affetiiedproperty market in India and the Company's aller
business. Since the last two years, the globaltcneatkets have experienced, and may continue pergeence,
significant dislocations and liquidity disruptionshich have originated from the liquidity disrupi®in the
United States and the European Union credit andpsiniie residential mortgage markets. These androthe
related events, such as the recent collapse ofrdb@uof financial institutions, have had and camito have a
significant adverse impact on the availability oédit and the confidence of the financial marketepally as
well as in India. The deterioration in the finanaiaarkets has heralded a recession/deceleratigmowth in
many countries (including India), which has ledsignificant declines in employment, household wealt
consumer demand and lending and as a result affecttnomic growth in India and elsewhere.

On account of the prevailing conditions of the gibland Indian credit markets, and the negative ohpa
expected from below-normal monsoons, it is expettat the buyers of property will remain cautiorentals

of commercial properties are expected to contimuéate downward pressure and consumer sentiment and
market spending are expected to continue to beateuin the near-term. These factors could haveriges of
effects on our business, which may adversely affextresults of our operations and future growtbtberwise
decrease revenue generated from some or all ofesigential, commercial or retail businesses. Theffects
include, but are not limited to, decreases in Hiessof, or market rates for, the residential degwelent projects;
delays in the release of certain of the residemtiajects in order to take advantage of futurequkyiof more
robust real estate demand; decreases in rentat@rpancy rates for the commercial or retail prapsert
insolvency of key contractors resulting in constiwre delays; insolvency of key tenants in the comuiaé¢ and
retail properties; inability of customers to obtairedit to finance purchase of our properties andistomer
insolvencies. In addition, changes in the globatl dndian credit and financial markets have recently
significantly diminished the availability of crediind led to an increase in the cost of financirgh or the
developers and for the buyers. We may have ditfjcatcessing the financial markets, which could enak
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more difficult or expensive to obtain finding inetfiuture. There can be no assurance that we widlie to
raise finance at a reasonable cost.

Our Promoters have pledged Equity Shares of our Gmmy as security/additional security under various
financing documents. In the event of any defaultsder the financing documents, the lenders may dai
pledged Equity Shares in the open market resulting a substantial reduction of the Promoters'
shareholding, which may result in a change of coatrof the Company and could affect the trading peiof
the Equity Shares.

As on August 07, 2009, our Promoters/promoter gritaye pledged 29,748,000 Equity Shares in our Campa
which amounts to approximately 50% of the holdirfigoar Promoters and promoter group, as security for
various loans/credit facilities received from baaksl financial institutions. Of these, a significportion of the
shares have been pledged as security / additiecatisy / collateral security for the loans takentbe Ackruti
Group for various projects. Given that a substam@tion of the shareholding of the Promoters basn
pledged to banks and financial institutions, ifrthis any default under the financing documentsf, the Equity
Shares of our Company go below a certain pre-détexdnthreshold limit and our Company is unable to
provide suitable additional security, margin calleuld be triggered, the pledgee(s) could call fddiaonal
security, or they may sell the Equity Shares pledge them in the open market, thereby reducing the
shareholding of our Promoters. In the event thera substantial sale of Equity Shares in the-oparken by
any pledgee(s), it may lead to further reductiontie market price, which may trigger sales by farth
pledgee(s) and may lead to loss of control of owon®ters on our Company. The interests of the new
promoters, if any, may not be aligned with or cotdaflict with the interests of other shareholdensl this may
adversely affect our operations.

The Takeover Code and the Listing Agreement haea lbenended in 2009 to provide for disclosure ofigdel

(in case of Takeover Code)/ encumbered (in caséigiing Agreement) shares held by promoters. The
Takeover Code requires disclosure in case of plesigerelease of pledge of promoters and promotaupgr
while the Listing Agreement requires disclosurenfumbrances on promoter and promoter group shdiebo
on a quarterly basis with the financial statemebisclosures in the public domain of further ple@jeor sale

of pledged Equity Shares would have a negative ainpa public perception regarding our Company and
consequently the price of its Equity Shares.

Our statements as to areas under development arsedaon management estimates and have not been
independently appraised.

The acreage and square footage data presentea iRldlcement Document are essentially forward |apkin
statements based on management estimates anddtaveen independently appraised. Further, the geraad
square footage actually developed or under devetopmmay differ materially and substantially frometh
amounts presented herein, based on various fadithkiding those beyond our control) such as market
conditions, changes in development plans, in bujdiorms, changes in municipal or local regulatiditke
defects and any inability to obtain necessary r&guy approvals. Accordingly, reliance on such ddtauld be
limited.

Our Company may undertake projects jointly with tHiparties, which entail certain risks.

Certain of our projects may also consist of joiehtures or may be undertaken in collaboration \hird

parties. In projects of such nature, the titleh® kand may be owned by one or more of these pardes and
we, by virtue of the development or collaborati@nements, acquire development rights to the Itakt of

these collaboration agreements confer rights otounstruct, develop, market and sell the builtanga to
third party buyers. Such collaboration agreemeptat convey any interest in the immovable propéitg
land or the building) to us and only the developtmaght is transferred to us.

Investments through joint ventures also involvésjsncluding the possibility that our joint vergupartners
may fail to meet their financial or other obligatf causing the whole project to suffer. In relatto any
project, which involves collaboration with third rias, we cannot assure you that these projects hail
completed as scheduled or that our relations wWidse parties will be successful. Further, our jorrture
partners may have business interests or goalgthahconsistent with our business interests ofsg@isputes
that may arise between us and our joint venturtnges' may cause delay in completion, suspensiaomplete
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abandonment of the project. This may have a m&idierse impact on our business, results of opasmand
financial condition. For details on projects deysld under joint venture with third parties, please "Business
Overview".

Our Company and its Subsidiaries have entered ipartnerships that are subject to unlimited liabiitunder
the provisions of the Indian Partnership Act, 1932.

Under the Indian Partnership Act, 1932, (the "Rahip Act") all partners of a general partnershgve

unlimited liability in respect of all the liabilgis of such partnership. Consequently, our Compawlyeach
Subsidiary that has entered into a general paftipers subject to unlimited liability in respect eéch general
partnership into which it has entered. As of July 3009, our Company and / or its Subsidiariesagpartner in
various partnerships. Our unlimited liability inspect of one or more of these partnerships couddlirén us

incurring actual liabilities to an extent that nréa#y and adversely affects our financial conditiand results of
operations.

Some of our partnerships are partnerships-at-wiiat may be dissolved at any time by another partner
which could materially affect the successful comiitm of the projects for which we have entered indach
partnership.

Some of the partnerships we have entered into ategrships-at-will under the Partnership Act. Renghips-
at-will may be dissolved at any time by any partierthe event any of our partnerships-at-will issdlved
prior to completion of the relevant project, thengetion of such project may be adversely affectetuich in
turn may adversely affect the results of operatams financial condition of our Company.

We have not yet entered into a formal contractuarangement with the Gujarat State Road Transport
Corporation ("GSRTC”) for certain real estate progs located in Gujarat.

Some of our prospective commercial real estateeptsjinvolve the redevelopment of five bus ternsnal
certain cities in Gujarat. These projects wouldihdertaken on a Public Private Partnership ("PBRS)s with
the GSRTC. Currently, however, the commercial teofrthe PPPs with the GSRTC in respect of thesp gt
are being renegotiated as a result of the dowrituthe real estate market. The GSRTC has not gaedto us
a formal notice in respect of revised terms fosthBPPs, but we expect formal notices to be issuesd in the
near future. However, there can be no assurantevihavill be issued any such formal notices emiglus to
proceed with these projects. If we do not receine or more of such formal notices, our results mération
and financial condition may be adversely affected.

We are required to pay a refundable and/or a norftnedable deposit on a per acre basis, in relatiandur
joint development agreements to the owner(s) of lgmed.

We enter into joint development agreements withowar third parties that require us to obtain corsé&mm
the relevant statutory bodies to pursue the unuhgrlprojects. Under these agreements, we are estjud
complete the construction within a specified timenfe. Further, we are required to provide the owiérthe
land with a refundable deposit and a non-refunddbleosit per acre of the land. Under the joint tgyment
agreement, we are also required to indemnify sustigs with whom we have joint development agredmen
with respect to the area developed by us. We caaina@tys confirm on a timely basis that the thirdties with
whom we enter into joint development agreement® t@dwar and valid title. In the event that theetitb such
land is not clear and valid, we may not be ablddeelop such lands. We may also not be able tovezdbe
refundable deposits made by us to the owners ofath@ in addition to loss of non-refundable defosThis
could have a material adverse impact on our busipesspects, financial condition or results of atiens.

It is difficult to predict our future performancepr compare our historical performance between pefi as
our revenue fluctuates significantly from period fzeriod.

Under the percentage of completion method of regemgognition, our revenue from sales depends tip®n
volume of bookings we are able to obtain for ouredlepments as well as the rate of progress of cactitn of
our projects. Our bookings depend on our abilityntarket and pre-sell our projects and the willirgmef our
customers to pay for developments or enter inte agteements well in advance of receiving possessithe
properties. Construction progress depends on arfaators, including the availability of labour amaw
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materials, the prompt receipt of regulatory cleaesnand the absence of contingencies such adibtigand
adverse weather conditions. The occurrence of anly sontingencies could cause our revenues andsptof
fluctuate significantly. We also derive some remgrevenues from rental income in respect of ammercial
real estate developments, and recognise revermasgenerating FSI in slum rehabilitation buildingscertain
periods we also derive revenue from the sale byrusur joint ventures of TDRs. We complete differin
numbers of projects in each period, and cannotigiredth certainty the rate of progress of constiarc or time
of the completion of our real estate developmentstd lags in development timetables occasionallised by
unforeseen circumstances. We also cannot prediehwie may acquire or sell TDRs, which depends arkeha
conditions. Our results of operations may alsottlate from period to period due to a combinatioroifer
factors beyond our control, including the timingidg each year of the sale or rental of propetties we have
developed, and any volatility in expenses suchaad kcquisition and construction costs. Dependimgur
operating results in one or more periods, we mgge&nce cash flow problems and difficulties invegng our
outstanding indebtedness, thereby resulting inbmisiness, financial condition and results of openst being
adversely affected. Such fluctuations may also eshe affect our ability to fund future projectss A result of
one or more of these factors, we may record sigamti turnover or profits during one accounting gerand
significantly lower turnover or profits during prior subsequent accounting periods. Therefore, elieve that
period-to-period comparisons of our results of afiens are not necessarily meaningful and shoutdbeo
relied upon as indicative of our future performance

We have negative cash flows.

We had net decreases in cash and cash equivaleRis d@48.57 million and Rs. 330.13 million in thears
ended March 31, 2008 and 2009, respectively. Duigaal year 2009 our Company continued its devaiept
activities and invested the available cash flowsampleting our projects and building our inventdryrther,
we had a significant increase in sundry debtormfRs. 45.41 million as of March 31, 2008 to Rs.14,39
million as of March 31, 2009. As of March 31, 20@@proximately 98.04% of these sundry debtors were
outstanding for a period exceeding six months. dchsrealisation of receivables for projects saldirty the
year has been relatively slow which has affectedcash flow significantly during the fiscal yearQ® Further,
realisation of receivables for the projects soldrduthe year has been relatively slow, due tosfioezdown in
the economy and global credit crises, thereby &ffgour cash flows during the year.For furtheradlst please
refer section entitled "Management's Discussion/famalysis of Financial Condition and Results of @p@ns"
in the Placement Document.

Our ability to make scheduled payments due on otreat and anticipated debt obligations and to fplagined
capital expenditures and development efforts wefpehd on our ability to generate cash in the futife will
require timely completion of projects under devehemt and future projects and generation of opegatash
flow from such projects as well as from already ptated projects to service our indebtedness. Oilityatp
generate cash to service our debt is subject tanger of economic, financial, competitive, legislati
regulatory, business and other factors, many otkwlhire beyond our control. If we do not generafécéent
cash flow from operations in the future to satiefy debt obligations, we may have to undertakersté/e
financing plans, such as refinancing or restruotrour debt, selling assets, reducing or delayiapital
investments or seeking to raise additional capité. cannot assure you that any refinancing or uettring
would be possible, that any assets could be soldf, sold, of the timing of the sales or the ambahproceeds
that would be realized from those sales. We caasstire you that additional financing could be otadion
acceptable terms, or at all, or would be permitteder the terms of our various debt instruments theffect.

Our failure to generate sufficient cash flow tovees or satisfy our debt obligations, or to refinanour
obligations on commercially reasonable terms, wialde an adverse effect on our business, finaooradition
and results of operations.

Some of our Company's financing documents requirerdaCompany to obtain consents from our lenders for
undertaking the Issue, some of which have not bextained as of the date hereof.

Under the terms of some of our financing documents,require consent from our lenders to undertake t

Issue. As of the date hereof, we have sought cem$esm our lenders for the Issue, however, we heoe
received consents from all such lenders.
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Undertaking the Issue without lender consents manstitute a default by us under the relevant fifamnc
documents and may entitle the respective lenderalt@ default against our Company and to enfoeceedies
under the terms of the financing documents, theluite, inter alia acceleration of repayment of éneounts
outstanding under the financing documents, enfoecgnof the security interest created under thenfiirey
documents, and taking possession of the assets gisesecurity in respect of the financing documeAts
default by our Company under the terms of any foiagn document will also trigger a cross-default emgome
of the other financing documents of our Companyawy other agreements or instruments of our Company
containing a cross default provision and which rimejvidually or in aggregate, have a material adeesffect
on our Company's operations, financial position eretlit rating. Also, we may have to dedicate astaitial
portion of our cash flow from operations to makerpants under the financing documents, thereby fiaduc
the availability of our Company's cash flow to furahital expenditures, meet working capital requeats and
use for other general corporate purposes. Suchultiefmay also result in a decline in the tradinigeof the
Shares and you may lose all or part of your investmlf the lenders of a material amount of thestariding
loans declare an event of default simultaneoustymay be unable to pay our debts as they fall due.

We have been the subject of an inspection underphevisions of Section 209A of the Companies Act.

The office of the Regional Director, Ministry of (pmrate Affairs conducted an inspection of our ok
accounts and other records pursuant to Section 28f9the Companies Act during April 2009Ve have
submitted information sought during the inspectiord have not received any further communicatiothis
regard. Typically, under applicable legal provisipif any instance(s) of non-compliance are allegedhe
result of such an inspection, a show cause natiggsued, which is evaluated for further proceeslifiigany, in
the form of compounding/penalty/prosecution).

Our inability to procure contiguous parcels of lanshay affect its future development activities.

We acquire parcels of land and development righvsr garcels of land in various locations from vaso
landholders, over a period of time, for future depenent. These parcels of land are subsequentlyotiolated
to form a contiguous land mass, upon which we ua#élerdevelopment. In the past, we have not expegitn
any difficulty procuring such parcels of land arahsolidating them. However, we may not be ablertzre
such parcels of land at all or on terms that aepi@ble to it, which may affect our ability to cofidate
parcels of land into a contiguous mass. Failuracquire such parcels of land may cause delaysroe fas to
abandon or modify development of the land in sutations, which may result in us failing to realiser
investment for acquiring such parcels of land, @ynforce us to consider selling the land at a pvitéch
would be considerably lower than our expected pwaeeordingly, our inability to procure contiguoparcels
of land may adversely affect our business, resiilgperations, financial condition and prospects.

Our business is subject to extensive Governmentitation and risk of adverse Government action.

The real estate industry in India is heavily retgdaby the Gol, State governments and local autbsri
Property developers need to comply with a numbeeqfirements mandated by Indian laws and reguistio
including policies and procedures established tallauthorities such as the requirement for traimac
documents, payment of stamp duty and registratfgraperty documents. We are also subject to variand
ceiling legislations that regulate the amount efdlahat can be held under single ownership. Adaliily, in
order to develop and complete a real estate prajectCompany, either through the developers, tcts or
contractors, is required to obtain various appravgermits and licences from the relevant admistiiste
authorities at various stages of project develogmEme approvals, permits and licenses to be obtanaeies
on a case by case basis and on whether such piejbeing undertaken under the SRS, as a Publiateri
Partnership or as a non-SRS, non-Public Private®aship project.

In respect of SRS projects, a letter of intent,olgy approval, intimation of approval/ disapproval,
commencement certificates, further commencemetificate and occupancy certificate for the buildireye to
be issued by the Slum Rehabilitation Authority.

Further, in respect of non-SRS projects, an infiomabf approval/disapproval, commencement certifisa

further commencement certificates and occupanciificate for the buildings are to be obtained frahe
designated sanctioning authority (for example, Migadl Corporation of Greater Mumbai or Maharashtra
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Housing and Development Authority) of the area wh#re building is to be constructed or by any other
authority from which an approval is to be obtaimeder the applicable local and national rules aguilations.

Further, depending on the type and / or locatiothefproject, various no-objection certificates seguired to
be obtained from various authorities, includingtifieate from the chief fire officer, municipal qoorations,
Pollution Control Board, Airport Authority of IndjaMinistry of Tourism and Ministry of Environmennd
Forests.

We generally apply for renewals of such approva¢smits and licenses prior to or upon their expitgwever,

we may encounter problems in obtaining the requitprovals, permits and licenses, may experieelzgyslin
fulfilling the conditions precedent to any such ep@ls and we may not be able to adapt ourselvaswolaws,
regulations or policies that may come into effeotri time to time with respect to the real estatdme There
may also be delays in obtaining requisite approvalsther, some of these approvals and permissinas
subject to certain conditions, both conditions pdEmt and conditions subsequent, and there canobe n
assurance that such conditions would be fulfillBioere may also be delays on the part of adminiggdtodies

in reviewing applications and granting approvals.

Further, there can be no assurance that we witliolatl approvals, permits and licenses, that wg raguire in
the future, or receive renewals of existing or fatapprovals, permits and licenses in the time &aeguired
for our operations, or at all, or succeed in conmgywith all or any of the conditions thereof, whicould
adversely affect our business. If we experienceerr@tproblems in obtaining or fail to obtain thequisite
governmental approvals, the schedule of developmedtsale or letting of our projects could be suftsally
disrupted. There could be instances of non-compdiann respect of our projects, or regulatory atties could
allege non-compliance, which may subject us to leggry action in the future, including penaltiesjzsire of
land, stoppage of work and other legal proceedings.

Further, there have also been public statementydiew the appointment of a regulatory body to tatguthe
developers in the real estate sector. While sughlatory body has not yet been appointed, the ppwed
responsibilities of such body are not currently wWnp and hence the impact of the same on real estate
developers in general and our Company in particztdanot be ascertained at this point of time.

We may experience difficulties in expanding our basss into additional geographic markets within lred

We have already commenced the process of acquaimdyand development rights in Mumbai, Pune, Surat,
Jaipur and Bengaluru for future projects and haeelerpartial payments for many of these lands. \We afe
currently evaluating the acquisition of land or depment rights in other cities where we see sicguiit growth
potential, such as Ahmedabad. We have limited éxpee in conducting business outside Mumbai, hate n
previously completed any real estate developmedjepts outside of the Mumbai area (except for Phase¢he
DLF Pune IT Park), and may not be able to levermgeexperience in Mumbai to expand into other sitie

The level of competition, culture, regulatory piaes, business practices and customs, cost stesctoustomer
tastes, behaviour and preferences and expectedpsakes in these cities where we plan to expand our
operations may differ in material respects fromsthin Mumbai, and our experience in Mumbai may et
applicable to these cities. In addition, as we rengsv markets and geographical areas, we are liketpmpete
with local developers who have an established Ipoegence, are more familiar with local regulatjdnssiness
practices and customs, and have stronger relaffmnshith local contractors and/or relevant governme
authorities, all of which may give them a compeéitadvantage over us.

In expanding our business into additional geogmapharkets within India, our business will be exmbse

various additional challenges, including:

= seeking governmental approvals from government @genwith which we have no previous working
relationship;

» identifying and collaborating with local businesartpers, construction contractors and supplierd wit
whom we may have no previous working relationship;

= identifying and obtaining development rights oveitable properties;

= successfully gauging market conditions in locall restate markets with which we have no previous
familiarity;

= attracting potential customers in a market in whighdo not have significant experience;
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» |ocal taxation in additional geographic areas dianand
= adapting our marketing materials and operationdifferent regions of India in which other languages
spoken.

We can provide no assurance that we will be sufideissexpanding our business to include other ratghkn
India. Any failure by us to successfully carry outr plan to geographically diversify our businessld have a
material adverse effect on our revenues, earningsfimancial condition and would result in our Cany
remaining dependent on the Mumbai real estate méwkeur business, constraining our long term giroand
prospects.

We may pursue new kinds of projects, which may ilweodifferent skills, resources and regulatory iss
than our traditional projects.

We have until recently focused primarily on resiiilncommercial and retail projects, IT parks aad parks.
In the future, we plan to expand the range of mtsj&é which we shall engage to include townshiydels and
serviced apartments. In addition, we plan to urdkerthe redevelopment of five bus terminals inaiertities
in Gujarat on a PPP basis with the GSRTC.

Each of these new types of projects may involvéediht risks, many of which may be new to us, araym
require different resources than those associatddowur traditional project mix, not all of whichenmay have
at our disposal. These new types of projects mayire knowledge of different sorts of businessasys|
regulations, customers, suppliers and markets.llffindhese new types of projects may offer commadrci
rewards on timeframes or other bases that arearatfizial to us. There can be no assurance théietextent
we develop any of these new types of projects, weswcceed in their development, and there cambe
assurance that we will not suffer from the redimttof resources away from the types of projectskwew
better. Either of these outcomes could adversédcabur results and business.

Certain types of risks may not be covered under ewisting insurance policies. We may suffer uninga
losses or experience losses exceeding our insurdimeis.

Our insurance policies do not cover certain risigecifically risks relating to contractor's liabjli timely

project completion, loss of rent or profit, constian defects or consequential damages in the fifrentenant's
lost profits. Further, any proceeds received bynuespect of a claim may be insufficient to coveluilding

costs as a result of inflation, changes in buildiegulations, environmental issues or other factioas may be
beyond our control. Our real estate projects csulffer physical damage from fire or other causesulting in

losses, which may not be fully compensated by enste. In addition, there are certain types of kwssech as
those due to earthquakes, floods, hurricanes,rismoor acts of war, which may be uninsurable @& ot

insurable at a reasonable premium. Should an urd@dsless or a loss in excess of insured limits gcoue

would lose the capital invested in and the antigidaevenue from the affected property. We woudd aémain
liable for any debt or other financial obligatioelated to that property. We cannot assure you reterial

losses in excess of insurance proceeds will natrdecthe future.

We utilise independent construction contractors, @h we do not control, to construct our projects.

We contract with independent construction contnactor the construction of all of our projects, ashal not
carry out any of our own construction work. As wertbt control these construction firms, we faceribk that
they may not perform their obligations as agre&é tontractor fails to perform its obligationsisgtctorily
with regard to a project, we may be unable to dgvéhe project within the intended timetable, &t ithtended
cost, or at all. In such circumstance, we may lgired to incur additional cost or time to devetbp property
in a manner consistent with our development objestiwhich could result in reduced profits or imgocases,
significant losses. We cannot assure you that énmeices rendered by any of our independent cortstruc
contractors will always be satisfactory or matchr cegquirements for quality. Any adverse cost or ligya
developments regarding our contractors would haweaterial adverse effect on our results of openatiand
financial condition.

- 46 -



Pzl Ackruti Citymited - Placement Document

We may not be able to enforce terms of contractsttive have entered into with independent contrastowe
may be exposed to liabilities arising from defettghe work of such independent contractors.

We have entered into, and will continue to entaw,inontracts with independent contractors foratvestruction
of all of our projects. The contracts that we eimés with them are generally inadequately stamgredi are not
enforceable in a court of law until such time as tlutstanding stamp duty and any applicable pehalsybeen
paid. Further, a few of the contracts that we hemtered into with independent contractors do necip

certain commercial terms such as liquidated damdzgesk guarantee, performance bond, security degzosi

insurance obligations. If we are unable to enfaiog of the terms of the contracts that we entey mith

independent contractors, our business, resultpefadions or financial condition may be adversélgced.

We may be exposed to liabilities arising from degein the work of such independent contractors.

Many of the contracts that we have entered intd witlependent contractors have warranty periodsidééects
that are shorter than the warranty period for defdtat we make available to our customers. Coresgtyy we
may not have any legal recourse to a particulaepeddent contactor in respect of any liability tw customers
that we incur as a result of defects in the worlswth independent contractor. A lack of legal reseuo any
independent contactor in respect of any liabildyotr customers that we incur as a result of defiecthe work
of such independent contractor may have a matadeérse effect on our business, results of opestand
financial condition. Also, any defects in the warkour independent contractors may have an adwadfeet on
our reputation, business, prospects, results afatipas and financial condition.

We do not have any long-term contracts for any afrkey building materials and are subject to theski of
short term price volatility and shortages of supftyrespect of these materials.

We tend to procure the basic building materialsdior projects, such as steel, cement and readycamigrete,
directly from Indian suppliers. Our ability to déep and construct developments profitably is depahdipon
our ability to source adequate building suppliesudse by our construction contractors. We do nathany
long term contracts for any of our key building eré&ls such as cement, steel and reinforced cecwntrete
("RCC"). Further, our development sites typicalbvh limited storage space for supplies and thezef@r are
only able to purchase a limited amount of buildmgterials for any given project at any particularet As
such, we are subject to the risks of short-ternceprolatility and shortages of supply in respecttiase
materials. During periods of shortages in key boddmaterials, such as cement, steel and RCC, wenwiabe
able to complete projects according to our preVipastablished timelines, at our previously estenaproject
cost, or at all, which could adversely affect cesuits of operations and financial condition. ladlitidn, during
periods of significant increases in the price of keilding materials, we may not be able to pagsegncreases
through to our customers, which could reduce omielate the profits we attain with regards to our
developments. Alternatively, increases in the salé rental prices of our properties reflecting hiigher costs
of building materials could adversely affect demé&wdour properties. Prices of our key building eréls have
witnessed sharp price fluctuations in the past.

As we primarily source our building materials frdoctal suppliers, our supply chain may be periodjcal
interrupted by circumstances beyond our contraluiing work stoppages and labour disputes affgctiar
suppliers, their distributors, or the transportarsur supplies.

We depend on a limited number of suppliers for dowilding materials. Any problems with these buildjn
materials or these suppliers could have an adveaffect on our business or results of operation.

We purchase our building materials from a limitesintoer of suppliers in India. If we experience peoh$ with
our building supplies and our suppliers are unmaglior unable to assist us in correcting such problén a
timely fashion or at all, or if any of our suppbegire unable to meet our purchase demands or gif business,
we could face serious disruptions in our operati@wen though we may be able to purchase buildiaterials
from alternative suppliers, we might be able tasdoonly at significant expense or encounter sigaift delays
in doing so, causing disruption to our real estieelopment operations. Moreover, such alterndiivi&ding

materials might not meet the same quality standasdsur current building materials. Such costsgloguality
and disruptions, could have an adverse effect omuosiness, results of operation and financial @¢wrd
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The Company has a high level of debtors.

As of March 31, 2009, the aggregate amount owedupyCompany’s debtors to our Company was Rs. 43917.
million, which includes Rs. 4,413.00 million duerin two parties who have, during the year, requetstadour
Company extend the credit period originally graritethe respective sale agreements. The requesinads on
account of the severe slow down and recessionasspres faced by the real estate industry, whisHdtato a
substantial fall in both demand and prices for esthte. Our management considers the debt to dm ayd
fully recoverable since the parties have confirrttezlconditions originally agreed to and our Comphay, as
of June 30, 2009, received Rs. 440.40 million ifpagments. Subsequently, additional recoveries Hepen
made as of the date of the Preliminary Placemexubent.

General economic conditions may adversely affeeffitancial conditions of our Company’s debtors] amy
result in defaults by some of these debtors. Indhent of defaults by the debtors of our Company, o
Company may suffer a liquidity shortfall and in@gditional costs, including legal expenses, in vedog the
sums due and payable to it. If our Company is wnablrecover the sums due and payable to it, thaf
recoveries made by our Company are significantiyelothan the aggregate amount owed to it, suchroeece
may have an adverse impact on our Company’s busifisancial condition or results of operations.

Our success largely depends on our senior managetmemd our ability to attract and retain our key
personnel.

Our success depends on the continued servicesaafatrpance of the members of our management teamn an
other key personnel. If one or more members ofkeyrpersonnel are unable or unwilling to continuiehieir
present positions, such persons could be diffitulteplace with comparably skilled persons immesfjaand

our business could be adversely affected duringy sgciods. Competition for senior management inrds
estate and infrastructure development industrytisnise, and we may not be able to retain our agiséenior
management or attract and retain new senior maragien the future. As such, any loss of our senior
management personnel or key employees could adyeafect our business.

The exercising of their respective exit options bypy of our counterparties to our project contractaay
adversely affect our business and financial conditi

In some of our project contracts we do not havexdnoption even though our respective counterpartio. If
any such counter party exercises its exit optits ekit from the relevant contract may adversefgdfthe
relevant project and consequently our businessatipes and financial conditions.

Our Company has not provided for certain contingdigbilities.

Our Company has certain contingent liabilities, ahive have not provided for. If any of these caggint
liabilities materialise, our Company's financialaynbe adversely affected to that extent.

(Rs. in millions)

No. Particulars March 31, 200¢March 31, 2008
(A) Claims against the Company, not acknowledgeddabts on
account of:-
1l.Income Tax matters under appeal for Financial Y&€&9-2000 -- 68.16
(A.Y. 2000-2001)
2.Income Tax matters under appeal for Financial Ye&480- 497.66 Amount not
2001 to 2006-2007 ascertainable
3.Demand notice issued by Brihanmumbai Municipal 41.20 32.89
Corporation for Land Under Construction chargesofprty
tax).
4 Petition filed against the Company, under the Maslira 5.00 7.73

Slum Area (Improvement, Clearance and Redevelopmiertf
1971, in relation to a Project.

5.Petition pending with the Honourable High CourtBdmbay 2.45 1.85
with regards to Mahalaxmi Car Project at Bhulabbesai
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Road, Mumbai
(B) On account of corporate guarantees issued byGQbmpany to 621.18 636.99
Bankers on behalf of other companies and joint west for
facilities availed by them (amount outstanding ¢hagainst).

Certain of our subsidiaries have incurred losses.

In the last financial year, certain of our subgiis have incurred losses, details of which aresein the table
below. While our subsidiaries continue to genebatsiness, we cannot assure you that our subsisliaflenot
make any further losses that our Company will retélled to offer financial support to our subsidis. Any
financial support offered to the subsidiaries cwvgeriod of time may reduce our profitability iretiear that we
extend such financial support.

(Rs. in millions)
Loss after Taxation

Subsidiaries (Fiscal Year 2009)

Adhivitiya Properties Limited (5.54)
Agreem Properties Limited (0.04)
Akruti Warehousing Limited (0.20)
Arnav Gruh Limited (20.20)
Devkrupa Build Tech Limited (formerly Simon Buildedimited) (0.37)
E Commerce Magnum Solution Limited (2.14)
Gujarat Akruti-TCG Biotech Limited (3.74)
Hiemo Builders and Developers Private Limited (0.04)
Khem Buildcon Private Limited (0.04)
New Empire Realtors Limited (formerly New Empirelters Private Limited (7.25)
Pushpak Healthcare Services Private Limited (0.03)
Urvi Build Tech Limited (0.92)
Vaishnavi Builders and Developers Private Limited (0.05)
Vama Housing Limited (10.74)
Vishal Nirman (India) Limited 4.71)
Vishal Techno Commerce Limited (3.05)
# - Akruti Middle East (FZE) (Sharjah) (0.86)

Note:

# - The Indian rupee equivalent of the figure givanforeign currency in the accounts of the Sulasigi
Company, has been given based on the exchangasrateMarch 3 1,2009 (1 AED = Rs. 13.7872).
# - The financial year of the Subsidiary Compangsaon November 30. However, the results given arefa

March 31, 2009.

Risks in relation to pending legal proceedings.

Our Company, Subsidiaries, joint ventures and jogritures of our Subsidiariese involved in certain legal
proceedings and claims in relation to civil, criaimnd consumer litigation matters incidental teithusiness
and operations. These legal proceedings are peadlidgifferent levels of adjudication before varimmirts and
tribunals. Any adverse decision may render us emthiable to liabilities/penalties and may adveyssdfect our
business, results of operations and financial dmrdi. For further details please refer to theisacentitled
"Legal Proceedings".

Risks in relation to our trademarks applied for resgration and infringement proceedings.

There are various trademark applications that Hsen submitted by our Company and which are pending
before the Trademark Registry, Mumbai. We have alg@mted opposition proceedings in relation ttegéd
infringement of our trademarks by third partiesatfy of our applications for registration are ngpved or if
any injunctive or other adverse order is issuedrsgais in respect of any of our trademarks, weld/owt be
able to enjoy the statutory protections accorded tegistered trademark or prohibit unauthorisesl afssuch
mark by third parties by means of statutory pratect
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We enter into related party transactions with efg# in which our Promoters are interested.

We have entered into, and may in the future emter, irelated party transactions. Our Company mathén
course of its business enter into transactions veliited entities in which our Promoters have ggey. While
our Company believes that all such transactiong leen conducted on an arm’s- length basis, tlarée no
assurance that our Company could not have achiened favourable terms had such transactions beteneeh
into with unrelated parties. Furthermore, we matgemto related party transactions in the futdteere can be
no assurance that such transactions, individuallynothe aggregate, will not have an adverse effatt
Company'’s financial condition and results of operss. For details of our related party transactieas the
paragraph titled Related Party Transactions irsdwtion entitled "Financial Statements".

Any pay-outs required to be made by our Companyténms of guarantees issued or to be issued by our
Company on behalf of our subsidiaries may have ateral adverse effect on our cash flows, financial
condition and results of operations.

Our Company has provided or may provide guarantea®lation to repayment of debt obligations of its
subsidiaries as well as guarantees in relatioro$d averruns that may be incurred by a subsidiagaged in a
particular project. Our Company may be requirethtike pay-outs in terms of such guarantees, invbatef
defaults by such subsidiaries with respect to thayyment obligations or due to cost overruns irediduring a
project. Any pay-outs that our Company may be meguito make in terms of the aforementioned guaesnte
may have a material adverse effect on our liqujdityancial condition and results of operations.

Conflicts of interest may arise out of common bueBs objects shared by our Company and certain
companies controlled/promoted by our Promoters.

Our Promoters have interests in, and have promotadr companies and entities that may compete weithnd
have operations similar to ours within the realatstdevelopment industry. There is no requirement o
undertaking made by the Promoters or any compamigsés promoted by Promoters not to compete with
business. In addition, there is no requirement mdeutaking for our Promoters or any companiesifestit
promoted by Promoters to conduct or direct any dppdies in the real estate industry only to aotigh us.

As a result, conflicts of interest may arise inoedlting or addressing business opportunities aradegiies
amongst our Company, our Promoters and other anypanies/entities promoted by Promoters in
circumstances where our interests differ from #eirhere can be no assurance that our Promoteasyor
companies/entities promoted by Promoters will mahpete with our existing business or any futureriass
that we may undertake.

RISKS RELATING TO OUR FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS

Real estate development requires substantial cdpitaestment and we may not be able to raise regdir
capital in the future sufficient to finance our cuent or future real estate developments.

Real estate development projects are typicallytahpitensive and may require high levels of dedmaricing.
We can provide no assurance that in the future e have access to sufficient financial resources t
implement our various projects currently planned amder development, particularly in the event et
actual amount and timing of our future capital regments differs from our estimates. We may not be
successful in obtaining additional required finauggiin terms of debt, equity or otherwise, in adiynmanner,

on favourable terms or at all.

We finance our operations, primarily through boriroye from Indian banks and financial institutiongiich we
repay upon the completion of each project. We hacerred substantial indebtedness to finance ond la
acquisitions and development construction. Ourdwaimgs increased substantially in the year endettMal,
2009, and as of that date we had outstanding R898nmillion of secured loans and Rs. 2,080 millhn
unsecured loans. We intend to pursue a businestegyr pursuant to which we will carryout additiomaél
estate projects during each period, and which meijuire us to obtain additional financing to fuhe tcapital
expenditure relating to such projects. Our abtiityorrow, and the terms of our borrowings, wilpdad on our
financial condition, prevailing economic and reatade market conditions, our cash flows, the irsterate
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scenario, policy stance with respect to lendingh real estate sector and our capacity to sedat® in the
then-prevailing rising interest rate environment.

If the real estate market in Mumbai or in India gelly experiences any drop or downturn in reatestalues,
future fund raising on acceptable terms, in a tymmabnner or at all may not materialise. If we da have
access to these funds, we may be required to delapandon some or all of our planned developments
reduce capital expenditures and the scale of oaratipns, which may benefit our competitors andeaskly
affect our business and results of operations.

Changes in interest rates in India could adversedffect our business and the market for our real att
developments.

Our results of operations, and the purchasing pafi@ur real estate customers, are substantialgcted by
prevailing interest rates and the availability otdit in the Indian economy. Interest rates in éntliave
exhibited a fluctuating trend over the last twaéikyears.

Fluctuations in interest rates also affect theitgbénd willingness of our prospective real estetstomers,
particularly the customers for our residential gnaies, to obtain financing for their purchasesaf completed
developments. The interest rate at which our re&dte customers may borrow funds for the purchéasmio
properties affects the affordability and purchasiogver of, and hence the market demand for, oudeasal
real estate developments. A majority of prospectustomers rely on borrowed funds to fund property
purchases, and a volatile interest regime may disgee, delay or defer potential purchase decisibhste can
be no assurance that variations in interest ratddlze interest rate policy by the RBI will not adsely affect
our results of operations and financial condition.

We finance each of our real estate projects prisn#énrough borrowings from Indian banks, which vepay
upon the completion of each project. All of oureahtedness is subject to variable interest rateshwtén be
varied by the concerned lenders, and has beerdvawidn upwards and downwards in the past, basegoeral
interest rate policy and concerned lender decisions ability to borrow funds for the developmehtoar real
estate projects is affected in part by the prengilinterest rates available to us from leading dndbanks.
Changes in prevailing interest rates affect ouerggt expense in respect of our borrowings, andraarest
income in respect of our interest on short-termodép with banks and loans to associates. Sigmifigathe
interest rate at which we may borrow funds, andéhailability of capital to us for development pases,
affects our results of operations by limiting orifisating the number of projects we may undertaie
determining the return, which we must obtain fraacleproject to meet our obligations under our heimgs.

Our level of indebtedness could adversely affect fimancial condition and results of operations.

We have entered into agreements with certain banksfinancial institutions for short term and lotegm
borrowings. Our interest cost increased from R3. million in the Financial Year ended March 31, 226 Rs.
1,631 million in the Financial Year ended March 2@09. Increased borrowings strain our financialdition
and ability to borrow further, and the increasetériest cost has a material adverse effect on @ultseof
operations.

Further, our debt service coverage ratio, a measuoer ability to produce enough cash to cover delst, was
1.53 for the year ended March 31, 2009. These latiog indicate that during such periods our abitity
produce enough cash to cover our debt may haveiheegfiicient. If we are unable to produce enoughkltto
cover our debt in the future to satisfy our debligaltions, we may have to undertake alternativarfging

plans, such as refinancing or restructuring ourt,dedling assets, reducing or delaying capitakgtments or
seeking to raise additional capital. We cannotr@sgau that any refinancing or restructuring wolddpossible,
that any assets could be sold, or, if sold, ofttheng of the sales or the amount of proceeds wWaild be
realized from those sales. We cannot assure ydatititional financing could be obtained on accelgtéerms,
or at all, or would be permitted under the term®wf various debt instruments then in effect. Guability to

service or satisfy our debt obligations, or torafice our obligations on commercially reasonabtagewould
have an adverse effect on our business, finanoraition and results of operations.
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We defaulted on loan payments during the year endiéarch 31, 2009.

As per our Auditors Report on our standalone firgrgtatements prepared not forming part of the&tsent
Document for the year ended March 31, 2009, we hifaulted on loan payments. The amounts involved a
Rs. 223.26 million for which we were up to 30 daysdefault and of Rs. 87.74 million for which we nge
between 31-60 days in default.

An inability to meet such obligations on time colildve several adverse consequences, includingetirgg
immediate repayment clauses for the entire loanusso cross-default clauses and penalty interestsek,
among others, which would have a material adveffezteon our business, prospects, reputation, tewfl
operations and financial condition.

Our borrowings are subject to numerous restrictig®venants, which may materially limit our business
operation in the absence of lender consent.

Our financing agreements contain restrictive com&hdhat require prior lender consent in order derto,

among other things:

= allow our net working capital position to fall beldhe projected levels furnished by us to our lesde

= implement a scheme of expansion or diversificatiwncapital expenditure, except for a scheme that
constitutes normal replacement;

= change or in any way alter the capital structure;

= create, assume or incur any further indebtedness lohg term nature whether for borrowed money or
otherwise;

= borrow from any person until the dues have beed jpsgiull;

= effect any scheme of amalgamation or reconstructake over, shifting of premises;

= implement a new scheme of expansion or take upliad &ne of business or manufacture;

= change the constitution of our Company (includinty aeconstitution of partnership or conversion of
private limited company into a public limited conmya changes in the constitution or directors of our
Company, or proposals for a merger or takeover);

= change the ownership of control of our Company whgithe effective beneficial ownership or contrbl o
our Company shall change;

= give any corporate/financial guarantee;

= purchase or redeem any of its issued shares oceettushare capital;

= permit any transfer of the controlling interestneeike any drastic change in the management opesation

= approach the capital market for additional fundkesiin the form of debts or equity;

= directly or indirectly purchase, acquire or leasg property, assets or goods to any shareholdesctar,
officer, agent, employee or any company or bodyawate or other body or association of personshithv
any one or more of such shareholders, directofieof, agents or employees of our Company holgl, an
interest alone or jointly and directly or indirggtand

= pay commission to its promoters, directors, maragerother persons for furnishing guarantees, @sunt
guarantees or indemnities or for undertaking amgliability in connection with any financial astince
obtained or to be obtained for or by our Companynazonnection with any other obligations undertake
for or by our Company for the purpose of the saajqrt specified in the loan agreement.

Many of these restrictive covenants substantiaffgca our ability to operate our business in thaeaire of
lender consent. Our financing agreements also tontestomary terms relating to refusal of requéstdraw
down further capital under such agreements. Tharebe no assurance that we will be able to suadgssf
operate our business consistently with these agraegts in the future. Moreover, of our various Esdwe
have not yet received consent for the Issue fraateBank of India, State Bank of Patiala and Indverseas
Bank. Any breach of the terms of these financingeaments could result in an acceleration of ouayeents,
force us to sell our assets or trigger a crossdiefemder our other financing agreements, whicHaadversely
affect our business, financial condition and resaftoperations.

Substantially all of our assets have been secureder our financing agreements.
We maintain bank facilities and term loans withiémdbanks and other financial institutions, gergralith

maturities of three to five years, to provide ughwjeneral working capital and operational flexthilin
connection with our business. We also receive fdras Indian banks and other financial institutigngsuant
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to project specific loans, which we use to fund twsts of construction of our respective real estat
development projects. We also typically sell toimdpublic or private sector financial institutioosr rights to
receive rental payments due to us under leasesvthhtive entered into in respect of our commepiaperties.
This results in us receiving a lump sum paymeninfitbe financial institution in exchange for thedicial
institution acquiring the right to receive all fatupayments under a lease.

For our financing arrangements, we have creatdthege on substantially all of our assets in respgutrious
borrowings. We grant security interests in the &sskeach of our construction projects pursuarnhéoterms of
the corresponding financing agreement. Similanyrespect of the rights to receive rental inconmnfrour
commercial properties that we have sold to findnicistitutions, we are prohibited by applicable epsants
from further encumbering such rental income.

In the event of a default by us on our financingeagnents, our charged assets, which representsiiby all
of our assets, could be seized, leaving us withssets with which to operate our business, adyeasfgcting
our business prospects. As a result of our haviregged substantially all of our assets in respkouo various
borrowings, we may have difficulty obtaining furtheorking capital through borrowings from theseobhner
lenders given our lack of substantial additionalsity capable of being charged.

RISKS RELATING TO THE REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT INDUS TRY IN INDIA

The performance of our real estate development bess may be adversely affected by changes in
government or regulatory policies of Indian natiohastate and local governments.

Our real estate development business is significaependent upon and affected by governmentatigsliand
approvals of various Indian national, state andllgovernmental bodies, including but not limited¢gulatory
and tax policies including the following:

In respect of tax policy, we receive certain faldeatax treatment in respect of our developmentschvtax
treatment affects our results of operations. Fange, we pay only minimum alternate tax ("MAT")rispect
of income generated in respect of our IT park$ierathan otherwise applicable income tax rates.

At the national level, Indian tax policies subsialfy affect the affordability of Indian residentiproperty for
consumers of residential properties in India bgwalhg for the deductibility of principal paymentsupject to a
limit) and mortgage interest from personal incorme ¢therwise payable. Any reduction in or elimioatiof
such favourable tax treatment may reduce demandrfdhe affordability of residential housing to lad
families, thereby reducing demand or the affordghbdf our residential developments to Indian faesl

At the local level, we are a private real estateettipment Company with participation in the Slum
Rehabilitation Schemes under the regulatory sugerviof the Slum Rehabilitation Authority ("SRA™ the
case of development of land situated in Greater bhimand the Maharashtra Industrial Development
Corporation ("MIDC") in case of development of lapdined by MIDC. Both SRA and MIDC have been
established under the authority of the GoM. We iobliand use rights over significant urban, develdpdand

in the Mumbai area as a result of our participatiothe Slum Rehabilitation Scheme, and any changhe
rules or regulations relating to such schemestsoalbandonment, could adversely affect our abibtybtain
urban developable land in the Mumbai area for eat estate projects.

At the local level, we require environmental, lamgk and sitting approvals for each of our realtegieojects
from local authorities. Delays in or our failure obtain such approvals may delay or impede ouiitghib
develop specific real estate development projects.

In addition, at the local level in Mumbai, we ardgct to municipal land use regulations in efiecMumbai

which limit the maximum square footage of complebedding we may construct on lots to specified amts,

calculated as a ratio to the land surface of eaghahd are subject to legislation (commonly knaasna land
Ceiling Act) which limits the total area of freedddiand which we may own within Mumbai. These regales

limit our ability to build vertically on each plab specific limits, and limit the amount of landrce we may
retain under our direct ownership.
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These and other governmental policies affectingbmsiness may change from time to time at the Jatate
and national level in India. Any such changes negguire us to modify the manner in which we do bes#n or
may result in our not being able to carry out sfieplanned or future projects.

We face significant risks before we realise any @amee from our real estate developments, arising frone
length of time each project requires for completion

Real estate developments typically require suhistamapital outlay during the acquisition of land o
development rights and/or construction phases anthy take a year or more before income or positagh
flows may be generated through sales of a completallestate development. Depending on the sizéeof
development, the time span for completing a ret@teslevelopment is usually more than a year.

Consequently, changes in the business environmeirigithe length of time a project requires for @betion
may affect the revenue and cost of the developnaeming the period from project commencement to
completion, directly impacting on the profitabiliof the project. Factors that may affect the padiility of a
project include the risk that the receipt of goveemt approvals may take more time than expectedfaiture
to complete construction according to original sfieations, schedule or budget, and lacklusterssateleasing
of properties. The sales and the value of a re@teslevelopment project may be adversely affebiec
number of factors, including but not limited to thational, state and local business climate andlasyy
environment, local real estate market conditiorescgptions of property buyers and tenants in tesfmthe
convenience and attractiveness of the project amapetition from other available or prospective mdiges
developments. If any of the risks described abostenalises, our return on investment may be delayel/or
lower than originally expected by us, our resulfsoperations and financial condition may be advgrse
affected.

In addition, in respect of the slum rehabilitatiprojects we complete, we are unable to obtain camocy
certificates for the buildings we have construdimdour own sale or lease purposes until we havepteted
and obtained occupancy certificates for the permameusing for former slum dwellers. While we are
permitted to develop such housing simultaneousti wiir development of buildings for sale or leaseleared
former slums, we face additional capital expenditwvhen undertaking such developments simultaneously

We face competition from other real estate develgmtifirms, which may adversely affect our profitdity.

The real estate development industry in India, e/frihgmented, is highly competitive and we face petition

in Mumbai (where our business activities are préégdocused) from other Indian real estate develeptrand
construction companies. We presently compete in bainarea with various regional companies, including
HDIL, Hiranandani Developers Limited, the Rahejao@y, Dhiraj Developers Limited, Kalpataru Develaper
the Marathon Group and the Lokhandwala Group. Gigen strategy of expanding our business activities
mainly in Western India to include real estate digwment in other regions, we may experience cortipetin

the future from potential competitors with signifit operations elsewhere in India, including the=B&roup,
the Ansal Group, Parsvanath Developers and Unitéoiited. Certain of these Indian real estate dewelent
firms are also our joint venture partners in respéspecific projects, and may compete with usendirectly

in the future.

In addition, land acquisition in India has histailg been subject to regulatory restrictions onefgn
investment. These restrictions have been relaxedrwe extent in the last few years, but restrististill persist,
and foreign real estate developers do not yet laas@nificant presence in the Indian market. In filtere,
increased competition from foreign real estate Wgraent firms may result in increases in pricetaofe plots
of land suitable for developments. If we are unableompete effectively in the acquisition of shlealand with
other developers, including other Indian and faneigal estate development firms with which we compeur
business and prospects will be adversely affected.

Compliance with, and changes in, environmental, libaand safety laws and regulations may adversely
affect our financial condition and results of opet@ns.

We are subject to environmental and health andtysaégulations in the ordinary course of our busge

including governmental inspections, licences angreymls of our project plans and projects during
construction. Government bodies in India, at thdonal, state or local level, may take steps towatfe
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adoption of more stringent environmental and heaitti safety regulations and we can not assure hatute
will be at all times in full compliance with thesegulatory requirements. Due to the possibilityinnticipated
regulatory developments, the amount and timing wfire expenditure to comply with these regulatory
requirements may vary substantially from thoseentty en effect. Costs of complying with currentdnture
environmental, health and safety laws and reguiatior any potential liabilities arising from anyildiee to
comply therewith may have a material adverse effattour business, financial condition and results o
operations.

Governmental agencies in India may exercise rigbfseminent domain in respect of our lands.

We, in common with other estate development firmbdia, are subject to the risk that governmeatgncies
in India may exercise rights of eminent domain,compulsory purchase, in respect of our lands. TaedL
Acquisition Act, 1894 authorises the national,estad local governments in India to exercise righitsminent
domain, which, if used in respect of our land, doutquire us to relinquish our properties with mrial

compensation. The likelihood of such actions maydase in the event that these governments sestqtore
substantial blocks of land for the developmentaofi¢ infrastructure projects, such as roads, aspaailways
etc. Any such action in respect of one or more wfmajor current or planned developments could esthhe

affect our results of operations and financial dtbod.

Environmental problems could adversely affect ther@pany's projects.

We are required to conduct an environmental assggsfar most of our projects before receiving regody
approval for these projects. These environmentséssnents may reveal material environmental prahlem
which could result in the Company not obtaining tleguired approvals. Additionally, if environmental
problems are discovered during or after the devetag of a project, the Company may incur substhntia
liabilities relating to cleanup and other remedizasures and the value of the relevant propertetd de
adversely affected.

Further, the ability of the Company to commencepitgjects is dependant on the Company applyingafat
obtaining certain environmental approvals fromrglevant governmental authorities.

RISKS RELATING TO INDIA

A deterioration of general economic conditions, inding a slowdown in economic growth in India, codl
have an adverse effect on our business.

Our performance is highly correlated to generalnecuic conditions in India, which are in turn infheed by
global economic factors. Any event, or trend résgltin a deterioration in whole or in part of thedian or
global economy may directly or indirectly affectmerformance, including the quality and growth of assets.
Any volatility in global commodity prices, in pactilar steel, could adversely affect our costs, ltesof

operations and financial condition.

A significant change in the Central and State Gowements' economic liberalization and deregulation
policies could disrupt the Company's business.

In the recent years, India has been following arsmwf economic liberalization and the Company'siriess
could be significantly influenced by economic pm& adopted by the Government. Since 1991, suceessi
Indian Governments have pursued policies of ecoadibveralization and financial sector reforms.

The Gol has at various times announced its geirgeaition to continue India's current economic &ndncial
liberalization and deregulation policies. Howewaiegations of corruption and protests againstgtizations,
which have occurred in the past, could slow theepafcliberalization and deregulation. The rate cfreomic
liberalization could change, and specific laws poticies affecting foreign investment, currency lexege rates
and other matters affecting investment in Indiald¢@hange as well.
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The Government has traditionally exercised and iooat to exercise influence over many aspects ef th
economy. Our Company's business and the market prid liquidity of its Equity Shares may be affelcby
interest rates, changes in Government policy, l@xasocial and civil unrest and other politicadpaomic or
other developments in or affecting India.

A change in Government's policies in the futureldadversely affect business and economic condition
India and could also adversely affect our Compafyancial condition and results of operations.igngficant
change in India's economic liberalization and del&gpn policies could disrupt business and ecowomi
conditions in India generally, and specifically $boof the Company, as substantially all of the Camyfs assets
are located in India.

Financial instability in other countries, particuldy countries with emerging markets, could disruptdian
markets and the Company's business and cause Mdlath our Equity Share prices.

The Indian financial markets and the Indian econarg influenced by economic and market conditions i
other countries, particularly emerging market cdestin Asia. Although economic conditions are @iént in
each country, investors' reactions to developmienthe country can have adverse effects on theriiesuof
companies in other countries, including India. Admf investor confidence in the financial systevhsther
emerging markets may cause volatility in Indiarafinial markets and, indirectly, in the Indian eaogon
general. Any worldwide financial instability couddso have a negative impact on the Indian econdmig in
turn could negatively impact the movement of exgfearates and interest rates in India.

Accordingly, any significant financial disruptioowd have an adverse effect on the Company's esifigture
financial performance and our Equity Share prices.

Terrorist attacks and other acts of violence or wiawolving India or other countries could adversebffect
the financial markets, result in loss of client cfidence, and adversely affect our business, finaaci
condition and results of operations.

Any major hostilities involving India or other aat$ violence, including civil unrest or similar eus that are
beyond our control, could have a material adveffeeton India’'s economy and our business. Incisisnich as
the November 2008 Mumbai terrorist attacks, otheidients such as those in Indonesia, Madrid anditon
and other acts of violence may adversely affectitidéan stock markets where our Equity Shares tralile as
well the global equity markets generally. Such &ctsld negatively impact business sentiment as astrade
between countries, which could adversely affect@ampany’s business and profitability.

Also, India, the United States or other countriesyranter into armed conflict or war with other ctrigs or
extend pre-existing hostilities. South Asia hasnfrtime to time, experienced instances of civilastrand
hostilities among neighboring countries. Militargtigity or terrorist attacks could adversely affélee Indian
economy by, for example, disrupting communicatiand making travel more difficult. Such events coallsb
create a perception that investments in Indian @oigs involve a higher degree of risk. This, imfurould
adversely affect client confidence in India, whaduld have an adverse impact on the economiesdid bnd
other countries, on the markets for our produci services and on our business. Additionally, seehnts
could have a material adverse effect on the méaikesecurities of Indian companies, including thguiy
Shares.

Natural calamities could have a negative impact tre Indian economy and cause the Company's business
to suffer.

India has experienced natural calamities such @kaekes, a tsunami, floods and drought in regeats. The
extent and severity of these natural disastergméte their impact on the Indian economy. Monsdus year
has been below normal thus far, and this has lesketeral districts in the country being declareithfedi-
deficient and drought-prone, and this is expeabeéadd to a drop in agricultural production. Prged spells of
abnormal rainfall or other natural calamities cobéve a negative impact on the Indian economy, lwbauld
adversely affect our business, prospects, finamaatition and results of operation as well aspghee of the
Equity Shares.
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Conditions in the Indian securities market may affethe price or liquidity of the Equity Shares.

The Indian securities markets are smaller and neagnbre volatile than securities markets in moreetigped
economies. The regulation and monitoring of Indsacurities markets and the activities of investbrekers
and other participants differ, in some cases dwitly, from those in the U.S and Europe. Indidock
exchanges have in the past experienced substélotitdations in the prices of listed securitiesdiam stock
exchanges have experienced problems that havetedféiee market price and liquidity of the secusitiaf
Indian companies, such as temporary exchange elgstoroker defaults, settlement delays and strikes
brokers. In addition, the governing bodies of thdidn stock exchanges have from time to time st
securities from trading, limited price movementsl ancreased margin requirements. Further, dispbtas
occurred on occasion between listed companieshanthtlian stock exchanges and other regulatoryeisdtiiat,
in some cases, have had a negative effect on msgkéiment. Similarly, adverse conditions in glosaturities
market have also adversely affected sentimentadiah markets. If similar problems occur in theufet the
market price and liquidity of the Equity SharesIdobe adversely affected. Historical trading pricerefore,
may not be indicative of the prices at which theiiBgShares will trade in the future.

Significant differences exist between Indian GAAR@ other accounting principles, such as US GAAP and
IFRS, which may be material to investors' assesstsenf the Company's financial condition.

As stated in the reports of our Company's indepetndeditors included in the Placement Document, our
financial statements are prepared and presentedniformity with Indian GAAP, consistently appliedrihg

the periods stated, except as provided in suchrtepand no attempt has been made to reconcileofittye
information given in the Placement Document to ather principles or to base it on any other stagslandian
GAAP differs in certain significant respects froliRS, U.S. GAAP and other accounting principles and
accounting standards with which prospective invastoay be familiar with in other countries. We dat n
provide a reconciliation of our financial statenmend IFRS or U.S. GAAP or a summary of principal
differences between Indian GAAP, IFRS and U.S. GAARvant to our business. Furthermore, we have not
guantified or identified the impact of the diffeoers between Indian GAAP and IFRS or between InGiAAP

and U.S. GAAP as applied to our financial stateimeAs there are significant differences betweeriaimd
GAAP and IFRS and between Indian GAAP and U.S. GABre may be substantial differences in our tesul
of operations, cash flows and financial positiong were to prepare our financial statements iromznce
with IFRS or U.S. GAAP instead of Indian GAAP. Thignificant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of our Indian GAAP financial statemegnts as set forth in our financial statements itetlin the
Placement Document. Prospective investors showidwethe accounting policies applied in the preparaof

our financial statements, and consult their owrfgssional advisors for an understanding of theedffices
between Indian GAAP and IFRS and between Indian 8/&hd U.S. GAAP and how they might affect the
financial information contained in the PlacementDwoent.

There may be less company information availablettie Indian securities markets than securities matgen
developed countries.

There may be differences between the level of egigui and monitoring of the Indian securities méskand

the activities of investors, brokers and otheripgrants and that of the markets in the United étatnd other
more developed countries. SEBI is responsible fipraving and improving disclosure and other reguiat
standards for the Indian securities markets. SEB$ Issued regulations and guidelines on disclosure
requirements, insider trading and other mattererd@hmay, however, be less publicly available infation
about Indian companies than is regularly made abkglby public companies in more developed coustrie

Rights of shareholders under Indian law may be mdimited than under the laws of other jurisdictions

Our Company's Articles of Association and Indian govern our Company's corporate affairs. Legalgples
relating to these matters and the validity of coap® procedures, Directors' fiduciary duties aadilities, and
shareholders' rights may differ from those that M@pply to a company/body corporate in anothesgliction.
Shareholders' rights under Indian law may not bextsnsive as shareholders' rights under the |dvather
countries or jurisdictions. Investors may have ndifficulty in asserting their rights as a shareteslthan as a
shareholder of a corporation in another jurisdittio
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Investors may not be able to enforce a judgmenadbreign court against the Company.

Our Company is a limited liability company incorpteéd under the laws of India. Substantially alloofr

Directors and executive officers are residentsdfd and a substantial portion of its assets avatéal in India.
As a result, it may not be possible for investareffect service of process upon the Company dn pecsons
outside India or to enforce judgments obtainedreauch parties outside India.

Recognition and enforcement of foreign judgmentprisvided for under Section 13 and Section 44Ahef t
Civil Code on a statutory basis. Section 13 of@él Code provides that foreign judgments shallcbaclusive
regarding any matter directly adjudicated upon pkc@) where the judgment has not been pronourimed
court of competent jurisdiction; (ii) where the grdent has not been given on the merits of the ¢adeyhere
it appears on the face of the proceedings thajuiigment is founded on an incorrect view of inteiorzal law
or a refusal to recognize the law of India in caseshich such law is applicable; (iv) where thegeedings in
which the judgment was obtained were opposed taralgustice; (v) where the judgment has been abtaby
fraud; or (vi) where the judgment sustains a clioomded on a breach of any law then in force indntnder
the Civil Code, a court in India will, upon the gretion of any document purporting to be a cedifi®py of a
foreign judgment, presume that the judgment wasiqunced by a court of competent jurisdiction, uslése
contrary appears on record.

India is not a signatory to any international tyeat relation to the recognition or enforcementfofeign
judgments. Section 44A of the Civil Code provideattwhere a foreign judgment has been rendered by a
superior court, within the meaning of that Sectigm,any country or territory outside India whicheth
Government has by notification declared to be dprecating territory, it may be enforced in Indig b
proceedings in execution as if the judgment hacdhlbeedered by the relevant court in India. Howe@&argtion

44A of the Civil Code is applicable only to monegtatecrees which are not of the same nature as amsmoun
payable in respect of taxes, other charges ofearldture or in respect of a fine or other penalties

The United Kingdom, Singapore and Hong Kong hawenb#eclared by the Government to be a reciprocating
territory for the purposes of Section 44A of the/iCCode. A judgment of a court of a country whishnot a
reciprocating territory may be enforced in Indidyoby a suit upon the judgment under Section 1ghefCivil
Code, and not by proceedings in execution. Thersugit be brought in India within 3 years from ttaedof the
judgment in the same manner as any other suit filezhforce a civil liability in India. It is unlidy that a court

in India would award damages on the same basig@gign court if an action is brought in India.rthermore,

it is unlikely that an Indian court would enforazréign judgments if it viewed the amount of damagearded

as excessive or inconsistent with public policy.party seeking to enforce a foreign judgment in dndi
required to obtain approval from the RBI to redt&ioutside India any amount recovered and any aonhunt
may be subject to in come tax in accordance witliegble laws.

Any downgrading of India's sovereign debt rating lan international rating agency could have a negeai
impact on the Company's business.

Any adverse revisions to India's credit ratings domestic and international sovereign debt by irgtonal
rating agencies may adversely impact our Compatylgy to raise additional financing, and the et rates
and other commercial terms at which such additidinaincing may be available. This could have aneask
effect on our Company's business and future firrdrérformance, its ability to obtain financing fcapital
expenditures and the trading price of the Shares.

RISKS RELATING TO EQUITY SHARES

SEBI enquiry in relation to the Price fluctuation foour Equity Shares.

In January 2009, our Company wrote to NSE and SE&lesting that our shares be removed from theréaitu

& Options segment in light of the abnormal priceverment due to low public float in our shares. Later
between February 2009 and March 2009 there wetbeiuabnormal movements in our stock price. Ouresha

were subsequently removed from the Futures & Optemgment in the last week of March 2009. In thgard,
SEBI has initiated correspondence with us seekertgin details and information such as details fadres
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pledged by the Promoters and loans availed by oangany, among other things, as a result of thisenadur
Company has provided the necessary details andnaton to SEBI.

After this Issue, the price of our Equity Shares mae highly volatile.

The price of our Equity Shares on the Stock Exckeangay fluctuate after this Issue as a result oérse

factors, including:

= volatility in the Indian and global securities marlor in the Rupee's value relative to the U.Sladothe
Euro and other foreign currencies;

= our profitability and performance;

= perceptions about our future performance or théopmance of Indian companies in general;

= performance of our competitors and the perceptionthe market about investments in the real estate

industry;

adverse media reports on us or the Indian reatesstdustry;

changes in the estimates of our performance omeandations by financial analysts;

significant developments in India's economic litisedion and deregulation policies; and

significant developments in India's fiscal and eonwinental regulations.

There can be no assurance that an active tradinketrfar our Equity Shares will be sustained aftes Issue,

or that the price at which our Shares have hisatiyicraded will correspond to the price at whible tShares are
offered in this Issue or the price at which ourr@bawill trade in the market subsequent to thisds©ur Share
price may be volatile and may decline post listing.

Fluctuations in the exchange rate between the Rupmad the United States dollar could have a material
adverse effect on the value of the Equity Sharesldpendent of the Company's operating results.

The Shares are quoted in Rupees on the BSE ardSBe Any dividends in respect of the Shares willplaé
in Rupees and subsequently converted into US dditairepatriation. Any adverse movement in exclearages
during the time it takes to undertake such congersiay reduce the net dividend to investors. Intemd any
adverse movement in exchange rates during a daelagpatriating outside India the proceeds from sdle
Shares, for example, because of a delay in regylafgprovals that may be required for the salet&r&s may
reduce the net proceeds received by shareholders.

The exchange rate between the Rupee and the Ul&:. kdas changed substantially in the last two desaand
could fluctuate substantially in the future, thaythave a material adverse effect on the valueeBhares and
returns from the Shares, independent of the Conipaperating results.

Future issuances or sales of the Equity Shares abulignificantly affect the trading price of the Edty
Shares.

Any future issuance of Shares by our Company odisgosal of Shares by any of the major sharehsldiour
Company or the perception that such issuance es sahly occur may significantly affect the tradingce of
the Shares.

There can be no assurance that our Company wilissoe further Shares or that the shareholdersnaiil
dispose of, pledge or otherwise encumber theireshar

There is no guarantee that the Equity Shares issymdsuant to the Issue will be listed on the BSEdthe
NSE in a timely manner or at all.

In accordance with Indian law and practice, periois$or trading of the equity shares issued purst@arthe
issue will not be granted until after those egsitares have been issued and allotted. Approvakegliire all
other relevant documents authorizing the issuingapfity shares to be submitted. There could belaréaor
delay in listing them on BSE and NSE. Any failuredelay in obtaining the approval would restricuyability
to dispose of your Equity Shares. Further, histdriading prices, therefore, may not be indicat¥¢he prices
at which the equity shares will trade in the future
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An investor will not be able to sell any of the Htyu Shares subscribed in the Issue other than on a
recognised Indian stock exchange for a period ofeopear from the date of the Issue of the Equity $&s

Pursuant to the SEBI ICDR Regulations, for a pedbdne year from the date of the allotment of 8kan the
Issue, QIBs subscribing to Shares in the Issue ondy sell their Shares on any recognised stock @xgé in

India where the Equity Shares of our Company atedi, and may not enter into any off-market tradimg
respect of these Shares. The Company cannot kercénat these restrictions will not have an impactthe

price of the Shares.

You may be subject to Indian taxes arising out afpital gains on the sale of the Equity Shares.

Capital gains arising from the sale of our Equihafs are generally taxable in India. Any gainizedl on the
sale of our Equity Shares on a stock exchangefbelahore than 12 months will not be subject to tapgains
tax in India if the securities transaction taxSarT, has been paid on the transaction. The STTbeilevied on
and collected by an Indian stock exchange on wbighEquity Shares are sold. Any gain realized enstile of
our Equity Shares held for more than 12 monthsittndian resident, which are sold other than oecagnized
stock exchange and as a result of which no STTbheas paid, will be subject to capital gains taXndia.

Further, any gain realized on the sale of our BgBhares held for a period of 12 months or leskhilsubject
to capital gains tax in India. Capital gains agsiinom the sale of our Equity Shares will be exerfiptm

taxation in India in cases where an exemption évided under a treaty between India and the cowftwyhich

the seller is a resident. Generally, Indian taattess do not limit India's ability to impose tax capital gains.
As a result, residents of other countries may &kldi for tax in India as well as in their own jdiittions on
gains arising from a sale of Equity Shares. Forarinformation, see the section entitled "Taxaticspécts
Relating To The Instrument" in the Placement Docuime

The interests of the Company's principal Shareholdemay not be the same as those of its other
Shareholders.

As on the date of the Placement Document, our Prensi@nd promoter group, in the aggregate, beaéfici
own 89.96% of our Company's outstanding Equity 8haifhese persons, acting together, exert signtfica
influence on our Company's business, including engttelating to any sale of all or substantially adl its
assets, the timing and distribution of dividendd #re election of its officers and Directors. Thdgectors and
their family members may have interests that ake@ to the interests of holders of the Share$ sy take
positions with which the Company or the other hodd& Shares do not agree.

A third party could be prevented from acquiring ctal of the Company because of anti-takeover prieis
under Indian law.

There are provisions in Indian law that may diseger a third party from attempting to take contrbtte
Company, even if a change in control would resulthie purchase of the Shares at a premium to thiketa
price or would otherwise be beneficial to investdrbke Takeover Code contains certain provisions iy
delay, deter or prevent a future takeover or changeontrol of the Company. Any person acquirinthei
"control" or an interest (either on its own or ttgg with parties acting in concert with it) in 1586more of the
Shares of the Company must make an open offerquitacat least another 20% of the outstanding Shairéhe
Company. A takeover offer to acquire at least amo20% of the outstanding Shares of the Company (or
lower percentage in certain circumstances) alsot rbesmade in the circumstances detailed in theigect
entitled "Indian Securities Market". These provigamay discourage or prevent certain types of a@titns
involving an actual or threatened change in cordfohe Company.

Foreign investors are subject to foreign investmenmesstrictions under Indian law that limit the Compg/'s
ability to attract foreign investors, which may aelsely impact the market price of the Equity Shares

Under the foreign exchange regulations currentffipine in India, transfers of shares between neidests and
residents are freely permitted (subject to certaineptions) if they comply with the pricing guideds and
reporting requirements specified by the RBI. If ttensfer of shares, which are sought to be traresfes not in
compliance with such pricing guidelines or repatiequirements or fall under any of the exceptiafsrred to
above, then the prior approval of the RBI will leguired. Additionally, shareholders who seek toveonthe
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Rupee proceeds from a sale of shares in Indiaforign currency and repatriate that foreign cucsefrom
India will require a no objection/tax clearancetifieate from the income tax authority.

Our Company cannot assure investors that any redjajpproval from the RBI or any other Governmenay
can be obtained on any particular terms or at all.

Your ability to sell your Equity Shares to a resitteof India may be subject to delays if RBI apprdvia
required.

Under current Indian regulations and practice, aygirof the RBI is required for the sale of Equilgares by a
non-resident to a resident of India unless the isateade on a stock exchange in India through ekdtooker or
a merchant banker registered with SEBI at the nigokiee or in accordance with the terms of the ipgc
guidelines specified by the RBI in case of an offrket transfer. The conversion of the Rupee procéexin
such sale into foreign currency and the repatmatibthat foreign currency from India also requisggproval of
RBI. As foreign exchange controls are in effectridia, the RBI will approve the price at which EiyuShares
are transferred based on a specified formula argher price per Equity Share may not be permitted.
Approvals required from the RBI or any other goveemt agency may not be obtained on terms favotaléde
non-resident investor or at all. Further, priortite repatriation of sale proceeds, a non obje¢tanzlearance
certificate from the income tax authority or theysion of an undertaking in the prescribed foradanhg with a
certificate from an accountant would be requirec d8nnot guarantee that any approval will be obthin a
timely manner or at all. Because of possible delayebtaining requisite approvals, investors in Eguity
Shares may be prevented from realizing gains dy@rgds of price increases or limiting losses migiperiods
of price declines.

Conditions in Indian stock exchanges may affect thgce or liquidity of our Equity Shares.

Indian stock exchanges have experienced probleatshitive affected the market price and liquidityttod
securities of Indian companies. These problems fiasleided temporary closure of the stock exchartges
manage extreme market volatility, broker defausttiement delays and strikes by brokers. In asfditthe
governing bodies of Indian stock exchanges haven fiime to time restricted securities from tradifigyited
price movements and imposed margin requirementshéi from time to time, disputes have occurreveen
listed companies and Indian stock exchanges aret g#turities regulatory bodies that, in some dases had
a negative effect on market sentiment. Similar fmois could occur in the future, and if they do tleeyld
negatively affect the market price and liquidity air Equity Shares. For more information on theusées
market in India, see "Indian Securities Marketthin Placement Document.

Holders of Equity Shares could be restricted in thability to exercise preemptive rights under tlgplicable
securities of any relevant jurisdiction and coulti@reby suffer future dilution of their ownership terest.

Under the Companies Act, 1956, any company incateadrin India must offer its holders of equity €sr
preemptive rights to subscribe and pay for a priipaaite number of shares to maintain their existngership
percentages prior to the issuance of any new egbityes, unless the pre-emptive rights have bearedvay
the adoption of a special resolution by holderthoée-fourths of the shares voted on such resolptinless the
company has obtained Government approval to issti@ut such rights. However, if the law of the fdiction
that you are in does not permit the exercise ohqueemptive rights without us filing an offeringaiment
with the applicable authority in such jurisdictiogmgu will be unable to exercise such preemptivétaginless
we make such filing. We may elect not to file afedhg document in relation to preemptive righthestvise
available by Indian law to you. To the extent that are unable to exercise preemptive rights gdaimteespect
of the Equity Shares, your proportional interestas would be reduced.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The proceeds of the Issue are estimated to be dpm@tely Rs. 3,023.97 million, before deducting tksue
expenses. The proceeds of the Issue will be usednpliance with applicable laws.

Subject to compliance with applicable laws and l&ipns, we intend to use the net proceeds recdiosd the
Issue to fund our various expansion plans, meej-term working capital requirements, repay debtsfan any
other permissible uses.

Our main objects clause and objects incidentalnaillary to the main objects clause of our Memonandof
Association enables us to undertake our existitigiaes.

In accordance with the policies instituted by owaBl of Directors, our management will have thgiHity in
deploying the Issue proceeds for the purposes presdiabove. Further the Issue proceeds may alstlised
for general corporate purposes and meeting Isspenses. Pending utilisation for the purposes desdri
above, we intend to temporarily invest the Issueeeds in creditworthy instruments, including monegrket
mutual funds and deposits with banks. Such investsngould be in accordance with the investmentcpesi as
approved by our Board from time to time.
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CAPITALISATION

The following table shows, as at March 31, 2009, @ampany's actual capitalisation on consolidatesisas
adjusted for the Issue.

This table should be read in conjunction with timafficial statements and the related notes, théseenttitled
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations” and otherrfaial
statements and information contained elsewhereeiiPtacement Document.

The information set out below has been preparegt@ordance with Indian GAAP.

(Rs. in millipn
As at March 31, 2009

Pre-Issue Post Issue *
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
Equity Shares of par value of Rs.10 each 667.00 .0867
Fresh Issue for QIP 60.36
Reserves and Surplus 9,755.61 9,755.61
Less: Minority Interest 1.85 1.85
Additional Share Premium on fresh issue for QIP - - 2,963.61
Total Shareholders' Funds (A) 10,420.76 13,444.73
LOAN FUNDS
Secured Loans 8,488.93 8,488.93
Unsecured Loans 2,079.83 2,079.83
Total Debt (B) 10,568.76 10,568.76
Total Debt / Equity Ratio 1.01:1 0.79:1
Notes:

Q) * All the detail post QIP are as on March 31, 2009.
2) As at March 31, 2009, 66,700,000 Equity Sharessoi ®Reach were issued and outstanding.
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MARKET PRICE INFORMATION
Our Equity Shares have been listed on BSE and df fi#n February 7, 2007.
The table set forth below is for the periods tmali¢ate the high and low prices of our Equity Skaad also

the volume of trading activity. On August 28, 20€% closing price of our Equity Shares on BSE EB& was
Rs. 530.15 and Rs. 526.15, respectively (Equity&haf face value of Rs.10 each).

Q) The high, low and average market prices of our &dsinares during the preceding three years.
BSE
; lume on Volume on
e I=eling) High Vc()jate of date of Average
March 31 Date (R%.) High (No. Date Low | ow (No. (Rs.)g
of shares) of shares)
2010 (upto Aug 26,
09) Apr 1, 2009 667.5 1,320  Apr 24, 2009 343.0 624, 490.6
2009 Mar 19, 2009 2,227.5 4,565,940 Jan 13, 2009 606.3 230,516 842.8
2008 Jan 18, 2008 1,291.9 341,095 Jun 29, 2007 324.8 93,772 760.4
2007 Feb 7, 2007 564.0 7,653,469 Mar 6, 2007 345.4 436,756 427.8
*Our Equity Shares were listed and started tradmB®E on and from February 7, 2007
*Average of daily closing prices
Source: www.bseindia.com
NSE
; lume on Volume on
VGEN SR T High V%ate of date of Average
March 31 Date (R%.) High (No. Date Low | ow (No. (Rs.)g
of shares) of shares)
2010 (upto Aug 26,
09) Apr 1, 2009 814.1 495 May 12, 2009 364.6 26,696 506.6
2009 Mar 19, 2009 2,210.9 8,104,735 Jan 13, 2009 605.3 468,885 845.1
2008 Jan 18, 2008 1,291.3 126,311 Jun 29, 2007 3245 89,418 760.0
2007 Feb 7, 2007 563.5 8,573,402 Mar 6, 2007 344.9 367,517 427.7

# Our Equity Shares were listed and started tradmISE on and from February 7, 2007
*Average of daily closing prices
Source: www.nseindia.com

(2) Monthly high and low prices of our Equity Sharestfte six months preceding the date of filing af th
Preliminary Placement Document.

BSE
Volume on Volume on
Month High date of date of Low Average
LI (R%.) High (No. of BCHE S (No. of (Rs.)gi
shares) shares)
August 2009 ** Aug 03, 2009 560.2 59,228 Aug 2802 488.6 29,811 490.6
July, 2009 Jul 28, 2009 585.6 454,281 Jul 13, 2009 402.3 32,830 506.4
June, 2009 Jun 10, 2009 615.5 58,837 Jun 23,2009 71.34 60,522 540.4
May, 2009 May 25, 2009 494.2 10,802 May 13,2009 3.36 27,893 419.2
April, 2009 Apr 1, 2009 667.5 1,320 Apr24,2009 33 24,664 469.2
March, 2009 Mar 19, 2009 2,227.5 4,565,940 Mar 31, 2009 702.6 1,046 1,247.1
February, 2009 Feb 25, 2009 1,080.4 354,767 Feb 3, 2009 799.2 107,229 952.1

*Average of daily closing prices
** - Data upto August 26, 2009
Source: www.bseindia.com
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NSE

Volume on Volume on

Month High date of date of Low  Average
LI (Rgs.) High (No. BEIE S (No. of (Rs.)%

of shares) shares)
August, 2009** Aug 03, 2009 561.8 63,077 Aug 25020 488.4 62,049 508.2
July, 2009 Jul 28, 2009 585.9 205,337  Jul 13, 2009402.0 31,255 506.1
June, 2009 Jun 10, 2009 616.0 63,233 Jun 23, 200970.94 71,543 540.2
May, 2009 May 25, 2009 495.1 35,090 May 12,2009 4.86 26,696 419.1
April, 2009 Apr 1, 2009 814.1 495  Apr 29, 2009 405. 89,413 565.0
March, 2009 Mar 19, 2009 2,210.9 8,104,735 Mar2BD9 857.0 894 1,279.2
February, 2009 Feb 25, 2009 1,077.9 545,505 Febm® 798.2 109,035 952.5

*Average of daily closing prices
** - Data upto August 26, 2009
Source: www.nseindia.com

Notes

= In the above data provided, High, Low and Averageeg are of the daily closing prices.
= In case of two days with same closing, the data higher volume has been considered.

3) Market Price on the first working day following tB®ard Meeting approving the Qualified Institution
Placement on June 4, 2009, and after the apprdévaé anembers by postal ballot on July 21, 2009:
BSE NSE

Traded Turnover Traded Turnover
Date Open High Low Close \éﬁlém;? (Rs. in Open High Low  Close \éﬁlém;? (Rs. in

Sha.res) million) Sha.res) million)
Jun 4, 2009 563.4 5845 536.0 584.5 49,817 28.6885.0 5857 5350 585.7 42,682 24.54
Jun 5, 2009 613.7 613.7 591.0 601.85 50,920 30.9613.0 6150 5850 600.5 78,056 47.36
Jul 21, 2009 500.0 546.0 492.4 527.4 70,610 37.4447.45 5474 5220 526.3 1,16,431 61.7
Jul 22, 2009 531.0 547.0 510.0 513.8 84,272 4458 528.7 546.6 509.4 513.6 109,916 57.99
Jul 23, 2009 5140 530.0 514.0 524.2 49,966 26.24 5220 530.0 515.0 523.7 76,756 40.24
Source: www.bseindia.com, www.nseindia.com
4) Volume of business transacted during the last sirthms on the Stock Exchanges.

Month BSE NSE
Total Volume of Total Value of Total Volume of Total Value of
Securities Traded Securities Securities Traded Securities
(No. of shares) Transacted (No. of shares) Transacted

(Rs. in million) (Rs. in million)
August, 2009* 828,433 426.10 1,137,966 583.01
July, 2009 3,129,438 1,666.22 3,285,874 1,718.79
June, 2009 1,572,655 845.00 1,627,184 877.28
May, 2009 766,152 320.99 904,879 388.35
April, 2009 750,568 292.95 365,674 157.52
March, 2009 38,970,595 57,354.58 58,334,481 89,062.40
February, 2009 7,193,054 6,922.19 12,123,441 11,766.08
Total 49,253,024 65,735.71 73,355,659 102,251.63

*Data upto August 26, 2009

Source: www.bseindia.com, www.nseindia.com

-65-



pels Ackruti Citymited - Placement Document

DIVIDEND POLICY

Under the Companies Act, unless the board of dirscdf a company recommends payment of divideral, th
shareholders at a general meeting have no powdedare any dividend. The shareholders at a gemezating
may declare a lower, but not higher, dividend ttieat recommended by the board. Dividends are d=tlan a
per-share basis of a company's shares. The divideadmmended by the board and approved by the
shareholders at a general meeting is distributedpaid to shareholders in proportion to the paidrajue of
their shares as on the record date for which sudgtlesthd is payable. In addition, as is permittedthy Articles

of Association of our Company, the Board may decknd pay interim dividends. Under the Companies Ac
dividends can only be paid in cash to shareholtistesd on the register of shareholders on the dakéch is
specified as the "record date" or "book closure'ddfio shareholder is entitled to a dividend wihaitey lien in
respect of unpaid calls on any of his shares istantling.

Our Company has paid / declared the following divid on Equity Shares in the last five (5) yearsirend
March 31, 2009. The following table sets forth tash dividends paid / declared on the Equity Shdueisig
each of the financial years indicated:

Rs. Per Equity Amount of Dividend Declared

Fiscal Face Value Share (Exclusive of Tax) Rate
(Rs) (Rs. in million)
2004-05 10 20.00 40.00 200%
2005-06 10 1.50 72.00 15%
2006-07 10 1.50 100.05 15%
2007-08 10 2.50 166.75 25%
2008-09 10 1.00 66.70 10%

The form, frequency and amount of future divideodsthe Equity Shares will depend upon our Company's
earnings, cash flow, financial condition and otfamtors and shall be at the discretion of our BadrDirectors
and subject to approval of the shareholders ofCmmpany.

Our Company declares dividends, which are recomextibgt our Board and approved by our shareholdars. O
Board may declare and pay an interim dividend. Naldnd may be paid except out of its profits ic@elance
with Section 205 of the Indian Companies Act.

Future Dividends

There is no assurance that any future dividendsbsildeclared or paid or that the amount theredfrat be
decreased.
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INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The information set forth in this section is basad publicly available information, which has notebe
independently verified by the Company or the GCMRAnd Co-Manager to the Issue, or any of their
respective affiliates and advisors. None of us,@@BRLM and Co-Manager or any other person coretbct
with the Issue has verified this information. Inglysources and publications generally state tihat teport has
been published for general information purposes trad the information contained therein has beetaimied
from sources generally believed to be reliable, thetir accuracy, completeness and underlying assiomgp
are not guaranteed and their reliability cannot &gsured and accordingly, investment decisions shoat be
based on such information. Several reports alsoresgly disclaim legal responsibility and liabiligf the
person/ organisation preparing the report for amgd or damage resulting from the contents of segonts.
Accordingly, we and the GC-BRLM and Co-Manager dbtake any responsibility for the data, projectpn
forecasts, conclusions or any other informationtaored in this section. Certain information contaihherein
pertaining to prior years is presented in the foofestimates as they appear in the respective tepsource
documents. The actual data for those years may seaggificantly and materially from the estimates so
contained.

Growth of the Indian Economy

India is the world's largest democracy by poputatsize, and one of the fastest growing economiethén
world. According to CIA World Factbook, India's iesated population will be 1.16 billion people asJfly
2009. India had a GDP on a purchasing power phasis estimated at approximately US$ 3,267.00ohilin

2008. This makes it the fourth largest economyheworld after the United States of America, Chind Japan
(Source: CIA World Factbook)

The last Annual Policy Statement of the ReservekBadrindia released in April 2008 placed real GDOBvwgh
for 2008-09 in the range of 8.0 to 8.5% (SourcesdRee Bank of India Annual Policy Statement for Year
2009-10, April 21, 2009). However, following theobhl financial crisis, India's economic growth lséewed
down significantly to 6.7% as compared to 9.0%isedl 2008(Source: Central Statistical Organization ("CSO"Jhe
real GDP growth for the four quarters of the fisgahr 2008 as compared to the fiscal year 200&etr®ut
below:

Real GDP Growth (%)

Sector Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
(April - June) (July - September)  (October - December) (January - March)

2007-08 2008-09 2007-08 2008-09 2007-08 2008-09 2007-08 2008-09
Agriculture, forestry and fishing 4.3 3.0 3.9 2.7 .18 (0.8) 2.2 2.7
Manufacturing 10.0 5.5 8.2 5.1 8.6 0.9 6.3 (1.4)
Financing, Insurance, real estate
and business services 12.6 6.9 12.4 6.4 11.9 8.3 .3 10 95
GDP at factor cost 9.2 7.8 9.0 7.7 9.3 5.8 8.9 5.8

(Source: CSO)
The Indian Real Estate Sector

The Indian real estate sector involves the devedopnof commercial offices, industrial facilitiesptbls,
restaurants, cinemas, residential housing, tragipages such as retail outlets and the purchaseamaf land
and land development rights.

Historically, the real estate sector in India h&er unorganized and characterized by various fdtoat

impeded organized dealing, such as the absenceaitealized title registry providing title guaraat a lack of
uniformity in local laws and their application, ramailability of bank financing, high interest ratend transfer
taxes and the lack of transparency in transactadnes. In recent years however, the real estatersecindia

has exhibited a trend towards greater organizati@htransparency in light of the various regulatefprms.
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The above trend is believed to have contributedrganized investment in the real estate sector fooith
domestic and international financial institutiofi$ie nature and demand for property is also changirittp
heightened consumer expectations that are infliebgehigher disposable incomes. These trends heaee b
reinforced by the growth in the Indian economy, eabhhas stimulated demand for land and developed rea
estate. Demand for residential, commercial andlregal estate is rising throughout India, accomedrby
increased demand for hotel accommodation and inggkavfrastructure. Additionally, the tax and otbenefits
applicable to SEZs are expected to result in newcgoof demand.

According to Associated Chambers of Commerce adddiny of India, the size of the domestic real testa
market in India as of October 2008 is estimatecdbéoUS$ 15.00 billion, of which FDI contributionsear
estimated to be less than US$ 4.00 billi@surce: Cushman & Wakefield Report: The Metamosishe Changing Dynamics of
the Indian Realty Sector, October 2008 (the “Cushrivetamorphosis Report”)]Since the opening of FDI into the real estate
sector in 2005, the real estate sector has seahstastial rise in investment year on year anikedy to see a
steady increase over the next four to five yeamwvéirer, due to the current global economic downttira real
estate industry is experiencing a significant dawmt An industry-wide softening of demand for prdpehas
resulted from a lack of consumer confidence, dem@aaffordability, decreased availability of mogga
financing and large supplies of resale and newritorées. However, industry sources maintain thatrttedium
to long term drivers of the sector have remainéalcin (i) a large demand for developed space resreainl (i)
FDI is expected to pick-up in the next couple caers.

A growing trend is the increase in the number abgl direct real estate investment deals in Indradéd by
India-specific real estate investment funds rathan by FDI.(Source: Cushman Metamorphosis Report)

According to Cushman & Wakefield Research estimattes pan-India cumulative demand projection as of
October 2008 for the real estate sector acrossffive, residential, retail and hospitality secteras expected to
be approximately 1,098.00 million square feet by tflear 2012. The residential sector, which is etgqueto
account for nearly 63% of the total demand for essthte during the period from 2008 to 2012, iseeigd to
continue to drive real estate demand in the Infleere is expected to be demand for 687.00 millgumse feet
of residential space during this period. Despite ¢xpected slow down in the market for office spdhe
demand for commercial office space is projecteldet@43.00 million square feet during the periodrfr2008 to
2012. Moreover, the demand for retail and hospytalpace is expected to be 95.00 million squaré dee
73.00 million square feet, respectively, driven mhiaby an increase in income levels as well asmynarease
the number of both domestic and international &isriSource: Cushman Metamorphosis Reporfhie pan-India
demand projections through 2012 are set out below:

Demand Projection — Pan India
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(Source: Cushman Metamorphosis Report)
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Additionally, the seven largest cities in India @ected to account for nearly 80%, or 877.00ionilsquare
feet, of total demand for real estate in India dgrthe period from 2008 to 2012. The residentiakmeis

expected to account for the largest portion of esthte demand in the seven largest Indian citemgl the

period from 2008 to 2012, with demand for resid@nsipace constituting 60% of the total demand &s¢h
seven cities. Total demand for residential spadbese seven cities is expected to be 529.00 miflguare feet
during this period. Further, demand for commeroféite, retail and hospitality space is expectedd¢oount for
23%, 9% and 8%, respectively, of total real estieimand in these seven cities during the period 2668 to

2012. Demand for office space is expected to beQ20@illion square feet, demand for retail spacexisected
to be 79.00 million square feet and demand for ialéy space is expected to be 66.00 million seuimet

during this period(Source: Cushman Metamorphosis Report)

Real estate demand is expected to increase mdygihaing the period from 2008 to 2012, with thefTl cities
expected to generate the majority of the demanithgdinis period(Source: Cushman Metamorphosis Report

The demand projections for the top seven citidadia for the next four years are set out below:

Demand Projections — Top Seven Cities
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Certain Segments of the Real Estate Sector

Below is a discussion of the following segmentsthe Indian real estate industry: residential, comuiag
retail, hospitality and Special Economic Zones ZSH.

The Residential Segment

Due to India's highly favourable demographics, tleenand for residential space in India has condigten
outpaced supply in recent years. A growing popaifatrising disposable incomes, rapidly growing neddass
and youth populations, low interest rates, incegtifor interest and principal payments on housoans,
heightened customer expectations, increased uid#onzand the shrinking size of Indian househol@dgew
some of the reasons cited for demand exceedingysugpwever, according to the Cushman Metamorphosis
Report, rising property prices and increased istarges, coupled with a demand-supply mismatch réduced
the affordability of residential properties in ladi

According to the housing ministry estimates, 24nillion urban housing units will be needed in Indiaring
the Government of India's $1Five Year Plan period (2007 to 2012). “Economigalleaker sections” and
lower income groups constitutes 99% of these 24nflfion urban housing units. The magnitude of this
shortage is evident from the fact that 21% of Ilsdigban population lives in slum-like conditiomada35% in
one-room accommodations. Incentives from the Gowent of India in the form of tax benefits such eswdr
duties, subsidization of various construction ispuan increase in private-public participation FPPIn
development projects, the sponsoring of micro-faiag and the development of land and infrastruttura
facilities is expected to boost low-cost housingiatives. A notable initiative in this regard ixpected to
increase the floor space index ("FSI") in Mumbaithwthe Mumbai Metropolitan Regional Development
Authority ("MMRDA") planning to build over 500,0000uses over the next six years as part of the slum
rehabilitation scheme of the Maharashtra State Gowent. (Source: The Cushman Metamorphosis Report)

Projected Demand for the Residential Sector

The total demand for the residential space in ligliestimated to be approximately 687.00 millionag feet

over the next five years, with the top seven ciiesounting for nearly 77% of this demaigburce: Cushman
Metamorphosis Report)

Demand for Residential Projects (2008 — 2012)
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Others, 22%

.‘\

1

' Bangalore, 16%
Pune, 10% /
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Kolkata, 4%

Chennai, 16%

(Source: Cushman Metamorphosis Report)
Changing Demographics and Increasing Affluence
India's demographics have been impacted by largeases in (i) employment opportunities, (i) themter of

people in the crucial age 25 to 44 age bracket, (@dhigher salaries. Such factors are contribgtiio an
increase in disposable income in India and drivlegnand for new residential and retail properties.
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The table below sets forth historic and projecteshual growth rates for different segments of Irdia’
population, classified by levels of annual incorbe figures highlight that growth is particularlypected in
the higher income segments. For example, the nuwibleouseholds with annual incomes of between B8.2.
million and Rs.5.00 million per year, Rs.5.00 noifliand Rs.10.00 million per year and in excess 91®00
million per year is expected to increase in size2By9%, 25.4% and 28.3%, respectively, betweemfiiz
years 2002 and 2010. The increase in the numbleowseholds with higher income is expected to coutei to
the continued growth of the Indian residential resthte sector.

Household
Expected Expected CAGR CAGR
Income Household Household hougeholds hougeholds CAGR (FY02-  (FYO06-
(Rs. FY96 FY02 ; : (FY96-02)
million (,000) (,000) in FY06 in FY10 %) 06) 10)
na) | | (,000) (,000) ) (%)
>10 5 20 52 141 26.0 27.0 28.3
10to 5 11 40 103 255 24.0 26.7 25.4
5t02 63 201 454 1,037 21.3 22.6 22.9
2tol 189 546 1,122 2,373 19.3 19.7 20.6
1t00.5 651 1,712 3,212 6,173 17.5 17.0 17.7
05t0 0.2 3,881 9,034 13,188 22,268 15.1 9.9 14.0
0.2 to 0.009 28,901 41,262 53,276 75,304 6.1 6.6 0 9
<0.009 131,176 135,378 132,249 114,394 0.5 (0.6) .6)(3
Total 164,877 188,193 203,656 221,945

(Source:www.ncaer.org)

Increasing Urbanization

India has witnessed a trend of increased urbaaisats people migrate from rural to urban areasisgek
employment opportunities. This increased urbargsaltias contributed to greater demand for residespiace
in cities. Urbanisation, coupled with the appeaeant office developments in the peripheral areasnajor
cities, has in particular led to the emergencentdgrated township developments. Integrated tovpssbifer a
type of development that consolidates commeradihil; residential and leisure facilities.

Shrinking Household Size

India's traditional joint family (or multi-occupgntesidences are gradually being replaced by iddadi or
smaller nuclear family residences. Given Indiasréasing population, such contraction in the sizehe
average household is expected to increase demahdising.

Trend towards high-rise residences in urban areas

A large proportion of the demand for residentialelepments, especially in urban centres such as baiym
Bengaluru, Delhi (Gurgaon and Noida) and Punejkiyl to be demand for high-rise residential builgk.
Since this is a fairly new segment, the growthhaf high-rise segment is expected to be fastertti@growth

of more traditional urban housing segments. Theaes for the anticipated demand are the lack ofesfra
cities such as Mumbai and the proximity of highesig¢o offices and IT parks in places such as Gurgao
Bengaluru and Pune. The high-rise trend is gragwadpanding into other cities such as Kolkata, Hgbad
and Chennai as a result of increasing affordabititpximity to IT or business processing outsowyifBPQO”)
parks and the development of townships within cloeeimity to such IT and BPO parks.

-71-



< P
pall] Ackruti Citymited - Placement Document

The Commercial Segment

The commercial real estate market in India hasicoatisly been evolving in response to a numbethahges
in the business environment. The growth of the cencial real estate sector in India has been fugitethrge
part, by the increased revenues of companies icgeindustries, particularly in the IT and infortie
technology enabled services (“ITES”) sectors. Higé space requirements of the IT/ ITES sector fedeo
real estate growth being spread beyond the custoo@artral business district to the suburban anipperal
locations of major cities. For example, over thstpgaw years, the Bandra Kurla Complex ("BKC") het
Western suburbs of Mumbai has emerged as a thraongmercial hub, and, along with the contiguousteres
suburban locations of Khar, Santa Cruz, AndheriJadaand Goregaon, accounts for 44% of office stiock
Mumbai. The sub-markets of Andheri, BKC and BKC-KalRoad are the biggest contributors to totalceffi
space stock in the western suburbs of Mumbai (Rounight Frank — First Quarter 2009 India Officaet).

During the first six months of 2008, the seven majties in India experienced excess supply in cenuial
office space, demonstrating the effects of the ggreconomic downturn and the downturn in the esthte
sector in particular. An excess in supply of contiarspace was prominent in a few sub-markets, gmilgnin
the suburban and peripheral locations of certdiasc{Source: The Cushman Metamorphosis Reportjueder,
the Cushman Metamorphosis Report suggests thatadtmectional effect of the excess supply in comiagrc
space that has affected the office sector is eggdotlead to a more stable market situation im#e future.

According to the Cushman Metamorphosis Reportdéraand for commercial office space for the periaanf
2008 to 2012 is estimated to be approximately Z4&dlion square feet across India. As the lardg&gtub in
India, Bengaluru is likely to have the highest dathdor commercial office space demand, with itsnested
office space demand for this period being 51.00ionilsquare feet. Mumbai is only expected to ramkrth in
terms of total demand for commercial real estatesecause of its sky-high real estate valueghndnily a
few corporations can affor@source: Cushman Metamorphosis Report)

Demand for Commercial Office Space (2008 — 2012)

Others, 17%

NCR, 20%

Pune, 8%

Hyderabad, 8% i
\ J/ Bangalore, 21%

Chennai, 14%

Kolkata, 3% Mumbai, 9%

(Source: Cushman Metamorphosis Report)
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The Retail Segment

While real estate development in the retail seisterrelatively new phenomenon in India, it hasdfigted from
the growth experienced by domestic and foreignlegtain India in the recent years. However, thileger of
the global economic downturn into the Indian matiet impacted growth in this sector.

India's retail boom primarily originated in the fiecities and subsequently spread to the Tiemt dier 11|

cities. The increased purchasing power of the grgwniddle class and its consumerist aspirationsanee of
the factors propelling planned retail activitiestive country. Established global retailers suclthasGerman
Metro AG, the South African Shoprite, the U.S.’sWart and the U.K.'s Tesco have already made thwetiry
into India along with luxury brands such as Arma&igner, Versace, Louis Vouitton, Dolce & GabbaAagna

and Hugo Boss, among the many other retailershidnad also established their presence in major mncitées.
(Source: Cushman Metamorphosis Report)

Historically, the Indian retail sector has been dwted by small independent local retailers suctraditional
neighbourhood grocery stores. However, during ©9@0% organized retail outlets gained increasedpa@nee

due to changing demographic factors such as aradserin the number of working women, changes in the
perception of branded products, the entry of irdgomal retailers into the market and the growingnber of
retail malls. According to Knight Frank's India BiétMarket Review (Third Quarter 2008), organizethiling
accounts for approximately 4% of the total retadrket in India and is expected to account for U8%.Q0
billion in sales by 2013. However, the high rentsménded by owners of retail space and the economic
downturn slowdown resulting from the global econowriisis may have an impact on demand for retaitspn

the near future.

The growth of demand for retail space has alsotdetigh demand for shopping mall space. According t
Knight Frank's India Retail Market Review (Third §ter 2008), malls have emerged as family entartairi
centres with food courts and multiplexes benefitimg most from the growing mall culture. Furthdypat 332
malls, aggregating to approximately 102.00 millgmuare feet of space, are in the pipeline in Temd Tier Il
cities. Of these, the majority of malls are to siifled to open in the National Capital Region, whiodmprises
of Gurgaon, Noida and New Delhi ("NCR"), and Mumivathe next two to three years.

The projected retail demand figures (essentiallgreasenting shopping mall development) depict aelarg
variation in demand among the Tier I, Il and llti€s. The NCR has the highest demand, with 19.00omi
square feet (or 20%) of the total estimated refpélce demand for the period from 2008 to 2012pv@d by
Mumbai with 15.00 million square feet (16%) of demaresulting from high consumer spending in tretes.
The demand for retail space in India for the peffodh 2008 to 2012 is set forth in the pie chafobe

Demand for Retail Projects (2008 — 2012)
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(Source:The Cushman Metamorphosis Report)
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The Hospitality Segment

Economic growth and increasing commercial activitpupled with the entry of several multi-national
corporations into India, have helped in the groweththe hospitality sector in India in the recentige The
demand for hospitality space continues to be degr@ndn business and leisure travellers from witiie
country as well as on a significant increase ireifgm travellers visiting India. However, the glolgedonomic
downturn and the terrorist attacks in Mumbai in Bioker 2008 have adversely affected the flow ofifore
travellers to India. One of the most noticeablendsein the Indian realty sector has been the emeegef
service apartments. The potential of this servemgment is estimated to be nearly 20% of the tadaphality
industry.(Source: Cushman Metamorphosis Report)

A strong domestic economy, business opportunity, @overnment of India's open sky policy, initiativio
liberalise foreign investment and especially tHeré$ of India's Ministry of Tourism ("MoT") to comunicate
the "Incredible India" campaign have collectivelyntributed to robust demand for hospitality spactengajor
cities in India. In keeping with the current growtite, India's hospitality industry is anticipatedgrow at 8%
per annum between 2007 and 20®6urce: Cushman Metamorphosis Report)

Major cities/ regions like Bengaluru, Mumbai, NCRlyderabad, Chennai and Kolkata are witnessing
significant developments in the hospitality secod are likely to generate demand of more thanGstillion
square feet during the period from 2008 to 2014s Htcounts for over 90% of the forecasted demand f
hospitality space in India during this period, whitas been forecasted to be nearly 73.00 milliarasg feet.
Bengaluru and NCR are expected to generate therityagd the demand in this sector (together constig
31.00 million square feet, or 43%, of the totalefasted demand for hospitality space in India duthis
period), followed by Mumbai with forecasted demanfl 12.00 million square feet (16%). Cheaper
accommodation alternatives such as bed-and brealdemats and home stays are being promoted by the
Government in anticipation of the large volume ofpected visitors to NCR for the forthcoming
Commonwealth Games in 2010 scheduled in the citpddition, cities such as Jaipur, Ahmedabad, Kackli
Goa are also expected to add demand for hospitgige of approximately 6.00 million square feetrduthe
period from 2008 to 2012. This is largely due te thovernment's initiatives to promote tourism ia Trer Il

and Tier Il cities(Source: Cushman Metamorphosis Report)

The chart below shows the projected hospitality alednfor the period from 2008 to 2012:

Demand for Hospitality Projects (2008 — 2012)
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(Source: Cushman Metamorphosis Report)
According to the MoT, 5.50 million tourists were pected to visit India in 2008-09, which would have

accounted for approximately Rs. 500.00 billion orefign exchanggSource: Federation of Hotels & Restaurants
Association of India, HVS and Ecotel's Indian Hatelustry Survey 2007- 2008 ("HVS Report")].
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The rapid increases in average room rates that imaeke some Indian cities the most expensive maithketse
world, coupled with the global economic crisis @hd negative travel advisory which was issued figtid in
the wake of the Mumbai terror attacks, are expetdetkegatively affect the performance of the hatdustry
across India in 2009-10. Nonetheless, accordinfpedHVS Report, this slowdown is expected to haviy a
short term effect as most Indian cities face atsiger of quality rooms, especially in respect of mmdrket,
budget and economy hotels that cater to the fastigg demand by Indians for hotel accommodations.

Special Economic Zones

The Government of India introduced SEZs in 200@rtavide an internationally competitive environméot
exports free of bureaucratic barriers. SEZs areiipally designated duty-free zones deemed to dyeidn
territories for purposes of Indian customs contrdlisties and tariffs. The introduction of SEZs imed at
attracting foreign investment and increasing exgdrt order to promote economic development and
employment. As of December 18, 2008, there aretal t§ 274 government approved, privately developed
SEZs in India. In addition, all SEZs (i.e., goveemhapproved, privately developed SEZs, StatelaRyi®EZs
set up before 2006 and government SEZs) employethbof 362,650 people and resulted in total itvests

of Rs. 937.07 billion as of September 30, 2008 thaur exports from these SEZs increased by 92%nguri

2007-08 to Rs. 666.38 hillion as compared to R$.1&! billion in 2006-07(Source: SEZ website, http:/sezindia.nic.in
accessed on June 2, 2009)

There are three main types of SEZs: integrated St&wH&gh may consist of a number of industries; Bery
SEZs, which may operate across a range of defiredces; and sector-specific SEZs, which focus pa o
particular industry. Minimum sizes for SEZs are@®cres for a multi-product SEZ, 250 acres foeet®s-
specific SEZ, and 25 acres for SEZs focused oraicespecific industries such as biotechnology, éiviEes,
gems and jewellery. Under current legislation, S#e&elopers and tenants are granted various incame t
benefits, which are expected to attract softwaraganies in particular, given that certain tax beeakailable
to software technology parks were set to expir2009.

Slum Rehabilitation Scheme

One sector of the real estate development markgtishunique to Mumbai is its Slum Rehabilitatioch8me
("SRS"). In 1995, the Government of Maharashtrdiated the SRS and created the Slum Rehabilitation
Authority ("SRA") to administer it. The objectivef the SRS is to redevelop slums in the Mumbai area.
Through the SRS, slum dwellings are replaced bigleasial buildings containing flats of 269 squaeetfthat
are developed free of cost to former slum dwel®rgrivate real estate developers participatinghan SRS.
The Government of Mumbai subsidizes this clearaamtg development by granting developers the right to
develop a proportion of former slum land for th@vn purposes, or by granting them transferable Idpweent
rights ("TDRs"), which may be used to develop latskwhere in Mumbai north of the relevant slum ldnd
other words, in exchange for the construction afsflfor slum dwellers, real estate developers bowved to
construct residential, commercial and retail prpsron slum land, whether it is government or geviand,
which they can then freely sell. Moreover, TDRsmiédevelopers to develop land in certain partdlaimbai
that are outside the rehabilitated slum area. A T®Riade available in the form of a certificateuess by the
municipal corporation of Mumbai, and its owner asse it either for actual construction or can sebri the
open market. Residential development on slum l&ad is subject to the SRS also benefits from a rsupe
Floor Space Index ("FSI") allowance, which deteresithe total permitted construction area as agodf the
total land area of a site. Moreover, the SRS caablena developer to acquire land in prime locations
Mumbai, a city where the scarcity of land is a ¢aist on real estate development. The acquisitian be
made at, in effect, lower cost (e.g., the costaistructing replacement housing for the slum dwg)i¢han
traditional purchases of land for cash, therebycad the asset cycle risk for the developer betwead
acquisition and sale of developed property or HSRS.

The innovative subsidy mechanism of the SRS haseppuedevelopment activity in certain deprivedasref
Mumbai which were previously unattractive to reatagée developers. In addition to helping fulfil thecial
obligations of the government, which may not itdedive the resources to undertake rehabilitatiofept® on a
large scale, an on-going benefit of the SRS tagytheernment of Mumbaicludes the addition of individuals to
the tax rolls when they occupy new housing whalas dwellers, were not previously part of the lase.
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The Mumbai Real Estate Market

Mumbai is the capital city of Maharashtra and soahe commercial, entertainment and fashion dagfitaadia.
Mumbai is made up of seven connected small islaamth the suburban area of Salsette Island. It i$ wel
connected by air, road and rail to other majoresitin India. Mumbai's traditional textile industmgve made
way to the new economy of financial services, calhitres and other business process outsourcingcegrv
information technology, engineering, healthcare @mdtertainment companies. As the financial hub hef t
country, the headquarters of a number of finaringtitutions such as the BSE, Reserve Bank of [Md&E and
Life Insurance Corporation are located in Mumbadid's leading corporate houses such as Tata, Biddrej
and Reliance are also based in Mumbai.

Mumbai, is also the financial capital of India anas been the country's favoured destination fdr estate
investment by institutions and individuals acrdss tountry and abroad. Its commercial real estaiekhas
been rising on account of connectivity with extathdeburbs as well as the satellite township of Nidwimbai,
which provides sufficient housing space for the kirng population. The pace of real estate developnren
Mumbai has been much faster than the infrastruderelopment due to the increasing population éndity.
The population of the Mumbai Metropolitan Regiorewgrat a CAGR of 2.7% to 18.89 million from 1991-
2001. The growth remains higher in suburbs compaoethe island city. As of 2001, population density
(persons per square kilometre) stood at 49,168enidland city, 24,605 in the western suburbs eéhd1D in
the eastern suburliSource: Knight Frank's India Retail Market Revi€third Quarter, 2008)]

According to Cushman & Wakefield's Marketbeat, M@inResidential Report (First Quarter 2009), theeneéc
price cuts from developers and the lowering of hdoaa interest rates has marginally improved denfand
low and mid end user segments. However, the odematroeconomic conditions continue to be a major
dampener for the residential sector in Mumbai asmdaesult rental and capital values witnessedection
across most micro markets in the first quarter @2 Many residential projects that are still ie flanning
stage and have not yet started construction hawebeen postponed as most developers are focusisglimg
existing inventory and completing under construttirojects. Additionally, the Maharashtra Governtizen
recent decision to double the FSI to 4.00 for eusedevelopment of old and dilapidated buildingk kelp
add more residential supply in the space starvigdacid stimulate the real estate sector. Howewesabse of
the ongoing economic downturn, it is unlikely faryacash starved developer to initiate such redgveént

projects within the next nine to 12 montkSource: Cushman & Wakefield Report: Marketbeatyiiai Residential Sector,
First Quarter 2009)

The graph below gives the estimated new retail lsuppgViumbai for the periods mentioned:

New Retail Supply year-wise
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According to Knight Frank's India Retail Market Rew (Third Quarter 2008), with the current presente
over 30 malls in the Mumbai Metropolitan Region andre than 50 expected to open in the next thraesye
the retail sector may be heading towards an oveplgwf mall space. The report further states thatrental
values will now depend on the success of mallschkvim turn will depend on factors like tenant mixanding,
traffic and location management. At present, medamd smaller retailers in malls are facing toughes
because of the high rents and low conversion r&est, which has experienced an upward trend itat$tetwo
years, experienced a decline in the third quaft@008.
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Over the next three years, as depicted in the graplow, while around 26.02 million square feeGoade A
office space is expected to be made available imbai, incremental demand for such space, assuraaligtic
GDP forecasts, is forecasted to be only 18.40 onilBquare feet, or 71.0% of anticipated supplys Hmounts
to a predicted oversupply of 7.50 million squaretfa figure that is mitigated by the fact that dodinancial
constraints on the supply and demand sides, régting and realignment of projects could be a prenmt
feature of India's real estate market in the neturé.(Source: Knight Frank — First Quarter 2009 Indiafioé Market)

Estimated New Office Supply (2009 — 2011)
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Challenges Facing the Indian Real Estate Sector
Lack of National Reach of Existing Real Estate D@praent Companies

There are currently very few real estate develogneempanies in India that can claim to have openasti
throughout the country. Most real estate developeiadia are regionally based and active in arghsre the
conditions are familiar to them because of factorsh as:

» the differing tastes of customers in different ceg;

« difficulties with respect to large scale land aaifion in unfamiliar locations;

* inadequate infrastructure to market projects in t@ations;

« the large number of approvals which must be obthiinem different authorities at various stages of
construction under local laws;

< the long gestation period of projects;

- differences in local laws and regulations goverritmgsector; and

» lack of industry norms and standards, which makesery difficult to evaluate different projects
judiciously.
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Majority of the Market is in the Unorganized Segien

The Indian real estate sector is highly fragmeiméal many small builders and contractors, whichoaet for a
majority of the housing units constructed. As aulieghere is less transparency in dealings orisbaof data
between these builders and contractors.

Demand Dependent on Many Factors

Real estate developers face challenges in gengratiequate demand for many projects. The factas th
influence a customer's choice of property are petricted to quality alone, but also depend on mber of
external factors, including proximity to urban aemd facilities and infrastructure such as schoolsds and
water supply, each of which is often beyond theettagper's control. Demand for housing units is also
influenced by policy decisions relating to housingentives. Also, in light of recent events whigad to the
global economic downturn, the real estate induist®lso experiencing a significant downturn andratustry-
wide softening of demand for property has resuitech a lack of consumer confidence, decreased cHfulity,
decreased availability of mortgage financing, aardé supplies of resale and new inventories.

Increasing Raw Material Prices

Construction activities are often funded by thetooer, who makes cash advances at different stafjes
construction. In other words, the final amount@fenue from a project is pre-determined and thizeg@n of
this revenue is scattered across the period ofteari®n. The real estate sector is dependent panaber of
raw materials and supplies such as cement, steekshbwood, sand, gravel and paints. A significaimallenge
that real estate developers face is dealing withegmsing costs for raw materials. As the revencms Bale of
units are predetermined, adverse changes in tloe pfi any raw material directly affects the deveksp
financial results. Even though, historically, thécps of raw materials have generally risen, thasees have
been decreasing over the last year.

Interest Rates

One of the main drivers of the growth in demand Housing is the availability of financing at lowtea of
interest. Further, frequent fluctuations in benctimiaterest rates, which govern the interest topbé by
borrowers on a periodic basis, may also influengelmsing decisions.

Tax Incentives

The existing tax incentives that may be availeghegsons who borrow funds to facilitate the purchafdgomes
is one of the major factors influencing demand.

Reforms in the Indian Real Estate Sector

Foreign Direct Investment in Real Estate

In 2005, the Government modified the FDI rules ayaile to the real estate sector by permitting 10
with respect to townships, housing, built-up infrasture and construction development projectsjestitio a
number of guidelines.

Housing Regulations

The Government has suggested the repeal of thenUrbad (Ceiling and Regulation) Act, 1976, ("ULCRA"
by way of the Urban Land (Ceiling and RegulatioepRal Act 1999, which has so far been adopted dgttite
governments of Haryana, Punjab, Uttar Pradesh, r&tujgarnataka, Madhya Pradesh, Rajasthan, Orisda a

Andhra Pradesh. However, as a matter subject te-btastate legislation, ULCRA has not been repkatea
number of other states. Maharashtra has, howeaeently repealed the ULCRA.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

In this section, unless the context otherwise megyireferences to "we", "us", "our" and "our Compa refer

to Ackruti City Limited and our subsidiaries, assbes, joint ventures and partnership firms takenaawhole.
Unless otherwise noted, the total square footagabers provided in this section for projects undeeta by us
through associates / joint ventures represent thal square footage of development undertaken éydlevant
joint venture and not our proportionate interestsnch square footage. The data below in respeatidage,
square footage and similar information relating émr Company's lands and developments is based on
management estimates and has not been independgmigised or verified. Reliance on such data stioul
accordingly be limited. Also see the risk titledutGstatements as to areas under development aredbas
management estimates and have not been independgpitaised” in the section entitled "Risk Factord/e
have used our current corporate name “Ackruti” fall of our past/completed projects as well, in ditdi to
our ongoing and future projects for ease of refemnalthough the name(s) of those projects mayhage
changed from “Akruti” to “Ackruti”.

OVERVIEW

We are a real estate development company baseduimbisli, India. At present, our primary businesshis t
development of commercial and residential propgr@ur operations include the identification anduasition

of land and land development rights and the plaprexecution and marketing of our projects. Our carcial
business operations involves us developing, sebind leasing of commercial office space, includaffice
towers and information technology parks, with au®n properties attractive to the information testbgy
("I™), information technology enabled services TEIS") and business processing outsourcing ("BPO")
enterprises. Our residential business operatiorava us developing multi-unit residential apartinkeuildings
with residences ranging from one bedroom flatsighdr end five bedroom flats.

A key focus area of our business has been reakedtavelopment on slum rehabilitation land, pursuarihe
Slum Rehabilitation Scheme ("SRS") initiated by tBeM in 1992, whereby in return for developing new
residential buildings for former slum dwellers, t8®@M grants us either the right to develop a proporof
former slum land for our own purposes or Transfierdbevelopment Rights ("TDRs"), which permit us to
develop land in certain parts of Mumbai locatedsimlg the relevant slum area. Since undertakindisirreal
estate development project in 1989, we have deed @pproximately 9.34 million square feet of depelb
area, of which approximately 6.51 million squaretfer approximately 70%, has been developed ah asde
available to us for development through our pagstition in slum rehabilitation projects. We have eleped
new dwellings on, and handed over free of chargpraximately 4.67 million square feet of residehtipace
on these slum rehabilitation lands to provide hogidor former slum dwellers. We have used the ramgi
slum rehabilitation lands made available to useweedbp approximately 1.84 million square feet déahble area
as commercial, residential and IT park projectst @articipation in slum rehabilitation projectsMumbai has
allowed us to obtain strategically located land dar real estate development projects at a lowst tt@an we
would have otherwise incurred for the purchaseoofigarable, developable urban land in Mumbai. THarue
development of approximately 2.83 million squaretf@r approximately 30%, has been developed throwag
slum rehabilitation projects.

Of the approximately 9.34 million square feet ofeahle area that have been developed by us since ou
Company's incorporation, we have developed appratéty 3.97 million square feet independently, or
approximately 42% of such land, and approximate87 5million square feet, or approximately 58%, basn
developed either in partnership with other companie the real estate sector, as part of joint wentu
arrangements, or as part of a consortium.

Historically, we have focused our business on esthte development in Mumbai. However, as partusf o
growth strategy, we have expanded into Pune, THao@rat, Jaipur and Bengaluru, and intend to ectpaur
business into other cities, particularly where we &iture potential for our operations. We alseridtto further
diversify our business lines by selectively expigrnew concepts for large scale development psjscich as
townships, serviced apartments and hotels.

In respect of our ongoing projects under develogmas of June 30, 2009 we have development rights f

approximately 13.04 million square feet of landeargrimarily located in Mumbai and other urban aréaf this
area, approximately 1.68 million square feet repmesslum rehabilitation land and approximatel\8&Imillion
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square feet represent land acquired or leased fhinth parties. We expect to develop approximatedy0Q
million square feet on these lands, of which apjnaxely 16.63 million square feet will be saleablea and
the balance approximately 2.37 million square fdfetonstructed new dwellings will be handed oveefiof
charge to former slum dwellers. In addition to #fs®ve, we expect to be granted approximately 1000square
feet of TDRs.

In respect of our future projects, as of June 8092 we have also initiated steps to acquire devetmt rights
over an additional approximately 17.89 million sepigeet of land area, primarily located in Mumbadlather
urban areas. Our management expects, based onapplizoning regulations, to develop approximaBssy34
million square feet on these lands, of which appnaxely 35.21 million square feet will be saleablea and
the balance approximately 4.13 million square fdfetonstructed new dwellings will be handed oveefiof
charge to former slum dwellers. In addition to #fs®ve, we expect to be granted approximately 4004sguare
feet of TDRs.

Our sales, on a consolidated basis, have grownGAGR of 68.22% from Rs. 1,984.75 million for theay
ended March 31, 2007 to Rs. 5,616.35 million far slear ended March 31, 2009. Our profit after tax.a
consolidated basis, has grown at a CAGR of 108.62% Rs. 766.91 million for the year ended March 31
2007 to Rs. 3,337.63 million for the year ended dfia31, 2009.

OUR HISTORY

In 1989, our Company was incorporated, commencatl estate development work and undertook the first
residential development project. Since the intréidacof the SRS in 1992 by the GoM, we have dewetbp
number of slum rehabilitation projects in Mumbdie tcapital of Maharashtra state. In 1992, we beman
participation in slum rehabilitation projects autsed by the GoM's Slum Redevelopment Committee (th
"SRC"), a governmental entity that was later coteeby statute in 1995 into the Slum Rehabilitatarthority
("SRA"), an agency of the GoM. We received ourtfiehabilitation engagement from the SRA in Septemb
1996 and delivered our first new unit for formeursl dwellers in October 1997. In November 2000 we
completed development of Ackruti Softech Park, isgte software technology park in Mumbai. Subsetjyen
we further expanded our slum rehabilitation initiatand commenced MIDC and MMRDA projects involving
rehabilitation of housing for more than 6,000 faesl In 2004, we commenced a large scale residgmbtgect

in south Mumbai under the Urban Rejuvenation Schétd®S"). We also recently concluded the process of
developing a 20-storey fully mechanised car parikh wapacity for 240 cars, in Breach Candy, Mumémia
Public Private Partnership ("PPP") project. Thestarction of this car park gave us access to RSbhddding a
retail space at significantly lower costs.

Our management standards and systems have begmisszbby international certifications. We werdiadiy
awarded 1SO 9001- 2000 certification in Novembe®2200ur most recent ISO 9001 — 2000 certificatiasw
awarded to us in January 2008 for “the design, ttoason and maintenance of buildings - residential
commercial, IT and multi-storey underground mecsadiand robotic car parks”. The current ISO 902000
certification is valid until January 27, 2011.
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COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS
We believe that the following are our primary cotifpee strengths:
Active in a diverse range of real estate developmehusiness segments

We undertake a diverse range of real estate oppbets, including commercial, residential and ITrlpa
projects. Our projects completed or under developrrelude high-rise residential towers, commeroiice
towers, IT parks and SEZs. We aim to identify aagitalise on new business opportunities in thedndial
estate industry and our management intends toeudiversify our business activities in the futtweinclude
the development of bio-technology parks, townshipels and serviced apartments. By undertakingoach
range of development opportunities, we seek totloar exposure to risk in specific segments witthia real
estate development industry and, where market démeguires, we try, if applicable regulations peyno
convert a project from its intended use to onehefdther types of project that we undertake (eanyerting a
residential project to a commercial project).

Established track record and reputation

Since our incorporation in 1989, we have been msipte for the successful completion of 30 reahtest
projects in India comprising approximately 9.34lioil square feet of saleable area. Our position Esading
property developer with a western India focus igédy due to our established execution capabilifieduding
our ability to successfully complete new commeraiad residential projects utilising lands obtaitiedugh the
SRS. Further, we engage architectural, structundl arious other consulting firms with establisheack
record in a number of our projects. As part of effiorts to establish and maintain our reputatioa,have used,
and will continue to use, quality construction mials and modern technology in all of our projedtée have
been able to attract a number of Indian and multinal enterprises such as Tata Consultancy SexViceited,

3i Infotech Limited, Kale Consultants Limited, aBiNP Paribas as commercial tenants, some of whiek ha
rented commercial units from us in more than oneusfcommercial developments.

Ability to obtain prime locations in Mumbai through slum rehabilitation projects

As of the date of the Placement Document, almdsifadur developments have been completed in Mup#ai
city with a shortage of developable open land aoidyawhere many large slums exist in areas comsitleo be
prime real estate locations. Under the SRS, thetoaction of permanent housing for slum dwellefeve$ us
to clear and use the remaining land area in sluasafor other real estate projects or be granteRsT@ur
redevelopment of slum lands provides us the riglatiso develop our own real estate projects fa ealetting
to third parties on lands made available to us eeaf our slum rehabilitation efforts. We primariibtain
developable, urban land for our projects in Munibahis manner.

As of the date of the Placement Document, we haveldped over 10,000 apartments for former slumlldvee
in exchange for developable urban land and landeldpment rights in Mumbai from the SRA. As
compensation for the construction of this housimg, have received from the applicable slum rehailitin
authority developable, urban land in the cleareaméy slums, or TDRs for the construction of buifgin
elsewhere in Mumbai, which we may use in our offtejects or which we may sell to other developAsthe
applicable slum rehabilitation authorities do nbarge developers for the land on which slum refiabdn
projects are undertaken and as the principal amstedeveloping slum land is the construction aufsthe
rehabilitation buildings for slum dwellers, we afgle to develop such land at comparatively low.cost

Western India focus

As of June 30, 2009, we, along with our JV partnkesl ongoing projects with development rightsrfare
than 13.04 million square feet of land area, a nitgjof which is located in Mumbai and other westéndian
cities. Of this 13.04 million square feet of lanct@ approximately 1.68 million square feet repmestum
rehabilitation land and approximately 11.36 millisquare feet represent land acquired or leasedsyom
third parties. Our management expects, based dicaple zoning regulations, that we will be ablectmstruct
approximately 16.63 million square feet of saleadiea on these lands, of which approximately 9.1Bom
square feet represents our share of the totalldalasea.
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Experienced and dedicated management team

We have an experienced, qualified and dedicatedagement team, many of whom have more than two
decades of experience in their respective fielde @ our established reputation for project exeaytve have
been able to attract competent management teameanmdoyees. Our professionally qualified staff and
consultants retained by us include engineers, @i structural design consultants, marketingigpsts,
treasury officers, costing consultants, procurenoffiters and accountants. We provide our stafhweittensive
training to encourage professional excellence. &leete that the experience of our management teahoar
management's understanding of the real estate afgweht industry will enable us to continue to take
advantage of both current and future market oppdiés.

Foresight and Innovation

We utilise the experience and skills of our prof@sal management, design, engineering and projesiugion
teams to plan and carry out innovative developm#rets maximise the use of available land. For exampe
recently concluded the process of developing at@@y fully mechanised car park with parking capatbr
240 cars in Breach Candy, Mumbai on a small plotaofi measuring only approximately 18m x 18m using
fully automated technology imported from Germanye Wave also converted few a retail projects into
commercial projects such as Ackruti IRIS, K-ParkP&k and one of our planned IT park projects iato
residential project, because we had the fores@hbapture shifts in demand away from retail andmencial IT
space, respectively.

Established reputation for efficiently regeneratingslum lands

Our successful redevelopment of various slums wikiumbai and our commitment to regenerate the locst
in which we carry out our slum rehabilitation prife has afforded us credibility with governmentrages and
slum dwellers, which we believe will facilitate oability to obtain approvals and consents requiteduture

slum rehabilitation projects that we undertake. @anagement expects that the experience we hamedyai
carrying out slum rehabilitation projects in Mumigasitions us well to carry out further slum refitdtion

projects in Mumbai and in other Indian cities wiseich new schemes are announced.

BUSINESS STRATEGY
The key elements of our business strategy arellasvio
Expand our slum rehabilitation business in Mumbai ad other parts of India

We intend to continue growing our slum rehabildgatbusiness in the city of Mumbai where we belithare
are substantial prospects for further slum develimWe are currently developing sites for resi@er@nd
commercial projects situated on former slum landvimambai with a total land area of approximately8L.6
million square feet.

We also expect that there is a significant expangiotential for our business model in other areaidia
because various governmental authorities in thentcpuare beginning to replicate Mumbai's SRS modelr
example, the states of Rajasthan and Karnatakareaeatly commenced similar schemes in relatioaréas,
known as "Economic Weaker Sections". If such sclseomme to fruition, we will evaluate the possilyilaf
leveraging our slum rehabilitation expertise toangh our business into these locations and intor atities in
India where there is significant slum redevelopn@rather comparable development potential.

Diversification of our project portfolio
We intend to expand the portfolio of projects welemake, thereby further diversifying our reventreams

and enhancing the value and position of our brdndparticular, we are evaluating new business lines
comprising the development of bio-tech parks, tdvips hotels and serviced apartments.
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Increase our land reserves in strategic locations

We recognise that continuing to increase our lasgnves is critical to our growth strategy, andimtend to
continue acquiring strategically located parceltaafl in select cities in India for our projectd baly at prices
that our management considers to be highly conigetiOur management estimates that collectively our
ongoing projects under development will involve tievelopment of residential and commercial develgrea
over the next three to five years of approximafiely66 million square feet saleable area and apprately 4.97
million square feet saleable area, respectivellling approximately 16.63 million square feetesdile area
out of which our share is 9.07 million square feEhese represent projects for which constructioa ha
commenced, in respect of which we have executed arearda of understanding (that is, projects to be
developed on land that is not slum land or fornhemsland) or where letters of intent have been @@o us
with regard to such projects (that is, projectbealeveloped as part of our participation in th&BR

As of June 30, 2009, we had also initiated stepactuire development rights over a further apprexaty
17.89 million square feet of land area, primaribgdted in Mumbai and other cities, in respect ofclwhour
management expects, based on applicable zonindatiems, that we will in the future be able to dieye
approximately 35.21 million square feet of saleaea on these lands, of which approximately 180on

square feet represents our share of saleable Afeaalso are currently evaluating the acquisitionanfd or
development rights in other cities where we seaifiignt growth potential, such as Thane, Punepurai
Bengaluru, and Vadodara.

Selectively partner with experienced players in theeal estate industry

We have experience undertaking real estate projegiartnership with third parties in the Indiamstruction
and real estate development industries, includiggifecant Indian real estate development groupshsas the
DLF Group, the Hiranandani Group, the Marathon @rdtiva Ventures, Everest Developers and the Shapoo
Pallonji Group. We recognise that collaboratingtgtgically with other firms can reduce our capit@kestment,
enable us to leverage our development capabiliéiésyw us to benefit from an enhanced pool of camtsion
and marketing expertise and experience. In addibgrpartnering with local firms in other Indiangiens, we
can benefit from our local partners' experience ratationships with local government agencies, Sappand
sub-contractors. We intend to identify and builitienships with local business partners in theéotes Indian
cities and states, where we see significant grapgortunity.
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Our Projects

The following table presents, as of June 30, 2G9,overview of the approximate saleable area of our
completed developments, projects under developiieenivhich we have commenced construction, and other
future projects for which we have commenced theusdipn of land or land development rights andiave
executed memoranda of understanding to acquirelaach The table includes projects that we haveskigped

or are developing independently as well as in gastnip with third parties.

*Total
Saleable Area Saleable
(‘000 sq. ft.) Key business line€’ Rehabilita Area under
o @ Management
Our projects Commercial Residential Retail Hospitality Total
Historical 785 1,066 - - 1,851 1,991 3,842
Projects Under 15
Development - - 110 - 125 - 125
Completed
Projects Under
Development — Ongoing 888 1,773 - - 2,660 921 3,582
Future Projects 820 1,285 36 - 2,001 176 2,267
Partnership/ JV's Commercial Residential Retail Hospitality Total
Historical 716 168 - - 884 2,673 3,557
Projects Under
Development - 1,817 - - - 1,817 - 1,817
Completed
Projects Under
Development — Ongoing 4,083 9,891 - - 13,974 1,439 15,413
Future Projects 15,449 14,127 1,000 2,547 33,122 9493, 37,071
*Gross saleable area including shares of subsédiaaissociates, joint ventures and partnershigsfirm
*
Saleable Area » S;zgle
(e} is) Key business line® Rii':;?;')'ta Area under
Partnersshr:g/rélv SoUr commercial Residential Retail  Hospitality Total Man;\tgeme
Historical 322 100 - - 422 1,419 1,841
Projects Under 742 - - - 742 - 742
Development —
Completed
Projects Under 1,830 4,670 - - 6,500 605 7,105
Development —
Ongoing
Future Projects 8,666 5,448 333 1,263 15,711 1,701 17,412

@ We derive sales and rental income directly fromresidential, commercial and retail projects. Tdoes not
include townships or the Baroda Biotech Park.
@ Rehabilitation area developed or expected to beldped as housing for former slum dwellers freehafrge

under the SRS.
® Represents land presently identified for residémt@velopment, but which may be developed for other
purposes, subject to market conditions.
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Our commercial real estate business

We have developed landmark commercial propertidduimbai and Pune. We were one of the first to dgvel
privately held softech park, located in Mumbai. Wave sought to strengthen and expand our relaijpsstith

our commercial tenants, which include leading Indéend international corporations that require higtality

office and other commercial space. Several of mmroercial tenants, including Tata Consultancy ®ewi
Limited, 3i Infotech Limited, Kale Consultants Litad and BNP Paribas, have rented commercial uwits fis

in more than one of our commercial developments.

As of June 30, 2009, our commercial properties Be&peed a 100% occupancy rate, with the exception o
Ackruti Corporate Park (K Park) Ph-I, Ackruti S R4EMC Thane) Ph-1 and DLF Ackruti Info Pune Park,
which were approximately 89%, 53% and 96% occupieshectively, and where we are evaluating the @ale
lease of the remaining area.

Our completed commercial real estate developments
As of June 30, 2009, we had completed developmeifpproximately 3.33 million square feet of saleabl

commercial area. The table below provides summ&grmation as of June 30, 2009 relating to our debepl
commercial real estate projects.

Project Name S(%ggbslz .Afxsa Completion date Our(;) ;1are
Ackruti Trade Centre 216 March 2003 100%
Ackruti Centre Point 214 March 2006 100%
Ackruti Business Port 139 October 2003 100%
Ackruti Softech Par®! 118 November 2000 100%
Ackruti Arcade 41 February 2002 100%
Ackruti Gold 45 June 2009 100%
Arkuti Orion 13 December 2005 100%
Ackruti Softech Park’ 14 November 2000 100%
Ackruti Iris 319 June 2009 100%
Partnership/ JV’s®

DLF Ackruti Info park Pune, Phase <) 1,890 March 2009 40%
Ackruti Corporate Park- Ph-I 163 September 2008 40%
Ackruti S Park- Ph-I 154 October 2008 50%
Swargate, Pun@ 7 June 2009 90%

) Represents the total square footage of developaneaertaken by our joint venture, not our propowite
interest in such square footage.

@ This refers to the portion of Ackruti Softech P#mlt has been sold.

© This refers to the portion of Ackruti Softech P#mkt has been leased.

® Denotes the constructed portion of the projects.

Examples of our completed commercial real estatgepts include:

Ackruti Trade Centre:An office tower completed in March 2003, Ackrutiaie Centre, located in MIDC,
Andheri (E), Mumbai, consists of approximately 2008) square feet of saleable commercial area. Aickrut
Trade Centre is seven storeys high, with a twolleasement car park and a roof terrace garden afedecia
space. The building's features include importedcstiral glazing using toughened glass, an atriuth wiglass
dome roof providing natural light, imported highesg elevators, Italian marble flooring and highlicgs.
Ackruti Trade Centre houses our headquarters amsdasaprincipal occupants Tata Consultancy Services
Limited, Kale Consultants Limited, Goldshield, Bfdtech Limited and Canara Bank.

Ackruti Centre Point: An office tower completed in March 2006, Ackruti riée Point, located in MIDC,
Andheri (E), Mumbai, consists of approximately 230 square feet of saleable commercial area. Aickrut
Centre Point is eight storeys high and has a twelleasement car park. The building's featuresioieistate of
the art computerised elevators and structural g¢pmiith toughened glass. The principal occupantaaifruti
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Centre Point include Mphasis Limited, 3i Infotectdl. BNP Paribas, Value Electronics Ltd. (a mentdfethe
Tata Group) and Woolworth's.

Ackruti Business Port:An office tower completed in October 2003, AckrBtisiness Port, located in MIDC,
Andheri (E), Mumbai, consists of approximately 18%) square feet of saleable commercial area. $ixs
storeys high and has a basement level car parkbiihding's features include high speed elevatorsarted
from Korea, aluminium glazing with tinted glass amdrble and granite finishing. The principal ocaupaf
Ackruti Business Port is Tata Consultancy Servidested.

Ackruti Corporate Park (K-Park) Ph-I:A corporate park completed in September 2008 that the suburban
location of Kanjurmarg, Mumbai and consists of apimately 163,000 square feet of saleable are#s It
comprised of three floors of saleable area andaaléwel car park with parking space for 450 cars.

Ackruti S Park (SMC) Ph-I: Ackruti S Park was completed in October 2008 andsists of approximately
154,000 square feet of saleable area in the pidicegibn of Thane, near Mumbai. It comprises of fiboors of
saleable area and a basement level car park.

Our commercial real estate projects currently unddevelopment

We are currently developing a number of commeroéal estate projects. As of June 30, 2009, we had
commenced development of approximately 4.97 milBqoare feet of saleable commercial area indepdégden
or in conjunction with our joint venture partnefdhe table below provides summary information aduwfe 30,
2009 of our commercial real estate projects culyemtder development:

Project Name Saleable Area (‘000 sq. ft.) Scheduled completion date
Our projects

Ackruti Greenwood 142 March 2012
Ackruti Gold™® 37 March 2010
Ackruti IRIS 709 December 2011
Partnership/ JV's @

Shastrinagar 206 June 2011
DLF Ackruti Info Park, Pune Ph Il 3,500 March 2012
BKC Slum 159 October 2011
Shankarwadi 192 July 2011
Swargate 25 December 2009

@ Undertaken by our subsidiary Vishal Tekniks CRilvate Limited.
@ Represents the total square footage of developoneaertaken by our joint venture, not our propowite
interest in such square footage.

Examples of our commercial real estate projectseatlly under development include:

Ackruti IRIS: A commercial building that is expected to be castgdl in December 2011. When completed, we
expect Ackruti IRIS, located in Saiwadi, AndheriuMbai to consist of approximately 709,000 squaet 6é
saleable area. Upon completion, we expect AckRitsIto consist of two towers, each ten storeys ,higth a
connecting passageway at basement level. Thisibgiid strategically located with easy accessipili the
Western Express Highway, the SV Road and Andheaiwiag Station, and will have a multi-level car pawith
parking space for about 1,500 cars.

Our future commercial real estate projects

We are currently planning to develop approximat&6:27 million square feet of commercial property, a
majority of which is scheduled to be completed witthe next three to five years. We intend to matkese
properties to multinational clients and leadingiimdcommercial firms. A key element of our growttrategy in
this area is to cater to the expansion plans oftcooimercial clients in India and thereby caterhigirt growing
commercial real estate requirements. We maintagseclcontact with our commercial clients and obtain
information as to their future commercial real estaeeds through periodic client site visits antdriviews and
through the use of property consultants.
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The table below provides summary information agwfe 30, 2009 relating to our future commercial estate
projects:

Project Name Saleable Area (‘000 sqg. ft.)  Scheduled completion date
Our projects

Manav, Bhandup, Mumbai 521 September 2012
Culture Cricket Academy, Bandra, Mumbai 288 Decandifd 2
Ulsoor, Bengaluru 11 August 2010
Partnership/ JV's @

Jaipur 1,087 August 2011
Bhivandi, Thane 2,018 March 2012
GSRTC - Central Bus Station 458 March 2012
GSRTC — Makharpura 586 March 2012
GSRTC - Lambe Hanuman 2,014 March 2014
GSRTC - Adajan 479 March 2012
GSRTC - Mehsana 1,167 September 2013
Mumbai SEZ? 7,570 November 2018
Kandivali (E) Station, Mumbai 37 May 2012

Haji Gani Chawl, Mumbai 22 May 2011
Saroj Building, Mumbai 11 September 2011

@ Represents the total square footage of developmneatgrtaken by our joint venture, not our proporite
interest in such square footage.
@ pertains to the commercial portion of the MumH&aZS

Other commercial real estate projects

We plan to develop the Baroda Bio-tech project &tP#& basis. This project has been awarded to aritims

consisting of The Chaterjee Group ("TCG") and e (YAckruti-TCG Consortium") through a competitized

global bidding process conducted by the Gujaratgawent. The project is being executed by Ackr@icr
Consortium. The total area of the land on whichghgject is being executed is 708 acres. The preydtbe

marketed to all types of biotechnology enterprisksportion of the Baroda Bio-tech project will ald®

developed to provide life style amenities so ttétesl workers can live and work in this space. Tbeation of
this project is in Savli (14 km from Baroda AirporThis project is being undertaken as a partnprahiong the
Gujarat government, TCG and us. Our share of thityemn this project is more than 66% while thatTa®®G is

23% and that of the Gujarat government is 11%.

The Mumbai SEZ project is being executed through Zleus Infrastructure Private Limited special psgo
vehicle, which is being jointly promoted by Ackrufiity Ltd (33.33%), DLF (33.33%) and Mutha Group
(33.34%). The project envisages a total saleabda @f approximately 15 million square feet compgsi
multiple formats of development, each suited tpec#ic customer requirement for residential, conizé and
retail space. This project is strategically locatredhe high growth corridor on the Eastern Exprdighway.
The site has excellent connectivity to road netwpduburban rail networks and domestic and inteEmailt
airports. The site is in proximity to the emergingsiness districts of Thane, Mulund and Navi Mumbai

Our residential real estate business

We develop multi-unit apartment buildings, with gpgents ranging from one bedroom apartments toehnigh
end, five bedroom apartments. Since our incepii@have developed approximately 1.23 million squest
of residential area for sale to customers. As a&J80, 2009, we had approximately 11.66 millionasgifeet of
additional saleable residential area under conétrucin addition, we have acquired developmenhisgin
respect of land for the future development of apinately 15.36 million square feet of saleable destial
area.

-87-



I P
pall] Ackruti Citymited - Placement Document

Our completed residential real estate developments

Our completed residential developments are alltemtan Mumbai. As of June 30, 2009, we had comglete
development of approximately 1.23 million squaretfef saleable residential area independently or in
conjunction with our joint venture partners. Thbléabelow provides summary information as of Jude2®09
relating to our completed residential projects inrivbai:

Project Name S(g(l)%%blszﬁi.e)a ﬁﬂig Constrgcﬁ:lttlgn e Completion date
Our projects

Ackruti Niharika 326 315 November 1998 January 2006
Ackruti Elegance (A & B 106 153 September 2004 July 2005
Wing)

Ackruti Erica 84 65 April 2004 March 2007
Ackruti Sunmist™ 28 34 October 2007 June 2009
Partnership/ JV's ©®

Ackruti Aneri 80 119 July 1998 September 2003
Ackruti Orchid Park ‘A'& 73 108 August 2004 December 2005
B’

Ackruti Aditi 14 37 October 1997 June 1999
Ackruti Orchid Park C to | 379 418 February 2005 March 2008
wing

Ackruti Classic 12 14 February 2001 March 2002
Ackruti Aditya 29 35 December 1998 May 2000
Ackruti Aastha 25 10 June 2001 August 2003
Ackruti Laxmi 16 20 July 2001 May 2003
Ackruti Aditya (Ext) 15 13 September 2004 Janua@i9e@
Tilak Road, Pun&’ 25 29 October 2008 June 2009
Vedant® 21 25 September 2008 June 2009

@ Denotes the constructed portion of the projects.
@ Represents the total square footage of developmneaertaken by our joint venture, not our proporite
interest in such square footage.

Examples of our completed residential real estedgepts include:

Ackruti Niharika: This is a residential complex was completed iruday 2006 and consists of six buildings.
The Ackruti Niharika complex, located in Andheri)(BMumbai, has 315 residential units and approxahyat
326,000 square feet of saleable residential araah Bf the six buildings is 12 storeys high. Moregwhe
Ackruti Niharika complex has a basement level carkpand a fully equipped gymnasium. Each unit iis th
complex features modern materials, fixtures artthdjs, including vitriform flooring and granite &hen work
surfaces. All units in Ackruti Niharika have beeids

Ackruti Aneri: This residential complex was completed in Septer2083 and consists of five buildings. The
Ackruti Aneri complex, located in Marol, Andheri \BViumbai, has 119 residential units and approxatyat
80,000 square feet of saleable residential areeh B&the five buildings is eight storeys high. Mover, the
Ackruti Aneri complex contains a health club andngysium. Each unit in this complex features granite
flooring, gypsum plaster, aluminium sliding windowsid decorative window and door grills. All units i
Ackruti Aneri have been sold.

Ackruti Elegance (A & B-Wing):This residential tower was completed in July 2808 is located in Mulund
(E), Mumbai. Ackruti Elegance (A&B-Wing) consist$ @53 residential units and approximately 106,000
square feet of saleable residential area. It i$vievstoreys high and has a ground floor level @k pAll units

of Ackruti Elegance (A&B-Wing) have been sold.
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Our residential real estate projects currently undevelopment

We are currently developing a number of resideméal estate projects, all of which are locateiumbai. As

of June 30, 2009, we have commenced developmeapmfoximately 11.66 million square feet of saleable
residential area independently or in conjunctiothwour joint venture partners. The table below fes
summary information as of June 30, 2009 relatingotw residential real estate projects currently eund
development:

Saleable Area

Project Name (C000 sq. ft.) Estimated year of completion
Our projects

Ackruti Solitaire (Mount Mary) 316 May 2012
Ackruti Greenwood 763 March 2012
Ackruti Princess (Mayan agar) 150 December 2011
Ackruti Sun Mist 235 June 2010
Partnership/ JV's®

Emperor Towers (Tulsiwadi) 1,910 December 2014
Ackruti Country wood 3,251 March 2015
Ackruti Emerald (BIT) 126 June 2011
Ackruti Turf View (Rajeevnagar) 36 December 2010
Ackruti Shikhar 85 December 2010
Tilak Road (Sadashivpeth) 62 December 2009
IVIL 3,398 March 2014
Vedant 125 March 2010
Ackruti Gardenia 1,208 December 2012

@ Represents the total square footage of developmneaertaken by our joint venture, not our proporite
interest in such square footage.

Examples of our residential real estate projectsectly under development include:

Ackruti Princess: This residential building is scheduled to be catgrl in December 2011. Upon completion,
Ackruti Princess, located in Worli Sea Face, Munibaixpected to have approximately 0.15 millionagueet
of saleable residential area.

Emperor Towers:This residential complex is scheduled to be coteplén December 2014. Upon completion,
Emperor Towers, located in Mahalaxmi Race Coursembhi, will consist of two towers and is expected t
have approximately 1.91 million square feet of shle residential area. In addition to residentighce,
Emperor Towers will contain retail space and a ieitel car park. Its towers are expected to be ragrihe
tallest structures in Mumbai.

IVIL: This residential tower is scheduled to be comgléteMarch 2014. Upon completion, IVIL, located in
Ghatkopar (East), is expected to have approxima&dl§ million square feet of saleable residentiaha
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Our future residential real estate projects

We are currently planning various residential restiate projects intended to cater to the resideintiasing
needs of many segments of Indian society, rangimg bne bedroom to five bedroom apartments. Wenéhte
develop approximately 15.36 million square feetsafeable residential area in Mumbai and other s;itiee
majority of which is scheduled to be completed witthe next three to five years. As a new line afihess, we
also intend to carry out the development of towpshiThe table below provides summary informatiorofis
June 30, 2009 relating to our future residential estate projects.

Project Name™® S(?cl)%%b;éf;ia Scheduled completion date
Ackruti Lake Wood (Voltas) 926 September 2012
Swami Samarth Developers 1,425 March 2014
Mumbai SE# 6,570 November 2017
Mazgaon 421 September 2013
Kandivali East High way 1,119 March 2015
Chembur 1,600 March 2014
Pedder Road 13 September 2011
Yogiraj 111 September 2013
Adyashakti 164 September 2013
Ambedkar 27 March 2013
RTO Project 2,575 June 2014
Ackruti Jewell 102 September 2012
Commercial Construction 309 December 2012

@ Represents the total square footage of developmneaertaken by our joint venture, not our proporite
interest in such square footage.
@ pertains to the residential portion of the MunfBBLZ.

Our retail real estate business
Our completed retail real estate projects

As of June 30, 2009, we had completed Ackruti Biitaza, a retail real estate project of approxitgadell
million square feet. The table below provides sumymiaformation as of June 30, 2009 relating to our
completed retail project in Mumbai.

Saleable area (000  Construction start

sq. ft.) date Completion date

Project Name

Our Projects
Ackruti Elite Plaza Tower 110 July 2003 NovemBens

Ackruti Elite Plaza Tower:This retail facility was completed in November 80@ckruti Elite Plaza Tower,
located on Bhulabhai Desai Road, Mahalaxmi, Mumbas approximately 37,000 square feet of saleable a
It is three storeys high and has a two-level bas¢er park. Adjoining the Ackruti Elite Plaza is eanovative
car park tower, Ackruti Elite Car Park, which fe&s a fully automated and mechanised car parkistesy
imported from Germany and developed on a smallgfiéand measuring only approximately 18m x 18misTh
car park is 20 storeys high and has parking sparc40 cars on approximately 73,000 square feated. The
construction of the Ackruti Elite Car Park gaveagsess to FSI to build Ackruti Elite Plaza Tower.

Our future retail real estate projects

We are currently planning to develop approximatel34 million square feet of retail area, a majodfywhich
is scheduled to be completed within the next thodeve years.
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Our hospitality real estate business
Our future hospitality real estate projects

All of our hospitality real estate developments futeire projects. Our hospitality real estate depeients will
consist of two projects, one in Mumbai and one umd> We have planned development of approximaté&ly 2
million square feet of saleable hospitality areac@operation with our joint venture partners. Tablé below
provides summary information as of June 30, 200&ting to our future hospitality projects currentipnder
development:

Project Name Saleable area ('000 sq. ff)  Anticipated completion date
Our joint venture projects

Hindustan Mill 2310 June 2014
Dhorjee 237 December 2012

@ Represents the total square footage of developmeaertaken by our joint venture, not our proporien
interest in such square footage.

Our future hospitality property planned in Mumbai

Hindustan Mil: Hindustan Mill is expected to be completed in Ja@&4. When completed, it will have a hotel,
serviced apartments and some commercial compohésntexpected to have approximately 2.31 milliouare
feet of saleable area. Hindustan Mill is locate@®mbhadevi, Mumbai.

Land Acquisition

We have development rights over (i) slum rehabitta land owned by the applicable slum rehabilitati
authorities, (ii) land acquired by us from thirdrjies and (iii) land leased by us from third peasti&ve have
developed approximately 9.34 million square feesaltable area, of which approximately 6.51 millsguare
feet, or approximately 70%, has been developecod imade available to us for development as atresolr

involvement in slum rehabilitation projects.

Land acquisition as a result of slum rehabilitatioprojects undertaken in Mumbai

The majority of Mumbai's urban slums are locatedasms owned by government agencies. In 1992, warbe
our participation in slum rehabilitation projectstizorised by the SRC, which was later convertedtajute in
1995 into the SRA. The SRA was established by tbM @ oversee the redevelopment of lands occupied b
slum dwellers. The SRA is a special planning authavhich has authority to grant development pesniit
respect of most government land in Mumbai occupigdslum dwellers. The MIDC, among other functions,
fulfils similar functions with respect to MIDC-owdelands within a specific area of Mumbai known ks t
Marol Industrial Area.

The SRS was established as a means of providinginmptio slum dwellers and regenerating urban aogas
which Mumbai's slums are located. We believe thatare one of the most experienced developers af slu
rehabilitation projects in Mumbai. As of the dafetlee Placement Document, we have constructed H¥@€00
units in 174 buildings to house former slum dwaller exchange for developable land or TDRs gratded by
the GoM. We believe that our participation in tHans rehabilitation projects has enabled us to aequi
development rights over a significant amount ofamrkand in Mumbai at a relatively low cost.
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Process

Under the SRS, the SRA and the MIDC each have ptavauthorise real estate developers to rehaleilltatd
areas owned by the SRA and MIDC, respectively, Witionstituted slum lands as of January 1, 1995a@er
areas of Mumbai are recognised as slums by the BR& MIDC. Pursuant to their respective slum
rehabilitation schemes, upon the consent of 70%ligfible slum dwellers, namely those who have been
occupants of the relevant slum since at least Jgriyal995, a developer may present redevelopmansgo

the SRA or MIDC, as appropriate, for governmengafiew and approval. The SRA or MIDC, as the casg ma
be, notifies its approval by providing the developéth a “Letter of Intent”, setting forth the area which the
development of residential space for the slum dawglill occur and the area that the developentgled to
develop for its own purposes. A further approvalpkn as an intimation of approval, is obtained bg t
developer from the applicable agency for its spediuilding plan. Pursuant to the intimation of apyal,
construction on the slum rehabilitation project masmmence within 90 days of approval. Once these
approvals have been obtained, and upon commenceofighe slum redevelopment by the developer, the
developer makes arrangements to provide tempor@gnamodations to the eligible slum dwellers, emapli
their relocation out of the land to be developelde @eveloper then proceeds to develop a buildintherslum
land consisting of residential units of at leas® 2§uare feet each for the eligible slum dwellers.

Upon completion of the residential buildings depeld for the eligible slum dwellers, such residdrtialdings
are inspected and a certificate of occupation @&igd by the SRA or MIDC, as the case may be, ¢hsu
residential buildings are deemed satisfactory. démwtificate of occupation for the buildings deveddpfor the
developer's own purposes, which certificate emtittecupancy of a building, cannot be granted uth
buildings required to house eligible slum dwellbes’e been completed and inspected. Eligible sluralldve
are given, at no charge, an apartment within thelyneonstructed residential building, commonly knoas a
rehabilitation building, upon its completion. Aftaen years of occupation in the newly constructed
rehabilitation building, the slum dweller is fremgell, lease or transfer his apartment to thindig® The SRA
or MIDC, as the case may be, canvasses slums velnetio be redeveloped to compile lists of eligibliem
dwellers entitled to receive redeveloped housingmSdwellers removed from the land who are notikelgto
receive redeveloped housing are not entitled topssreation.

Housing slum dwellers in newly constructed multirsty apartment towers frees a significant amouriaofl

area within the slum for other development. As cengation for the construction of new housing farnrfer

slum dwellers, the SRA or MIDC, as the case maygdoants the real estate developer the right to Idpva

building on the cleared slum land freed by suclevetbpment, which building the developer may thecupy,

sell or lease for its own account. The size ofdtea granted to the developer for its own purpissebthe same
or lesser square footage as the apartment builditich was constructed by the developer for the dliwallers.

On the cleared slum land, the developer may cortstammercial, residential or retail buildings aishiooses,
subject to site plan approval of the SRA or MIDE tlae case may be.

On the piece of the land developed by the develépreits own purposes, the developer (or a cooperat
society comprising persons to whom the units haaentsold) will receive a long-term lease for atiahierm
of 30 years. The term of the lease is extendahieafoadditional term of 30 years and at a nhomieatal
amount. The parties to such leases are the devglopa cooperative society comprising persons o the
units have been sold) and the relevant land owairfority whose lands had been occupied by slumesd
leases may be further extended for additional gsriof time at such rental amounts as may be at Songh
commercially agreed by the relevant land ownindpauity.

With regard to the part of the former slum landdeghover to the former slum dwellers, leases atered into
by the relevant land owning authority and a coopezassociation required to be established by eaveloper
to represent the former slum dwellers. It is statetthe GoM’s original Letter of Intent how muchtbie former
slum land on the slum dwellers’ side must be resgrfor public use (for example, for roads and other
amenities). After construction of an apartmentdiog for the slum dwellers and construction by deseloper
of a building for its own purposes, any excess laittlin the redeveloped slum reverts to the GoMthie event
that it is not possible, due to insufficient spawe the redeveloped slum land plot or applicablenfleg
restrictions, for the developer to construct anitiatthl building of the same square footage ashili&ing that
was provided by the developer to slum dwellersn titee GoM will issue to the developer TDRs for Haance
of the undeveloped building area, which the deveapay use in respect of another development eksenin
the city, subject to zoning regulations (but in @went outside the island city of Mumbai), or gella third
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party. There is an active market in Mumbai for TDR&iich are freely transferable between developéfs.
have in the past received TDRs as a result of owlvement in slum rehabilitation projects. We halegived
revenues from the sale of TDRs to third parties.

The principal financial advantage to us of develgpiand as part of slum rehabilitation schemebas we are
not required to pay substantial, one-off land pasehcosts at the beginning of each project in daecquire
the use of such land. Our experience has beethidabost to us of building an additional buildirghouse slum
dwellers tends to be significantly less than thecpase costs for comparable land that we wouldraike

incur by purchasing land from third parties. Aseault, we believe that it is less costly for usctmstruct a
building on slum land for slum dwellers in excharigeland development rights on the resulting aelaiormer
slum land, or in exchange for TDRs, than it is toghase comparable urban land from third partigdumbai

for development purposes. Our financial exposunegpect of slum lands is also reduced in resgettteorisk

that a planned development does not proceed foreason since we do not incur land acquisitionscasthe
outset of slum rehabilitation projects. Similartyr use of slum rehabilitation schemes to procangl lfor our
own development purposes also provides us the iarfigirotection against future increases in lamdcpase
prices.

Our successful redevelopment of various slums irmidlai has also afforded us credibility with stakeleos
such as government agencies and affected slumeataelthich we believe will be of assistance in @otaining
the approvals and consents required for future sehmabilitation projects that we hope to undertakiglumbai.

Projects undertaken to obtain TDRs or land develagmhrights from government agencies

We have performed certain miscellaneous developmejécts in Mumbai, such as the development cdra ¢
park on municipally owned land, and the developnanhousing for persons displaced by the widenifg o
municipal roads, for the purpose of obtaining T@R&Nd development rights over neighbouring land.

In 2006 we completed a project for the Mumbai Mptidan Regional Development Authority (‘“MMRDA”)
through a joint venture, the Hiranandani-Ackruinjoventure, consisting of the construction of apgmately

40 residential buildings for the GoM to house passdisplaced by the expansion of roads by the MMRB#\

consideration for development of these residertialdings, our joint venture received certain TDR#&ese

TDRs were sold during the year ended March 31, 2808 our share of the income from the sale offtb&s

was Rs.280.83 million.

We have also developed on a PPP basis with the dipahiCorporation of Greater Mumbai the Ackrutit&li
Car Park, which features a fully mechanised cakipgrsystem imported from Germany and developedidy
on a plot of land measuring approximately 18m x 18ims car park is 20 storeys high and contain&ipgr
space for 240 cars. We have received the righp&rate and retain revenues from this car parkiter years
from the date of receipt of Occupancy Certificatethe end of which we are obligated to transfer Algkruti
Elite Car Park to the Municipal Corporation of GeraMumbai. As additional compensation for unddrigk
this project, we had received development rightsr @ neighbouring parcel adjoining the site of fokruti
Elite Car Park, on which we have developed a corni@eshopping mall, the Ackruti Elite Plaza.

Private purchases of land

In the regular course of our business, we alsol@se land and development rights from various tpéandies,
including private sector land owners, other reghtesdevelopment companies and government agentiss.
our normal practice to evidence our preliminaryeggnents to purchase land in the form of a memoranafu
understanding. Formal conveyance of land by théers¢at which time stamp duty becomes payable) is
completed only shortly before construction is doestart and after all requisite governmental cotssamd
approvals have been obtained. As a result, our d&agisition activities are subject to the riskttballers may
during such time identify alternative purchasers/tmm they ultimately convey the land.
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Future land acquisition elsewhere in India in "Ecommic Weaker Sections"

Other municipal and state governments are begintingplicate Mumbai's SRS. For example, the stafes
Rajasthan and Karnataka have recently begun impigngesimilar programmes in relation to areas (knas
"economic weaker sections") on which there are siuellers. We are presently taking steps to difermsir
operations geographically to include participatioslum rehabilitation schemes outside Mumbai spomding
to offers for tenders for such work. Given our eigrece in slum rehabilitation projects, we beli¢kat we are
well placed to take advantage of the increasingbermof emerging slum rehabilitation schemes or cnaiple
development opportunities in other locations owdlimbai.

Land available to us for development

The table below illustrates the amount of land tlvathave rights to develop and on which we areetly
developing projects or on which, as of June 30920@ intend to develop projects. This table caiisgs the
land available to us for development on the batithe intended use of such land and whether sucth ia
being or will be developed by us independentlynocéoperation with joint venture partners.

Land Area (‘000 sq. ft.)
Key business lines

Our projects Commercial Residential Retail Hospitality Total
Projects Under 177 713 - - 890
Development — Ongoing

Future Projects 456 426 18 - 899
Partnership/ JV’s® Commercial  Residential Retail Hospitality Total
Projects Under 2,750 9,395 - - 12,145
Development — Ongoing

Future Projects 9,248 6,827 460 455 16,990
Total 12,630 17,361 478 455 30,924

@ Represents the total square footage of developmedertaken by our joint venture, not our proporien
interest in such square footage.

The table below also illustrates the amount of It we have rights to develop and on which wecareently

developing projects or on which, as of June 30,920 intend to develop projects, but categorikesland

available to us for development on the basis ofhenbasis of the intended use of such land andhehesuch
land is land granted to us as a result of our gigsgtion in slum rehabilitation projects or landjated or leased
by us from third parties.

Land Area (‘000 sq. ft.) Key business lines

=0 'ghroggh S Commercial  Residential Retail Hospitality Total
rehabilitation

Projects Under 409 1,270 : . 1,680
Development — Ongoing

Future Projects 30 2,589 - - 2,619
Land through acquisition

or lease from third Commercial  Residential Retail Hospitality Total
parties

Projects Under 2,518 8,838 : . 11,355
Development — Ongoing

Future Projects 9,673 4,663 478 455 15,270
Total 12,630 17,361 478 455 30,924
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Participation in joint ventures, partnership and other forms of cooperation

We undertake a significant number of projects tgtoyoint ventures, partnerships and other forms of
cooperation with third party developers. For examnple are presently developing with the DLF Groog the
Shapoorji Pallonji Group a large plot of land in hdéaxmi, Mumbai comprising approximately 1.9 miflio
square feet intended to be developed as residesp@itments. Once we identify and obtain the releva
consents for a project, we frequently seek potefdiat venture partners who can add strategicioarfcial
value and resources to undertake the project vettOwr partners typically provide a certain amaafrfunding

to the project in return for a share of the ovepadifits from the project upon completion. We getligrseek to
retain control over managing the execution of tt@qet.

We believe that our collaboration with other depels on our projects enables us to spread thediglansk of
developing each project and helps to mitigate aitial cost outlay incurred in purchasing land fil@velopment

or otherwise. By working with other parties, weibe¢ that we are able to enhance our executionbiéjees
and take on more projects simultaneously than keeratise could undertake alone. We are sometimes als
required to form a consortium to qualify to tendwéds for projects from the government if the terafishe
tender impose certain minimum balance sheet remeinés that we would be unable to satisfy indiviualve
intend to identify and build relationships with &gartners in other Indian cities and states iictvive intend

to grow our business, as well as with internatigratners who may have expertise in specific aspeicteal
estate development.

Our partnerships and joint ventures are generaligaorporated joint ventures, although in some sasgpecial
purpose vehicle is incorporated to undertake theldpment of a specific project. Financing is agesh and a
joint bank account with our partners is establishedelation to each joint venture project. We atoaally
enter into such joint ventures or partnershipsubhoour subsidiaries/associates.

Potential New Lines of Business

In order to further diversify our business, we avaluating and may undertake in the future the ldgweent of
new projects in other areas of the real estateldement industry, including those described inHertdetail
below.

Large scale theme-based townships

We intend to develop a large theme-based townstwering almost 2,000 acres, which we envisage would
include residential and commercial developmentsilréacilities and infrastructure buildings, roaalsd public
amenities. Thus far we have identified a propeity situated on the highway between Mumbai and Pune
which we anticipate will be the first of such deyminents, and we are in the process of completimgdoa
diligence on this site. We would envisage actingnaster developer in relation to this project amdild enlist

the services of a variety of sub-contractors. Iditamwh, we may sell portions of the land earmarkedsuch
project to, or grant development rights under l¢asether developers.

Additional potential future projects
In the event that appropriate development oppdigisare identified, we intend to further diversifyr lines of
business into additional types of development, saghio-technology parks, hotels and serviced apants. In

addition, we may, if appropriate development oppuities arise, seek to conduct business activitigside of
India.
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OUR PROJECT EXECUTION METHODOLOGY

We utilise in our business a five-part executionthodology for our projects that consists of (i) dan
identification and acquisition, (ii) the obtainingf consents, authorizations and approvals requied
development, (iii) project preparation, (iv) prdjgmanagement and execution and (v) marketing argd- po
completion. A summary of the activities involvedtirese five phases of project development phasesetrout
in the following chart:

| o] [ [ ey s
approvals m—) completion

| - Identification of ! ' - Siting and | ;- Costestimate | '- Appointment and - Marketing and |
1 future property 1 i planning ' ! 1 1 management of | | pre-sales |
! market trends i | consents , 1 - Project | i constructors ! ' 1
\ ! ! ! i development | ' I |- Booking of sales:
i~ Identification of ! - Environmental . | timetable ! !- Procurementof ; 1 and collection ofi
| suitable land 1 | consents ' ! I 1 suppliers and ray i deposits .

1 | | e . 1 1 : 1 1
! i | H 1 - Identifying I \  Mmaterials ! H .
i~ Due diligence ! I- For slum ! | potential third | ' i | - After sales !
i andtitle searches 1 rehabilitation | party partners | ! - Product quality , 1 service i
H ! : projects, consent ! ! ! and control , : '
'- Analysisofland, | fromatleast | 1 - Securing finance | ' |- Customer '
1 use and other | ! 70%ofslum 1 ' H |- Safety ! ! inspectionand !
| governmental ! ! dwellersand |- Carrying out ! ! monitoring \ 1 survey 1
' regulations ' 1 SRAorMIDC | ! design and P b |
' i approval ' 1 architectural 1 i ' |- Property !
i Vo ! 1 work ' ! ' 1 management !
1 1 1 1 1 1 !

____________________________

Land identification and acquisition

We have a dedicated team within our marketing depart that analyses and monitors existing and éutur
customer profiles and requirements, industry ecacsnproperty market trends and government policiéss
team identifies both areas within Mumbai and ineotbities and regions that have development paterwe
also use the feedback that we receive from custnadong with our relationships with property cdtests,
constructors, sub-contractors and suppliers tosagsgure market demand and industry outlook.

Prior to undertaking each project, we conduct dligethce and assessment exercises in relation noovable
properties and financial viability of the proje€dnce we have identified a plot that may be suitdble
development, we, together with our lawyers, condiwe diligence investigations in respect of landt tive
desire to develop, including a review of land resprplanning records and ownership records, andigbua
notice in newspapers requesting any persons clgimimership of the land to state their claims. Asisig that
our investigations show no significant problemshwitie identified land, we will enter into negot@ts to seek
to reach a preliminary agreement with the landowneither to acquire the underlying land oursetwet® enter
into a development agreement with them. This pielmy agreement will usually be memorialised in a
memorandum of understanding. Formal conveyancaraf by the seller (at which time stamp duty becomes
payable) is completed only shortly before constamctis due to start and after all requisite govezntal
consents and approvals have been obtained.

Obtaining consents, authorisations and approvals

Once we have identified and reached a prelimingrgement to acquire development or ownership righés

a plot of land, we seek requisite governmental entss and approvals, including siting, planning and
environmental approvals. We are experienced in ingriwith governmental authorities to obtain such
approvals. This experience has given us a goodrstagteling of the regulatory framework in which weemte,
thereby enabling us to obtain requisite governnagurovals on a timely basis and to obtain apprémathe
development of the maximum permitted square footagen the size of each plot.
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Prior to any construction taking place on slum l#mat is eligible for redevelopment, developersrarpiired to
obtain the consent of at least 70% of the eligéhlen dwellers situated on the land identified fevelopment
and the consent of the applicable slum dwellerspecative association. Once the requisite condes been
obtained and documented, detailed development pedpare then submitted for approval to the SRA or
MIDC, as the case may be, along with all relevapip®rting documentation. We are experienced isitigiand
negotiating with slum dwellers, the SRA and MIDC.

Project preparation

Shortly after we have identified a potential depeh@nt site, we evaluate and estimate the costshwiiit be
incurred in relation to each project and establistimetable for project development and completibhis
process is undertaken by our engineering deparimémt receive input from our purchasing departmiant
relation to estimated sub-contracting costs anglgignd raw materials costs.

At this stage, depending on the size of the prpjgetmay approach third parties to enter into atjeenture or
partnership in respect of a project. Identificatafnand negotiations with, these third partiesasried out by
our management.

Also, at this stage we obtain financing for thejgca We fund all of our projects through projepesific bank
borrowings, which are repayable at the end of gaofect. We work with several different Indian bartio
satisfy our working capital needs in respect of prgjects. Our finance department, and ultimately chief
finance officer, is responsible for obtaining éfiancing, including loan facilities, for each prcije

We employ a large, experienced team of architeotk after a detailed review of the site parametergject
cost estimate and project development timetable fommalise an architectural brief which is subsetlye
finalised either internally or with selected ex@rrarchitects and consultants, depending on the ard
complexity of the project.

Project management and execution

In 1989, we commenced our real estate developmenk awnd undertook our first residential development
project. Initially, we directly executed most okthonstruction work for our own projects on our oWowever,
since the mid-1990s we have moved away from cagrgiot our own construction work and instead sub-
contract the construction of projects to third pacbntractors, thereby enabling us to focus on gutoj
management and leveraging the scale of our realeedevelopment capability. We believe, howeveat thur
prior construction experience enables us to undedsthe issues faced by third party contractorstaadvay in
which our external constructors work. All of ournt projects are carried out using the servid¢ahial party
contractors. We work with approximately 15 to 2Bdtparty contractors and believe that we have gtmty-
standing working relationships with them.

We tend to procure the basic building materialsoiar projects, such as steel and concrete, dirécty Indian
suppliers. We have suppliers that we regularly asd with whom we have good, long-standing working
relationships. Most of the building materials wequre are sourced from India; however, we also some
import supplies from other countries when to dovsmld provide us with better quality, higher-tectogy or
more cost-efficient materials. Certain other rawarials or supplies are supplied by our contractors

We closely monitor the development process, coostmu quality, safety, actual and estimated projests and
construction schedules of our projects. In paréiculve endeavour to maintain high health and safietydards
in all our real estate developments and place geegthasis on the safety of our employees, contgcto
contractors and the general public. Our site offind engineering department is ultimately respdadilr site
safety during project execution.

Marketing and post-completion
Our marketing department is responsible for pramugustomers, both sales and rental, for the umitsur
developments and for conducting pre-sales. We rhaoke units through marketing techniques such as

newspaper, internet and billboard advertising, ¢duevents and corporate presentations. We alsoecaigp
with international property consultants, who rgfetential customers to us. We do not, however, gaga an
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exclusive basis the services of any real estateelbage or mortgage lender in connection with the salease
of our developments.

A significant number of our residential developmanits are pre-sold prior to completion of the depenent.

In connection with our pre-sales of residentialtsimive require that customers pay advances onutehase

price, which advances our residential customersrageired to increase in amount as we progressigfro
various milestones or stages of construction off tiesidential unit. Our marketing department ispensible

for the booking of sales once customers are idedtdnd collects all customer deposits.

We typically sell to Indian public or private secfinancial institutions our rights to receive ranpayments
due to us under leases that we have entered intespect of our commercial properties. This resintsis
receiving a lump sum payment from the financiatitoion in exchange for the financial instituti@equiring
the right to receive all future payments under asée The financial institution will receive rentypzents
directly from our tenants, usually for a term of yidars. Upon the completion of this 11 year tehm, right to
receive rental amounts paid in respect of our ptgpeverts to us. We have adopted this securitisatrategy
with respect to our rental properties in order @able to receive funds up-front upon the comptetd a
project and the renting of a particular unit, whst#l capturing upon the conclusion of the sedsation term
any appreciation in capital value that may haveuoed during such period.

We seek to foster good relations with our custonserd to keep in touch with them by sending periodic
newsletters and mail. In each of our developmergsmill provide all of our customers with a pre-opancy
inspection with our site engineer as well as wittuatomer survey encouraging constructive feedlosckur
developments. We actively follow up with the cotlen of these surveys.

We manage our entire commercial and retail progerind, in respect of our residential developmevesalso
provide property management services for a limibee until co-operative resident associations arenéd for
the relevant residential project.

INSURANCE

Our management believes that our insurance coveiagelequate, and is in proportion to our business
activities. The development of new projects involves variog&s; including among others, regulatory risk and
construction risk.

We maintain insurance coverage on a project byeptdjasis either through the developer or contradte
maintain insurance policies with leading Indianuiress such as TATA AIG Insurance, the New India
Assurance Company Limited, United India Insuranaam@any Limited, HDFC ERGO General Insurance
Company Limited, Oriental Insurance Company Limitédfe Insurance Corporation of India and ICICI
Lombard General Insurance Company Limited. Suclicigsl cover our assets and operations of our pojec
For each project under development, we obtain aotdrs all risk insurance policy, workmen compeiogat
policy and standard fire and special perils polieyrther, for every completed project of ours, tkner or the
relevant co-operative housing society of each soompleted project has the burden of obtaining and
maintaining such insurance, depending on natutbeoproject with the party having such burden depenon
nature of such project. The insurance coveragevibgirocure varies with respect to each projedtgbuerally
includes coverage for fire, building, stock congen¢arthquake, burglary, flood, accident, casuatkers,
labourers, supervisors and matters typically cavdre general liability insurance. Under the gendiedility
insurance, we are insured against legal liabititpay damages for third party civil claims arisig of bodily
injury or property damage caused by an acciderihdyroject execution. We also procure insurancespect

of terrorism risk with respect to certain of oualrestate projects.

We require that our construction contractors ob&aid maintain workmen's compensation and genexaility
insurance naming us as an additional insured pasya result, we do not maintain any insurance @ of
our own for contractor-related construction riske iso do not carry coverage for contractor's litgbtimely
project completion, loss of rent or profit, constian defects or consequential damages in the fafrtenant's
lost profits.

Further, we also maintain directors' and offickasility insurance in respect of our directors afficers.
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EMPLOYEES
Our Employees

We employ many qualified and skilled employees ataur senior management, including the headsaohe
department, are professionally qualified. Our pssfenally qualified staff includes engineers, desig
consultants, marketing specialists, treasury af§iceosting consultants, procurement officers aimdantants.

We have historically engaged a significant portainour workforce by contracting with a promoter gpo
company in which we have a 5.41% equity interegiyg0ld Management Services Pvt Limited (“Citygold”
on a non-exclusive basis for the provision of ptbjmanagement and architectural services. Citypotdides
such services to our Company as well as to thirigza As compensation for providing services tpCisygold
receives payments from us at a capped percentagmjetct cost. Citygold is not a subsidiary of @ompany,
and we do not consolidate our accounts with thatpgamy. Until November 2005, we did not directly éoyp
any employees, and instead engaged all of our gmetothrough Citygold. In that month we began te hi
employees directly for the first time in our histdry migrating staff from Citygold to our own paiiro

Training and development

We place great emphasis on training and developimgstaff and provide regular, weekly training tor ataff
through lectures and workshops given by both ouiosestaff and external speakers. We recognise dhat
senior employees have a significant amount of égpee and knowledge which can be passed on touoiorj
staff.

In addition, we have recently founded the Real Eskéanagement Institute (the “Institute”), basedhekruti
Centre Point. The Institute was inaugurated on Augy 2006. The Institute will offer a two-year gram of
study leading to a diploma in real estate managéeniearget students for the Institute would inclucieil
engineering graduates, who would have the necessagineering expertise, but may not have as much
commercial experience. We might target the bestlestis from the Institute as future employees of our
Company. The activities of the Institute, whichai$or-profit entity, are supervised by certain mensbof our
promoter group.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

As on August 12, 2009, our Company has 40 regidtanel 89 pending trademarks. We have registereldgoe
“Akruti” and the word “Akruti” under various classes defined under the IV Schedule of the TraderRai&s,
2002, among our registered trademarks. Our pertditigmark applications include those in relatiothelogo
“Akruti”, the words “Akruti City”, the words “Akruit City Limited” as also the words “Ackruti”, “Ackiil City”
under various classes as defined under the IV $thesf the Trademark Rules, 2002. Further, by wag o
trade mark licence agreement dated September 28, 20e have granted one of our promoter group
companies, Roopkala Pictures Private Limited, aexgiusive, non-transferable licence to use theéetnaame
"Akruti" in the course of its business in citiesvirg a population of less than one million. RoopkRictures
Private Limited has also applied for the registmatof "Ackruti One World" as a trademark under slas$, 19,
35, 36, 37, 41 and 42 as defined under the IV Sdkedf the Trademark Rules, 2002, and this redistra
application remains with the Trademark Registry nibai.

In addition to the trademarks as described abowealso have a few copyrights including our deviogol
composite logo in 2D, 3D and black and white eBeethich our Company uses for its business on #sesiof
the no objection letters received from Mr. VyomédhShah, Mr. Devang Kothari and Mr. Pradip Debnath,
who are the respective owners of such copyrights.
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COMPETITION

The real estate development industry in India, e/frihgmented, is highly competitive and we face petition

in Mumbai (where our business activities are mgjddcused) from other large commercial, retail and
residential real estate development and construatimmpanies in the Mumbai area such as Hiranandani
Developers Limited, Raheja Group, Dhiraj Develofégnmsited, Kalpaturu Developers, Marathon Group #mel
Lokhandwala Group.

Given our expansion of our business activitiesifies like Pune, Surat, Vadodara, Bengaluru angutaiwe

may experience competition in the future from vasicommercial, retail and residential real estatestment
and development companies with significant openatim these cities such as the DLF Group, Ansalufro
Parsvanath Developers and Unitech Limited.

We may also face competition in the future fromtaier foreign real estate development companies and
construction firms operating in India or which hetfuture may enter the Indian market.

Borrowing Powers of Board of Directors
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 293(1)(dj}hef Companies Act, 1956, the current borrowing peved

the Board of Directors of Ackruti City Limited, agpproved by the shareholders of our Company is(Rs.5
billion.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

Our consolidated financial statements are preparedonformity with Indian GAAP. Indian GAAP diffars
certain significant respects from IFRS, U.S. GAAd ather accounting principles and auditing stardiain
other countries with which prospective investorg/rha familiar. The degree to which the financiatsiments
included in this Placement Document will provideamagful information is dependent on the readeg'gel of
familiarity with Indian accounting practices, IndiagGAAP, the Companies Act and the SEBI ICDR Reguokat
Any reliance on the financial disclosures preseritethis Placement Document by persons not familih
these Indian practices, law and rules should beétéich We have not attempted to explain these diffsgs or
qguantify their impact on the financial data inclel@erein, and we urge you to consult your own aifgis
regarding such differences and their impact onfthancial data herein.

Our actual results and the timing of selected evewiuld differ materially from those anticipatedforward-
looking statements contained in this discussiora assult of various factors, including those sattfaunder
“Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this Placement Domnt. See the section entitled “Forward Looking
Statements”.

Our fiscal year ends on March 31 of each year, Boederences to a particular “fiscal year” are tthe 12-
month period ended March 31 of that fiscal year.

OVERVIEW

We are a real estate development company baseduimbisli, India. At present, our primary businesshis t
development of commercial and residential propgr@ur operations include the identification anduasition

of land and land development rights and the plapyreixecution and marketing of our projects. Our carcial
business operations involves us developing, sebind leasing of commercial office space, includaffice
towers and information technology parks, with aufoon properties attractive to the information teatbgy
("I™), information technology enabled services TEIS") and business processing outsourcing ("BPO")
enterprises. Our residential business operatiorava us developing multi-unit residential apartinkeuildings
with residences ranging from one bedroom flatsighdr end five bedroom flats.

A key focus area of our business has been redkedtwvelopment on slum rehabilitation land, pursuarthe
Slum Rehabilitation Scheme ("SRS") initiated by tBeM in 1992, whereby in return for developing new
residential buildings for former slum dwellers, t8®@M grants us either the right to develop a proporof
former slum land for our own purposes or Transfierdbevelopment Rights ("TDRs"), which permit us to
develop land in certain parts of Mumbai locatedsimlg the relevant slum area. Since undertakindisirreal
estate development project in 1989, we have deedi@pproximately 9.34 million square feet of depelb
area, of which approximately 6.51 million squaretfer approximately 70%, has been developed ah haade
available to us for development through our paptition in slum rehabilitation projects. We have eleped
new dwellings on, and handed over free of chargpraximately 4.67 million square feet of residehtipace
on these slum rehabilitation lands to provide hogidor former slum dwellers. We have used the ramngi
slum rehabilitation lands made available to useweetbp approximately 1.84 million square feet déahble area
as commercial, residential and IT park projectst @articipation in slum rehabilitation projectsMumbai has
allowed us to obtain strategically located land dar real estate development projects at a lowst ttan we
would have otherwise incurred for the purchaseoofigarable, developable urban land in Mumbai. THarue
development of approximately 2.83 million squaretf@r approximately 30%, has been developed throwag
slum rehabilitation projects.

Of the approximately 9.34 million square feet ofeahle area that have been developed by us since ou
Company's incorporation, we have developed appratély 3.97 million square feet independently, or
approximately 42% of such land, and approximate87 5million square feet, or approximately 58%, basn
developed either in partnership with other companie the real estate sector, as part of joint wentu
arrangements, or as part of a consortium.

Historically, we have focused our business on esthte development in Mumbai. However, as partusf o
growth strategy, we have expanded into Pune, THao@rat, Jaipur and Bengaluru, and intend to ectpaur
business into other cities, particularly where we future potential for our operations. We alseridtto further
diversify our business lines by selectively expigrnew concepts for large scale development psjscich as
townships, serviced apartments and hotels.
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In respect of our ongoing projects under develogmas of June 30, 2009 we have development rights f
approximately 13.04 million square feet of landeargrimarily located in Mumbai and other urban aréaf this
area, approximately 1.68 million square feet regméslum rehabilitation land and approximately 5Indllion
square feet represent land acquired or leased fhinth parties. We expect to develop approximatedy0Q
million square feet on these lands, of which apjnaxely 16.63 million square feet will be saleablea and
the balance approximately 2.37 million square fdfetonstructed new dwellings will be handed oveefiof
charge to former slum dwellers. In addition to #fs®ve, we expect to be granted approximately 1000square
feet of TDRs.

In respect of our future projects, as of June 8092 we have also initiated steps to acquire devetmt rights
over an additional approximately 17.89 million scuéeet of land area, primarily located in Mumbadather
urban areas. Our management expects, based onapplizoning regulations, to develop approximaBsy34
million square feet on these lands, of which apjnately 35.21 million square feet will be saleablea and
the balance approximately 4.13 million square f#etonstructed new dwellings will be handed oveefiof
charge to former slum dwellers. In addition to d®ve, we expect to be granted approximately 4D4sgdare
feet of TDRs.

Our sales, on a consolidated basis, have grownGAGR of 68.22% from Rs. 1,984.75 million for theay
ended March 31, 2007 to Rs. 5,616.35 million far slear ended March 31, 2009. Our profit after tax.a
consolidated basis, has grown at a CAGR of 108.62% Rs. 766.91 million for the year ended March 31
2007 to Rs. 3,337.63 million for the year ended d¥a31, 2009.

KEY FACTORS AFFECTING OUR FINANCIAL CONDITION AND O UR RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

Our income is generated principally from our resthée development activities. A number of factdfect our
financial condition and results of operations, inthg the following:

Timing and execution of our projects

Our results of operations significantly depend ugf@ number of projects under execution at vargiages in
each financial year. All of our projects requirdstantial time to complete during which we may reedittle
or no cash from sales (in case of commercial ptgjemnd the number of projects that are availatreséle can
vary significantly from period to period. We canmoedict with certainty when our projects will bengpleted
and sold as our project timetables are occasiod#@lypted by unforeseen circumstances and aresalgect to
various regulatory approvals at different stagesxaicution.

As a result, we may record significant revenuespwosfits during one financial period while reporting
significantly lower revenues or profits with respéc prior or subsequent financial periods. Therfdhe
periods discussed in our financial statements degduin the Placement Document may not be compatable
each other or to future financial periods, andresults of operations and cash flows may fluctgégaificantly
from period to period and over time.

Acquisition of land / land developmental rights

Our operations are dependent on our identificatiband the availability of suitable land for ourfects. Our
growth is linked to our ability to identify and @lm land in areas where we can develop projects afe
marketable to customers in all our business lides. government regulations, increase in the prickid or
other impediments to the acquisition of land odla@evelopment rights may adversely affect our dpmis.
General economic and demographic condition in Indiand Mumbai, in particular

All our operations are currently located in Ingdarticularly in Mumbai and the state of Maharashfitzerefore,

the economic condition of India in general and airvbai in particular has an impact on our operatide
believe that the success of our projects is deperatethe general economic growth of India.
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Availability of financing

One of the significant drivers behind the growthdeimand for housing units is the interest rate oasing
loans and the ability of customers to finance thmirchases. Overall, interest rates are highly iseasto
several factors including governmental, monetargl gax policy, domestic and international economic a
political conditions, and other factors beyond oantrol. Any increase in interest rates or reduciio overall
credit availability to customers will affect ourstdts of operations.

In addition, our Company incurs floating rate ingimess for its projects in the real estate se€tisanges in
interest rates may increase our cost of borrowing anay adversely affect our profitability. Further
unavailability of financing on favourable terms fourselves may affect our financial condition aedults of
operations.

Cost of construction

The cost of construction is a significant factoatthffects our financial results. Fluctuations he prices and
timely availability of raw materials, such as sfemment and other construction items can signiflgaaffect

our profitability. We do not have any long term trawts for these raw materials and any increasthése

inputs may significantly affect our results of oggons.

Regulatory approvals

Our operations, the acquisition of land and landetigopment rights, and the implementation of ourjguts
require us to obtain regulatory approvals and Besnand require us to comply with the land conwarsiles
and regulations of a variety of regulatory autliesit We also are subject to local laws relatingei@ estate
development activities. Any delay in getting thapprovals may affect our business and result ofatjoas.
For further discussion of factors that may affaat @sults of operations, also refer to “Risk Fegto

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements have been prepared aisémtel under the historical cost convention udiegatcrual
basis of accounting in accordance with the accogntirinciples generally accepted in India and are i
accordance with the applicable Accounting Standa@lsidance Notes and the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956.

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith the generally accepted accounting princ@plequires
the management to make estimates and assumptainaftict the reported amounts of assets anditiakibnd
the disclosure of contingent liabilities on theedaft financial statements and the reported amaoafitsvenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Diffegertietween actual results and estimates are reeabm the
period in which the results are known / materialize

-103 -



Pzl Ackruti Citymited - Placement Document

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Revenue Recognition
Revenue from Construction Activity

Revenue from sale of finished properties / buildiig recognized on transfer of property and ongeifsitant
risks and rewards of ownership have been transfeaéhe buyer. Similarly, revenue from sale ofrigferable
Development Rights (TDRs) is recognized on transfethe rights to the buyer. Revenue recognition is
postponed to the extent of significant uncertainty.

Revenue from sale of incomplete projects is revdrmma property under construction and is recogniaedhe

basis of percentage of completion method. Underrtigthod, income in respect of a project is recghbased
on the project cost actually incurred as a proporif total estimated project cost and the proportf the

estimated saleable area in the project in respieethich bookings have been made. However, if thiiac
project cost incurred is less than 40% of the tesimated project cost, no income is recogniseespect of
that project in the relevant fiscal period. Estiezabf saleable area and the related income asawedloject
costs are reviewed periodically. The effect of ahginges to estimates is recognised in the finastagé¢ments
for the period in which such changes are determiRedenue recognized in the aforesaid manner datbde
costs are both restricted to 90% until the conswocactivity are substantially completed. Costatieg to

construction / development are charged to the tpaofil loss account in proportion with the reveremognized
during the year. The balance costs are carriedaasgb ‘Incomplete Projects’ under inventories. Amts

receivable / payable are reflected as debtors drambs from customers, respectively, after congidericome
recognized in the aforesaid manner. Recognitioreeénue relating to agreements entered into wetbthyers,
which are subject to fulfilment of obligations /rzhtions imposed by statutory authorities, is poegd until

such obligations are discharged.

Based on a recommendation of our Audit and CompdaBommittee, our Board has decided to modify the
revenue recognition policy presently followed by @ompany. Revenue will continue to be recognisedhe
basis of percentage of completion method; howdvem the second quarter of fiscal year 2010, reeefinom
sales of incomplete projects will be recognizedtages upon incurring 25% of the project cost gyahueceipt

of 10% of unit sale consideration.

Sale of interests in projects executed through ididvges, associates, partnerships and joint vestuare
recognised on the transfer of the respective sgesirnet of the carrying values of those secwitie

Profit / Loss from Partnership Firms / Joint Vergar

The share of profit or revenues from firms in whitte Company is a partner, and the share of poofit
revenues (as agreed by the parties) in joint dpweémt agreements or other arrangements, are aecbfontas
per the annual statement of accounts of the pattigefirm or joint venture.

Income from Leased Premises

Rental income and income received from property agament services provided are accounted for on an
accrual basis. Revenue on rental receipts is iecdud operating income.

Others

Other income and expenditure are generally accduateaccrual, as the income is earned or expermses a
incurred.

Fixed Assets and Depreciation / Amortisation
Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition amstuction less accumulated depreciation / anatitis.
Depreciation is provided on the written down vafoethod at the rates and in the manner specifi&thedule

XIV to the Companies Act, 1956. Depreciation onitdds to assets or on the sale or disposal oftagse
calculated pro-rata from the date of such additiwryntil the date of such sale or disposal, axédse may be.
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Cost of leasehold land is amortised on a straigbtbasis, over the primary lease period.
Inventories

Our inventories comprise (i) "incomplete projects/hich are properties under construction, (ii) i$hed
properties", which have been constructed but remasold and (iii) value of floor space index (FS¥pich is a
value given to our right to develop an area of ldod to our participation in the Slum Rehabilitati®cheme.
Work-in-progress comprise cost of land, developmegiits and transferable development rights, cdst o
construction/development and cost of materials s@lices and other overheads related to projeatigrun
construction and completed units that remain unsold

‘Incomplete Projects’ are stated at cost or neizable value, whichever is lower. ‘Incomplete Rx@f’ include
cost of incomplete properties for which the Compaag not entered into sale agreements, and in ods&s
where the revenue recognition is postponed. ‘IndetepProjects’ also include initial project codtsitt relate
directly to a (prospective) project, incurred foe tpurpose of securing the project. These costeaoghized as
expenditure for the year in which they are incuetess they are separately identifiable and itrisbable that
the respective project will be obtained.

Finished properties are stated at cost or netsadalk value, whichever is lower. Finished propsrtleat are
being leased operating lease are disclosed unddixgéd assets schedule as leased assets. Thereosferred

to the fixed assets schedule are shown as dedsacfrmm the costs carried in opening inventory and
construction costs incurred during the year. Thessets (including furniture and fixtures in furr@diproperties
and land acquired on lease) are depreciated / m@drias per the Accounting Policy mentioned herein.
Although the Company considers these assets antbries held for sale in the ordinary course ofihess, the
disclosure under the fixed assets schedule andswavfor depreciation / amortisation is made tonpty with

the requirements of Accounting Standard 19 — Leases

Floor Space Index (FSI) is stated at lower of Gowl the rate prescribed in the Stamp Duty Readkdter
issued by the State Government, for the year itvkiS| is generated.

All other inventory including TDRs is stated at tos net realisable value, whichever is lower. Gostuded in

inventory include costs incurred until the projectompleted and include, among other things, obstnd /

rights, materials, services and other expensetufimg borrowing costs) attributable to the progec€osts are
calculated based on an average cost formula.

Contractual Interests in Projects Executed throdgisociates, etc.

Costs incurred by our Company that are allocabsgtributable to the execution of development prigiec
undertaken through our subsidiaries, associates)grahips or joint ventures are carried at costedrealisable
value, whichever is lower. Costs incurred in exexuthese projects, net of recoveries made theaensa) are
carried as “Contractual interests in projects etextuhrough Associates” under current assets. Téener of
allocation of costs to such projects and the bafsiecognition of such costs are the same as fsisdacurred
for projects executed solely by the Company.
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Investments are classified into current and lomghtenvestments. Current investments are statedveer of
cost and fair value. Long term investments areedtat cost. A provision for diminution is made &zognize

decline, other than temporary, in the value of ltergn investments.

SUMMARY OF OUR RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The table below sets forth the Company’s consdaidigirofit and loss information for the fiscal yearsded

March 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007:

Rs. in million
Fiscal 2009 Fiscal 2008 Fiscal 2007
n % of % of % of
Fersulens Sales and I_ncrease Sales and I_ncrease Sales and
Rs other 1) 200k Rs other Ll 200k Rs other
. operating GO . operating ST PENE . operating
income o 2508 income o 200 income
Income
Sales and Income from 5,405.19 100.00% 59.46% 3,389.59 100.00% 79.39% 1,889.48 100.00%
Operations
Other Income 211.16 3.91% -31.56% 308.54 9.10%  8K”P3. 95.27 5.04%
Total 5,616.35 103.91% 51.87% 3,698.13 109.10% 86.33% 1,984.75 105.04%
Expenditure
Cost of Construction 4,185.85 77.44% 74.52% 2,3®8.4 70.76% 125.05% 1,065.76 56.40%
(Increase)/Decrease in  -4,439.31 -82.13% 107.47% -2,139.70 -63.13% 365.43%459.73 -24.33%
inventories
Employment Costs 148.7 2.75% 113.43% 69.67 2.06% 4893. 67.33 3.56%
Administrative 369.16 6.83% 64.86% 223.92 6.61% 22% 169.36 8.96%
Contractual expenses 94.71 1.75% 0.00% 0 0.00%
Finance Expenses 1,402.25 25.94% 127.87% 615.37 15%8. 207.84% 199.9 10.58%
Depreciation 57.13 1.06% -17.57% 69.31 2.04% 561 62.1 3.29%
Profit Before Tax, 3,797.86 70.26%  54.32% 2,461.10 72.61% 179.66%  880.03 46.58%
Before Minority
Interest And Share Of
Profit / (Loss) Of
Associates
Provision for Taxation -555.61 -10.28% 511.43% 890. -2.68% -19.13%  -112.37 -5.95%
Profit After Tax, 3,242.25 59.98% 36.79% 2,370.23 69.93% 208.76%  767.66 40.63%
Before Minority
Interest And Share Of
Profit / Associates
Add: Share of Profit 95.38 1.76% -0.03 0.00% -0.75 -0.04%
from Associates and
Minority Interest
Profit After Tax 3,337.63 61.75% 40.82% 2,370.20 69.93% 209.06%  766.91 40.59%
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Description of Income and Expenditure
Income

Sales and income from operations consists primafily

* Income from sale of properties / development rigfBRs;

* Income from leasing of properties;

e Our share of net income from partnership firmsoantjventures;

e Our share of revenues or net income (as agreelebyarties) from joint development arrangements;
« Share of net income from sale of interest in oaf estate projects executed by our SPVs; and

* Income from project management consultancy services

Income from sale of properties comprises of satenfresidential and commercial projects and, toszde
extent, income from developing SEZs, retail spawt @ Parks. In general, income from projects iogoess is
recognised under the percentage of completion rdett®odetailed under “Significant Accounting Polie
above.

Our other income includes interest earned from dparank deposits and others, dividends received on
investments, profit on sale of investments, gainssales of fixed assets, foreign currency flucaratjains,
miscellaneous income and liquidated damages rete@er other income fluctuates principally depegdiipon

the interest received on loans, investments we nmakarious securities and the dividends declarethem.

Expenditure

Our total expenditure consists principally of: cadt construction, employment cost, interest andarfioce
charges, administrative, selling and general ex@®aad depreciation and amortisation.

We account for all expenses incurred for a spegif@ject as expenses for such project. All expeisasred
that are not specific to a particular project aceocanted for separately as administrative expenSes.
expenditure consists of the following categoriesxjfenses:

Cost of construction

Construction and development expenses include waroject expenses such as costs associated heith t
acquisition of land, development rights, transféatevelopment rights, FSI, architects’ fees, digelopment
expenses, the cost of materials and contracts, g@atgnto contractors and contract labourers, paysrteribcal
authorities in connection with applications formpkpprovals.

Employment Costs

Employment costs consist of salaries, wages anddas) our Company’s contribution to provident fuads
other funds; worker and staff welfare costs, gtgtpayments, and remuneration to directors.

Interest and Finance Charges
Financial expenses consists of expenses relatetetest paid by the Company for long terms loaesentures

and short term borrowings, including working calpitans. Finance charges include the loan procgdsies
and syndication fee.
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Administrative, Selling and General Expenses

Selling costs relate to the sale and lease of ptiege General and administrative costs relate xjperses
incurred for general administration at the corpoiatel that are not assignable to any specifigeptoThese
include: repairs and society maintenance chargbgrisement, legal and professional fees, ratéstaxes,
brokerage, insurance, rent, donations, loss ondfdieed assets, provisions for doubtful debtsediors fees
and travelling expenses; commission to non-exeeuirectors; and other expenses.

Depreciation and Amortisation

Depreciation and amortisation includes depreciaboncommercial premises, plant and machinery, Vetic
furniture and fixtures, computers and office equipnand other fixed assets. Depreciation on oedfixssets is
charged on a written-down value basis, at the stesified in Schedule XIV of the Companies Actjshhare
based on the useful lives of the assets.

Results of Operations

Due to the nature of the real estate developmentitéess undertaken by us, the completion schedofesur
projects, the way we recognize revenue, the natfiexpenditure involved in a particular projecte tbpecific
terms of a particular real estate development ptaentract (including payment terms) and othetdiecthat
affect our income and expenditures on specificqutsj, our results of operations may vary signifigafrom
period to period.

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2009 compared with Fas&Year Ended March 31, 2008
Total Income

Sales and other operating income for fiscal ye@920as Rs. 5,405.1&illion in comparison to Rs. 3,389.59
million for fiscal year 2008 which is an increade59.46%. We sold two of our large pre-leased conciaé
properties located in Andheri (East), Mumbai ircéis2009, which generated total revenue of Rs.&#3®B
million. We also generated revenue of Rs. 5.42ionilfrom sale of projects under construction. ldi&dn, in
fiscal year 2009 we sold our interest in projectsoaited through a subsidiary, which contributecerese of Rs.
376.90 million.

Other income for fiscal year 2009 was Rs. 211.16ianias compared to Rs. 308.54 million in the poes
year, which is a decrease of 31.56%. This is mailolg to reduced interest income, reduction in inedrom
current investments, lower amount of dividends inem from current investment due to sale of current
investments in fiscal year 2009. The other inconmdased in fiscal year 2008 was on account oftione
liquidated damages received.

Cost of Construction

The cost of construction increased in fiscal yga®@to Rs. 4,185.85 million from Rs. 2,398.46 nilliin fiscal
year 2008 which is an increase of 74.52%. Thisgiase is primarily attributable to construction effabilitation
buildings, written down value of finished propestigeing expensed out, initiating new projects aratetion of
projects in joint ventures.

Employment Cost

Employment cost was Rs. 148.70 million in fiscahly2009 compared to Rs. 69.67 million in fiscalry2@08,

an increase of 113.43 %. The increase in costatsfiacrease in the number of employees and threase in
salary levels as compared to fiscal year 2008.
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Administrative, Selling & Other Expenses

Administrative, selling and other expenses were 3&2.16 million in fiscal year 2009 against Rs. 223
million in fiscal year 2008, an increase of 64.86Pke increase is mainly due to losses on saless#ts and
provision for doubtful advances made during fisgaar 2009 and also on account of increases in legdl
professional fees which corresponded to an incrigeser land acquisition.

Interest and Finance Expenses

Interest and finance expense for fiscal year 2008WRs. 1,402.25 million as compared to Rs. 618flibn in
fiscal year 2008, an increase of 127.87%. The as®evas primarily due to higher borrowings andsa i the
cost of borrowings due to higher interest rategelbby the lending banks and financial institution.

Our secured and unsecured loans have increased Ron8,291.95 million as on March 31, 2008 to Rs.
10,568.76 million as on March 31, 2009 in viewlod £xpansion and growth of our Company.

Depreciation

Depreciation for fiscal year 2009 was Rs. 57.13ionlas compared to Rs. 69.31 million in the pregiyear.
The decrease in depreciation in fiscal year 20@Riésto sale of premises.

Profit Before Tax and Profit After Tax

Our Profit Before Tax increased by Rs.1,336.76iarilor 54.32% from Rs. 2,461.10 million in fiscaay 2008
to Rs. 3,797.86 million in fiscal year 2009.

Our profit after tax increased by Rs. 967.43 millar 40.82% from Rs. 2,370.20 million in fiscal y&®08 to
Rs. 3,337.63 million in fiscal year 2009.

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2008 compared with Fat& ear Ended March 31, 2007
Total Income

Sales and other operating income for the fiscar @208 was Rs. 3,389.5@illion in comparison to Rs.
1,889.48 million for the previous year, which wasiacrease of 79.39% due to growth in the reverit@s
sale of development rights/ FSI as compared toipuswear. We generated revenue from sale of dpredat
rights in respect of a projeldcated in Andheri (East), Mumbai aggregating to 8472.33 million. In addition

to the above, we had revenue from sale agreementpifit development of two projects aggregating Rs
1,057.50 million, which was subsequently canceliedthe fiscal year 2009. However, in the readjusted
financials included in the Placement Documentstile has been reversed in fiscal 2008.

Other income for the fiscal year 2008 was Rs. 308rilion as compared to Rs. 95.27 million in fisgaar
2008 showing an increase of 223.86%, mainly dug sagnificant increase in interest income from bagiven
aggregating to Rs. 219.60 million and income froividiénd and sale of current investments of Rs. 7.5
million as well as one off revenue of Rs. 20.20limil as liquidated damages from a party becausisof
withdrawal from a development project.

Cost of Construction

The cost of construction increased to Rs. 2,398dl6on in fiscal year 2008 from Rs. 1,065.76 nolfi in fiscal
year 2007. In absolute terms the cost of constoctncreased by 125.05%. This increase is primarily
attributable to construction of rehabilitation leshuildings, initiating new projects and executifrprojects in
joint ventures.

Employment Cost

Employment cost were Rs. 69.67 million in fiscahy®008 against Rs. 67.33 million in fiscal yeab20an
increase of 3.48%.
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Administrative, Selling & Other Expenses

Administrative, selling and other expenses were Z3.92 million in fiscal year 2008 against Rs. .B&9
million in fiscal year 2007, an increase of 32.22Phis increase is mainly due to an increase in didegnent,
legal and professional fees and other general esgzetiuring the fiscal year 2008.

Interest and Finance Expenses

Interest and finance expense for the year fiscat 08 were Rs. 615.37 million as compared t01R8.90
million in fiscal year 2007, an increase of 207.849%ir secured and unsecured loans taken have sectdeom
Rs. 4,878.76 million as on March 31, 2007 to R298,95 million as on March 31, 2008 to cater to the
expansion and increased working capital requiresnehour Company.

Depreciation

Depreciation for the fiscal year 2008 is Rs. 6918llion as compared to Rs. 62.10 million in the\pogeis year.
The increase in depreciation is due to completefepts being capitalized during fiscal year 2008.

Profit Before Tax and Profit After Tax

Our profit before tax increased by Rs. 1,581.07ionilfrom Rs. 880.03 million or 179.66% in fiscadar 2007
to Rs. 2,461.10 million in fiscal year 2008.

Our profit after tax increased by 1,603.29 millien209.06% from Rs. 766.91 million in fiscal ye®0Z to Rs.
2,370.20 million in fiscal year 2008.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Historically, our principal liquidity and capitaksources requirements have been to finance ouringockpital
needs and our capital expenditure requirementsb0siness requires a significant amount of workiapital to
finance the purchase of construction materialsyrgay to contractors, payment for land or land dewelent
rights and other work on our real estate developmesjects before payment is received from clieRtsr. our
projects, we tend to receive payments in a staggeranner depending on the stage of completion ef th
project. We need to finance these cash flow mishestaduring the interim periods. To the extent that
participate in large scale projects, we may be ireduto increase our borrowing in order to meet liigher
levels of working capital required to undertaketspoojects.

To fund our capital needs, we rely on short-term lamg-term borrowings with one to five year termsyrking
capital financing and cash flows from operating\ati¢s.

Cash Flows

The table below summarizes our Company’s consa@ilaash flow statements:

Rs. in million
Particulars Fiscal 2009 Fiscal 2008
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating iéietv 1,132.62 (1,091.76)
Net cash (used in) Investing activities (2,180.29) (1,860.42)
Net cash generated from financing activity 717.54 2,503.61
Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents anthef the year (330.13) (448.57)

We were required to comply with Accounting Standa&i21 on ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’ foe t
first time in the financial year ending March 3D0Z and did not prepare consolidated accountshioptior
fiscal years. We have not prepared consolidated flaw statements for the financial years endingdfa31l,
2007, since the consolidated opening balances s@geto prepare a cash flow statement for fisc&l72@as
not available.
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Operating Activities

Net cash generated from operating activities waslRS82.62 million for fiscal year 2009. Net cagingrated
from operating activities consisted mainly of cggmerated on account of net profit before tax of 33897.86
million and an outflow of Rs. 4,147.54 million oncaunt of working capital changes. During fiscahry2009
our Company continued its development activitied anvested the available cash flows in completing o
projects and building our inventory. Further, wevédndad a significant increase in sundry debtorsnfiRs.
45.41 million as of March 31, 2008 to Rs. 4,517m#lion as of March 31, 2009. As at March 31, 2009
approximately 98.04% of these sundry debtors weitstanding for a period exceeding six months. Ashsu
realisation of receivables for the projects soldrdythe year have been relatively slow which hidscted our
cash flows significantly during the fiscal year 200

Net cash used in operating activities was Rs. 17@fillion for fiscal year 2008. Net cash usedperating
activities consisted mainly of net profit beforex taf Rs. 2,461.10 million and an outflow of Rs. &909
million on account of working capital changes. Tihnerease in net cash outflow was due to increases i
construction activity.

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities was Rs. 228nillion for fiscal year 2009, which primarilpéluded Rs.
1,201.68 million towards loans and advances givehRs. 861.20 million towards acquisition of subsigs,
joint ventures and partnership firms.

Net cash used in investing activities is Rs. 1,880nillion for the fiscal year 2008, which primariincluded
Rs. 1,831.85 million towards loans and advancesrgiacquisition of long term investments of Rs46,84
million. The net outflow was reduced on accountnffow on disposal of current investments of R917,.20
million

Financing Activities

Net cash generated from financing activities far fiscal year 2009 was Rs. 717.54 million whichmaiily
included Rs. 2,900.02 million from proceeds of seduoans as reduced by an outflow on accountpeyment
of unsecured loans of Rs 729.76 million. Furthergéhs an outflow of Rs. 1,402.30 million towardterest and
finance charges and Rs. 46.69 million towards @initipaid during the year.

Net cash generated from financing activities far fiscal year 2008 was Rs. 2,503.61 million whicimgarily
included Rs. 3,327.30 million from proceeds of seduand unsecured loans, as reduced by Rs. 613l@8hm
towards interest and finance charges and Rs. 220il0&én towards dividend paid during the year.

Indebtedness
The following table sets forth our repayment oliigas under the terms of our secured and unsecured
indebtedness as of June 30, 2009.

Rs. in million
Particulars Balance Repayment Schedule
Outstanding
As on June 30, Less than 1 1-3 years 3-5 years More than 5
2009 year years
Secured Loans 10,049.4 2,635.07 6,645.77 181.84 .7586

As of March 31, 2009 we had Rs. 8,488.93 millionsetured loans outstanding, including accrued ester
thereon from banks, financial institutions and camips and Rs. 2,079.83 million of unsecured loans.

These loans and debentures were secured by, antoegtioings, pledges of the equity shares of oamuters
and promoter group, inventory of projects and othewable and immovable assets.

As a result of the impact of the global credit istishe Company negotiated with lenders to restinecits loan
portfolio during fiscal year 2009.

Pursuant to certain of our financing agreementshawe some restrictive covenants which requireousbtain
consent of our lenders, for further details plaa$er the section entitled ‘Risk Factors’.
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As part of our ongoing strategy to improve our ity position, we shall continue to undertake stmecturing
of a portion of our existing indebtedness. As mdrbur restructuring, we shall strive to extend thaturity of
loans; reduce the interest rates and replace ghontioans with long term ones.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET LIABILITIES

The following table sets fourth contingent lialg of the Company not provided for, on a constéiddasis as
at March 31, 2009 and March 31, 2008:

Rs. in million
Sr. Particulars As at March As at March 31,
No. 31, 2009 2008
(A) Claims against the Company, not acknowledgededots on
account of: -
1. Income Tax matters under appeal for FinanciarYe i 65.16
1999-2000 (A.Y. 2000-2001) ’
2. Income Tax matters under appeal for FinanciarYe 497 66 Amount not
2000-2001 to 2006-2007 ' ascertainable
3. Demand notice issued by Brihanmumbai Municipal
Corporation for Land Under Construction charges 41.20 32.89
(property tax).
4. Petition filed against the Company, under the
Maharashtra Slum Area (Improvement, Clearance and 5.00 7.73

Redevelopment) Act, 1971, in relation to a Project.

5.  Petition pending with the Honourable High Coofrt
Bombay with regards to Mahalaxmi Car Project at 2.45 1.85
Bhulabhai Desai Road, Mumbai

(B) On account of corporate guarantees issued & timpany
to Bankers on behalf of other companies and joamtwres
for facilities availed by them (amount outstanditigere 621.18 636.99
against.)

Note: Further interest / penalty that may accrue onimaigdemands, are not ascertainable, at present.

Select Balance Sheet items:
Fixed assets

Fixed assets include land, buildings, plant andhimeey, furniture fixtures, office equipments anehicles.
Our net block of fixed assets including capital kvar progress was Rs. 981.57 million, Rs. 1,149r0#ion
and Rs. 895.48 million as on March 31, 2009, M&th2008 and March 31, 2007 respectively. The deserén
fixed assets reflects the written down value ofsfied properties transferred to cost of constractio sale of
leased assets.

Some leased assets which are available for sdaleiordinary course of business are disclosed uhdefixed
assets schedule to comply with the requiremenégobunting Standard 19 — Leases.

Investments
Investments represent equity shares held in agsoc@npanies, partnerships among others, engageshin
estate development, related activities and othegsiments. Our Company'’s total investment was R5341

million, Rs. 2,276.47 million and Rs. 2,746.84 il as on March 31, 2009, March 31, 2008 and M&th
2007 respectively.
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Current assets, loans and advances

Current assets, loans and advances comprises @mieestprojects in progress, sundry debtors, cashbank
balances, other current assets and loans and advgsome of which are further detailed below). The
Company'’s total current assets, loans and advamees Rs. 19,251.06 million, Rs. 14,049.77 milliordeRs.
7,206.92 million as on March 31, 2009, March 3102&nd March 31, 2007 respectively.

Inventories

Inventories comprise incomplete projects, Floorcgpidex (FSI) and stock of completed real estadgepts.
Our total inventory was Rs. 7,729.94 million, Rg351.21 million and Rs. 1,584.27 million as on MaRl,
2009, March 31, 2008 and March 31, 2007 respegtiviet on March 31, 2009 approximately 95.89% of our
inventory constituted of incomplete projects arel blalance was represented by FSI and completeecpsoAs

on March 31, 2008 approximately 91.38% of our irteey was constituted of incomplete projects and the
balance represented by FSI and completed projéstson March 31, 2007 approximately 63.54% of our
inventory constituted of incomplete projects, 2048epresenting FSI and 16.04% of completed praojddts
change in the level of FSI inventory over time wda® to the utilisation of FSI rights available t® ia fiscal
year 2007 to construct new developments in fisealy 2008 and 2009.

Sundry Debtors

Sundry debtors increased from Rs. 45.41 milliofallarch 31, 2008 to Rs. 4,517.39 million as of baB1,
2009 on account of lower collections due from cocs resulting from uncertain economic conditios. &
March 31, 2009 approximately 98.04% of these surtfytors were outstanding for a period exceedirg si
months.

Cash and Bank Balances

Our consolidated cash and bank balances compr&einshand and balances with banks. The total eash
bank balances were Rs. 109.75 million, Rs. 402.84omand Rs. 1,333.47 million as on March 31, 200
March 31, 2008 and March 31, 2007 respectively

Other Current Assets

Other current assets were Rs. 740.83 million and3R3.73 million as on March 31, 2009 and MarchZ108
respectively.

Loans and Advances

Our consolidated loans and advances primarily ca@apmsecured advances/ share application money ¢ov
associate companies and others, that are recoedrabhsh or kind and advance payments made ircesp
income tax and other advances towards purchasendf/| land development rights. Total loans and ades
were Rs. 6,153.15 million, Rs. 8,926.58 million &l 3,570.58 million as on March 31, 2009, Marth2Z008
and March 31, 2007 respectively.

Current Liabilities

Our total current liabilities were Rs. 2,142.71loil, Rs. 1,548.84 million and Rs. 659.72 millias@n March
31, 2009, March 31, 2008 and March 31, 2007 respdgt Our current liabilities include sundry créas,
security deposits received, advances against bgaiproperties and other liabilities.

Provisions

Our Company's total provisions were Rs. 240.03 iomll Rs. 660.18 million and Rs. 329.79 million as o

March 31, 2009, March 31, 2008 and March 31, 2085pectively. These provisions include provisions
primarily related to taxation and employee benefits
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RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

The table below sets forth the Company’s consaidatnaudited financial results for the quarter entlene 30,
2009 and June 30, 2008, respectively:

Rs. in million
Particulars Quarter ended June Increase (Decrease) in  Quarter ended June 30,
30, 2009 June 2009 compared to 2008

(Unaudited) June 2008 (Unaudited)
Income 444.40 (81.39)% 2,388.60
Sales and other operating 409.00 (82.54)% 2,343.40
income
Other income 35.40 (21.68)% 45.20
Expenditure 303.90 (33.93)% 460.00
Cost of construction 376.70 (74.29)% 1,465.60
(Increase)/Decrease in (588.90) (58.46)% (1,418.00)
inventories
Staff costs 40.40 (14.22%) 47.10
Finance expenses 363.60 22.75% 296.20
Other expenditure 100.60 94.58% 51.70
Depreciation 11.50 (33.90)% 17.40
Profit Before Tax 140.50 (92.71)% 1,928.60
Taxation and provision for 74.20 (66.37)% 220.70
tax
Profit After Tax 66.30 (96.11)% 1,707.90

Quarter Ended June 30, 2009 compared with Quarterded June 30, 2008
Total Income

Sales and other operating income for the quartdeédune 30, 2009 was Rs. 409 million in compartsdRs.

2,343.40 million for the quarter ended June 30,820thich was a decrease of 82.54%. This decreasedua
to us selling fewer properties, rights and incortelerojects due to the decreased demand for pieperights

and incomplete projects resulting from the downturrihe economy. Further, we sold one of our lgoge

leased commercial assets, at a pricRef2,114.37 million during the quarter ended J8®e2008, but did not
sell any projects during the quarter ended Jun€@09. Additionally, none of our projects under elepment
during the quarter ended June 30, 2009 were at #¥% completed (the threshold for recognition afes
revenue under our ‘Percentage of Completion Metlod@iccounting) and accordingly we have not recogphi
any sale revenue during the quarter ended Jun2089,

Other income for the quarter ended June 30, 20@9Rga 35.40 million as compared to Rs. 45.20 nnilllothe
guarter ended June 30, 2008, which was a decré&E68%. This is mainly due to reduced interesbine,
reduction in income from current investments, aowdr amounts of dividends received from current
investment due to sale of current investments dutie quarter ended June 30, 2009.

Expenditure

Our expenditure decreased in the quarter ended 3002009 to Rs. 303.90 million from Rs. 460.00the
quarter ended June 30, 2008, which was a decrda88.983%. This is mainly due to decreased levels of
construction and a decrease in the amount we erpgeod inventories during the quarter ended Jun@09
due to decreased demand for properties and incoenpiejects resulting from the downturn in the exogy.

Profit Before Tax and Profit After Tax

Our profit before tax decreased by Rs. 1,788.10ianjl or 92.71%, from Rs. 1,928.60 million in theagter
ended June 30, 2008 to Rs. 140.50 million in quamneled June, 30, 2009.

Our profit after tax decreased by Rs. 1,641.60iom)l or 96.11%, from Rs. 1,707.90 million in theacter
ended June 30, 2008 to Rs. 66.30 million in thetgu@nded June 30, 2009.
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Material Developments

To our knowledge, no circumstances have arisenedime date of the last financial statements irediuid this
Placement Document that materially and adverseigctfor are likely to affect our profitability, famcial
condition or ability to pay our liabilities withithe next 12 months.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS
Equity Share Capital

As per the Memorandum of Association of our Compahge authorised share capital of our Company is
Rs.1250 million comprising of 125,000,000 Equitasds of Rs.10 each.

As on June 30, 2009 the issued and paid up edudgtyescapital of our Company is Rs. 667 million coisipg
of 66,700,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each.

Changes in the authorised share capital

Sr. No. Date of Shareholders Particulars
Meeting
1 Memorandum registered Incorporated with Rs. 0.1 million comprising of @®equity shares
’ with this capital of Rs.100 each.
Increase in authorised share capital from Rs. Oliomto Rs.1
2. June 24, 1993 million comprising of 10,000 equity shares of R Hach.
Increase in authorised share capital from Rs.lianilto Rs.2.50
3. July 25, 1994 million comprising of 25,000 equits shares of RO Each.
4. January 21, 1997 In.cr.ease in a'lu.thorised share capital from Rs.2.80omto Rs.5
’ million comprising of 50,000 equity shares of R Hach.
Increase in authorised share capital from Rs.5ianillto Rs.20
5. October 8, 1998 million comprising of 200,000 equitF;/ shares of R@Each.
6 February 13, 2002 Sub-division of one equity share of Rs.100 eaah It Equity Share
‘ of Rs.10 each.
7 May 7, 2004 Increase in authorised share capital from Rs.20iamilto Rs.50
’ million comprising of 5,000,000 Equity Shares of Rseach.
8 April 13, 2005 Increase in authorised share capital from Rs.50amilto Rs.200
’ million comprising of 20,000,000 Equity Shares &f B0 each.
9 January 27, 2006 Increase in authorised share capital from Rs.20Bomito Rs.1250

Changes in the paid-up share capital

million comprising of 125,000,000 Equity SharedRsf. 10 each.

The details of the changes in the paid-up sharigatayd our Company are set forth in the table belo

e @i VF:IEZ IsriS(;Jee CumEE Cumulative Cumulative
Date of Equity P Particulars of Share .
Allotment Shares Of. per Issue Capital (No Share Share capital
issued Equity  Equity of shares). premium, (Rs.) (Rs.)
Share Share
Allotment to
Egggls' 20 100 100  Subscriber to 20 0 2,000
Memorandum
February 2, 900 100 100 Further issue of 920 0 92,000
1990 shares
Mar 30, Further issue of
1994 8,120 100 100 shares 9,040 0 9,04,000
Mar 27, 1,960 100 100 Furtherissue of 11,000 0 11,00,000
1995 shares
Aug 7, 1995 3,000 100 100 F“”Zﬁ;'rzssue of 14,000 0 14,00,000
Sep 30, 11,000 100 100 Further issue of 25,000 0 25,00,000
1996 shares
Feb 21, 25,000 100 10 Further issue of 50,000 0 50,00,000
1997 shares
Feb 13, Sub-division of
2002 ) ) shares from 5,00,000 0 50.00,000
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Date of
Allotment

Sep 27,
2002

Jan 6, 2006

Jan 31, 2006

May 12
2006

Feb 5, 2007

No. of
Equity
Shares
issued

15,00,000
10,00,000
4,50,00,000

1,20,00,000

67,00,000

Face Issue
value price
of per
Equity  Equity
Share  Share

Rs.100 per
share to Rs.10
per share
10 Issue of bonus
shares 3:1
Issue shares on
10 loright basis 1: 2
Issue of bonus
10 10 shares 15: 1
Issue of bonus
shares 1:4
Initial Public
Issue of
67,00,000
10 540 Equity Shares
at a premium of
Rs.530 per
share

10 10
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Cumulative
Share
Capital (No.
of shares)

20,00,000
30,00,000
4,80,00,000

6,00,00,000

6,67,00,000

Cumulative
Share

premium, (Rs.)

355,10,00,000

Cumulative

Share capital

(Rs.)

2,00,00,000
3,00,00,000
48,00,00,000

60,00,00,000

66,67,00,000
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Shareholding Pattern as on August 07, 2009

Category
code

(A)

(B)

(@)
(b)

B2
(@)
(b)

(€)
(c-)
(c-ii)
(c-iii)
(c-iv)

(c-v)

Total
number
of shares

Category of
Shareholder

Shareholding of
Promoter and
Promoter Group?
Indian
Individuals/ Hindu
Undivided Family
Bodies Corporate
Sub Total(A)(1)

59,400,000
6,00,000
6,00,00,000

Foreign
Sub Total(A)(2)

Total Shareholding
of Promoter and
Promoter Group

(A)= (A)D)+A))

Public

shareholding
Institutions
Financial Institutions
"Banks

Foreign Institutional
Investors

Sub-Total (B)(1)

6,00,00,000

56,987

1,47,325
2,04,312

Non-institutions
Bodies Corporate
Individuals

i. Individual
shareholders holding
nominal share
capitaluptoRs 1
lakh

ii. Individual
shareholders holding
nominal share
capital in excess of
Rs. 1 lakh.

Any Other (specify)
Trusts

Directors & their
Relatives

Non Resident
Indians

Overseas Corporate
Bodies

Clearing Members

33,09,419

9,73,956

19,15,547

91

145
1,51,958

2356
1,42,216

Ackruti

Total shareholding as a

Citymited - Placement Document

Shares Pledged or

percentage of total otherwise
number of shares encumbered
As a As a Number of As a
percent  percentage shares perce
age of  of (A+B+C) ntage
(A+B)*
89.06 89.06 2,97,48,0060.08
0.90 0.90
89.96 89.96 2,97,48,00019.58
0.00 0.00 0 0.00
89.96 89.96 2,97@80 49.58
0.09 0.09
0.22 0.22
0.31 0.31
4.96 4.96
1.46 1.46
2.87 2.87
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.23 0.23
0.00 0.00
0.21 0.21
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Category Category of Total Total shareholding asa  Shares Pledged or
code Shareholder number percentage of total otherwise
of shares number of shares encumbered
As a As a Number of As a
percent  percentage shares perce
age of  of (A+B+C) ntage
(A+B)*
Sub-Total (B)(2) 64,95,688 9.74 9.74
Total Public
(B) Shareholding (B)=
(B)(1)+(B)(2) 67,00,000 10.04 10.04
TOTAL (A)+(B) 6,67,00,000 100.00 100.00
© Shares held by
Custodians and
against which
Depository Receipts
have been issued 0 0.00 0.00
GRAND TOTAL
(A)+(B)+(C) 6,67,00,000 100.00 100.00

The shareholding pattern of persons belongingda#tiegory "Promoter and Promoter Group" is s¢hfiorthe

Table below as on August 07, 2009:

Sr. No. Name of the shareholder

Hemant M. Shah
Vyomesh M. Shah
Mabhipatray V. Shah HUF
Hemant M. Shah HUF
Vyomesh M. Shah HUF
Kunjal H. Shah
Falguni V. Shah
Rushank V. Shah
Khilen V. Shah
Kushal H. Shah
Lata M. Shah
Estate Of Late Mahipatray V.
Shah
Ukay Valves And Founders
Private Limited
Vishwajeet Consultancy
Private Limited

TOTAL

[
RPBoo~oobswNek

[EEN
N

[ERN
w

14

Total shares held Shares pledged or otherwise

encumbered
Number As a % of Number As a As a % of
of shares total percentage grand total
Share (A)+(B)+(C)
capital of sub-
clause (I)(a
5,800,000 8.70 - 0.00 0.00
7,540,000 11.30 1,720,000 22.81 .58 2
9,600,000 1439 6,872,000 71.58 10.30
6,892,000 10.33 6,625,000 6.1 9.93
4,100,000 6.15 4,075,000 99.3 6.11
5,308,000 7.96 3,750,000 70.65 256
6,360,000 9.54 4,907,000 77.15 36 7.
3,600,000 5.40 - 0.00 0.00
3,600,000 5.40 - 0.00 0.00
3,600,000 5.40 - 0.00 0.00
2,400,000 3.60 1,799,000 74.96 2.70
600,000 0.90 - 0.00 0.00
300,000 0.45 - 0.00 0.00
300,000 0.45 - 0.00 0.00
60,000,000 89.96 29,748,000 49.58 44.60

The shareholding pattern of persons belongingaa#tiegory "Public" and holding more than 1% ofttital
number of Equity Shares of our Company as on Augés2009 iNIL .
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List of Top 10 Shareholders in Public Category as Agust 07, 2009

Sr. No.

AlwINE

5
6.
7.
8
9

10.

Shareholders name N, G [E6 L0
Shares

Pacific Corporate Services Limited 4,62,526
DLF Retail Developers Limited 4,30,621
Pacific Corporate Services Ltd 4,11,806
International Synthfabs Private Limited 4,00,000
Ghisulal D Rathod jointly with Pradeep G Rathod
and Pankaj G Rathod 3,40,000
Pacific Corporate Services Ltd 3,01,986
Madhukar Sheth 1,90,000
Pradeep G Rathod jointly with Sangeeta P Rathod 1,55,000
Pankaj G Rathod jointly with Babita P Rathod 501000

IL&FS Investsmart Securities Ltd 1,45,165

Equity Shares Lock in Details as on August 07, 2009

% of total
shareholding
849
0.6456
0.6174
0.5997

0.5097

0.4528
0.2849
0.2324
0.2249

721

Pursuant to the Erstwhile SEBI Guidelines on ihpiablic offerings ("IPO"), the following sharespmstituting
20% of the total post issue paid up Equity Shaptabof the Company immediately after the IPO, leked
in for three years from the date of allotment @rgls in the IPO.

Details of the locked in shares are provided intéide below:

Sr. No.

1.
2.

Name of the shareholder Number of shares held
Mr. Hemant M. Shah 58,00,000
Mr. Vyomesh M. Shah 75,40,000
Total 13,340,000
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Details of Board of Directors

On the date of the Placement document, our Boandists of the following Directors:

Sr. No. Name of the Director Designation
1. Mr. Hemant M. Shah Executive Chairman
2. Mr. Vyomesh M. Shah Managing Director
3. Mr. Madhukar B. Chobe Whole-time Director
4, Mr. Hayagreeva Ravikumar Puranam Non-Executiveladdpendent Director
5. Mr. Devarayapuram Kaarthikeyan Non-Executive ardependent Director
6. Mr. Shailesh V. Haribhakti Non-Executive and Indegdent Director
7. Mr. Shailesh H. Bathiya Non-Executive and Indepanidirector

Brief profile of our Directors is as follows:

Mr. Hemant M. Shah, Executive Chairman: Mr. Hemant Shah, is a B.E. (Civil Engineering) frdtumbai
University. He has been associated as the ProranteExecutive Director of our Company since oueptmon.

He is responsible for the strategy and future ssirexpansion of our Company. He is an entrepremiir
over 30 years of experience in executing real esiagjects and civil engineering works. He hasipiadted in

the executive MBA program at Harvard University. El@rently oversees construction planning, exeautio
marketing and sales functions of our Company. Héhés founder and the global President of JITO (Jain
International Trade Organization), the apex bodyJaihs worldwide. He also serves as an ambassddor o
goodwill for the country and has been invited omesal Government of India trade delegations to twes
such as South Korea, Japan, and many others.

Mr. Vyomesh M. Shah, Managing Director: Mr. Vyomesh M. Shah, our Managing Director, is aa@éred
Accountant with over 25 years experience. He has lassociated as the Promoter and Executive direttur
Company since inception. He is responsible for sseing the core operational functions of the group
companies including legal, financial, approvals &t acquisition matters. He has been electedrasmber

of the Managing Committee of Builders Associatidnldia (BAI), as Vice President of the Maharashtra
Chamber of Housing Industry (MCHI), as Hon. Seanetaf the Confederation of Real Estate Developers
Associations of India (CREDAI) and other such goss. He has also been the President of the Slum
Rehabilitation Association (SRA) for over ten yeamsrecognition of our Company's grassroots effants
making this scheme successful for all strata ofetpc

Mr. Madhukar B. Chobe, Whole-time Director: Mr. Madhukar Chobe is a Whole-time Director of our
Company. After his college education, Mr. Chobevedrfor 7 years in the Indian Army from 1964 to 19vith
the Regiment of Artillery and 23 years in the Indiddministrative Services from 1971 to 1994. WhildAS,

he served the Government in various capacities #&lgnicipal Commissioner-Thane & Municipal
Commissioner-Nagpur, State Excise Commissioner jtiagl Collector and Controller of Slums. Aftekiag
voluntary retirement in 1994 as Secretary to thevdBament of Maharashtra, Public Heath Departmeat, h
served as a director in Jain Irrigation Systemsiteichand as Managing Director of the District CahtCo-
operative Bank.

Mr. Hayagreeva Ravikumar Puranam, Non-Executive andIndependent Director: Mr. Hayagreeva
Ravikumar Puranam is a Bachelor of Commerce antbBig holder in French from Osmania University. He i
also a certified associate of Indian Institute afnBers and an associate of Chartered Institute amké&s,
London. He is a fellow of Securities Investmentstimte U.K. He is commercial banker with over 3¥ass of
experience in financial service industry. He wathvidank of India for 22 years and was a key pathefteam
which set up and grew ICICI Bank, and is also tkévianaging Director and CEO of the National Comntypdi
& Derivative Exchange Limited. He has been awardettl medal in banking by the French Chamber of
Commerce, and is currently on the board of sewshar companies.
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Mr. Devarayapuram Kaarthikeyan, Non-Executive and Independent Director Mr. Devaravapuram
Kaarthikeyan is a Bachelor of Science (Chemistry Agriculture) and Bachelor of Law. He has heldesaV
positions and served in several capacities suclfi)aBistrict Superintendent of Police of major Dists of
Karnataka; (ii) Director of Police Academy, Mysoi€arnataka; (iii) Chief of Intelligence and Secyribf
Karnataka State; (iv) DIG of Railway Police; (v)rBétor of Trade Promotion in Australia; (vi) Diplatand
Head of Chancery and Consular Division of the Empadf India in Moscow (then USSR); (vii) Chief of
Investigation of former Prime Minister Rajiv Gandhssassination case; (viii) Director-General of t@dn
Reserve Police Force, the largest para-militarycdoin India; (ix) Director of the Central Bureau of
Investigation of India; and (x) Director-Generali® National Human Rights Commission.

He has been awarded Police Medal for MeritoriouwiBe and President's Medal for Distinguished Serdy
the Government of India, title "Delhi Ratna" by tAdl India Conference of Intellectuals, New Delltitle
"Atma Jyoti" by the International Vedic Conventidew Delhi.

Mr.Shailesh V. Haribhakti, Non-Executive and Independent Director. Mr. Shailesh V. Haribhakti is a
fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accanis of India. He is a committee member of Futées
Options segment of NSE and a member of SEBI Coreenitin disclosures and accounting standards. Hesserv
as a member of a managing committee of ASSOCHAM B1W@, corporate governance committee of
ASSOCHAM and CIl and is Chairman of Global Warmi@gmmittee of IMC. He has also served as the
Chairman of the Indian affiliate of the Certifiedn&ncial Planner Board of Standards — Financiahfifey
Standards Board, India, and is the only Indian mesmab the reconstituted Standards Advisory Couotihe
International Accounting Standards Board. He hanl@varded "the Best Non-Executive Independentciire
Award — 2007" by the Asian Centre for Corporate &aance and IMC.

Mr. Shailesh H. Bathiya, Non-Executiveand Independent Director. Mr. Shailesh H. Bathiya is a practicing
Chartered Accountant and a Bachelor of Law from Mhembai University. He is a senior partner in S. H
Bathiya and Associates. He has over 29 years oéreeqre in the fields of finance, auditing & acctog,
mergers & acquisitons, corporate law matters, ptd@ance, taxation and management consultancyhadse
been a member of Western India Regional CouncilR®@Jl of Institute of Chartered Accountants of Intba
the year 1992 to 1995 and has worked with many cittes of WIRC.

Directors' Remuneration

The details of remuneration paid / payable to ttecetive and non-executive directors for the finahgear
2008-09 are as under:

Remuneration of Executive Directors

Name of the Director Salary & Perquisites (in Rs.)
Mr. Hemant M Shah 1,85,76,000
Mr. Vyomesh M Shah 1,65,12,000
Mr. Madhukar B. Chobe 48,00,000

Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors

Name of the Director Sitting Fees Commission (Gross)
Mr. Shailesh H. Bathiya 2,00,000 4,50,000
Mr. Shailesh V. Haribhakti 2,20,000 4,50,000
Mr. Devarayapuram Kaarthikeyan 2,00,000 4,50,000
Mr. Hayagreeva Ravikumar Puranam 1,20,000 4,50,000
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Directors' Shareholding

The following table sets out the shareholdingshefDirectors in the Company as on August 07, 2009:

Name of the Shareholders Designation Number of Equity  Shareholding %
Shares
Mr. Hemant M. Shah Chairman 58,00,000 8.70
Mr. Vyomesh M. Shah Managing Director 75,40,000 301.
Mr. Madhukar B. Chobe Whole-time Director - -
Mr. Devarayapuram Kaarthikeyan Independent Director - -
Mr. Shailesh V. Haribhakti Independent Director 100 0.0001
Mr. Shailesh H. Bathiya Independent Director - -
Mr. Hayagreeva Ravikumar Puranam Independent @irect - -

Corporate Governance

We stand committed to good corporate governancansparency, disclosure and independent supervision
increase the value of its stakeholders. We haveptiechwith SEBI ICDR Regulations in respect of cangte
governance specially with respect to broad basieg Board, constituting the Committee&., Audit and
Compliance Committee, Shareholders/ Investors'vaniees Committee and Remuneration Committee. The
corporate governance framework is based on an tefeindependent Board, separation of the Board's
supervisory role from the executive managementthacconstitution of the Board Committees. The deiaifi
these Committees are as follows:

Audit and Compliance Committee

Pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, ¢herent constitution of the Audit and Compliance
Committee is as follows:

Name of the Director Nature of Directorship Designation in the Committee
Mr. Shailesh V. Haribhakti Independent Director {Timean

Mr. Shailesh H. Bathiya Independent Director Member

Mr. Hayagreeva Ravikumar Puranam Independent firec Member

Mr. Vyomesh M.Shah Managing Director Member

Brief terms of reference

0] Oversight of the Company's financial reporting g and the disclosure of its financial
information to ensure that the financial statemanéscorrect, sufficient and credible;

(i) Recommending to the Board, the appointment, reiappent and if required, the replacement or
removal of the Statutory Auditors, Internal Audg@nd payment of audit fees;

(iii) Approval of payment to Statutory Auditors, Interdalditors and payment of audit fees;

(iv) Approval of payment to Statutory Auditors for anther services rendered by the Statutory
Auditors;

v) Reviewing, with the management, the annual findrstetements before submission to the Board

for approval, with particular reference to:

= Matters required to be included in the DirectorsRonsibility Statement which forms part of
the Directors Report pursuant to Clause (2AA) dftea 217 of the Companies Act, 1956;

= Changes, if any, in the accounting policies andtgras and reasons for the same;

= Major accounting entries involving estimates basedthe exercise of judgment by the
management;

= Significant adjustments made out in the financialtesments arising out of audit findings;
Compliance with listing and other legal requirensamating to financial statements;

= Disclosure of any related party transactions and

= Qualifications in the draft audit report.

(vi) Reviewing with the management, the quarterly finanstatements before submission to the
Board for approval;
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(vii) Reviewing with the management, performance of safuand internal auditors, adequacy of the
internal control systems;

(viii) Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit functidrany, including the structure of the internal
audit department, staffing and seniority of theoidf heading the department, reporting structure
coverage and frequency of internal audit;

(ix) Discussion with internal auditors any significaimdings and follow-up thereon;

x) Discussion with statutory auditors before audit oattees, about the nature and scope of audit as
well as post-audit discussion to ascertain in apg af concern; and

(xi) Carrying out any other function as mentioned imepof reference of the Committee;

Shareholders/ Investors' Grievances Committee

Pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, ¢herent constitution of the Shareholders/ Investor
Grievances Committee is as follows:

Name of the Director Nature of Directorship Designation in the Committee
Mr. Shailesh H. Bathiya Independent Director Chainm
Mr. Hemant M. Shah Chairman Member
Mr. Vyomesh M.Shah Managing Director Member

Brief terms of reference

The Committee reviews the status of investors’vgiees on a periodical basis. All the complaintd/@n
grievances as received from the investors are pitgmgsponded to and satisfactorily replied.

The business usually transacted by the Committas fsllows:

0] Approval of share transfers and transmissions

(i) Taking note of the re-materialisation of shares

(i) Issue of share certificates on re-materialisation

(iv) Taking actions on routine complaints of sharehader

(v) To do any allied matter(s) out of and incidentathitese functions and such other acts assigned by
the Board.

Remuneration Committee

Pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement,ciireent constitution of the Remuneration Commiiteas
follows:

Name of the Director Nature of Directorship Designation in the Committee
Mr. Shailesh V. Haribhakti Independent Director ahman
Mr. Hayagreeva Ravikumar Puranam Independent Director embér
Mr. Devarayapuram Kaarthikeyan Independent Director Member

Brief terms of reference

The Committee evaluates, recommends and approeesvirall compensation policy, service agreememts a
other employment conditions of the Managing and Whbdime Directors to bring about objectivity in
determining the remuneration package while strikinbalance between the interest of the companyttend
shareholders. The Remuneration Committee takesattount experience, qualification and prevailimduistry
practices before giving its recommendation to tloar. On recommendation of the Remuneration Coramitt
the Board decides the quantum of annual incrermramdgperformance incentives to be paid to the Mamgpgnd
the Wholetime Directors, subject to approval ofrehalders in terms of provisions of the Companies Aead
with Schedule XllI thereof. The Committee aims tosisarewarding, on the basis of performance, revicarea
periodical basis.
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In addition to the aforesaid, we have also cortstita QIP Issue Committee, whose details are sl
QIP Issue Committee

The current constitution of the QIP Issue Committegs follows:

Name of the Director Nature of Directorship Designation in the Committee
Mr. Hayagreeva Ravikumar Puranam Independent irec Chairman

Mr. Shailesh H. Bathiya Independent Director Member

Mr. Vyomesh M. Shah Managing Director Member

Brief terms of reference

0] to decide on the timing, pricing, the number ofiggahares to be issued and allotted, the basis of
allocation and allotment and all other terms andd@mns of the Issue and to accept any
amendments, modifications, variations or alteraithrereto;

(ii) approving the offer document and filing the saméhvény regulatory/appropriate authority or
person as may be required;
(iii) to affix the common seal of the Company on any ements/documents as may be required to be

executed in connection with the proposed issughénpresence of any Director of the Company
and persons authorized who shall countersign time $a token thereof;

(iv) arranging the delivery and execution of all cortsaagreements and all other documents, deeds
and instruments as may be required or desirabtmmmection with the issue of equity shares by
the Company;

(v) opening such bank accounts and demat accountsyaBenwaquired for the transaction;

(vi) to do all such acts, deeds, matters and thingseaadute all such other documents, declarations,
undertakings, affidavits, certificates, consentd anthorities and pay all such fees, as it maitsin
absolute discretion, deem necessary or desirablbddgurpose of the transactions;

(vii) to make all such necessary applications with the@piate authorities and make the necessary
regulatory filings in this regard;

(viii) to enter into any arrangement/agreements for urritergy marketing, listing of shares,
appointment of lead managers, investment bankeeschrant bankers, underwriters, guarantors,
financial and/or legal advisors, depositories, a@distns, registrars, principal
paying/transfer/conversion agents, listing agetrtsstees and other advisors, professionals and
intermediaries to the extent considered necessarthé purpose and to negotiate and finalise the
terms and conditions (including the payment of feesnmission, brokerage and the like and out-
of-pocket expenses);

(ix) to make applications for listing of the equity srarof the Company on one or more Stock
Exchanges and to execute and submit or arrangesuhmission of the listing agreements or
equivalent documentations to the concerned stockanges; and

x) to authorize or delegate all or any of the powereimabove conferred to any one or more persons,
to the extent necessary;
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Details of Key Managerial Personnel

Brief profiles of our key managerial personnel éstthan our Executive Directors) are as follows:

Name and

Designation
Col. Rajbir Singh
Malik, Chief
Operating Officer

Mr. Bharat Mody
Chief Financial
Officer

Mrs. Charuta
Malshe,

Chief — Human
Resources

Mr. Chetan Mody,

Profile

Col. Rajbir Singh Malik (Retd.) is the Chief Openat Officer at our Company since
June 1, 2008. He served in Indian Army for morentBd4 years and joined our Company
in 2001. He holds a B.E. (Civil) from the Militangineering College and has over 41
years of professional experience in the field afjget management, project execution
and administration of construction projects bothtlie Government and the private
sector. Col. (Retd.) Malik is well experienced inamaging a wide variety of
infrastructure projects, ranging from laying outaof air field to administration of an air
force station as well as development of projectcammercial, residential and SEZ
segments. Col. Malik (Retd.) presently heads thgineering functions encompassing
planning, purchasing & contracting, billing, buitdi management systems and business
development functions at our Company.

Mr.Bharat Mody is the Chief Financial Officer ofro@ompany. He is with our Company
since July 1, 2008 and heads the overall finaneetion. He holds a Bachelor of
Commerce degree from Mumbai University. He is ar@mad Accountant and has more
than 25 years of professional experience in thasaoé Finance, Tax, Advisory, Portfolio
Management etc. Prior to joining our Company, MhaBat Mody was associated with
SKP Crossborder Consulting Private Limited as aacative director/partner for 11
years. Before that he served in Nuclear SecurRiggate Limited as an Assistant Vice
President and was also a partner at Kapadia anuciasss for 11 years.

Mrs. Charuta Malshe is Chief- Human Resources ofGampany and is associated with
our Company since November 2005. She holds a Mastérts and a Diploma in
Computer Management (DCM) from Mumbai Universitydahas over 35 years of
experience in the areas of human resource and &dration. She has held various
positions at ICICI Limited and has served as aulextat various educational institutions
such as SNDT Polytechnic and Somaiya Engineerinte@a She worked for Citygold
as Chief Administrative Officer for 4 years. Shegently looks after human resources
acquisition, management, training and developmérdua Company. She was also a
Management Representative for ISO 9001-2000 relgteadity management systems
requirements.

Mr. Chetan Mody joined our Company in May 2006. idea commerce graduate and

Company Secretary fellow member of the Institute of Company Secretmmf India and holds a degree in

Mr. Kamal Matalia,

Chief Accounts &
Taxation

Mr. Mayur Shah,

Chief Sales Officer

Law. He has 33 years of post qualification expexéeim the field of secretarial, legal and
general administration. Prior to joining our Compahe has worked with Raymond
Limited and Hindustan Oil Exploration Company Liedt He looks after secretarial
matters and regulatory compliances of our Company.

Mr. Kamal Matalia is associated with our Compangcei November 2005, and is
currently our Chief Accounts & Taxation. He is aatiered Accountant and a member of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India &ad over 22 years of experience in
auditing and taxation. Prior to joining our Compahg has served as the proprietor of
Kamal Matalia & Company. Mr. Kamal Matalia lookdeafinternal audit, co-ordination
with statutory auditors, finalization of accounpsgparation of income tax returns and
follow up with the income tax department.

Mr. Mayur Shah is associated with our Company siNoeember, 2005. He holds an
MBA degree from Newport University, Mumbai and fa&r 14 years of experience in
marketing and sales. He also holds a BE degree Rone University. Prior to joining
our Company Mr. Mayur Shah has worked in variouganizations such as Indian
Petrochemical Corporation Limited and Aarti Organiémited. As Chief Sales Officer,
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Name and
Designation

Mr. Rajendra Shah,
Chief — Budget &
MIS

Mr. V. N.
Deshmukh, Chief
Security Officer
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Profile
Mr. Mayur Shah is responsible for marketing an@salf projects at our Company.

Mr. Rajendra Shah is associated with our CompamgesNovember 2005. He is a fellow

member of the Institute of Chartered Accountantkdfa and is an associate member of
Institute of Cost & Works Accountants of India. Has over 15 years of experience in
financial management in the areas of cash flow mement, treasury and project

funding. He has worked in various organization® IRal-Peugot Limited and Parikh,

Shah, Desai and Associates. Mr. Rajendra Shah lafdés the financial structure of our

Company, liaises with banks, financial institutiarsd also handles budget & MIS of our
Company.

Mr. V.N. Deshmukh has been associated with our Gomsince September 2007. He
has an MA (English, American Literature) from Vidbha Institute, Amravati. He has
served for over 30 years in the Indian Police ®®sjiand has last retired as the Director
General of Police, Maharashtra. He was also theCExirman of Maharashtra Public
Service Commission. As Chief Security Officer, MtN. Deshmukh is responsible for
the security for all the sites of our Company.

Policy on Disclosures and Internal Procedure for Revention of Insider Trading

Regulation 12 (1) of the SEBI (Prohibition of InsidTrading) Regulations, 1992 applies to us and our
employees, and requires us to implement a codet@fiial procedures and conduct for the preventiansider
trading. We have already implemented an interndeaaf conduct in line with the SEBI (Prohibition lofsider
Trading) Regulations, 1992 in this regard.

Interest of Directors

The Directors of our Company do not have any isteexcept; (i) to the extent of the compensation as
mentioned above (ii) the shares held by them, thirec indirectly or their relatives or through és in which
they are interested and (iii) the agreements ettete by them or by their relatives/entities inieththey may

be interested with our Company pursuant to whiehgaiyments have been provided for, as disclosedruhd
section"Financial Statementstinder the headintRelated Party Transactions".

All our Directors may be deemed to be interestetthéncontracts, agreements/arrangements entecedritd be
entered into by our Company or other entity witly aampany in which they hold directorships or theyheir
relatives hold significant shareholding or benatfignterest any partnership firm in which they loeit relatives
are partners as declared in their respective dd@as.

ESOPs

At present, our Company does not have any stodkroptheme for its employees or the management.
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Organisation Structure

The organisation structure in our Company is sebelow:

rganisation ar

CMD

Getting newer business & Providing Directions

Technical Business Design & Corporate
(UG Devpt. ent Devpt.nt

Implementation of directions

ot ]| || ] [
=

= =
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REGULATIONS AND POLICIES

The following description is a summary of the rakdvregulations and policies as prescribed by the
Government. The information detailed in this chaptas been obtained from the various legislatidmet tare
available in the public domain. The regulations eet below are not exhaustive, and are only intente
provide general information to the investors anck areither designed nor intended to be a substitate
professional legal advice. In this section, unl#ss context requires otherwise, any reference to@ampany
refers to our Company and its Subsidiaries. Noaactr omission should be taken or contemplated dase
the contents below without independent verificatidth each prospective investors’ legal advisonsd any
prospective investor who does without such indegetnderification and based on the contents herdovee
would do so at his/her/its sole risk and withoutaerse to our Company or the GC-BRLM and Co-Manager
any other person or entity whatsoever.

We are engaged in the business of real estatea@aeht, slum rehabilitation and land developmeimcé&our
business involves the acquisition of land and ldedelopment rights, we are governed by a numbeenfral
and state legislation regulating substantive awdqutural aspects of the acquisition of, and trarsfféand. For
the purposes of executing our projects, we mayehaired to obtain licenses and approvals dependgog the
prevailing laws and regulations applicable in tledevant state and/or local governing bodies suchhas
Municipal Corporation of Greater Mumbai, Slum Reilitgiion Authorities, the Chief Fire Officer, the
Environmental Department, the City Survey Departnagrd the Collector.

Due to our Company's involvement in a SEZ, our Canypis subject to and governed by the regulationts a
policies concerning SEZs and land acquisition. Tolowing is an overview of the important laws and
regulations which are relevant to our Company'sriass of real estate development.

The following overview also briefly encompassesdaand regulations applicable to foreign investnierthe
real estate sector, including investments by fardigstitutional investors, as well as laws and tatjons
applicable to borrowings by real estate companies.

CENTRAL LAWS
The Urban Land (Ceiling and Regulation) Act, 1976

The Urban Land (Ceiling and Regulation) Act, 197ésgribes the ceiling on acquisition of vacant ortzand

by a single entity. It has however been repealesoime States by the Urban Land (Ceiling and Reigulat
Repeal Act, 1999 including in the States of Punjdbryana, Uttar Pradesh, Gujarat, Karnataka, Madhya
Pradesh, Rajasthan, Orissa and the Union Terrgtafiéndia. The said enactment continues to bercef in the
States of Andhra Pradesh, Assam, Bihar, MaharaahttaVest Bengal.

The Land Acquisition Act, 1894

Land holdings are subject to the Land Acquisitiozt,AA894 which provides for the compulsory acqigsitof
land by the Central Government or appropriate S@twernment for public purposes, including planned
development and town and rural planning. Howewey, @erson having an interest in such land hasigté to
object to such compulsory acquisition and has thbt to compensation. Some States have their owd la
acquisition statutes and our Company has to abydstate legislations in those States in which idiects its
business.

The Transfer of Property Act, 1882

The transfer of property, including immovable pnapebetween living persons (as opposed to thesfearof
property by the operation of law), is governed Iy Transfer of Property Act, 1882. The TransfePafperty
Act, 1882 establishes the general principles mdato the transfer of property, including amongeotthings,
identifying the categories of property that areaddp of being transferred, the persons competetrattsfer
property, the validity of restrictions and condittoimposed on the transfer and the creation ofirngent and
vested interest in the property.
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The Indian Stamp Act, 1899

Stamp duty must be paid on all instruments spetifieder the Indian Stamp Act, 1899 at the ratesifpé in

the Schedules to the Indian Stamp Act, 1899. Tteeohstamp duty varies from State to State. Thdlicgble
rates for stamp duty on the instruments chargeatfite duty are prescribed by State legislation. runsients
chargeable to duty under the Indian Stamp Act, 189&ch are not duly stamped are incapable of being
admitted in a court of law as evidence of the taation contained therein. The Indian Stamp Act,91880
provides for impounding of instruments which aré sufficiently stamped or not stamped at all.

The Registration Act, 1908

The Registration Act, 1908 has been enacted wighathject of providing public notice of the executiof
documents affectingnter alia, transfer of interest in immoveable property. Thepose of the Registration
Act, 1908 is the conservation of evidence, ass@sntitle, and publication of documents and prewanof
fraud. It details the formalities for registeringaliments. Section 17 of the Registration Act, 18Rhtifies
documents for which registration is compulsory @ndludes, among other things, any non-testamentary
instrument which purports or operates to createlade, assign, limit or extinguish, whether in emasor in
future, any right, title or interest, whether vektar contingent, in immovable property of the vabfeone
hundred rupees or more and a lease of immovableeprofor any term exceeding one year or reserang
yearly rent. A document will not affect the progecomprised in it, nor be treated as evidence of an
transaction affecting such property (except asendd of a contract in a suit for specific perforecamnr as
evidence of part performance under the TransfeProperty Act, 1882 or as collateral), unless it bagn
registered.

The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986

The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986 provides tioe protection and improvement of the environmaand

for matters connected there with, including withbatitation the standards of quality of air, watar soil for

various areas and purposes, the maximum allowatite af concentration of various environmental ptahts,
procedure for handling of hazardous substancegrtitebition and restrictions on the location dfliistries and
the carrying on of processes and operation in rdiffeareas.

The Easements Act, 1882

The law relating to easements is governed by theefants Act, 1882. The right of easement is derivad

the ownership of property and has been definedruhgeEasements Act, 1882 to mean a right whiclotineer

or occupier of land possesses for the beneficifdyement of that land and which permits him to dalan
continue to do something or to prevent and contiougrevent something being done, in or upon, gpeet of
certain other land not his own. Under this law asesnent may be acquired by the owner of immovable
property, i.e. the dominant owner, or on his behglthe person in possession of the property. @uéght may
also arise out of necessity or by virtue of a lanedtom.

The Special Economic Zone, Act, 2005 and the Spelcieconomic Zones Rules, 2006

SEZs are regulated and governed by the SEZ Act. SBE Act has been enacted for the establishment,
development and management of the SEZs for the gitomof exports.

SEZs are specifically delineated duty free encladesmed to be foreign territories for purposes rafidn

custom controls, duties and tariffs. There areghmain types of SEZs: integrated SEZs, which mangist of a
number of industries; services SEZs, which may atgeacross a range of defined services; and ssptmific
SEZs, which focus on one particular industry liG®l has stated its objective behind setting up BZS as
creation of an engine for economic growth suppoligdjuality infrastructure complemented by an ative

fiscal package, both at the Central and the Seatel,| with the minimum possible regulations. Theeintives
and facilities offered to the units in SEZs foratting investments into the SEZs, including foreiigvestment
include:

= Duty free import/domestic procurement of goodsdievelopment, operation and maintenance of SEZ.units
= 100% Income Tax exemption on export income for $B&s under Section 10AA of the | T Act, for first
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years, 50% for the next 5 years thereafter and 808te ploughed back export profit for next 5 years
= Exemption from minimum alternate tax under secfi@6JB of thelT Act.
= External commercial borrowing by SEZ units up t&1$.500 million in a year.
= Exemption from central sales tax.
= Exemption from service tax.
»= Single window clearance for Central and State lepgrovals.
= Exemption from State sales tax and other leviesxéended by the respective State Governments.

The SEZ Rules, 2006 have been enacted to effegtivgdlement the provisions of the SEZ Act. The SRidles
2006 provide for a simplified procedure for a senglindow clearance from Central and State Goveritsrifen
setting up of SEZs and a 'unit' in a SEZ. The SEES 2006 also prescribe the procedure for theatipe and
maintenance of a SEZ, for setting up and condudiirginess therein.

The SEZ Rules were recently amended by the SpEc@mhomic Zones (Amendment) Rules, 2009. Pursuant to
the amendment, the government has allowed estaigishof multi product special economic zone, whretbe
units may be set up for manufacture of goods fglimtwo or more sectors or rendering of serviahbnig in

two or more sectors or any combination thereofudirig trading and warehousing.

Restrictions on Transfer

Under the SEZ Rules, 2006, the developer/ Co-deeels required to hold a minimum equity stake @¥2in
an entity (i.e. special purpose vehicle or sepaeatéy, being a company incorporated under the @ores
Act) proposing to create business, residentiakoraational facilities in an SEZ.

LAWS FOR CLASSIFICATION OF LAND USER

Usually, land is broadly classified under one orrenoategories, such as agricultural or non — aljuial
(residential, commercial and industrial). Land sified under a specified category is permittedeaibed only
for such specified purpose. Where the land is oally classified as agricultural land, in orderuse the land
for any other purpose, the classification of thedlé is required to be converted into residentainmercial or
industrial purpose, by making an application torgdevant municipal or town and country planninghaities.
In addition, some State governments in India hayeoised various restrictions, which vary from StatState,
on the transfer of property within such States.

Development of Agricultural Land

The acquisition of land is regulated by State legfdrm laws which prescribe limits up to which artiy may

acquire agricultural land. Any transfer of land efhresults in the aggregate land holdings of tligier in the

State to exceed this ceiling is void, and the sigdind is deemed, from the date of the transbehatve been
vested in the State government free of all encundas

While granting licences for development of townshifhe authorities generally levy proportional depenent
charges for the provision of services such as tagiown of main lines, drainage, sewerage, wateplgugnd
electricity, where the authority is carrying ouethame. Such licences require approvals of laytartspfor
development and building plans for constructiorivi@s.

LAND USE PLANNING

Land use planning and its regulation, including fibrenulation of regulations for building construani form a
vital part of the urban planning process. Theresaneral authorities having jurisdiction to regelénd use
planning and real estate development activitiesaich Indian State.

Various enactments, rules and regulations have besde by the Government, concerned State goversment
and other authorised agencies and bodies sucteaditfistry of Urban Development, State Land Develept
and/or Planning Boards, local municipal or villagethorities, which deal with the acquisition, owstep,
possession, development, zoning, planning of lamdl @eal estate. All relevant applicable laws, rutesl
regulations have to be taken into consideratioratvy person or entity proposing to enter into argl estate
development or construction activity in this sed¢toindia.
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Building Consents

Each State and city has its own set of laws whimyegn planned development and rules for construdgach
as floor area ratio "FAR" or floor space index "F8mits). The various authorities that govern llirlg
activities in States are the Town and Country Rlegepartment ("“TCPD"), municipal corporations ahd
Urban Arts Commission. Any application for undertekany construction or development activity hadéo
made to the TCPD, which is a State level departreagiaged in the physical planning of urban cerdres
rural areas in the State.

The municipal authorities regulate building devehegmt and construction norms. For example, builgitegns
are required to be approved by the relevant mualiciuthority. The Urban Arts Commission advises the
relevant State Government in the matter of presgrdeveloping and maintaining the aesthetic guafiturban
and environmental design in some States and atsadas advice and guidance to any local body wagpect

to building or engineering operations or any depglent proposal which affects or is likely to afféw skyline

or the aesthetic quality of the surroundings or pulglic amenity provided therein. Under certaint&taws, the
local body, before it accords its approval for Oty operations, engineering operations or devetym
proposals, is obliged to refer all such operatitmshe Urban Arts Commission and seek its apprémathe
project.

Besides the above, certain approvals and consenysatso be required from various other departmesoish as
the Fire Department, the Airport Authority of Indiad the Archaeological Survey of India.

Laws specific to the state of Maharashtra

The Maharashtra Ownership of Flats (Regulation of he Promotion of Construction, Sale, Management
and Transfer) Act, 1963

The Maharashtra Ownership of Flats (Regulationhef Promotion of Construction, Sale, Management and
Transfer) Act, 1963 ("MOF Act") applies throughdhbe State of Maharashtra. The provisions of the M@F
apply to promoters / developers who intend to aoista block or building of flats on ownership sasThe
MOF Act prescribes general liabilities of promotarsl developers. Under the rules framed under tB& Mct,

a model form of agreement to be entered into betweemoters / developers and purchasers of fladshean
prescribed. Under the MOF Act, the promoter / depet is required to enter into a written Agreenfentsale

of flat with each purchaser and the agreement @mf@escribed particulars with relevant copiesl@éuments
and these agreements are compulsorily required tedistered.

Pursuant to an amendment dated May 12, 2008 tM@E Act, the flats are eligible to be sold on thasis of
carpet area only. The said carpet area includesatd@ of balcony of such flat. However, the promotere
allowed to separately charge for the common areddagilities in proportion to the carpet areatd flat.

Maharashtra Slum Areas (Improvement, Clearance andRedevelopment) Act, 1971
The Maharashtra Slum Areas (Improvement, ClearanceRedevelopment) Act, 1971 ("MSA Act") provides

for and governs the making of better provisionsifioprovement and clearance of slum areas in thee Siad
their redevelopment and for the protection of ogergpfrom eviction and distress warrants.

Maharashtra Rent Control Act, 1999

The Maharashtra Rent Control Act, 1999 ("MRC Adigs been enacted to unify, consolidate and amend th
law relating to control of rent and repairs of e@rtpremises and of eviction in Maharashtra anefmouraging
the construction of new houses by assuring a &irn on the investment by landlords and to provatethe
matters connected with the purposes aforesaid.

Maharashtra Tax on Buildings (with Larger Residential Premises) Act, 1979

The Maharashtra Tax on Buildings (with Larger Restthl Premises) Act, 1979 has been enacted tadgaov

for levy of tax on buildings in corporation areasthe State of Maharashtra, which contain largsidemntial
premises.
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The Bombay Stamp Act, 1958

As stated above, the applicable rates for stampy dut various instruments, including those relatiog
conveyance, are prescribed by state legislatioe. Stamp duty rates as applicable in Maharashtra baen
prescribed by the Bombay Stamp Act, 1958 ("BSA®t &t below are some of the salient rates of stdutp
in the context of the Company’s operations:

= Development Agreement: under the BSA, stamp dutheatate of 3 to 5 per cent, of the market vaase,
per Article 25 of the Schedule | to the BSA, is glalg.

= Power of Attorney: if stamp duty is paid, as abavethe development agreement, then stamp dutybfmya
is Rs. 200.

= Agreement with flat owners: Concessional stamp dsifyrovided for residential units and stamp duty o
commercial units at the rate of 5%.

= |n case of investments executed for the rehabditabf slum dwellers, the Government of Maharashas,
in exercise of its powers under section 9 of th& B®duced the stamp duty to Rs. 100 only.

The Maharashtra Value Added Tax Act, 2002

The Maharashtra Value Added Tax Act, 2002 pressrdggtain requirements in relation to the payménttue
added tax in Maharashtra.

The Maharashtra Cooperative Societies Act, 1960

The Maharashtra Cooperative Societies Act, 1960beesn enacted with a view to providing for the dide
development of cooperative movement in the StatMaarashtra in accordance with the relevant Divect
Principles of State Policy enunciated in the Caastin of India.

Bombay Municipal Corporation Act, 1888

The Bombay Municipal Corporation Act, 1888 has beracted to regulate the municipal administratibthe
city of Bombay (now Mumbai) and to secure the ddeiaistration of municipal funds.

The Maharashtra Housing and Area Development Act, 976

The Maharashtra Housing and Area Development AZ6lhas been enacted for giving effect to the padic
the State towards securing the principle specifidtie Constitution of India and the executionta# proposals,
plans or projects therefore and acquisition theeefof the lands and buildings and transferring ldreds,
buildings or tenements therein to the needy persmmkscooperative societies of occupiers of suchkdaor
buildings.

The Maharashtra Apartment Ownership Act, 1970

The Maharashtra Apartment Ownership Act, 1970 leenkenacted to provide for ownership of an indialdu
apartment in a building and to make such apartrneritable and transferable property.

The Building and other Construction Workers (Regulaion of Employment and Conditions of Service)
Act, 1996

The Building and other Construction Workers (Regiataof Employment and Conditions of Service) At996
has been enacted to regulate the employment anditioms of service of building and other constranti
workers and to provide for their safety, health aradfare measures and for other matters connebgrewith
or incidental thereto.
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Slum Rehabilitation Scheme of the Government of Madrashtra

The Government of Maharashtra ("GoM") launched $fiem Rehabilitation Scheme in 1995 ("Scheme") by
introducing amendments to the Development Contrefjufations for Greater Bombay, 1991 ("DCR"). The
Scheme was made effective from December 25, 19%&. {rovisions of the Scheme are contained in
Regulation 33(10) and Appendix IV of the DCR. Undee Maharashtra Regional and Town Planning Act,
1966 ("MRTPA") the SRA, appointed under section 8Athe Maharashtra Slum Areas (Improvement and
Redevelopment) Act, 1971, serves as a planningodtitifor all slum areas in Greater Mumbai excdpise
located in the Maharashtra Industrial DevelopmentpGration ("MIDC") area and to facilitate the slum
rehabilitation scheme. The powers, duties and fanstof the SRA are to survey and formulate scheafies
rehabilitation of slum areas and to ensure theplé@mentation.

Working of the Slum Rehabilitation Scheme

= All slum dwellers whose names appear in the elattall of January 1, 1995 or prior electoral rafid
who are presently residing in huts are eligibleltam free tenement under the rehabilitation scheme

= At least 70% of the eligible hutment dwellers islam or pavement in a viable stretch at one plaaostm
agree to join the rehabilitation scheme and congetter to form a co-operative housing society of al
eligible hutment dwellers through a resolutionttatteffect.

= The decision to search a competent developer t@aset promoter has to be taken by the proposed co-
operative housing society of slum-dwellers. Theiegcitself or the developer can take up slum
rehabilitation scheme as a promoter.

= An individual agreement must be entered into betwbe developer and the hutment dweller jointlyhwit
his/her spouse for every structure.

= After obtaining the requisite level of consent loé tslum dwellers, the Developer submits a detalath
rehabilitation proposal to the SRA along with vasodocuments such as building plan, layout plan, PR
card, for approval.

*» The SRA scrutinizes the proposal and sanctionseiabilitation scheme.

» The SRA approves the scheme within a time limB@fdays. In the event of a failure by the SRA tesdp
the approval shall be deemed to have been giverjdad the project is in accordance with the priovis
of the Scheme.

= The SRA issues a letter of intent to the Develam@rveying the approval to the scheme, approvahéo t
layout, building wise plan approval (I.O.A. or Im@tion of Approval) and C.C. (Commencement
Certificate) first in relation to the rehabilitaiccomponent and thereafter in relation to the pridpeate
free sale component.

= The Developer proceeds with the implementatiornefdcheme.

= Providing temporary transit accommodation to therstwellers, during the construction and rehahibta
of free-sale tenements, is the responsibility efgghomoter.

= Eligible hutment dwellers are allotted in excharfigetheir structure, free of cost, a residentialeiment
having a carpet area of 269 sq.ft. In respectigitdéé commercial tenements, equivalent area wtteldl to
the dweller, as was occupied prior to the develagme

= The Developer will re-house the slum dweller astperlist certified by SRA allotting tenements asttbp
area free of cost.

= The Developer should register the society of slumltbrs to be re-housed under the Slum Rehabditati
Scheme after completion of the project.

= The rehabilitation tenements cannot be sold/leassiijned/transferred in any manner for 10 years the
date of taking over possession except to legasheithout the prior permission of SPA.

= SRA leases part of the land on which the rehabditacomponent of the scheme is constructed ihjtfak
30 years to be renewed for a further period of 8@y at a nominal lease rent of Rs.1,001 for 4s@Q@re
mtrs of land to the society of slum dwellers. Tteame conditions apply to land under the free sale
component and the land shall be leased directthgasociety/association of the purchasers on #e dale
components pending which it shall be leased taéweloper.

»= In consideration of the Developer providing tenetadn the slum dwellers free of cost, the Develdper
permitted to construct and sell separate structimeshe plot. The ratio between the rehabilitation
component and the sale component varies from 1111t83, depending upon the location of the project

= Prior to applying for an occupation certificate the rehabilitation building, the Developer had&posit
with the SRA / SPA, an amount of Rs. 20,000 perbdhation tenement for meeting the maintenance
costs.
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= The Developer is also required to pay infrastruetdevelopment charges of Rs. 840 per square meter
(depending upon the location of the project) far Built-up area over and above the normally peribliss
FSI for the Rehabilitation and free Sale tenements.

= FSI to be sanctioned for a slum rehabilitation @cojmay exceed 2.5, but the maximum FSI that can be
utilized on any slum site for a project cannot ext2.5. The difference between the sanctioned higSé
and 2.5, if any, is made available in the form o&rkferable Development Rights (“TDR"). If the full
amount of the relevant FSI cannot be used on thee sate due to constraints such as height restnisti
uneconomical site conditions, etc., TDR may bevedid as necessary even without consuming FSI upto 2.
on the same site, or to the north of the site.

= The SRA on being satisfied that it is necessargd®so, or when directed by the State governmeial] sh
denotify a slum rehabilitation area.

Slum Protection Programme

The Government of Maharashtra has formulated thesihg policy for the State of Maharashtra with the
objective of providing affordable houses for poarrental basis. Under the said Slum Prevention raroge,
the Government of Maharashtra appointed MMRDA apr@ject implementing agency to implement the
projects with the objective of increasing the hagsktock by constructing or procuring maximum renta
housing units in Mumbai Metropolitan Region, andrtake available housing units of 160 sq. ft. cagpea at a
reasonable rent.

Consequently, pursuant to an amendment dated Auguad08, regulation 33(23A) and regulation 33(23B)
were inserted in the DCR, wherein directions imtieh to construction of rental houses on unencuetbi&nd
were issued. In terms of the said regulationscforstruction of rental houses on unencumbered tgnidind
owner or any other agency approved by MMRDA witthie limits of suburbs & extended suburbs of greater
Mumbai, the FSI shall be 3.00. Additionally, fornstruction of rental houses on unencumbered layds b
MMRDA on land vested with them within the limits sfiburbs & extended suburbs of the FSI shall beadd
out of 4.0 FSI, 25% of 4.0 FSI shall be allowed émmmercial use which can be sold in open market to
subsidize the component of rental housing. The latigns also provide for eligibility for allottingental
houses, building details and other requirements.

Development Control Regulations for Greater Mumbai,1991 (Development Control Regulations)

The Development Control Regulations for Greater Maim 1991 (Development Control Regulations)
("Development Control Regulations") were formulatgtder the Maharashtra Regional Town Planning Act,
1966. The Development Control Regulations appliyuitding activity and development work in areas emthe
entire jurisdiction of the Municipal Corporation Gfeater Mumbai.

The Development Control Regulations provides foak@rnative to acquisition under the Land AcquositAct

by way of Transfer of Development Rights (TDRs).eTpermissible floor space index (FSI) defines the
development rights of every parcel of land in Muinlifaa particular parcel of land is designated éopublic
purpose, the land owner has an option of acceptingetary compensation under the Land Acquisitioh, Ac
1894 or accept TDRs which can be sold in the maftetuse elsewhere in Mumbai. Regulation 34 the
Development Control Regulations states that inagertircumstances, the development potential ofo& qf
land may be separated from the land itself and bsaynade available to the owner of the land in trenfof
TDRs. Regulation 33 (10) of the Development Reduat provides that additional floor space index wé
allowed to owners/developers of land on which slamslocated where such owners/developers are nge:pa
provide 269 square feet dwelling units free of dosthe slum dwellers. The remainder of total depeient
rights can be used as TDR. The Development CoRegllations also set out standards for buildinggteand
construction, provision of services like water dyppsewerage site drainage, access roads, eleyvdim@s
fighting etc.

-135 -



Pzl Ackruti Citymited - Placement Document

Development Control Regulations for Mumbai Metropoitan Region, 1999

The Development Control Regulations for Mumbai Mptlitan Region, 1999 ("Development Control
Regulations for MMR") apply to the development afydand situated within the Mumbai Metropolitan Reg
as defined in the Mumbai Metropolitan Region Depetent Authority Act, 1974. Regulation 15.3.1 statest

no person can carry out any development (excepsetlstated in proviso to section 43 of the Maharasht
Regional Town Planning Act, 1966) without obtainipgrmission from the Planning Authority and other
relevant authorities including Zilla Parishads #mg Pollution Control Board.

The Development Control Regulations for MMR havemedecated the region into various zones for
development purposes including urbanisable zomekistrial zone, recreation and tourism developrzent,
green zones and forest zone. Regulation 15.3.Bssthat development of land in these zones (ot In
specified urbanisable zone and industrial zonell sl be permitted unless the owner undertakgw dwide at
his own cost physical and social infrastructurailites including roads, water supply, sewage wadisposal
systems, electricity, play grounds etc. as wekag other facilities that the Planning Authoritylivdetermine.
Regulation 15.3.7 provides that all developmentdciwhare existing prior to the Development Control
Regulations for MMR, which are authorised under kt&harashtra Regional Town Planning Act, 1966 and
Maharashtra Land Revenue Code, 1966 but whichatranrconformity with the use provisions of the Rewl
Plan or these Regulation will continue as thougly tare in the conforming zone and will be allowedsonable
expansion within existing land area and within F8lts prescribed by these Regulations.

Building Consents

Each state and city has its own set of laws, whimvern planned development and rules for constmcsuch
as floor area ratio or floor space index limitsheTvarious authorities that govern building acigtin states are
the town planning authority, municipal corporatioasd the Urban Arts Commission. Any application for
undertaking any construction or development agtikiis to be made to the town planning authorityiclvis a
state level department engaged in the physicahplgrof urban centres and rural areas in the state.

The municipal authorities regulate building devehemt and construction norms. For example, builgitegns
are required to be approved by the relevant mualiciuthority. The Urban Arts Commission advises the
relevant State Government in the matter of presgrdeveloping and maintaining the aesthetic guafiturban
and environmental design in some states and atsodes advice and guidance to any local body wegpect

to building or engineering operations or any depglent proposal which affects or is likely to affdw skyline

or the aesthetic quality of the surroundings or pulglic amenity provided therein.

Under certain State laws, the local body, beforacitords its approval for building operations, eegring
operations or development proposals, is obligeetfer all such operations to the Urban Arts Comiaissand
seek its approval for the project. Additionallyrteén approvals and consents may also be requiced ¥arious
other departments, such as the Fire DepartmenAitpert Authority of India and the Archaeologicaurvey of
India.

Urban Development Laws

State legislations provide for the planned develepimof urban areas and the establishment of relgama
local development authorities charged with the oaspbility of planning and development of urbanaarevithin
their jurisdiction. Real estate projects have to géenned and developed in conformity with the norms
established in these laws and regulations madee thader and require sanctions from the government
departments and developmental authorities at varstages. Where projects are undertaken on laatl$otm

part of the approved layout plans and/or fall withiunicipal limits of a town, generally the buildiplans of

the projects have to be approved from concernedaipah or developmental authority.

Building plans are required to be approved for dagtding within the project area. Clearances wéhpect to

other aspects of development such as fire, civiliteon and pollution control are required from agmiate
authorities, depending on the nature, size anchheigthe projects.
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REGULATIONS REGARDING BORROWINGS BY REAL ESTATE COM PANIES
Domestic lending to property developers

Although there are no restrictions on a real estatepany's ability to undertake debt obligatiorsrfrdomestic
institutions, the RBI has, in its circular dated rmeta 1, 2006 (RBI/2005-06/310 DBOD.BP.BC.
65/08.12.01/2005-06) and the Master Circular onditay Finance dated July 1, 2009 (RBI/ 2009-10/750DB
No.DIR. (HSG). BC.08 /08.12.01/2009-10) cautionBdeheduled commercial banks in India ("SCBs"}tob
excessively risky lending by exercising selectivatyd strengthening the loan approval process.dw \f the
above, the RBI has advised the SCBs that while s&agipg loan proposals involving real estate, theBSC
should ensure that the borrowers have obtained peomission from the concerned Government or other
statutory authorities for the relevant project, vaver required.

Overseas lending to property developers

External commercial borrowings ("ECB") are goverrmdthe guidelines issued by the RBI from timeitoet
RBI issued the current ECB guidelines through trestdr Circular dated July 1, 2009 (RBI/2009-10M\2&ter
Circular No. 07/2009-10). In addition, A. P. (DIRr&s) Circular No. 01 (RBI1/2008-09/92 dated 11y R008),
A. P. (DIR Series) Circular No. 16 (RBI/2008-09/188ted 22 September 2008), A. P. (DIR Series) Gircu
No. 20 (RBI1/2008-09/210 dated 8 October 2008), A(IAR Series) Circular No. 26 (RBI/2008-09/245 etht
22 October 2008), A.P. (DIR Series) Circular No.(B®1/2008-09/343 dated 2 January, 2009) and ADPR (
Series) Circular No. 64 (RBI/2008-09/343 dated 28ilA22009) have been issued by the RBI (collecyivé&CB
Guidelines").

In terms of the ECB Guidelines, utilization of E@Biceeds is not permitted in the real estate sector

However the A.P. (DIR Series) Circular No. 46 (RI®I08-09/343 dated January 2, 2009) mentioned above
permits corporates engaged in the developmenttefiated townships (which includes housing, comiakrc
premises, hotels, resorts, city, and regional uibfrastructure facilities such as roads and brijgeass rapid
transit systems and manufacture of building marie avail of ECBs with prior approval of the RBIhe
aforesaid circular requires that the minimum arezppsed to be developed as integrated townshige tb0®
acres, for which norms and standards are requirde tcomplied with as per local bye laws/rules. Ewegr, in

the absence of any such bye-laws/rules, a minimbitwo thousand dwelling units for about ten thouban
people are required to be developed.

Further, under the ECB Guidelines, the units inSEZ can raise ECBs for their own requirements, but

borrowed funds may not be transferred or furthat te their affiliates or any other units in thentestic tariff
area.
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OWNERSHIP OF INDIAN SECURITIES BY FOREIGN INSTITUTI ONAL INVESTORS
General

Foreign investment in securities issued by Indiampganies is regulated by the Foreign Exchange Managt
Act, 1999 ("FEMA") and the rules, regulations aratifications issued by the Reserve Bank of IndiRRI")
thereunder.

A person resident outside India can subscribedguiee or sell any security of an Indian companyioy other
security to an Indian resident only under the teemd conditions specified in the FEMA and the rudesl
regulations made thereunder or as permitted byRiBe An Indian company may issue securities to esq@e
resident outside India or record in its books aapndfer of security from or to such person onlyhe manner
specified in the FEMA and the rules and regulatioragie thereunder or as permitted by the RBI.

Investment by Foreign Institutional Investors

Pension funds, mutual funds, investment trustsuyrarece or reinsurance companies, endowment funds,
university funds, foundation or charitable trustsbaritable societies who propose to invest oir then behalf

and asset management companies, hominee comparsggjtional portfolio managers, trustees, powér o
attorney holders, banks who propose to invest threiprietary funds or on behalf of "broad basedidi&i or on
behalf of foreign corporate entities and individualay register with the SEBI as Foreign Institugioimvestors
("Foreign Institutional Investors" or "FlIs").

Investments made by FllIs are governed by the Riortfitvestment Scheme under the Security Regulatiés
per the Portfolio Investment Scheme, Foreign lastihal Investors registered with the SEBI may louysell
securities of Indian companies on stock exchangemdia through registered stock brokers. Flis alwo
permitted to purchase shares and convertible detesnbf an Indian company, subject to the percenliagts
specified either through:

= a public offer, where the price of the shares tasBaed is not less than the price at which theeshare
issued to Indian residents; or

= a private placement, where the price of the shird® issued is not less than the price accordiritpe
terms of the relevant SEBI guidelines or the guigs issued by the former Controller of Capitalésas
applicable.

Foreign investors are not necessarily requirecegister with SEBI as Foreign Institutional Investand may
invest in securities of Indian companies pursuanthe Foreign Direct Investment route discussedvabo
Foreign investors wishing to generally invest aratlé in Indian securities in India as a Foreigrtitunsonal
Investor are required to register with SEBI andaobt general permission from the RBI. HowevercsiSEBI
provides a single window clearance, a single appiba must be made to SEBI.

Foreign Institutional Investors who are registenéth SEBI are required to comply with the provissoof the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreigntitliional Investors) Regulations 1995 ("Foreign
Institutional Investor Regulations"). A registerEdreign Institutional Investor may, subject to firecing and
ownership restrictions discussed below, freely bag sell securities issued by any Indian compaeglise
capital gains on investments made through thealratinount invested in India, appoint a domesticazlian for
custody of investments made and repatriate thetatapipital gains and dividends that they may ixecer
make.

Subject to the terms and conditions set out inFieign Institutional Investor Regulations, andjsabto any
sectoral restrictions that may be applicable te kihder the foreign investment regime in Indiaggistered
Foreign Institutional Investor or a sub-accountadfll may buy or sell equity shares or debentufesdian
companies through stock exchanges in India atutiegr market price and also buy or sell sharesetredtures
of listed or unlisted companies other than on akstxchange in compliance with the applicable SEBBI
pricing norms. A Foreign Institutional Investomist permitted to hold more than 10% of the totaliesd capital
of an Indian company; a corporate or individual -sgbount of the Foreign Institutional Investor istn
permitted to hold more than 5% of the total issoegital of an Indian company, and a broad based fun
proprietary fund sub-account is not permitted téddhmore than 10% of the total issued capital oflrsdian
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company. The total holding of all Foreign Institutal Investors in an Indian company is subject tap of
24% of the total issued capital of the company Whitay be increased up to the percentage of sedapabn
FDI in respect of the said company with the passing special resolution by the shareholders ofcttrapany
in a general meeting.

Foreign Institutional Investors who are registeneéth SEBI are required to comply with the provissoof the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreigntitlitonal Investors) Regulations 1995 ("Foreign
Institutional Investor Regulations"). A registerEdreign Institutional Investor may, subject to firecing and
ownership restrictions discussed below, freely bag sell securities issued by any Indian compaeglise
capital gains on investments made through thealratinount invested in India, appoint a domesti¢azian for
custody of investments made and repatriate thetadapapital gains and dividends that they may ixecer
make.

Subject to the terms and conditions set out inFieign Institutional Investor Regulations, andjsabto any
sectoral restrictions that may be applicable te kihder the foreign investment regime in Indiaggistered
Foreign Institutional Investor or a sub-accountadfll may buy or sell equity shares or debentufesmdian
companies through stock exchanges in India atulegrmarket price and also buy or sell sharesedretitures
of listed or unlisted companies other than on aksxchange in compliance with the applicable SEBBI
pricing norms. A Foreign Institutional Investormist permitted to hold more than 10% of the totaliesd capital
of an Indian company; a corporate or individual -sgbount of the Foreign Institutional Investor istn
permitted to hold more than 5% of the total issoegital of an Indian company, and a broad based fun
proprietary fund sub-account is not permitted téddhmore than 10% of the total issued capital oflradian
company. The total holding of all Foreign Institutal Investors in an Indian company is subject tap of
24% of the total issued capital of the company Whitay be increased up to the percentage of sedapabn
FDI in respect of the said company with the passing special resolution by the shareholders ofcttrapany
in a general meeting.

Transfer of shares of an Indian Company between agvson resident outside India and a person resident
in India

Subject to what is stated below, a person residatgide India may transfer the shares held by hirmdian
companies in accordance with the Security Regulatiéd person resident outside India (other than HirRd
OCB), is generally permitted to transfer by waysale or gift the shares held by him to any othesqe
resident outside India (including NRIs) without thgor approval of the RBI. NRIs and erstwhile OC&®
generally permitted to transfer by way of sale ifir the shares held by them to other NRIs withdwe prior
approval of the RBI. However, in both the aboveesa&IPB approval would be required if the persoouéing
the shares has an existing venture or tie-up imalgas on January 12, 2005) in the same field iickwihe
company whose shares are being transferred is edgddis restriction is however, not applicablettie
transfer of shares to international financial ingitbns and to transfer of shares of a company gedjan the
information technology sector.

A person resident outside India is generally paadito transfer any security held by him in an &mdcompany
to a person resident in India by way of a gift. &gon resident outside India is also generally gacthto sell
the shares of an Indian company held by him oncageised stock exchange in India through a regidter
broker. Further, the RBI has granted, by masteutar dated July 1, 2008, general permission ferttansfer
of shares by a person resident outside India teragp resident in India, subject to compliance weiintain
terms, conditions and reporting requirements.

Except in cases listed below, a person residehtdia is generally permitted to transfer the sharfean Indian
company held by him by way of sale under a privaatangement to a person resident outside Indigesuto
compliance with certain terms, conditions and répgrrequirements. Transfers by a person residemtdia to
a person resident outside India requires prior aggrof the RBI in the following cases:

= transfer of shares in a company in the financialises sector such as banks, non-banking financial
companies, asset reconstruction companies, insei@panies, stock exchanges, etc.

= transfers which attract the provisions of the TaledCode.

= transfer of shares of companies engaged in seictavhich FDI is prohibited or where transfer of st
results in the FDI sectoral caps being breached.
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Transfer of shares of an Indian company by a perssident in India to a person resident outsidéalnelquires
prior approval of the FIPB if such transfer is @spect of a company in a sector with a cap, antl saasfer
results in the Indian company being (a) owned hyoa-resident entity; or (b) controlled by a nonidest

entity; or (c) the control of the Indian companyw(®d or controlled by resident Indian citizens) nigei
transferred or passed on to a non-resident etiibugh amalgamation, merger, acquisition, etc.

A person resident outside India is not permitteguechase shares of an Indian company on a stadtaege,
without the prior approval of the RBI, unless spehnson is registered as an Fll. Further, as peSERI ICDR
Regulations, Equityshares allotted pursuant to this Issue are notiftedrto be sold for a period of one year
from the date of Allotment, except on a recognigtmtk exchange in India.

Important: Any person resident outside India seekig to sell the Equity Shares Allotted pursuant to tis

Issue or otherwise transfer such EquityShares, whether or not through a stock exchange, shld seek
advice of their Indian legal advisers as to the apgjzable requirements.
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ISSUE PROCEDURE

Below is a summary intended to present a generdineuof the procedure relating to the bidding, p@nt,
Allocation and Allotment of the Equity Shares. Tinecedure followed in the Issue may differ from tme
mentioned below and the Investors are advised faage themselves of the same from our Companieor t
GC-BRLM and Co-Manager. The Investors are furthdvigsed to inform themselves of any restrictions or
limitations that may be applicable to them, and ergquired to consult their respective adviserstiis regard.
Investors that apply in the Issue will be requitedconfirm and will be deemed to have representedur
Company, the GC-BRLM and Co-Manager and their retbpe directors, officers, agents, advisors, aifibis
and representatives that they are eligible undéapplicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelinesdaapprovals

to acquire Equity Shares of our Company and will offer, sell, pledge or transfer the Equity Shacéur
Company to any person who is not eligible underdiapple laws, rules, regulations, guidelines ancgegvals

to acquire Equity Shares. Our Company and the GCNBRnd Co-Manager and their respective directors,
officers, agents, advisors, affiliates and repreéatwes accept no responsibility or liability fodaising any
investor on whether such investor is eligible tgu@ice Equity Shares of our Company. Also see to&oses
entitled "Transfer Restrictions" and "Selling Rédions".

Qualified Institutional Placement

The Issue is being made in reliance upon Chaptdrof/the SEBI ICDR Regulations through the meckanif
qualified institutional placements wherein an Imditssted company may issue and allot equity shaldl/
convertible debentures/ partly convertible debezglinon-convertible debentures with warrants or aimer
security (excluding warrants) on a private placetmisssis to Qualified Institutional Buyers as definia
Regulation 2(1)(zd) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations\pded that:

= Equity Shares of the same class of such companiiséed on a stock exchange in India that has natio
wide trading terminals; and

= such company complies with the minimum public shalding requirements set out in the listing
agreement with the stock exchange referred to above

The aggregate of the proposed qualified institatioplacement and all previous qualified institudbn
placements made in the same financial year shalexceed five times the net worth of the issuepasthe
audited balance sheet of the previous financial.yea

Securities allotted to a QIB pursuant to a qualifiestitutional placement shall not be sold foregipd of one
year from the date of Allotment except on a recpgdistock exchange in Inglia

Our Company has received in-principle approval ur@ause 24(a) of the Listing Agreement from BSHE an
NSE vide their letters dated August 31, 2009 andusti 31, 2009 for the listing of the Equity ShanesBSE
and NSE.

We have also filed a copy of the Placement Documithtthe Stock Exchanges.

The relevant date for the determination of Flodcéfor the issue of the Equity Shares means the ofathe
meeting in which the Board of our Company or anyn@uttee thereof, thereof decides to open the Issue.

The Issue Price shall be equal or more than theepealculated in accordance with Clause 13A.3 ef th
Erstwhile SEBI DIP Guidelines, which shall be tHedf Price;

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 67 of the @amnies Act, for a transaction that is not a pubffering, an
invitation or offer may not be made to more tharpégsons.
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Issue procedure

1.

Our Company and the GC-BRLM and Co-Manager shattutate serially numbered copies of the
Preliminary Placement Document and the Bid-cum-#gailon Form, either in electronic form and/or
physical form to not more than 49 QIBs.

The list of QIBs to whom the Bid-cum-Application o is delivered shall be determined by our Company
and theGC-BRLM and Co-Manageat their sole discretion. Unless a serially nhumbeReeliminary
Placement Document and the Bid-cum-Application F@raddressed to a particular QIB, no invitation to
subscribe shall be deemed to have been made. Esechi documentation were to come into the possessi
of any person other than the intended recipienpffer or invitation to offer shall be deemed tovbdeen
made to such person.

Our Company shall intimate the Bid/Issue OpeninteDa the Stock Exchanges.

QIBs may submit their Bids through the Bid-cum-Apgation Form during the Issue period to any of the
GC-BRLM and Co-Manager

QIBs may submit such Bid-cum-Application Formslte IGC-BRLM and Co-Manager and would have to

indicate the following in the Bid-cum-Applicatiorofmn:

a. Full name of the QIB to whom Equity Shares aredalbotted

b. Number of Equity Shares Bid for

c. Price at which they are agreeable to Bid for thaitygshares provided that QIBs may also indicag th
they are agreeable to submit a Bid at "Cut-off @righich shall be any price as may be determined by
our Company in consultation with the GC-BRLM and-Kanager at or above the minimum price
calculated in accordance with Clause 13A.3 of th&vihile SEBI DIP Guidelines which shall be the
Floor Price;

d. The details of the dematerialised account(s) tatviieEquity Shares should be credited.

Note: Each sub-account of an FIl will be consideredas an individual QIB and separate Bid-cum-
Application Form will be required from each sub-acount for submitting Bids. It may be noted that a
sub-account which is a foreign corporate or a forgin individual is not a “QIB” in terms of SEBI ICDR

Regulations

6.

Once the Bid-cum-Application Form is submitted bg QIB, the Bid constitutes an irrevocable offed an
cannot be withdrawn. The Bid may be revised tilli/Bisue Closing Date, for which the QIB will hawe t
revise the Bid in a Revision Form available witicleaf the GC-BRLM and Co-Manager. Revision Forms
received after the closure of the Issue on BidAsSipsing Date shall not be considered as validthad
original Bid will stand. Upon the receipt of dulgropleted Bid-cum-Application Form, the GC-BRLM and
Co-Manager shall issue the CAN to the applicants.

The Bid Issue Closing Date shall be notified to 8teck Exchanges and the QIBs shall be deemedvi® ha
been given notice of such date.

Upon receipt of the duly completed Bid-cum-Applicat Form, our Company shall, in consultation with
the GC-BRLM and Co-Manageagfter the closure of the Issue, decide (i) tlseidsPrice and (ii) the number
of Equity Shares to be Allocated and the Applicaatszhom the same would be Allocated. Our Company
shall notify the Stock Exchanges of the Issue Pf@redetermination of the Issue Price, @@-BRLM and
Co-Managewill send the CAN to the QIBs who have been AllecHEquity Shares. The dispatch of the
CAN shall be deemed a valid, binding and irrevoeaiantract for the QIBs to pay the entire IssuedPior

all the Equity Shares Allocated to such QIBs. The CAN shall contdétails like the number d&quity
Shares Allocated to the QIB and payment instrustiocluding the details of the amounts payablehay t
QIB for the Allotment ofEquity Shares in its name and the Pay-In Date as appticalihe respective QIB.
The decision of our Company and B8€-BRLM and Co-Managen this regard shall be at their sole and
absolute discretion, and may not be proportioratée number of Equity Shares applied for.
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QIBs would have to deliver the cheque /confirmatiwinpayment through electronic transfer for the
application monies to the Escrow Account of our @amy by the Pay-In Date as specified in the CAN sen
to the respective QIBs.

Upon receipt of the application monies from QIBsd after receipt of in principle approvals undea@e

24 (a) of the Listing Agreement, our Company skslle and allot the Equity Shares to those QIBzeas
the details provided in their respective CANs. @gompany shall intimate to the Stock Exchanges the
details of the Allotment. The allottees shall inex@nt exceed 49 (Forty-nine) in number.

Our Company shall then apply for listing of the Egbhares. After receiving the listing approvadjuity
Shares shall be credited into the depository ppétit accounts of the QIBs.

Our Company shall then apply for the final tradpggmission from the Stock Exchanges.

The Equity Shares that have been so allotted sedtited to the depository participant accounts ef@iBs
shall be eligible for trading on the Stock Exchagaly upon the receipt of final trading approvain the
Stock Exchanges.

As per the applicable laws, the Stock ExchangeB shtfy the final listing and trading approvalshich

are ordinarily available on their websites, and @ampany shall communicate the receipt of thenlgsind
trading approvals from the Stock Exchanges to tli@i&#s to whom the Equity Shares have been allotted.
Our Company anGC-BRLM and Co-Manageshall not be responsible for any delay or non-ietcef the
communication of the listing and trading approvaten the Stock Exchanges or any loss arising fraghs
delay or non-receipt. QIBs are advised to appréismselves of the status of the receipt of the Eions
from the Stock Exchanges or our Company.

Qualified Institutional Buyers

Only QIBs as defined in Regulation 2(1)(zd) of ®BI ICDR Regulations are eligible to invest. Hoe t
purposes of the Issue, the term "QIB" means tHeviahg:

= A mutual fund, venture capital fund and foreign tuea capital investor registered with the Board,;

= A foreign institutional investor and sub-accourth@ than a sub-account which is a foreign corgorat
or foreign individual), registered with the Board;

A public financial institution as defined in sectidA of the Companies Act, 1956;

A scheduled commercial bank;

A multilateral and bilateral development finandiagtitution;

A state industrial development corporation;

An insurance company registered with the Insurd&egulatory and Development Authority;

A provident fund with minimum corpus of twenty fieeore rupees;

A pension fund with minimum corpus of twenty fivere rupees;

National Investment Fund set up by resolution nd\N&. 2/3/2005-DDII dated November 23, 2005 of
the Government of India published in the Gazettinadia.

Note: It may be noted that the QIB’s under the Erstvhile SEBI Guidelines and under the SEBI ICDR
Regulations are the same.

Flls are permitted to participate in the Issue thraugh the Portfolio Investment Scheme (PIS). Flls are
permitted to participate in the Issue subject to copliance with all applicable laws and such that the
shareholding of such persons does not exceed spiediflimits as prescribed under applicable laws inHis
regard.

The issue of Equity Shares to a single Fll shouldaxceed 10% of the post-Issue capital of our Gorgpin
respect of an Fll investing in the Equity Sharesehalf of its sub-accounts, the investment on lhefiggach
sub-account shall not exceed 10% of the total sagpital of our Company.
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Currently, the aggregate Fll holding in our Compamayinot exceed 24% of the total issued capitaluwf o
Company. With the approval of our Board and thathef shareholders by way of a special resolutiba, t
aggregate FIl holding limit can be enhanced uphto gectoral cap; however as of the date of theeRiant
Document no such resolution has been recommendadt tshareholders for approval.

No Allotment shall be made pursuant to the Issitegedirectly or indirectly, to any QIB being oBromoter
or any person related to our Promoter(s). QIBs, Wvree all or any of the following rights shall beedned to
be a person related to Promoter(s):

a) rights under a shareholders agreement or votingesgent entered into with our Promoters or persons
related to our Promoters;

b) veto rights; or
c) right to appoint any nominee director on our Board.

unless a QIB has acquired any of these rightssindpacity as a lender to our Company and suchd@#é not
hold any shares in our Company.

We and the GC-BRLM and Co-Manager are not liable fo any amendment or modification or change in
applicable laws or regulations, which may occur a#ir the date of the Preliminary Placement Document.
QIBs are advised to make their independent investaions and satisfy themselves that they are eligiblto
apply. QIBs are advised to ensure that any singlei@cum-Application Form from them does not exceed
the investment limits or maximum number of Equity $hares that can be held by them under applicable
law or regulation or as specified in the Preliminay Placement Document. Further, QIBs are required to
satisfy themselves that their Bids would not evenally result in triggering a tender offer under the
Takeover Code, and the QIB shall be solely resporisé for compliance with tender offer and disclosure
obligations under the Takeover Code, SEBI (Prohibibn of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992 and other
applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines andirculars.

A minimum of 10% of the Equity Shares in the Issueshall be allotted to Mutual Funds. If no Mutual
Fund is agreeable to take up the minimum portion aspecified above, such minimum portion (or part
thereof not so taken up) may be allotted to other (Bs.

Note: Affiliates or associates of the GC-BRLM and Co-Mgaawho are QIBs may participate in the Issue in
compliance with applicable laws.

Bid/Issue Programme
Bidding Period / Issue Period:

BID/ISSUE OPENS ON Thursday, September 03, 2009
BID/ISSUE CLOSES ON Monday, September 07, 2009

Application Process

Bid-cum-Application Form

QIBs shall only use the specified serially numbeBéticum-Application Form supplied by the GC-BRLMd
Co-Manager in either electronic form or by physidelivery for the purpose of making an Applicatiorterms
of the Preliminary Placement Document and the Ph&ce Document. Revisions to the Bid shall only keden
in the Revision Form.

QIBS WOULD NEED TO PROVIDE THEIR DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT DETAILS, THEIR
DEPOSITORY PARTICIPANT'S NAME, DEPOSITORY PARTICIPA NT IDENTIFICATION
NUMBER AND BENEFICIARY ACCOUNT NUMBER IN THE BID-CU M-APPLICATION FORM.
QIBS MUST ENSURE THAT THE NAME GIVEN IN THE BID-CUM -APPLICATION FORM IS
EXACTLY THE SAME AS THE NAME IN WHICH THE DEPOSITOR Y ACCOUNT IS HELD. FOR
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THIS PURPOSE, SUBACCOUNTS OF A FIl WOULD BE CONSIDERED AS AN INDEPENDENT
QIB.

IF SO REQUIRED BY THE GC-BRLM AND CO-MANAGER, THE Q IB SUBMITTING A BID,
ALONG WITH THE BID-CUM-APPLICATION FORM, WILL ALSO HAVE TO SUBMIT
REQUISITE DOCUMENT(S) TO THE GC-BRLM AND CO-MANAGER TO EVIDENCE THEIR
STATUS AS A"QIB" AS DEFINED HEREINABOVE.

IF SO REQUIRED BY THE GC-BRLM AND CO-MANAGER, COLLE CTION BANK(S) OR ANY
STATUTORY OR REGULATORY AUTHORITY IN THIS REGARD, | NCLUDING AFTER ISSUE
CLOSURE, THE QIB SUBMITTING A BID AND/OR BEING ALLO TTED EQUITY SHARES IN THE
ISSUE, WILL ALSO HAVE TO SUBMIT REQUISITE DOCUMENT( S) TO FULFILL THE KNOW
YOUR CUSTOMER (KYC) NORMS.

The submission of the Bid-cum-Application Form bg QIBs shall be deemed a valid, binding and ircatte
offer by the QIB to pay the entire Issue Priceifershare of Allocation (as indicated by the CANypdecomes
a binding contract on the QIB, upon issuance ofGA& by our Company in favour of the QIB.

Each scheme / fund of a mutual fund will have tbrsii separate Bid-cum-Application Forms. Demographi
details like address, bank account etc. will beaimigtd from the Depositories as per the demat a¢abetnils
given above.

By making an Application (including revision) forglity Shares pursuant to the terms of the Prelimina
Placement Document and the Placement DocumenQlBewill be deemed to have made the representations
and warranties as contained in the paragraph tiBegresentations by Investors" in the sectiortledti'Notice

to Investors" of the Placement Document, in additio the representations, warranties and agreennesitie
under the section entitled "Selling Restrictionkthe Placement Document.

The QIBs may also be sent a serially numbered Rlane Document either in electronic form or by pbgsi
delivery.

Bids by MFs

The Bids made by the asset management compan@sstudian of MFs shall specifically state the namiks
the concerned schemes for which the Bids are ntaaleh scheme/fund of a mutual fund will have to sitbm
separate Bid-cum-Application Form.

In case of a MF, a separate Bid can be made ircesp each scheme of the MF registered with SEBIsuch
Bids in respect of more than one scheme of the Mt be treated as multiple Bids provided tha Bids
clearly indicate the scheme for which the Bid hasrbmade.

As per the current regulations, the following riesitons are applicable for investments by MFs:

No MF scheme shall invest more than 10% of itsasset value in Equity Shares or equity relatedunsnts
of any company provided that the limit of 10% shadt be applicable for investments in index fundsextor
or industry specific funds. No MF under all its sofes should own more than 10% of any company'sugaid
capital carrying voting rights.

The above information is given for the benefit lné Bidders. We and the GC-BRLM and Co-Manager ate n
liable for any amendments or modification or change applicable laws or regulations, which may heapp
after the date of the Preliminary Placement Docum@&idders are advised to make their independent
investigations and ensure that the number of Edgliigres Bid for do not exceed the applicable limnitder the
applicable laws and regulations.
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Submission of Bid-cum-Application Form

All Bid-cum-Application Forms shall be duly compelt with information including the name of the QltBe
price and the number of Equity Shares applied. Bidecum-Application Form shall be submitted to afythe
GC-BRLM and Co-Manager either through electronienfoor through physical delivery at the following
address:

Anand Rathi Advisors Limited

11" Floor, Times Tower, Senapati Bapat Marg
Lower Parel,

Mumbai — 400 013.

Tel: +91-22-4047 7000

Fax: +91-22-4047 7070

E-mail: ackruti.gip@rathi.com

Contact Person: V. Prashant Rao / Akshay Bhandari

Pioneer Investcorp Limited

1218, Maker V, Nariman Point,

Mumbai — 400 021.

Tel: +91-22-6618 6633

Fax: +91-22-6618 6623

E-mail: ackrutigip@pinc.co.in

Contact Person: Satish Acharya / Ojas Mody

The GC-BRLM and Co-Manager shall not be requiregrtvide any written acknowledgement of the same.
Pricing and Allocation

Build up of the Book

The QIBs shall submit their Bids through the BidveApplication Form within the Issue period to arfytle
GC-BRLM and Co-Manager who shall maintain the Book.

Price discovery and allocation

We, in consultation with the GC-BRLM and Co-Manag#hall finalize the Issue Price for the Equity &isa
which shall be at or above the Floor Price.

After finalization of the Issue Price, our Compashall update the Preliminary Placement Documert e
Issue details and file the same with the Stock Brgls as the Placement Document.

Method of Allocation

We shall determine the Allocation in consultatioivthe GC-BRLM and Co-Manager on a discretionaagib
and in compliance with Chapter VIl of the SEBI IRDRegulations.
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Bid-cum-Application Forms received from the Applits at or above the Issue Price shall be groupgether
to determine the total demand. The Allocation fosath QIBs will be made at the Issue Price. Altamato
Mutual Funds for up to a minimum of 10% of the ks<8ize shall be undertaken subject to valid apitina
being received at or above the Issue Price.

THE DECISION OF OUR COMPANY AND GC-BRLM AND CO-MANA GER IN RESPECT OF
ALLOCATION SHALL BE FINAL AND BINDING ON ALL QIBS. QIBS MAY NOTE THAT
ALLOCATION OF EQUITY SHARES IS AT OUR SOLE AND ABSO LUTE DISCRETION AND QIBS
MAY NOT RECEIVE ANY ALLOCATION EVEN IF THEY HAVE SU BMITTED VALID
APPLICATIONS AT OR ABOVE THE ISSUE PRICE. NEITHER W E NOR THE GC-BRLM AND CO-
MANAGER ARE OBLIGED TO ASSIGN ANY REASONS FOR SUCH NON-ALLOCATION.

Number of Allottees

The minimum number of allottees in the Issue shatlbe less than:
(a) two, where the Issue Size is less than or eéquas. 2.5 billion; or
(b) five, where the Issue Size is greater than2Bsbillion.

Providedthat no single allottee shall be allotted more th@% of the Issue size.

Provided further that QIBs belonging to the sameupror those who are under common control shall be
deemed to be a single allottee for the purposéiiefdlause. For details of what constitutes "samueig' or
"common control" see "Application Process— Bid-cAmpplication Form."

The maximum number of allottees of Equity Sharedl stot be greater than 49 allottees.

THE DECISION OF OUR COMPANY AND GC-BRLM AND CO-MANA GER IN RESPECT OF
ALLOTMENT SHALL BE FINAL AND BINDING ON ALL QIBS.

Confirmation and Allocation Note ("CAN")

Based on the Bids received and the Issue Priceleldécour Company and the GC-BRLM and Co-Managdr wil
in their sole and absolute discretion, decide th@sQo whom the CAN shall be sent containing detail the
Equity Shares allocated to them and the detailth®famounts payable by them for Allotment of theuiBg
Shares in their respective names. Additionally, @eN would include details of the bank account tfemsfer
of funds if done electronically, Pay - in Date aslivas the probable designated date, "Designatéd"Daeing
the date of credit of the Equity Shares to the $tmes account, as applicable to the respectivesQle
dispatch of the serially numbered Preliminary Plaget Document and the CAN shall be deemed to twid, v
binding and irrevocable non-negotiable and nonsfierable obligation on QIB to furnish all detaite&t may be
required by the GC-BRLM and Co-Manager and to peyentire Issue Price for all the Equity Sharescalled
to such QIB.

QIBs are advised to instruct their Depository Partcipant to accept the Equity Shares that may be
Allocated/Allotted to them pursuant to the Issue.

Bank Account for Payment of Application Money

Our Company has opened a special bank accountdised Bank Account / Escrow Account) with HDFC
Bank Limited ("Collection Bank / Designated Bankdcrow Bank") in terms of the arrangement betwe€n G
BRLM and Co-Manager, our Company and the CollecBamk. The QIB, to whom CAN is sent, will be
required to deposit the entire amount payable fier Equity Shares allocated to it by the Pay-In Date
mentioned in the respective CAN.

If the payment is not made favouring the Collectigank Account within the time stipulated in the CAKe
Bid-cum-Application Form and the CAN of the QIB diable to be cancelled.
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In case of cancellations or default by the QIBs, avel the GC-BRLM and Co-Manager have the right to
reallocate the Equity Shares at the Issue Pricengregisting Applicants to the Issue or new QIBshair sole
and absolute discretion, subject to statutory Bmit

Payment Instructions

» The payment of application money shall be madehbyQIBs in the name ofAtkruti City - QIP Escrow
Account" as per the payment instructions provided in tBeNC

* QIBs may make payment through cheques or electfomd transfer, or such as other mode as may be
required by GC-BRLM and Co-Manager.

Note: Payment of the amounts through outstation cheqree$iable to be rejected. Payments through cheques
should be only through high value cheques payatiéuanbai.

Designated Date and Allotment of Equity Shares

= The Equity Shares will not be allotted unless tHBpay the amount payable as mentioned in the CANs
issued to them, into the bank account with the&ctilbn Bank as stated above.

= In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, Bg8hares will be issued and Allotment shall be enad
only in the dematerialized form to the allotteefiotees will have the option to re-materialize tBquity
Shares, if they so desire, as per the provisionBeoCompanies Act and the Depositories Act.

= We reserve the right to cancel the Issue at ang tip to Allotment without assigning any reasons
whatsoever.

= Post Allotment and credit of Equity Shares into @Bs depository participant account, we would gppl
for trading approval from the Stock Exchanges.

= In the unlikely event of the any delay in the Aft@nt or credit of Equity Shares, or receipt of itmgd
approval or cancellation of the Issue, no intecegtenalty would be payable by us. On cancellatibthe
Issue, monies received from investors in the Isshedl be refunded within a reasonable time, without
interest or penalty as stated above.

Submission to SEBI

We shall submit the Placement Document to SEBIiwi8® days of the date of Allotment for record mses.

Other Instructions

Permanent Account Number (PAN)

Applicants should mention its PAN allotted undee thcome Tax Act, 1961The copy of the PAN card or
PAN allotment letter is required to be submitted wih the Bid-cum-Application Form. Bid-cum-
Application Forms received without PAN are liabtelie rejected. It is to be specifically noted thpplicant
should not submit the GIR number instead of the R&Nhe Bid-cum-Application Form is liable to bgented
on this ground.

Our Right to Reject Bids
We, in consultation with the GC-BRLM and Co-Manageray reject Bids without assigning any reasons

whatsoever. Our decision with the GC-BRLM and Corlliger in relation to the rejection of any Bid shzl
final and binding.

- 148 -



Pzl Ackruti Citymited - Placement Document

Equity Shares in dematerialised form with NSDL oDSL

As per the provisions of Section 68B of the Comparfict, the Allotment of Equity Shares in the Isshall be
only in a dematerialised form, €., not in the form of physical certificates but lbedible and be represented by
the statement issued through the electronic mode).

A QIB applying for Equity Shares must have at least beneficiary account with either of the Depwyit
Participants of either NSDL or CDSL prior to makithg Bid.

Allotment to a successful QIB will be credited ileeronic form directly to the beneficiary accoymith
the Depository Participant) of the QIB.

Equity Shares in electronic form can be traded amthe stock exchanges having electronic conrigctiv
with NSDL and CDSL. All the Stock Exchanges whete Bquity Shares are proposed to be listed have
electronic connectivity with CDSL and NSDL.

The trading of our Equity Shares would be in demalised form only for all QIBs in the demat segrheh
the respective Stock Exchanges.

We shall not be responsible or liable for the detayhe credit of Equity Shares due to errors ie Bid-
cum-Application Form or on the part of the QIBs.

Release of funds to our Company

The Collection Bank shall not release the moniesglyto the credit of the Ackruti City - QIP Escrow
Account" till such time, that it receives an instructiongarsuance to the Escrow Agreement, alongwith the
listing approval of the Stock Exchanges for theiBgg8hares offered in the Issue.
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PLACEMENT
Memorandum of Understanding

The GC-BRLM and Co-Manager have entered into a Mamdum of Understanding with our Company (the
"MOU"), pursuant to which the GC-BRLM and Co-Manedms agreed to place, on a best effort basis, to
Qualified Institutional Buyers, pursuant to Chaptéii-A of the Erstwhile SEBI Guidelines.

The MOU contains customary representations andantes, as well as indemnities from our Companyiand
subject to termination in accordance with the tecorgtained therein.

Applications shall be made to list the Equity Slkaamd admit them to trading on the Stock Exchahie.
assurance can be given as to the liquidity or sadbdity of the trading market for the Equity Skay the ability
of holders of the Equity Shares to sell their Egg@hares or the price at which holders of the Bogitares will
be able to sell their Equity Shares.

The Placement Document has not been, and will eotrégistered as a prospectus with the Registrar of
Companies in India and that, with the exceptio®tBs, no Equity Shares will be offered in Indiaawerseas
to the public or any members of the public in Indiaany other class of investors other than QIBs.

In connection with the Issue, the GC-BRLM and Corlslger (or their affiliates) may, for its own acctajn
enter into asset swaps, credit derivatives or otleivative transactions relating to the Equity 1®@kaat the
same time as the offer and sale of the Equity Shamein secondary market transactions. As a reguuch
transactions, the GC-BRLM and Co-Manager may hotdylor short positions in such Equity Shares. These
transactions may comprise a substantial portiotheflssue and no specific disclosure will be maflsuch
positions. Affiliates of the GC-BRLM and Co-Managaay purchase Equity Shares and be allocated Equity
Shares for proprietary purposes and not with a wiewistribution or in connection with the issuarafeP-
Notes, see "Notice to Investors — Off-shore Derxatnstruments (P-Notes)".

Lock-up
Company'’s Lock-up

Our Company has agreed in the aforesaid MOU betweerCompany and the GC-BRLM and Co-Manager
that neither it nor any person acting on its bekalf (i) issue, offer, sell, lend, mortgage, assigontract to
sell, contract to sell or issue, sell any optiorcontract to purchase, purchase any option or aonto sell or
issue, grant any option, right or warrant to pusehdend, or otherwise transfer or dispose of (aboliply
announce any such action), directly or indirecthny Equity Shares or any securities convertible or
exchangeable into or exercisable for, or substiynamilar to, any Equity Shares or any securityfioancial
product whose value is determined directly or iaclity by reference to the price of the underlyiegsities,
including equity swaps, forward sales and optian&DRs representing the right to receive any sechsties,
or (ii) enter into any swap or other agreement tiahsfers, in whole or in part, any of the ecormomi
consequences of ownership of the Equity Sharegijipenter into any transaction with the same ewit
effect as, or agree to, or publicly announce amgnition to enter into any transaction describeg)imnd (ii)
above; except for (i) the issuance of the Equitar8h pursuant to the Issue, or (ii) any issuaniter, sale or
any other transfer or transaction of a kind refér@ above of any Equity Shares under or in conoeatith
any stock incentive and other employee ownershipenefit plans including, for the avoidance of dowany
issuance, offer, sale or any other transfer orsaetion of a kind referred to above of any Equibai®s in
connection with the exercise of any options or kingecurities that may exist on the date heredftave been
approved by the Company’s board of directors, igrany issuance, offer, sale or other transfeispant to any
obligation in existence at the date of the PrelalynPlacement Document which has been disclosetiein
Preliminary Placement Document, in any such casieowt the prior written consent of the GC-BRLM abd-
Manager (such consent not to be unreasonably Wildredelayed) for a period of 90 days (ninety ddysm
the date of the date of Allotment of Equity Sharethe Issue .
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Promoter and promoter group’s Lock-up

Each Promoter and each member of the promoter dnagpalso entered into a lock-up agreement in teffec
during the period commencing on the date of the MfId ending on the date falling 90 days after e df

the MOU. During this period no Promoter, memberttg promoter group, nor any person acting on their
behalf, without the prior written consent of the BBLM and Co-Manager (such consent not to be
unreasonably withheld or delayed shall: (i) offeell, contract to sell, sell any option or contraxipurchase,
purchase any option or contract to sell or gragtaption, right or warrant to purchase any Equita®s or any
securities convertible or exchangeable into or @gable for, or substantially similar to, any Equ8hares or
any security or financial product whose value igedeined, directly or indirectly, by reference teetprice of
the underlying securities, including equity swafesward sales and options or GDRs representingigie to
receive any such securities; or (ii) enter into amap or other agreement that transfers, in whiola part, any

of the economic consequences of ownership of Shargsi) enter into any transaction with the sae@mnomic
effect as, or agree to, or publicly announce amgnition to enter into any transaction describeg)imnd (ii)
above, for the avoidance of doubt nothing in tleel shall (i) apply to existing pledges creatsdshbich
Promoter or promoter group, (ii) prevent the Pranatr promoter group from pledging Equity Sharestie
purposes of business of any company/entity in fletti Group” or (iii) apply to the enforcement asdle of
shares pursuant to such pledges.
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SELLING RESTRICTIONS

The distribution of the Placement Document andadffier, sale or delivery of the Equity Shares ignieted by
law in certain jurisdictions. Persons who come iptussession of the Placement Document are advistaké
legal advice with regard to any restrictions whictay be applicable to them and to observe suchicéstus.
The Placement Document may not be used for theoparpf an offer or sale in any circumstances incihi
such offer or sale is not authorised or permitted.

United States of America

The Equity Shares have not been and will not bestergd under the U.S. Securities Act or any stataurities
laws and may not be offered or sold except (i) pans to an exemption from the registration requaata of
the U.S. Securities Act and in compliance with #pplicable U.S. state securities laws or (ii) itramsaction
not subject to the registration requirements ofWh®. Securities Act. The Equity Shares are beiffieyed and
sold in the Issue outside the United States putdeaRegulation S. The Equity Shares are not beffeyed or
sold in the Issue in the United States and you matypurchase Equity Shares in the Issue if youiratie
United States.

European Economic Area

The GC-BRLM and Co-Manager, severally but not jginhas represented that in relation to each Member
State of the European Economic Area which has imefged the Prospectus Directive (each, a "Relevant
Member State"), with effect from and including tti@&e on which the Prospectus Directive is impleerin

that Relevant Member State (the "Relevant Impleatent Date") it has not made and will not make Harof
Equity Shares to the public in that Relevant Menfb@te prior to the publication of a prospectuseiation to

the Equity Shares which has been approved by timpetent authority in that Relevant Member Statevbere
appropriate, approved in another Relevant MembateSand notified to the competent authority in that
Relevant Member State, all in accordance with tlwsectus Directive, except that it may, with effeom and
including the Relevant Implementation Date, makeo#fer of Equity Shares to the public in that Relew/
Member State at any time:

(@) to legal entities which are authorised or regulaiedperate in the financial markets or, if not so
authorised or regulated, whose corporate purposelédy to invest in securities;

(b) to any legal entity which has two or more of: (h)average of at least 250 employees during the last
financial year; (2) a total balance sheet of mb@n€43,000,000; and (3) an annual net turnover of
more thar€50,000,000, in the case of (2) and (3) as showts iast annual or consolidated accounts;

(c) to fewer than 100 natural or legal persons (othantqualified investors as defined in the Prosgectu
Directive) subject to obtaining the prior conseithe GC-BRLM and the Co-Manager; or

(d) in any other circumstances falling within Articlé€23 of the Prospectus Directive,

provided that no such offering of Equity Sharedlgiesult in a requirement for the publication i tCompany
or the GC-BRLM or the Co-Manager of a prospectusant to Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive.

For the purposes of this provision, the expressiorioffer of Equity Shares to the public” in retatito any
Equity Shares in any Relevant Member State meamscdmmunication in any form and by any means of
sufficient information on the terms of the offerdathe Equity Shares to be offered so as to enabievestor to
decide to purchase or subscribe for the Equity &haas the same may be varied in that Member Byasamy
measure implementing the Prospectus Directivedah Member State and the expression “Prospectusivied
means Directive 2003/71/EC and includes any releivaplementing measure in each Relevant Membee Stat
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United Kingdom (in addition to European Economic Aa restrictions, above)

The Equity Shares cannot be promoted in the Urifieddom to the general public. The GC-BRLM and the
Co-Manager, severally but not jointly, has représgénwarranted and agreed in the Placement Agreetinahn
(a) it has only communicated or caused to be conicated and will only communicate or cause to be
communicated an invitation or inducement to engadevestment activity (within the meaning of secti21 of
the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (th8MR”) to persons who are investment professionallinfy
within Article 19(5) of the Financial Services aiMhrkets Act 2000 (Financial Promotion) Order 2005 o
circumstances in which section 21(1) of the FSMA&glaot apply to the Company; and (b) it has cordied
will comply with all applicable provisions of theSMA with respect to anything done by it in relatitmthe
Equity Shares in, from or otherwise involving theitdd Kingdom. Any invitation or inducement to eggan
investment activity (within the meaning of Sectidh of FSMA) in connection with, or relating to, tkale or
purchase of any Equity Shares, may only be commatetcor caused to be communicated in circumstances
which Section 21(1) of the FSMA does not applyisithe responsibility of all persons under whosetias or
into whose possession this document comes to infihremselves about and to ensure observance of all
applicable provisions of FSMA in respect of anythitlone in relation to an investment in Equity Skare
from or otherwise involving, the United Kingdom.

Hong Kong

No Equity Shares have been offered or sold, anBaquaty Shares may be offered or sold, in Hong Kdng,
means of any document, other than to “professiomed¢stors” as defined in the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, Chapter. 571 of the laws of Hong Korge€urities and Futures Ordinance”) and any ruledema
under that Ordinance; or in other circumstance<ckvidio not result in the document being a “prospgEcts
defined in the Companies Ordinance, Chapter. 3Befaws of Hong Kong (“Companies Ordinance”) oricth

do not constitute an offer to the public within theeaning of the Companies Ordinance. No document,
invitation or advertisement relating to the Equiyares has been issued or may be issued, whidteddedl at,

or the contents of which are likely to be accessertad by, the public of Hong Kong (except if péted under

the securities laws of Hong Kong) other than wébkpect to Equity Shares which are intended to $igodied of
only to persons outside Hong Kong or only to “pesienal investors” as defined in the Securities Entlires
Ordinance and any rules made under that Ordindlfee Placement Document and the Equity Shares hatve n
been and will not be registered with the Securiiad Futures Commission of Hong Kong and/or thelSto
Exchange of Hong Kong. There are no public marketslatforms in Hong Kong for the purchase or disgo

of the Equity Shares. If you are in doubt as todbetents of the Placement Document, you must innetelgt
seek legal and investment advice from your soliceocountant and/or professional advisors.

Singapore

The Placement Document has not been registeredpesspectus with the Monetary Authority of Singagpor
Accordingly, the Placement Document and any otleeudhent or material in connection with the offersate,
or invitation for subscription or purchase, of thguity Shares may not be circulated or distributext, may the
Equity Shares be offered or sold, or be made th@gsuof an invitation for subscription or purchasdether
directly or indirectly, to persons in Singaporeeastthan (i) to an institutional investor under $&tt274 of the
Securities and Future Act, Chapter 289 of Singaiftre “SFA”), (ii) to a relevant person, or any gem
pursuant to Section 275(1A), and in accordance thighconditions, specified in Section 275 of theASJF (iii)
otherwise pursuant to, and in accordance with thraditions of, any other applicable provision of tBEA.
Where the Equity Shares are subscribed or purchasdetr Section 275 by a relevant person which is:

= a corporation (which is not an accredited inveatdefined in Section 4A of the SFA) the sole bessnof
which is to hold investments and the entire shagital of which is owned by one or more individyals
each of whom is an accredited investor; or

= atrust (where the trustee is not an accrediteésitor) the sole purpose of which is to hold investta and
each beneficiary of the trust is an individual vikan accredited investor,

shares, debentures and units of shares and debgmfuthat corporation or the beneficiaries’ righutsl interest

in that trust shall not be transferable for six mhgnafter that corporation or that trust has aeglithe Equity
Shares pursuant to an offer made under Sectiore3épt: (i) to an institutional investor or to derant person
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defined in Section 275(2) of the SFA, or to anysperpursuant to an offer that is made on the téhaissuch
shares, debentures and units of shares and debégmtuthat corporation or such rights and inteireshat trust
are acquired at a consideration of not less tha20&$H00 (or its equivalent in a foreign currency) &ach
transaction, whether such amount is to be paidirfotash or by exchange of securities or other asset
accordance with the conditions, specified in Sec#@5 of the SFA as applicable; (ii) where no cdesition is
given for the transfer; or (iii) by operation ofdla
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TRANSFER RESTRICTIONS

Allottees are not permitted to sell the Equity Sfsafor a period of one year from the date of Allehtexcept
through the Stock Exchanges. Subject to the forggoi

Each purchaser of the Equity Shares in the Isslidb&deemed to have represented and agreed awoll

It is authorized to consummate the purchase oEthdty Shares in compliance with all applicable $eand
regulations.

It acknowledges (or if it is a broker-dealer actorgbehalf of a customer, its customer has confirtoeit
that such customer acknowledges) that such EqlityeS have not been and will not be registeredrunde
the U.S. Securities Act.

It certifies that either (A) it is, or at the tintlke Equity Shares are purchased will be, the beiaéhwner

of the Equity Shares and is located outside theddristates (within the meaning of Regulation S)Bjrit

is a broker-dealer acting on behalf of its custoraed its customer has confirmed to it that (i) such
customer is, or at the time the Equity Shares amehased will be, the beneficial owner of the Eguit
Shares, and (ii) such customer is located outidéJnited States (within the meaning of Regulasyn

It agrees that it will not offer, sell, pledge dherwise transfer such Equity Shares except infishare
transaction complying with Rule 903 or Rule 904 Régulation S or pursuant to any other available
exemption from registration under the U.S. Seasithct and in accordance with all applicable séiesri
laws of the States of the United States and argrgthisdiction, including India.

It acknowledges that we, the GC-BRLM, the Co-Mamaggel their affiliates, and others will rely updret
truth and accuracy of the foregoing acknowledgemeaepresentations and agreements and agree# that,
any of such acknowledgements, representationsreeagnts deemed to have been made by virtue of its
purchase of the Equity Shares are no longer aaguitawill promptly notify us. Any resale or other
transfer, or attempted resale or other transferdemather than in compliance with the above-stated
restrictions will not be recognized by us.
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INDIAN SECURITIES MARKET

The information in this section has been extradtedh publicly available documents from various sms,
including officially prepared materials (includingebsites) of SEBI, BSE and NSE and has not be@aneme

or independently verified by our Company or the BRLM and Co-Manager to the Issue, or any of our or
their respective affiliates or advisers.

The Indian Securities Market

India has a long history of organised securiti@slitrg. In 1875, the first stock exchange was eistaddi in
Mumbai.

Stock Exchange Regulation

India's stock exchanges are regulated primariNsBBI, as well as by the Gol acting through the Mtiryi of
Finance, Stock Exchange Division, under the SCRAtar SCRR along with the rules, by-laws and regria
of the respective stock exchanges, which regula¢erécognition of stock exchanges, the qualificetidor
membership and the manner in which contracts aexeghinto and enforced between members. The Siesuri
and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 granted tBBISowers to regulate the business of Indian seesr
markets, including stock exchanges and other fils@notermediaries, promote and monitor self-retpha
organizations, prohibit fraudulent and unfair trapeactices and insider trading, and regulate suobiata
acquisitions of Equity Shares and takeovers of amgs. The SEBI has also issued guidelines comwrni
minimum disclosure requirements by public companigkes and regulations concerning investor praiact
insider trading, substantial acquisitions of Equiiiyares and takeovers of companies, buybacks afises,
employee stock option schemes, stockbrokers, metdiznkers, underwriters, mutual funds, Flls, dreating
agencies and other capital market participants.

Listing

The listing of securities on recognised Indian ktexchanges is regulated by the SCRR and the distin
agreement of the respective stock exchanges, umbah the governing body of each stock exchange is
empowered to suspend trading of or dealing intadisecurity for breach of the company's obligaiander
such agreement, subject to the company receiviiog potice of the intent of the exchange.

The equity shares of a listed company can be ddlishder the provisions of the SEBI (Delisting et&rities)
Guidelines, 2009, (the "Delisting Guidelines"), aimigovern voluntary and compulsory delisting of igqu
shares of Indian companies from the stock exchanidesDelisting Guidelines have been recently restifand
replace the provisions of the Securities and Exgad@woard of India (Delisting of Securities) Guidels, 2003.

A company may be delisted through a voluntary talisor a compulsory delisting by a stock exchaspe(
concerned. A company may voluntarily delist frore #iock exchange where its securities are listeesuto,
inter alia, approval of its Board of Directors and sharehadand the in-principle approval of the stock
exchange(s) concerned, further provided that anogyiortunity has been given to the investors agxanprice.
The exit price is a minimum of a floor price detémad in accordance with a specified formula with fmal
offer price being determined based on a "book mgldprocess" specified in the Delisting Guidelin€sr
certain listed companies of paid up share capifabmo Rupees one crore and either upto 300 public
shareholders or no trading in equity shares forywae (as per specific criteria in the Delistingid&lines), the
exit price determination lies with the promoter lseg delisting and not with the shareholders. Hosrev
shareholders may choose whether to accept thepeeé or not. The procedure for compulsory delgptaiso
requires the company to make an exit offer to thareholders in accordance with the above-mentioned
Delisting Guidelines.

The Delisting Guidelines provide that if for anyasen the securities of a company become liable tdetisted
from the relevant stock exchange, the promoter nfidydesires to maintain listing of the compaifigilow the
procedure laid down in the Delisting Guidelines fauch continuous listing. Pursuant to the Delisting
Guidelines, the company may, within six monthspéssiew shares to the public or the promoter(s)hef t
company may sell a portion of their shares to thiglip by way of offer for sale or sale in open netrthrough
transparent mechanism, such that the minimum legveliblic shareholding is re-established.
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SEBI has the power to amend listing agreementsbgrdws of stock exchanges in India. In order tstniet
abnormal price volatility in any particular stoEBI has instructed the stock exchanges to apply diacuit
breakers which do not allow transactions beyondrgam level of price volatility. An index based rket-wide
(equity and equity derivatives) circuit breakerteys has been implemented and additionally, thezearently

in place varying individual scrip-wise bands. Theian stock exchanges can also exercise the poveeispend
trading during periods of market volatility. Margmequirements are imposed by stock exchanges teat a
required to be paid by stockbrokers.

Disclosures under the Companies Act and Securitid®egulations

Under the Companies Act, 1956 a public offering@€urities in India must be made by means of apeaiss,
which must contain information specified in the Quanies Act, 1956 and the SEBI ICDR Regulations as
amended, and be filed with the Registrar of Comgmihiaving jurisdiction over the place where a camgjsa
registered office is situated, which in the casewf Company, is currently the Registrar of Comearocated

at Mumbai, Maharashtra situated at Everest, 100indabrive, Mumbai 400002, Maharashtra, India. A
company's directors and promoters may be subjeciviband criminal liability for misrepresentatioim a
prospectus. The Companies Act also sets forth gdroes for the acceptance of subscriptions and ltbement

of securities among subscribers and establishegmmax commission rates for the sale of securitiése TEBI
has issued detailed guidelines concerning disatolsympublic companies and investor protection.

Public limited companies are required under the gamies Act and Listing Agreement to prepare, filthvhe
Registrar of Companies and circulate to their dhalceers audited annual accounts which comply whi t
Companies Act's disclosure requirements and ragakatgoverning their manner of presentation andctwvhi
includes sections pertaining to corporate govereargdated party transactions and the managenubstigssion
and analysis as required under the listing agreenteraddition, a listed company is subject to aanihg
disclosure requirements pursuant to the terms flifting agreement with the relevant stock exclkang
Accordingly, companies are now required to publistaudited financial statements, although subjeca to
limited review by a company's auditors, on a qubrtéasis and are required to inform stock exchange
immediately regarding any stock price-sensitiveiinfation.

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of IndieC&I") and SEBI have implemented changes which mequi
Indian companies to account for deferred taxationconsolidate their accounts with subsidiariesprovide
segment-wise reporting and to increase their diseko of related party transactions from April 102Gnd
accounting for investments in associated compaaiks joint ventures in consolidated accounts anelrimt
financial reporting from April 1, 2002. As of Aprdl, 2003, accounting of intangible assets is atguilated by
accounting standards set by the ICAI and as of|Apri2004 accounting standards regulate accouriting
impairment of assets.

Indian Stock Exchanges

There are various recognised Stock Exchanges ia.IBGE and NSE together hold a dominant positionrag
the stock exchanges in terms of the number ofdistanpanies, market capitalisation and tradingsagtiWith
effect from April 1, 2003, the stock exchanges mdia operate on a trading day plus two, or T+2ingl
settlement system. At the end of the T+2 periotigabons are settled with buyers of securitiesipgyor and
receiving securities, while sellers transfer antbinge payment for securities. For example, tradesed on a
Monday would typically be settled on a Wednesdd&BISproposes to subsequently move to a T+ 1 sedttém
system. In order to contain the risk arising outh#f transactions entered into by the members ribws stock
exchanges either on their own account or on betfatheir clients, the stock exchanges have desigisd
management procedures, which include compulsorgcpi®d margins on the individual broker members,
based on their outstanding exposure in the maaketjell as stock-specific margins from the members.
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To restrict abnormal price volatility, SEBI hastimgted stock exchanges to apply the followingebands
calculated at the previous day's closing pricerétage no restrictions on price movements of irgtegks):

Market Wide Circuit Breakerdn order to restrict abnormal price volatility @any particular stock, SEBI has
instructed stock exchanges to apply daily circoéializers, which do not allow transactions beyontageprice
volatility. An index based market-wide (equity ardjuity derivatives) circuit breaker system has been
implemented and the circuit breakers are appliethéomarket for movement by 10%, 15% and 20% far tw
prescribed market indices: the BSE Sensex for tBE Bnd the Nifty for the NSE, or the NSE Nifty, winéver

is breached earlier. If any of these circuit breatkeesholds are reached, trading in all equity aqdity
derivatives markets nationwide is halted.

Price Bands Price bands are circuit filters of 20% movemegitser up or down, and are applied to most
securities traded in the markets, excluding seesriincluded in the BSE Sensex and the NSE Niftg an
derivatives products. In addition to the market-eviddex based circuit breakers, there are curréntiglace
varying individual scrip wise bands (except forigsron which derivative products are available onips
included in indices on which derivative products available) of 20% either ways for all other ssrip

Circuit-breakers are not applicable to certain lsddisted in the "A" category of BSE, on which dtscfutures
and options are traded. The stock exchanges o# logih also exercise the power to suspend tradinggdu
periods of market volatility. Margin requirement® amposed by stock exchanges that are requirdx toaid
by stockbrokers. At the discretion of the stocklatmes and under instructions from SEBI, the séockanges
can also impose ad hoc margins on the stockbrokarspecific stocks in the event of extreme vditatiin
price movements.

Bombay Stock Exchange Limited

The BSE, the oldest stock exchange in India, weabbshed in 1875. It is the first stock exchangéndia to
have obtained permanent recognition in 1956 fromm@overnment of India under the SCRA. It has ewblve
over the years into its present status as the presbbck exchange of India. The BSE switched ox@mfan
open outcry trading system to online trading ("BOLFfom May 1995. Earlier an association of pers@SE

is now a corporatised and demutualised entity po@ted under the provisions of the Companies 2856,
pursuant to the BSE (Corporatisation and Demutatiis) Scheme, 2005 notified by SEBI. Only a mentfer
the BSE has the right to trade in the stocks listethe BSE.

Derivatives trading commenced on the BSE in 200& BSE has wholesale and retail debt trading setgmen
Retail trading in government securities commeneetbnuary, 2003.

National Stock Exchange of India Limited

The NSE was established by financial institutiomsl danks to provide nationwide on-line satellitg<éd
screen based trading facilities for market makeith an electronic order-based trading system, dactrenic
clearing and settlement for securities, includirayegnment securities, debentures, public sectod$and
units. The principal aim of the NSE is to enableestors to buy or sell securities from anywheriiia and to
serve as a national market for securities. Delpgeffior trades executed "on-market" are settledutitrathe
National Securities Clearing Corporation Limite¢heTNSE does not categorise shares into groupsthe tase
of BSE, except in respect of the trade-to-tradeegaty. Screen- based paperless trading and settleisie
possible through the NSE from various cities inigndhe NSE commenced operations in the wholesgite d
market in June 1994, in capital markets in Noveni®94 and in derivatives in June 2000. The NSEdaed
the NSE 50 Index, now known as S&P CNX NIFTY on iA@2, 1996 and the mid-cap index on January 1,
1996. The securities in the NSE 50 Index are hidjigyid. With a wide network in major metropolitaities,
screen-based trading, a central monitoring systeingaeater transparency, the NSE has recordedvoigimes
of trading.
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Takeover Code

Disclosure and mandatory bid obligations under dndlaw are governed by the Takeover Code, which
prescribes certain thresholds or trigger points givge rise to these obligations. Certain imporfamavisions of
the Takeover Code are as follows:

(1) Any acquirer (meaning a person who, directly orinectly, acquires or agrees to acquire equity share
voting rights in a company, either by himself ottwany person acting in concert) who acquires gquit
shares or voting rights that would entitle him torexthan 5%, 10%, 14%, 54% or 74% of the equityesha
or voting rights in a Company (together with a camys equity shares or voting rights, if any, alyebeld
by him) is required to disclose the aggregate sfdgjuity shareholding or voting rights in that camp to
the company (which in turn is required to discltise same to each of the stock exchanges on whéh th
company's equity shares are listed) and to eadheofstock exchanges on which the company's equity
shares are listed within two days of (a) the receillotment information; or (b) the acquisitioh equity
shares or voting rights, as the case may be. The"hares" has been defined under the Takeovee @od
mean equity shares or any other security whiclilesth person to acquire shares with voting rights.

(2) A person who, together with persons acting in camneith him, holds 15% or more but less than 55% of
the equity shares or voting rights in any compansequired to disclose any purchase or sale remtinge
2% of the equity shares or voting rights of thamnpany (together with the aggregate shareholdingr aft
such acquisition or sale) to that company and tiheksexchanges on which the company's equity steees
listed within two days of the purchase or sale igralso required to make annual disclosure of bidihgs
to that company (which in turn is required to disel the same to each of the stock exchanges oih wigc
company's equity shares are listed).

(3) Promoters or persons in control of a company ase e¢quired to make a bi-annual disclosure of their
holding in the same manner. The company is alsoired) to make annual disclosure of holdings of its
promoters or persons in control as on March 3lhefrespective year to each of the stock exchanges o
which its equity shares are listed.

(4) An acquirer cannot acquire equity shares or votiglgts which (taken together with existing equihases
or voting rights, if any, held by him or by persawting in concert with him) would entitle such airgr to
exercise 15% or more of the voting rights in a camp unless such acquirer makes a public announteme
offering to acquire a further minimum of 20% of thguity shares of the company at a price not |dhven
the price determined in accordance with the Take@agle. A copy of the public announcement is resglir
to be delivered, on the date, on which such anremeat is published, to SEBI, the company and thekst
exchanges on which the company's equity shardistad.

(5) No acquirer who, together with persons acting incest with him, has acquired, in accordance with, la
15% or more but less than 55% of the shares ongatghts in a company, shall acquire, either bydslf
or through or with persons acting in concert witinhadditional shares or voting rights that wouiditte
him to exercise more than 5% of the voting rightsany financial year ending March 31, unless such
acquirer makes a public announcement offering tpuime a further minimum of 20% of the equity shares
of the company at a price not lower than the pdieermined in accordance with the Takeover Code.

(6) An acquirer who, together with persons acting inagst with him, has acquired, in accordance with, la
55% or more but less than 75% of the equity sharesting rights in a company (or, where the compan
concerned had obtained the initial listing of ises by making an offer of at least 10% of thaedssize to
the public pursuant to Rule 19(2)(b) of the Se@sitContracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957 (the "SCRR")
less than 90% of the shares or voting rights indbmpany) would require such an acquirer to make an
open offer to acquire a minimum of 20% of the shamevoting rights which it does not already owrhia
company. However, if an acquisition made pursuardr open offer results in the public shareholding
the target company being reduced below the mininfawal required under the listing agreement with the
stock exchanges, the acquirer would be require¢dki® steps to facilitate compliance by the targetgany
with the relevant provisions of the listing agreemwith the stock exchanges, within the time period
prescribed therein.

(7) Where an acquirer who (together with persons adtingpncert) holds 55% or more, but less than 75% o
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the shares or voting rights in a target companywtere the concerned company had obtained thalinit
listing of its shares by making an offer of at le&8% of the issue size to the public pursuant tbeR
19(2)(b) of the SCRR, less than 90% of the sharesiing rights in the company), intends to cordaie

its holdings while ensuring that the public shatdimg in the target company does not fall below the
minimum level permitted by the listing agreementhwhe stock exchanges, the acquirer may do solpnly
making an open offer in accordance with the Take®@ale. Such open offer would be required to beanad
for the lesser of (i) 20% of the voting capitaltbé company, or (ii) such other lesser percentdgheo
voting capital of the company as would, assumirlgdubscription to the open offer, enable the acui
(together with persons acting in concert), to iaseethe holding to the maximum level possible, Wiic
consistent with the target company meeting theirements of minimum public shareholding laid down i
the listing agreement with the stock exchanges.

(8) However, such open offer would not be requiredi(uipe 75% limit stated hereinabove) if acquirather
by himself or through persons acting in concerhwitcquires additional shares or voting rightstimd
him upto 5% additional voting rights in the conasinlisted company, subject to the following: the
acquisition is made through open market purchas@imal segment on the stock exchange but not gfrou
bulk deal/block deal/negotiated deal/preferentilatianent, or the increase in shareholding or votiigipts
is pursuant to the buyback of shares of the comcklisted company. Some further conditions havenbee
prescribed by SEBI in this regard by its circulatetl August 6, 2009.

(9) In addition, regardless of whether there has besnazquisition of equity shares or voting rightsan
company, an acquirer cannot directly or indireettygjuire control over a company (for example, by why
acquiring the right to appoint a majority of theeditors or to control the management or the policy
decisions of the company) unless such acquirer snakeoublic announcement offering to acquire a
minimum of 20% of the voting equity shares of tioenpany. In addition, the Takeover Code introdubes t
"chain principle" by which the acquisition of a tHislg company will obligate the acquirer to makeudliz
offer to the shareholders of each subsidiary compahich is listed. The Takeover Code sets out the
contents of the required public announcements #saw¢he minimum offer price.

The Takeover Code permits conditional offers amuvigles specific guidelines for the gradual acqigisitof
shares or voting rights.

Specific obligations of the acquirer and the boafrdirectors of the target company in the offerqess have
also been specified. Acquirers making a public rofiee also required to deposit in an escrow acceunt
percentage of the total consideration which ametithbe forfeited in the event that the acquireedmot fulfil
his obligations.

The general requirements to make such a public rcement do not, however, apply entirely to bailout
takeovers when a promoter (i.e. a person or persoesntrol of the company, persons named in arfgr of
document as promoters and certain specified capa@dies and individuals) is taking over a finatigiweak
company but not a "sick industrial company" purduara rehabilitation scheme approved by a pulitiarfcial
institution or a scheduled bank. A "financially weaompany" is a company which has at the end of the
previous financial year accumulated losses whicrehasulted in the erosion of more than 50% bug tean
100% of the total sum of its paid up capital arekfreserves as at the end of the previous finaypeéal A "sick
industrial company" is a company registered for entian five years which has at the end of any firdryear
accumulated losses equal to or exceeding its emgirgvorth.

Further, in the event that the board of directdramy company have been have been removed by Centra
Government or State Government any other regulatamhority, and such government or authority has
appointed other persons to hold office as direatoder the provisions of any law for the time beimdprce for

the orderly conduct of the affairs of the compaamyd if certain other pre-conditions are met, thEBIShas the
power to relax compliance with the provisions ofa@ter Il of the Takeover Code (which consists of
Regulations 10 to 29A), which provide, inter afiar, the trigger for making an open offer, mannemaking
open offer, obligations of parties and other inotdé matters.
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The Takeover Code, subject to certain conditiorecified in the Takeover Code, exempts certain $ipelci
acquisitions from the requirement of making a pwliifer, including, among others, the acquisitidreloares
(1) by allotment in a public issue or a rights &ss(2) pursuant to an underwriting agreement, {3)elgistered
stockbrokers in the ordinary course of businesbalralf of clients, (4) in unlisted companies, (Bjguant to a
scheme of reconstruction or amalgamation, (6) @ursto a scheme under Section 18 of the Sick Iniduist
Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985, (7) tasylfrom transfers between companies belongintheo
same group of companies or between promoters afldicty listed company and relatives, (8) by way of
transmission through inheritance or successionrg®)lting from transfers by Indian venture capitaids or
foreign venture capital investors registered wiEB§ to promoters of a venture capital undertakingenture
capital undertaking pursuant to an agreement betveeeh venture capital funds or foreign ventureitabp
investors with such promoters or venture capitadeutaking, (10) by the Government of India congdll
companies, unless such acquisition is made purgaantisinvestment process undertaken by the Gawent

of India or a state government, (11) change in robrity takeover/restoration of the management ef th
borrower company by the secured creditor in terfrit@ Securitization and Reconstruction of Finah&gsets
and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002,) (A@quisition of shares by a person in exchangedoity
shares received under a public offer made underT#keover Code and (13) in terms of guidelines and
regulations relating to delisting of securities specified by SEBI. The Takeover Code does not apply
acquisitions in the ordinary course of businesgtiylic financial institutions either on their owacaunt or as a
pledgee. An application may also be filed with th&eover panel seeking exception from the openr offe
requirements of the Takeover Code. In addition,Tideeover Code does not apply to the acquisitioBlobal
Depository Receipts or American Depository Recegaislong as they are not converted into equity eshar
carrying voting rights.

Under the Takeover Code, the term "promoter" inetudny person who is control of the Company or any
person identified as a promoter in any documentHeroffer of securities to the public or existstgareholders

or in the shareholding information disclosed unttex listing agreement, whichever is later, or aeyspn
named as a relating to or belonging to the promgiteup as defined under the Takeover Code.

Minimum level of public shareholding

In order to ensure availability of floating stocklisted companies, SEBI has recently notified admeents to
the listing agreement. All listed companies areunexml to ensure that their minimum level of public
shareholding remains at or above 25%. This req@irgrdoes not apply to those companies who at the ¢if
their initial listing had offered at least 10% betissue size to the public pursuant to Rule 1BJ2){ the SCRR,
and which fulfil the following conditions (i) a mimum of 20,00,000 securities were offered to thblipu (ii)
the size of the issue was at least Rs. 1,000 miliod (iii) the issue was made only through bookding
method with allocation of 60% of the issue sizegalified institutional buyers as specified by SEBKo those
companies that have reached a size of 2,00,00,0000ce in terms of the number of listed shares BRad
10,000 million or more in terms of market capitatisn, that is, the average market capitalisativar dhe
previous financial year. However, such listed coniga are required to maintain the minimum levepuoblic
shareholding at 10% of the total number of issuelihary shares of a class or kind for the purpaddisting.
Failure to comply with this clause in the listingreement requires the listed company to delisslitares
pursuant to the terms of the Delisting Guidelined anay result in penal action being taken agaimstlisted
company pursuant to the SEBI Act.

Insider Trading Regulations

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prébibiof Insider Trading) Regulations 1992 ("Insideading
Regulations") have been notified by SEBI to previsider trading in India by prohibiting and pesiaig
insider trading in India. The Insider Trading Regidns prohibit an “insider” from dealing, eithen his own
behalf or on behalf of any other person, in theugées of a company listed on any stock exchangemin
possession of unpublished price-sensitive inforomatThe terms "insider", "unpublished" and "prisesisitive
information" are defined in the Insider Trading Bkgions. The Insider Trading Regulations defindresider

to mean any person who: (i) is or was connectet thi¢ company or is deemed to have been connedthd w
the company and who is reasonably expected to haeess to unpublished price sensitive information i
respect of securities of a company or (ii) has isexkor has had access to such unpublished pritstise
information.
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Price sensitive information means any informatidmiol relates directly or indirectly to a companylamhich

if published is likely to materially affect the pe of securities of the company, such as the peabéinancial

results of the company, intended declaration oidéinds (both interim and final), issue of secusitie buyback
of securities The insider is also prohibited froomenunicating, counselling or procuring, directlyindirectly,

any unpublished price-sensitive information to atlyer person who whilst in possession of such ulighdd

price-sensitive information shall not deal in sés. The prohibition under the Insider TradinggRktions
also extends to all persons, including a comparglirtg in the securities of a company listed on atpck

exchange whilst in the possession of unpublishécke{gensitive information. It is to be noted thatently
SEBI has amended the Insider Trading Regulationsduide certain defences to the prohibition on pames
in possession of unpublished price-sensitive infdrom dealing in securities.

The Insider Trading Regulations make it compuldonjisted companies and certain other entitieseiated
with the securities market to establish an intecwale of conduct to prevent insider trading and &dsregulate
disclosure of unpublished price-sensitive informiativithin such entities so as to minimise misussuah
information. To this end, the Insider Trading Regjigins provide a model code of conduct.

Further, the Insider Trading Regulations specifyjnadel code of corporate disclosure practices twegure
insider trading which must be implemented by alldd companies. As per the recent amendmentsnsidef
Trading Regulations require that the model codeasfduct should not be diluted in any manner andl blea
complied with. The model code of conduct has akssnbamended to prohibit all directors / officedesignated
employees who buy or sell any number of shareBetbmpany from entering into opposite transactimgg
the next six months following the prior transactiaxl directors and designated employees have bésn
prohibited from taking positions in derivative teactions in shares of the company at any timehEurtertain
provisions pertaining tanter alia, reporting requirements have also been extende@pertlants of directors
and designated employees of the company.

The Insider Trading Regulations require any persbn holds more than 5% of the shares or votingtsigsn
any listed company to disclose to the company tivaber of shares or voting rights held by such perso
becoming such holder, within 4 working days of eith

= the receipt of intimation of allotment of the shegrer
= the acquisition or the sale of the shares or vdtigigts, as the case may be.

Every listed company within 5 days of receipt, sbaclose the above information to all stock exajes on
which the company is listed.

On a continuing basis, under the Insider TradinguRdions, any person who holds more than 5 petr afethe
shares or of the voting rights in any listed comp@nrequired to disclose to the company,- the remdf
shares or voting rights held by him and any chaingshareholding or voting rights,- (even if suctecbe
results in the shareholding falling below 5 pertehthere has been change in such holdings frbenlast
disclosure made, provided such change exceeds 2eperof the total shareholding or voting rightstie
company. Such disclosure is required to be mademwfibur working days of:

= the receipt of intimation of allotment of the shgrer
= the acquisition or the sale of the shares or vdtigigts, as the case may be.

Further, all directors and officers of a listed gamy are required to disclose to the company theben of
shares or voting rights held and positions takerivdves by such persons in such company withiar fo
working days of becoming a director or officer ath company. All directors and officers of a lismampany
are also required to make periodic disclosuresheif tshareholding in the company as specified enltisider
Trading Regulations.
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Depositories

In August 1996, the Indian Parliament enacted tbpd3itories Act, 1996 which provides a legal frarogfor
the establishment of depositories to record ownerdhtails and effectuate transfers in book entrynf The
SEBI framed the Securities and Exchange Board dialiDepositories and Participants) Regulation€619
which provide for the formation of such depositeri¢he registration of participants as well asrights and
obligations of the depositories, participants, ltkeeficial owners and the companies. The deposstysiem has
significantly improved the operations of the Indsacurities markets. Trading of securities in beaksy form
commenced in December 1996. In January 1998, thRl $Bs notified scrips of various companies for
compulsory dematerialized trading by certain catiegoof investors such as foreign institutionalastors and
other institutional investors and has also notifeednpulsory dematerialized trading in specifiedpscfor all
retail investors. The SEBI has subsequently sigaifily increased the number of scrips in which denwlized
trading is compulsory for all investors. Under glides issued by the SEBI, a Company shall giveofit®n to
subscribers/shareholders to receive the securitjficates and hold securities in dematerializedhfowvith a
depository.

However, even in the case of scrips notified fompalsory dematerialized trading, investors, otheant
institutional investors, are permitted to tradghysical shares on transactions outside the stadka@ge where
there are no requirements to report such transectio the stock exchange and on transactions osttu
exchange involving lots of less than 500 securiffeansfers of shares in book-entry form requirthlibe seller
and the purchaser of the equity shares to estahlisbunts with depository participants registereth wthe
depositories established under the Depositories 2896. Charges for opening an account with a depgs
participant, transaction charges for each trade arstiodian charges for securities held in each wadceary
depending upon the practice of each depositoryigigaiht and must be borne by the account holdeorUp
delivery, the shares shall be registered in theenafrthe relevant depository on the company's bewidsthis
depository shall enter the name of the investatsimecords as the beneficial owner, thus affectivgtransfer
of beneficial ownership. The beneficial owner shal entitled to all rights and benefits and be attbjo all
liabilities in respect of his/her securities helg & depository. The Companies Act compulsorily pies that
Indian companies making any initial public offeriafjsecurities for or in excess of Rupees 100 amillshould
issue the securities in dematerialized form.

Derivatives (Futures and Options)

Trading in derivatives is governed by the SCRA, 3@&RA Rules and the SEBI Act. The SCRA was ameimded
February 2000 and derivative contracts were indudéhin the term "securities," as defined by tHeR3\.
Trading in derivatives in India takes place eitber separate and independent derivatives excharnges a
separate segment of an existing stock exchange.d€heative exchange or derivative segment of &ksto
exchange functions as a self regulatory organiratioder the supervision of the SEBI. Derivativesdpicts
were introduced in phases in India, starting wittufes contracts in June 2000 and index optiopsksiptions
and stock futures in June 2000, July 2001 and Nbeer2001 respectively.

Exchange Controls - Restrictions on Conversion ofnidian Rupees

There are restrictions on conversion of Rupeeslihg& dollars. Before February 29, 1992, RBI deteed the
official value of the Rupee in relation to a weigghtbasket of currencies of India's major tradingrgas. In the
February 1992 budget, a new dual exchange rateanierh was introduced by allowing conversion of 66P6
the foreign exchange received on trade or curresdunt at a market-determined rate and the rendds at
the official rate. All importers were, however, vigd to buy foreign exchange at the market ratepixfor
certain priority imports. In March 1993, the excbarrate was unified and allowed to float. In Febyue994
and again in August 1994, RBI announced relaxationghe payment restrictions previously applicatie
certain transactions. Since August 1994, the Ce@maernment has substantially complied with ittigdtions
to the International Monetary Fund, under whichidnd committed to refrain from using exchangerieons
on current international transactions as an insgntnto manage the balance of payments. Effectilye 1895,
the process of current account convertibility wasaaced by relaxing restrictions on foreign excleafgy
various purposes, such as foreign travel and metlieatment. The Central Government has also relaxe
restrictions on capital account transactions bydegg Indians since 1999. For example, resideniahlare
now permitted to remit up to US$200,000 for anyitzmccount transaction.
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DESCRIPTION OF THE EQUITY SHARES

Set forth below is certain information relatingttee share capital of our Company including a beammary of
some of the provisions of the Memorandum and Adioff Association of our Company and the Compakits
relating to the rights attached to the Equity Stsare

General

Our Company's authorized share capital is Rs.12lilomcomprising of 125,000,000 Equity shares . F0
each. The issued, subscribed and paid up capitauofCompany is Rs.667 million comprising of 66,000
Equity Shares of Rs.10 each.

We have not issued any preference shares.

All of our issued and paid-up shares are in regéstéorm. The Equity Shares will be fully paid-upew issued.
As at the date of the Preliminary Placement Docum@®.7 million Equity Shares of Rs.10 each havenbe
issued.

Dividends

Under the Companies Act unless the Board recommémalpayment of a dividend, the shareholders at a
general meeting have no power to declare any diddender our Company's Articles, our Company inegel
meeting may, subject to Section 205 of the CompaAid declare dividends, to be paid to members raatg

to their respective rights and interests in thdifgrdut subject to any law of the time being ind® and may fix
the time for payment. Our Company in general meetiray declare a lower, but not higher, dividendttizat
recommended by the Board. The profits of our Corgpanbject to any special rights relating theretated or
authorized to be created by the Memorandum or ttields and subject to the provision of any law thoe time
being in force, shall be divisible among the mershier proportion to the amount of capital paid-uptba
shares held by them respectively. In addition,Bbard may declare and pay interim dividends.

The dividends can only be paid in cash to sharehsllisted on the register of shareholders on #te @hich is
specified as the "record date" or "book closuredahd in case of unregistered transfers, wheragteument
of transfer has been delivered to the companyegistration, the company shall comply with Sec65 of the
Companies Act by transferring such dividend to acgd account unless the company is authorizedhby t
registered holder in writing to pay such divideodhe transferee mentioned in the instrument.

No shareholder is entitled to a dividend while amyount is due from him to the company either irpees of
such shares or otherwise, either jointly or alofigis amount may be deducted from the interest videind
payable to the shareholder without prejudice to @hgr remedy of the company. However, once theusinis
declared, there shall be no forfeiture of unclairdeddends. Any dividend remaining unpaid or unclad after
having been declared by the company shall be déditby the company in accordance with Section 205A
205B and 205C of the Companies Act.

Dividends must be paid by cheque or warrant seouthh the post to the registered address of thebaeor
person entitled, or in case of joint holders td thae first named in the register in respect aitjbiolding. Every
such cheque shall be made payable to the orddregbérson to whom it is sent. Under the Companiets &\
company may only pay a dividend in excess of 10%add-up capital in respect of any year out ofgihafits of
that year after it has transferred to the reseoféhe company a percentage of its profits for §esdr ranging
between 2.5% to 10% depending on the rate of dind@oposed to be declared in that year. The Coiepan
Act further provides that if the profit for a yearinsufficient, the dividend for that year may declared out of
the accumulated profits earned in previous yeadst@msferred to reserves, subject to the followdagditions:
() the rate of dividend to be declared may noteextthe lesser of the average of the rates at wdinitlends
were declared in the five years immediately prengdhe year, or 10% of paid-up capital; (ii) théeat@mount
to be drawn from the accumulated profits from poesi years may not exceed an amount equivalentdodfO
paid-up capital and reserves and the amount sondiairst to be used to set off the losses inalirethe
financial year before any dividends in respect i@&fgrence or equity shares; and (iii) the balarfceeserves
after withdrawals must not be below 15% of paidecapital.
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Capitalization of Reserves

Our Company's Articles state that a General Megetirupon the recommendation of the Board, direct
capitalisation of the whole or any part of the widtd profits for the time being of our Company tlee whole

or any part of the Reserve Fund or other FundsiofCmmpany including the monies in the Securitissstifum
Account and the Capital Redemption Reserve Accdointhe purpose of distribution amongst such of the
shareholders as would be entitled to receive theesHd distributed by way of dividend and in the am
proportion upon the footing that they become esdithereto as capital, and the said sums shaltdiogty be
applied in paying up unissued shares of our Comparbe issued to members of our Company as fullg pa
bonus shares or in paying, in whole or in part,ah®unt remaining unpaid on the shares which naarg fbeen
issued to the members of our Company and whicmardully paid-up, provided that, the Securitiegfium
Account and the Capital Redemption Reserve Accaway, for the purposes of the aforesaid Article ydve
applied subject to the provisions of Sections 78&8d 80 (5) of the Companies Act, in paying of anissued
shares to be issued to the members of our Compafufiy paid bonus shares.

A General Meeting may resolve that any surplus rgereising from the realisation of any capital &ssd our
Company, or any investments representing the samany other undistributed profits of our Comparot n
subject to charge for income-tax be distributed mgnihe members on the footing that they receiveséimee as
capital.

Any issue of bonus shares would be subject to thdegjines issued by the SEBI in this regard. THevant
SEBI guidelines prescribe that no Company shatidpey conversion of convertible securities, issog shares
by way of bonus unless similar benefit is extendedhe holders of such convertible securities, dgfo
reservation of shares in proportion to such coneersFurther, for the issuance of such bonus shares
Company should not have defaulted in the paymernhtefest or principal in respect of fixed depostsd
interest on existing debentures or principal oreneption of such debentures. The declaration of baares
in lieu of dividend cannot be made. The bonus igsust be made out of free reserves built out ofugen
profits or share premium account collected in cag.

Further, a Company should have sufficient reasdreteve that it has not defaulted in respect ef gayment
of statutory dues of the employees such as cotimitbto provident fund, gratuity and/or bonus. Téguance of
bonus shares must be implemented within six maintms the date of approval by the board of directmrshe
shareholders, whichever is later.

Pre-Emptive Rights and Alteration of Share Capital

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Actpmgany, in general meeting, may increase its stepéal
by issuing new shares on such terms and with dgblsras a company, by action of shareholdersgareeral
meeting, determines, which may vary from the o@biissue in terms of rights as to dividend, votiog
otherwise in accordance with such rules and sulbjestich conditions as may be prescribed. In #gsud, the
laws require that for a Company to issue shareh wditferential voting rights a company must havel ha
distributable profits in terms of the Companies fwta period of three financial years and havedsfaulted in
filing annual accounts and annual returns for thenediately preceding three years. Whenever thdatagfi a
company has been increased through such resoltiierdirectors shall comply with the provisionsS#ction
97 of the Companies Act.

As per Section 81 of the Companies Act, such neaveshshall be offered to the persons, who at the afathe
offer are holders of equity shares in a comparyroportion to the amount paid up on those sharésagtdate.
The offer shall be made by notice specifying thenhar of shares offered and limiting a time, being less
than 30 days from the date of the offer within whuch offer, if not accepted, will be deemed teehbeen
declined. After such date the Board may disposthefshares offered in respect of which no accepténas
been received, in such manner as they think mosflaéal to a company. The offer is deemed to idela right
exercisable by the person concerned to renouncestibees offered to him in favour of any other perso
acceptable to the Board.

Under the provisions of Section 81(1A) of the Conipa Act, new shares may be offered to any persons

whether or not those persons include existing $twdders, in any manner whatsoever, if a speciallugisn to
that effect is passed by the shareholders of a aognm a general meeting. Where no such specialutsn is
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passed, if the vote cast (show of hands or on pofvour of the proposal contained in the resolutmoved at
the general meeting sanctioning the issue of shahes (including the casting vote, if any of thaioman) by
members who, being entitled to do so vote in perspwhere proxies are allowed by proxy, exceedvtites, if
any, cast against the proposal by members soezhtithd voting and the Central Government is satisfhn an
application made by the Board in that behalf thatgroposal is most beneficial to the company.

Notwithstanding this but subject to Section 81(B)he Companies Act, a company may increase itsilied
capital on exercise of an option attached to tHeedtire issued or loans raised by a company toezbsuch
debentures or loans into shares, or to subscribshares in a company. A company can also alteshigse
capital by way of a reduction of capital subjecSections 78, 80 and 100 to 105 of the Companiésdkdy
undertaking a buy-back of shares under the pres¢r8EBI guidelines and subject to the approvalstands
and conditions as prescribed under Section 77AA&Ad 77B of the Companies Act.

The Articles of our Company provides that subjeciSection 94 of the Companies Act, our Companya in
general meeting may consolidate and divide allny @f its share capital into shares of larger anhdban its
existing shares, sub-divide our share capital ghares of smaller amount than is fixed by the Memdum of
Association and the resolution whereby any shaeeib-divided, may determine that, as betweendlaehs of
the shares resulting from such sub-division, onemare of such shares shall have preference or apeci
advantage as regards dividend, capital or othenwiger or as compared with the other or otherancel shares
which have not been taken up by any person andceeits share capital in the manner authorised ky th
Companies Act, 1956.

Preference Shares

Subject to Section 80 of the Companies Act, any gleares may be issued as preference shares whkich at
the option of a company are liable to be redeeraed,the resolution authorizing such issue shaligilee the
manner, terms and conditions of redemption sultettie following the conditions: Under the Companket,
a company may issue redeemable preference shares bu

0] no such shares shall be redeemed except out otspaif a company which would otherwise be
available for dividends or out of the proceeds dfesh issue of shares made for the purposes of the
redemption;

(i) no such shares shall be redeemed unless theyllgrpdid;

(iii) the premium, if any, payable on redemption shallehbeen provided for out of the profits of a
company or out of a company's share premium acdmfote the shares are redeemed,;

(iv) where any such shares are redeemed otherwise tihaf the proceeds of a fresh issue, there shatll, o
of profits which would otherwise have been avagatdr dividends, be transferred to a reserve ftmd,
be called the Capital Redemption Reserve Accoustjm equal to the nominal amount of the shares
redeemed;

(v) subject to the provisions of Section 80 and 80Ahaf Companies Act, the redemption of preference
shares hereunder may be effected in accordancetlwitterms and conditions of their issue and in the
absence of any specific terms and conditions in Bedalf, in such manner as the Directors may
determine; and

(vi) whenever a company shall redeem any redeemablerpneke shares, a company shall, within one
month thereafter, give notice thereof to the Regisbf Companies as required by Section 95 of the
Act. Preference shares must be redeemable beferexttiry of a period of 20 years from the date of
their issue.

General Meetings of Shareholders

In accordance with Section 166 of the Companies &company must hold its Annual General Meetinthea
year within 15 months of the previous Annual Geh#aeting or within six months after the end of leac
accounting year, whichever is earlier, unless aadnby the Registrar of Companies at the request of
company for any special reason. Every member afmapany shall be entitled to attend every generadtimg
either in person or by proxy, and the auditor @banpany shall have the right to attend and to lzechat any
general meeting on any part of the business whafcerns him as auditor. The Board may convene an
extraordinary general meeting of shareholders wieaessary or at the request of a shareholder celsblders
holding in the aggregate not less than 10% of #seed paid-up capital of a company in accordangk wi
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Section 169 of the Companies Act.

Written notices convening a meeting setting outdhte, place and agenda of the meeting must ben give
members at least 21 days prior to the date of tbpgsed meeting. A general meeting may be callest af
giving shorter notice if consent is received frolirshareholders in the case of an Annual Generatig, and
from shareholders holding not less than 95% of ghil-up capital of a company, in the case of arherot
general meeting. A document may be served by a aoynpn any member thereof and the notice of every
meeting of a company shall be given to every mermbeany manner authorized by and as provided itigex
53 and 172 of the Companies Act. The accidentassian to give notice of any meeting to or the rexeipt of
any notice by the member or other person to whoshauld be given shall not invalidate the procegsliat the
meetings. Currently, our Company gives written ¢cegito all members and, in addition, gives pubtitice of
general meetings of shareholders in a daily newspapgeneral circulation in Maharashtra. Generaetimgs
are held in Mumbai, Maharashtra.

A Company intending to pass a resolution relatimgnatters such as, but not limited to, amendmernhén
objects clause of the Memorandum, buy-back of shareler the Companies Act, giving loans or extemdin
guarantees in excess of limits prescribed underGbmpanies Act, and guidelines issued there under,
required to obtain the resolution passed by meérss postal ballot instead of transacting the bussni@ the
general meeting of our Company. If the resolutisragsented to by a requisite majority of sharehslty
means of a postal ballot, it shall be deemed teeHasen duly passed at a general meeting conventtin
behalf.

Voting Rights

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Act Hrel Articles, votes may be given either personatyy
proxy, or in the case of a body corporate, a dulperised representative under Section 187 of mpganies
Act. At a general meeting, upon a show of handsryemember holding shares and entitled to votepaadent
in person has one vote. Before, or on the dectaraif the result of the voting on any resolutionaoshow of
hands, a poll may be ordered to be taken by ther@ha of the meeting by his own motion, and shall b
ordered to be taken by him on a demand made irbefzlf by the persons or person as may be provigéhbe
Companies Act. This demand for a poll may be wiladr at any time by the persons or person who nzate t
demand. A poll demanded on any other questionlfainig a question relating to the election of thai@han)
shall be taken at such time not being later thaty feight hours from the time when the demand waslenas
the Chairman may direct. The Chairman shall be jswolge for the validity of both a vote on a showhahds as
well as a vote on a poll. The Chairman of the nmgetias a casting vote. A proxy may not vote theesha
except on a poll. Ordinary resolutions may be padsesimple majority of those present and votinge&al
resolutions require that the votes cast in favduthe resolution must be at least three times thkesscast
against the resolution. The Companies Act provitlasto amend the Articles a special resolutioreéuired to
be passed in a general meeting. Certain instamm#gding dissolutions, merger or consolidatiormatompany,
transfer of the whole or a significant part of thesiness of a company to another company or takieg the
whole of the business of any other Company andnincase where shareholding of public financiditunsons
and banks exceeds 25%, appointment of statutoriyoasidrequire a special resolution.

A shareholder may exercise his voting rights byxgrto be given in the form required by the articte#fsa
company. Any member entitled to vote at a meetihg oompany is entitled to appoint another persoihia
proxy to attend and vote on a poll instead of hifngeit a proxy so appointed does not have thet iglspeak
at the meeting. Every notice convening a meeting obmpany shall state that a member entitledtématand
vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a prary that the proxy need not be a member of a comgdre
instrument appointing a proxy is required to begled with a company at least 48 hours before the tifrthe
meeting in accordance with Schedule IX of the CamgmAct as far as possible. Every member who tislenh
to vote at the meeting shall be entitled from @quebeginning 24 hours prior to the time fixed fbe meeting
and concluding at the end of the meeting, to insfiex proxies lodged at the meeting during busifesss,
provided that three days' written notice is givenat company. A shareholder may, by a single power o
attorney, grant a general power of representateganding several general meetings of shareholders.
corporate shareholder is also entitled to nomiatepresentative to attend and vote on its behaleaeral
meetings. A shareholder which is a legal entity rappoint an authorised representative who can ot
respects as if a member both on a show of handa @aol. However, no member shall be entitled tteat any
general meeting either personally or by proxy opraxy for another member or be reckoned in a quondile
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any call or other sum shall be due and payabledonapany in respect of any of the shares of sucamiyee or
in respect of any shares on which a company hhadexercised any right of lien.

Register of Shareholders and Record Dates

A company is obliged to maintain a register of shatders at its Registered Office in Mumbai, Makhtea.
With the approval of its shareholders by way ofpacéal resolution and with prior notice to the Rdgir of
Companies, Mumbai, a company may maintain the teri shareholders at some other place in the sitye
The register and index of beneficial owners maivgdi by a depositary under the Depositories Act,61i89
deemed to be an index of members and registerratek iof debenture holders. In the case of sharkime
physical form, a company registers transfers ofeshan the register of shareholders upon lodgemktite
share transfer form duly complete in all respectompanied by a share certificate or, if theredsertificate,
the letter of allotment in respect of shares tramefl, together with duly stamped transfer formstelspect of
electronic transfers, the depository is the regésteowner in the books of that company and traegbares by
entering the name of the purchaser in its bookthasheneficial owner of the shares. Every persdditg
securities of a company and whose name is enteredb@neficial owner in the records of the depogishall
be deemed to be a member of that company. Theib=hefvner is entitled to all the rights and betseés well
as the liabilities with respect to the shares trat held by the depository. Transfer of benefioahership
through a depository is exempt from any stamp duy each depository participant may have its own
depository charges. A transfer of shares by wag stiock transfer form attracts stamp duty at the 080.25%
of the transfer price.

For the purpose of determining the shareholdeesregister may be closed for periods not exceedfindays in
any one year or 30 days at any one time at suatstias the Board may deem expedient in accordaiticehe
provisions of the Companies Act. Under the listagzeements of the Stock Exchanges on which a coyigpan
outstanding Shares are listed, the company may) apteast 15 days' advance notice to such stociagges,
set a record date and/or close the register oebbéders in order to ascertain the identity of shatders. The
trading of shares and the delivery of certificatesrespect thereof may continue while the regisiér
shareholders is closed. Under the Companies Aingpany is also required to maintain a registetetifenture
holders.

Annual Report and Financial Results

The Annual Report must be laid before the Annuatéal Meeting. This includes certain financial imf@tion
about a company such as the audited financialstattes as of the date of closing of the financisryea
corporate governance section and management'ssdisnuand analysis, and is sent to the sharehotifeass
company.

Under the Companies Act, a company must file theuah Report with the Registrar of Companies within
seven months from the close of the accounting peawithin 30 days from the date of the annual geher
meeting, whichever is earlier. As required under likting agreements with the Stock Exchanges,esopie
required to be simultaneously sent to the StockhBrges. A company must also publish its finan@auits in

at least one English language daily newspaper laiiog in the whole or substantially the whole oflia and
also in a newspaper published in the language efréigion where the registered office of the compiny
situated.

Our Company files certain information on-line, imding its Annual Report, six-month and quarterhaficial
statements and the shareholding pattern stateieattcordance with the requirements of the lisiggeements
and as may be specified by the SEBI from timerteeti

Transfer of Shares

Shares held through depositories are transferréioeiriorm of book entries or in electronic formaacordance
with the regulations laid down by the SEBI. Thesgulations provide the regime for the functionirfgttee
depositories and the participants and set out #ener in which the records are to be kept and miaied and

the safeguards to be followed in this system. Teaasof beneficial ownerships of shares held thhoag
depository are exempt from stamp duty. Our Comphay entered into an agreement for such depository
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services with National Securities Depository Lirditend the Central Depository Services India Limited

The SEBI requires that a company's shares forrtgadnd settlement purposes be in book-entry fonralio
investors, except for transactions that are noten@da stock exchange and transactions that arequired to
be reported to the stock exchange. A company &kalb a book called the register of transfer in Wwhagery
transfer or transmission of shares will be entered.

The shares are freely transferable, subject onlyhéoprovisions of the Companies Act, under whi€ha
transfer of shares contravenes the SEBI provismmthe regulations issued under it, or the Sickuktdal
Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985 ("SICAY),any other similar law, the Company Law Board may
on an application made by a Company, a depositmyrporated in India, an investor, the SEBI or otheaties,
direct a rectification of the register of membdfsa Company without sufficient cause refuses tgiser a
transfer of shares within two months from the datewhich the instrument of transfer is deliveredthat
company, the transferee may appeal to the Indiangaay Law Board seeking to register the transfexquiity
shares. The Company Law Board may, in its disanetissue an interim order suspending the votintsig
attached to the relevant equity shares before aatinglits investigation of the alleged contraventio

Under the Companies (Second Amendment) Act, 20@2]ridian Company Law Board will be replaced with
the National Company Law Tribunal. Further, under Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisionspéal
Act, 2003, which is expected to come into forcergfiothe SICA is sought to be repealed and ther8ad
Industrial and Financial Reconstruction, as comgd under the SICA, is to be replaced with theidvat
Company Law Tribunal.

Pursuant to the listing agreements, in the evetdrapany has not effected the transfer of shardsirwine
month or where the company has failed to commuaitatthe transferee any valid objection to the dfan
within the stipulated time period of one month, dwnpany is required to compensate the aggrievey fa
the opportunity loss caused during the period efdélay.

The Companies Act provides that the shares or deken of a publicly listed Company shall be freely
transferable. However, the Board may, subject ti®e 111 of the Companies Act, at anytime in tlisolute
and uncontrolled discretion by giving reasons aecto register shares. However, this may not be donthe
grounds that the transferor is indebted to the @mpn any account whatsoever. Notice of such a¢fusist
be sent to the transferee within two months ofdée on which the transfer was lodged with the camyp

A transfer may also be by transmission. Subjedh#&provisions of the Companies Act and our Comjsany
Articles, any person becoming entitled to sharesonsequence of the death, bankruptcy or insolveh@any
member or by any lawful means other than by a fearis accordance with our Company’s Articles, maith
the consent of the Board(which they shall not bdenrany obligation to give), upon producing sucldernce
that the Board thinks sufficient, be registerecasember in respect of such shares, or may eld@we some
person nominated by him and approved by the Boagistered as such holder.

Acquisition by a company of its own Shares

A company is prohibited from acquiring its own gmunless the consequent reduction of capitaféstefd by
an approval of at least 75% of its shareholdersngmn the matter in accordance with the CompaAigsand
sanctioned by the High Court of Judicature in titg where the company's registered office is lodatubject
to certain conditions, a Company is prohibited frgiving, whether directly or indirectly and wheth®r means
of a loan, guarantee, the provision of securityottrerwise, any financial assistance for the purpafser in
connection with a purchase or subscription made e made by any person for any shares in the aoynpr
its holding company. However, pursuant to the Camgm Act by way of Section 77A, 77AA and 77B, a
company has been empowered to purchase its owassbaother specified securities out of its freserees, or
the securities premium account or the proceedseofssue of any shares or other specified secu(ipigher than
from the proceeds of an earlier issue of the sameé &f shares or other specified securities progpdsebe
bought back) subject to certain conditions, inahggdi

0] the buy-back should be authorised by the ArticleAssociation of the company;

(i) a special resolution has been passed in the gemerting of the company authorising the buy-back;
(iii) the buy-back is limited to 25% of the total paidagpital and free reserves;
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(iv) the debt owed by the company is not more than ttfieecapital and free reserves after such buy-back;
and

(V) the buy-back is in accordance with the Securitied &xchange Board of India (Buy-Back of
Securities) Regulation, 1998.

The condition mentioned above in (ii) would notdmplicable if the buy-back is for less than 10%hef total
paid-up equity capital and free reserves of thepamy and provided that such buy-back has been @zghdoy
the board of directors of the company. A companyifm back its securities is required to extinguastd
physically destroy the securities so bought badkiwiseven days of the last date of completionhef huy-
back. Further, a company buying back its securidasot permitted to buy back any securities fgreaiod of
one year from the buy-back and to issue secuffitiesix months. Every buy-back must be completethiwia
period of one year from the date of passing ofsiecial resolution or resolution of the Board,les¢ase may
be.

A company is also prohibited from purchasing itenoshares or specified securities through any didrsi
company, including its own subsidiary companiesthoough any investment company (other than a @mseh
of shares in accordance with a scheme for the pgecbf shares by trustees of or for shares to loeblyeor for
the benefit of employees of the company) or if dmmpany is defaulting on the repayment of deposit o
interest, redemption of debentures or preferenaeeshor payment of dividend to a shareholder cayegent of
any term loan or interest payable thereon to amgnigial institution or bank, or in the event of rammpliance
with certain other provisions of the Companies Act.

Liquidation Rights

Subject to the rights of creditors, of employeed ahthe holders of any other shares entitled leyjrtterms of
issue to preferential repayment over the shareerevent of a winding-up of the company, the addf the
shares are entitled to be repaid the amounts dfatg@id up or credited as paid up on such shaksurplus
assets after payments due to employees, the hadflersy preference shares and other creditors beloithe
holders of the equity shares in proportion to timeoant paid up or credited as paid up on such shares
respectively, at the commencement of the windinglopcase assets available are insufficient to yepa
whole of the paid up capital, the assets shallobdistributed such that the losses are borne textent possible
by the shareholders in the ratio of capital contiéd. In case any of the shares involve a liabiiitycall or
otherwise, any person may, within ten days afterghssing of the resolution, by notice in writingedt the
liquidators to sell his proportion and pay him thet proceeds and the liquidator shall, if practieatact
accordingly.

The division of assets on winding up, if thoughpedient, may subject to the provisions of the CamgmAct,
be otherwise than in accordance with the legaltsigii the contributories (except when unalterablgd by the
Memorandum) and in particular, any class may bergipreferential or special rights which may be edeld
altogether or in part but any contributory who igjpdiced by the same would have a right to dissert
possess ancillary rights as though such deterroimatiere a special resolution under Section 494hef
Companies Act.

—
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TAXATION ASPECTS RELATING TO THE INSTRUMENT

To,

The Board of Directors,

Ackruti City Limited

Akruti Trade Centre, BFloor,

Road No. 7, Marol MIDC, Andheri (East), Mumbai -0093
Maharashtra, India

Dear Sirs,

We hereby report that the enclosed annexure sthgegprobable tax benefits that may be availablehto
Shareholders of Ackruti City Limited (Formerly knovas Akruti City Limited) (the “Company”) under the
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, Wealth Pect, 1957 and the Gift Tax Act, 1958, presentlyvaiéng
and in force in India.

Several of these benefits are subject to the Coynparits Shareholders fulfilling the conditions peceibed
under the relevant tax laws and their interpretestiddence, the ability of the Company or its Shalddrs to
derive tax benefits is subject to fulfilment of céuconditions, which based on business imperatthes
Company faces in the future, the Company may or neaghoose to fulfill.

The benefits discussed in the enclosed statementather exhaustive nor are they conclusive. $tatement
is only intended to provide general information aodjuide the investors and is neither designedntended
to be a substitute for professional tax advice. harsholder is advised to consult his/ her/ theim cax
consultant with respect to the tax implicationsaofinvestment in the equity shares particularlyiew of the
fact that certain recently enacted legislation may have a direct legal precedent or may have ferdiit
interpretation on the benefits, which an investon avail.

The tax benefits discussed in the annexure doegaketinto account the provisions of the proposéedd
Taxes Code, 2009 and is based on the law prevabran the date of the certificate

We do not express any opinion or provide any asseras to whether:

e The Company or its Shareholders will continueltain these benefits in future; or
*  The conditions prescribed for availing the bésdfave been / would be met with; or
¢ The revenue authorities / courts will concurhwthe views expressed herein.

Our views are based on the existing provisionsef &nd its interpretations, which are subject tangfe from
time to time. We do not assume responsibility tedape the views of such changes.

The contents of this annexure are based on infiomaéxplanations and representations obtained fitzen
Company and on the basis of our understandingeobtisiness activities and operations of the Compafijle
all reasonable care has been taken in the preparatithis opinion we accept no responsibility &y errors
and omissions therein or for any loss sustainedrtyyperson who relies on it.

This report is intended solely for information afod the inclusion in the Preliminary Placement Doeunt /
Placement Document in connection with the propdgedlified Institutional Placement of the Company &
not to be used, referred to or distributed for ather purpose without our prior written consent.

For and on behalf of For and on behalf of
DALAL & SHAH DOSHI DOSHI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
SHISHIR DALAL VIRAL DOSHI
Partner Partner
Membership No.: 37310 Membership No.: 105330

Mumbai: 28" August, 2009

-171 -



pels Ackruti Citymited - Placement Document

The information provided below sets out the posestbk benefits available to the shareholders ofiradian
company in a summary manner only and is not a cetagnalysis or listing of all potential tax consegces
of the subscription, ownership and disposal of ggshares, under the current tax laws presentljonte in
India. Several of these benefits are dependenhestareholders fulfilling the conditions prescdbénder the
relevant tax laws. Hence the ability of the shatdbrs to derive the tax benefits is dependent Upditling
such conditions, which based on business impegiivéaces in the future, it may not choose toilfulthe
following overview is not exhaustive or compreheasind is not intended to be a substitute for msifeal
advice. Investors are advised to consult their das consultant with respect to the tax implicatiafsan
investment in the Shares particularly in view a&f fhct that certain recently enacted legislationymat have a
direct legal precedent or may have a differentriptetation on the benefits, which an investor caaia

STATEMENT OF POSSIBLE TAX BENEFITS AVAILABLE TO THE COMPANY'’S
SHAREHOLDERS UNDER THE INCOME TAX ACT, 1961 AND OTH ER DIRECT TAX LAWS
PRESENTLY IN FORCE IN INDIA

TAX BENEFITS AVAILABLE TO THE COMPANY'S SHAREHOLDER S

* This Statement sets out below the possible taxflier@eailable to the Company’s shareholders under
the current tax laws presently in force in Indiaav&al of these benefits are dependent on such
shareholders fulfilling the conditions prescribettar the relevant tax laws. Hence, the abilityhef t
shareholders to derive the tax benefits is depengwmn fulfilling such conditions, which based o t
business imperatives, the shareholders may or miaghoose to fulfil;

» This Statement sets out below the provisions ofila& summary manner only and is not a complete
analysis or listing of all potential tax consequenof the subscription, ownership and disposal of
equity shares. This statement is only intendedréwige general information to the investors and is
neither designed nor intended to be a substituta farofessional tax advice. In view of the indiédi
nature of tax consequences and the changing tas kach investor is advised to consult his or ner o
their own tax consultant with respect to the sped#x implications arising out of their participat in
the issue;

* Inrespect of non-residents, the tax rates andahsequent taxation, mentioned in this section leal
further subject to any benefits available under Blmible Taxation Avoidance Agreement, if any,
between India and the country in which the nondesi has fiscal domicile; and

* The stated benefits will be available only to tb&ed first named holder in case the shares a il
joint shareholders.

I. Tax Benefits available to shareholders of the Compeg under the Indian Income Tax Act (IT Act)
A. Resident Shareholders

1. Under Section 10(32) of the IT Act, any income ohan children clubbed in the total income of theerd
under Section 64(1A) of the IT Act, will be exenfiim tax to the extent of Rs.1,500 per minor chittbse
income is so included.

2. The Company is required to pay a ‘dividend distiitou tax’ currently at the rate of 16.995 per cent.
(including applicable surcharge and education ceasphe total amount distributed or declared od =8
dividend. Under Section 10(34) of the IT Act, inaaioy way of dividend referred to in Section 115{Qhe
IT Act, received on the shares of the Company sngt from income tax in the hands of shareholders.
However it is pertinent to note that Section 14Atkeé IT Act restricts claims for deduction of expes
incurred in relation to exempt income. Thus, angemses incurred to earn the dividend income isanot
allowable expenditure.

3. The characterization of the gains/losses, arisiognfsale of shares, as capital gains or businessria
would depend on the nature of holding in the hasidee shareholder and various other factors.
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The long-term capital gains (under section 2(29B)the IT Act) accruing to the shareholders of the
Company on sale of the Company’s shares in a tcéingacarried out through a recognized stock exghan
in India, and where such transaction is charge@mbdecutities transaction tax (“STT”"), is exempinfrtax as
per provisions of Section 10(38) of the IT Act.

The short-term capital gains (under section 2(42A)Yhe IT Act) accruing to the shareholders of the
Company on sale of the Company’s shares in a tctingacarried out through a recognized stock exghan
in India, and where such transaction is charge&bI8TT, tax will be chargeable at 15 per cent. plu
applicable surcharge and education cess) as peisimos of Section 111A of the IT Act. Further no
deduction under Chapter VI-A of the IT Act, would bllowed in computing such short term capital gain
subjected to tax under Section 111A. In other cashsre the transaction is not subjected to ST& stiort
term capital gains would be chargeable as a pditieototal income and the tax rates would depenthen
income slab.

As per the provisions of Section 112 of the IT Aloing term gains accruing to the shareholders ef th
Company from the transfer of shares of the Comgmeing listed in recognized stock exchanges, ottserwi
than as mentioned in point 4(a) above, is chargetbtax at 10% (plus applicable surcharge andadihrc
cess) after deducting from the sale proceeds tl¢ @b acquisition without indexation. However, the
shareholders claiming the benefit of indexation lddoe subject to tax at 20% (plus applicable suigha
and education cess) on the long term gains. Furtbeteduction under Chapter VI-A would be allowad i
computing such long term capital gains subjecatounder Section 112 of the IT Act.

Shareholders are entitled to claim exemption ipeet of tax on long term capital gains (other thaose

exempt under Section 10(38) of the IT Act) undesti®®a 54EC of the IT Act, if the amount of capitains

is invested in certain specified bonds / securitihin six months from the date of transfer, sabj® the

fulfillment of the conditions specified therein. &Imaximum investment permissible on and after April
2007 for the purposes of claiming the exemptiotheénabove bonds, by any person in a financial yeds.

5 million.

However, according to Section 54EC(2) of the ITt,Atthe shareholder transfers or converts théfiadt
bonds into money within a period of three yearsririhe date of their acquisition, the amount of tpi
gains exempted earlier would become chargeablaxtas long term capital gains in the year in whiohh
bonds are transferred or otherwise converted irgoey.

Shareholders that are individuals or Hindu undidifemilies can avail of an exemption under Sectdf
of the IT Act, by utilization of the sales considion arising from the sale of the Company’s slieele for a
period of more than 12 months (which is not exemmter Section 10(38)), for purchase / constructiba
residential house within the specified time peraodl subject to the fulfillment of the conditionsesjiied
therein.

. Section 88E of the IT Act, provides that where tb&al income of a person includes income chargeable

under the head “Profits and gains of business afiepsion” arising from purchase or sale of an gugliare

in a company carried out through a recognized seo@hange, i.e., from taxable securities transastibe

shall get rebate equal to the STT paid by him éndburse of his business. Such rebate is to bevedldrom

the amount of income tax in respect of such tratiwas calculated by applying average rate of incdaxe

Thus, where the income from purchase and sale wfyeshares in a company is taxable as businesgriac
and not as capital gains, a rebate of STT paigagable to such person.

. 1 Non-resident shareholders — other than Foreighstitutional Investors

. Under Section 10(32) of the IT Act, any income dhan children clubbed with the total income of the

parent under Section 64(1A) of the IT Act, will eeempt from tax to the extent of Rs.1,500 per maioid
whose income is so included.

. The Company is required to pay a ‘dividend distiitnu tax’ currently at the rate of 16.995 per cent.

(including applicable surcharge and education ceasphe total amount distributed or declared od =8
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dividend. Dividend (whether interim or final) dedd, distributed or paid, under Section 115-O @f kh
Act, by the Company are exempt in the hands ofedt@ders as per the provisions of Section 10(34hef
IT Act. However it is pertinent to note that Seati@4A of the IT Act restricts claim for deductiori o
expenses incurred in relation to exempt income.sThay expenses incurred to earn the dividend iecism
not an allowable expenditure.

. The characterization of the gains/losses, arismoghfsale of shares, as capital gains or businessria

would depend on the nature of holding in the hasidhe shareholder and various other factors.

. The long-term capital gains accruing to a sharedrotd the Company, being a non-resident, on sathef

Company's shares in a transaction carried out tift@urecognized stock exchange in India, and wiech
transaction is chargeable to STT, is exempt frotrataper provisions of Section 10(38) of the IT.Act

. The short-term capital gains accruing to a shadshiadf the Company on sale of the Company’s shiaras

transaction carried out through a recognized stex&hange in India, and where such transaction is
chargeable to STT, tax is chargeable at 15 per. ¢plis applicable surcharge and education cespeas
provisions of Section 111A of the IT Act. Furtheg deduction under Chapter VI-A would be allowed in
computing such short term capital gains subjeabetix under Section 111A. In other case, i.e. witlege
transaction is not subjected to STT, the short teapital gains would be chargeable as a part otdtsd
income and the tax rate would depend on the incglate Further no deduction under Chapter VI-A would
be allowed in computing such short term capitahgaiubjected to tax under Section 111A.

. As per the provisions of Section 112 of the IT Aong term gains accruing to the shareholders ef th

Company, being non-residents, from the transfeshafres of the Company being listed in recognizecdkst
exchanges, otherwise than as mentioned in poirto¥eg are chargeable to tax at 20% (plus applicable
surcharge and education cess) after deducting tfmmsale proceeds the cost of acquisition. Such non
resident shareholders are allowed to adjust the afosacquisition by the amount of foreign exchamgee
fluctuations in computing long-term capital gaifrther, no deduction under Chapter VI-A would be
allowed in computing such long term capital gainigjscted to tax under Section 112.

. Under the provisions of Section 90(2) of the IT Aiftthe provisions of the Double Taxation Avoidanc

Agreement (DTAA) between India and the countryedidence of the non-resident are more benefitiah t
the provisions of the DTAA shall be applicable.

. The shareholders are entitled to claim exemptiaespect of tax on long term capital gains othantthose

exempt under Section 10(38) of the IT Act underti®acs4EC of the IT Act, if the amount of capitaligs

is invested in certain specified bonds / securiti@in six months from the date of transfer subjecthe
fulfilment of the conditions specified therein. Theaximum investment permissible for the purposes of
claiming the exemption in the above bonds by anggein a financial year is Rs. 5 million.

However, according to Section 54EC(2) of the ITt,Atthe shareholder transfers or converts théfiadt
bonds into money within a period of three yearsmfrthhe date of their acquisition, the amount of tpi
gains exempted earlier would become chargeablaxtad long term capital gains in the year in wtiobh
bonds are transferred or otherwise converted irdoay.

. Individual shareholders can avail of an exemptindar Section 54F by utilization of the sales coasition

arising from the sale of company’s share held fpeaod more than 12 months (which is not exemptean
Section 10(38)), for purchase/construction of édexgtial house within the specified time period snthject
to the fulfillment of the conditions specified tlear.

B. 2 Non-resident shareholders — Foreign Institutioal Investors

1.

The Company is required to pay a ‘dividend dsttion tax’ currently at the rate of 16.995 pertcen
(including applicable surcharge and education ceasphe total amount distributed or declared od =8
dividend. Under Section 10(34) of the IT Act, inaorhy way of dividend referred to in Section 115-O
received on the shares of the Company is exempt income tax in the hands of shareholders. Howiver
is pertinent to note that Section 14A of the IT Aestricts claim for deduction of expenses incurired
relation to exempt income.
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2. The characterization of the gains/losses, arismoghfsale of shares, as capital gains or businessria
would depend on the nature of holding in the hasfdee shareholder and various other factors.

o

a) The long-term capital gains accruing to the shddsre of the Company on sale of the Company’s shiare
a transaction carried out through a recognizedkstoahange in India, and where such transaction is

chargeable to STT, is exempt from tax as per pravisof Section 10(38).

b

~

The short-term capital gains accruing to the mesbéthe Company on sale of the Company’s shares in
transaction carried out through a recognized stex&hange in India, and where such transaction is
chargeable to STT, tax will be chargeable at 15cpet. plus applicable surcharge and educationaegger
provisions of Section 111A. In other case, i.e. ighthe transaction is not subjected to STT, astiper
provisions of Section 115AD of the Act, the shann capital gains would be chargeable to tax ap&0
cent. (plus applicable surcharge and educatior).cess

c) As per the provisions of Section 115AD of the Aong term gains accruing to the shareholders of the
Company from the transfer of shares of the Compaging listed in recognized stock exchanges and
purchased in foreign currency, otherwise than astiowed in point 3(a) above, are chargeable tcatakO
per cent. (plus applicable surcharge and educatss). The benefit of indexation and the adjustrettt
respect to fluctuation in foreign exchange rate ot be allowed to such shareholders. The filafig
return under section 139(1) for income computedeurection 115AD is mandatory. Further, where the
Gross Total Income (GTI) of the members includeg imecome on which tax has been paid as per special
rates provided under Section 115AD, then the GHIldbe reduced by the amount of such income and
deduction under chapter VIA shall be allowed irpezs of reduced GTI.

d) The shareholders are entitled to claim exemptioregpect of tax on long term capital gains undetiGe

54EC of the IT Act, if the amount of capital gaiasnvested in certain specified bonds / securitighin six

months from the date of transfer subject to thélfioént of the conditions specified therein. Thexnaum
investment permissible for the purposes of claintimg exemption in the above bonds by any persan in
financial year is Rs. 5 million.

=

However, according to section 54 EC(2) of the Iat,Af the shareholder transfers or converts thefied
bonds into money within a period of three yearsririhe date of their acquisition, the amount of tpi
gains exempted earlier would become chargeablaxtas long term capital gains in the year in whiobh
bonds are transferred or otherwise converted irgoey.

4. Under the provisions of Section 90(2) of the IT Aiftthe provisions of the Double Taxation Avoidanc
Agreement (DTAA) between India and the countryedidence of the non-resident are more benefitiah t
the provisions of the DTAA shall be applicable.

Il. Tax Benefits available to the shareholders under #nindian Wealth-Tax Act, 1957
Shares of company held by the shareholder willbeotreated as an asset within the meaning of Se2{er)
of Wealth Tax Act, 1957. Hence no Wealth Tax wié payable on the market value of shares of the
Company held by the shareholder of the Company.

[ll. Tax Benefits available to the shareholders under #nindian Gift Tax Act, 1958

Gift Tax is not leviable in respect of any gifts deaon or after 1 October, 1998. Therefore, any gift of shares
of the company will not attract gift tax.

IV. Benefits available to Mutual Funds

As per the provisions of Section 10(23D) of theAgt, any income of Mutual Funds registered under th
SEBI Act, 1992 or regulations made thereunder, Miufeunds set up by public sector banks or public
financial institutions and Mutual Funds authoridey the Reserve Bank of India would be exempt from
income tax, subject to the conditions as the Ce@mvernment may by notification in the Official Gte
specify in this behalf. However, Mutual Funds viiél liable to pay tax on distributed income to uratders
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under Section 115R of the IT Act.
V. Tax Deduction at Source

No income-tax is deductible at source from incomevay of capital gains under the present provisiafrihe
IT Act, in case of residents.

However, as per the provisions of section 195 eflth Act, any income by way of capital gains, pdgatio
non residents (long-term capital gains exempt useetion 10(38) of the IT Act), may be eligible ttee
provisions of with-holding tax, subject to the pions of the relevant tax treaty.

Accordingly income tax may have to be deductedatce in the case of a non- resident at the raderhe

domestic tax laws or under the tax treaty, whichévdeneficial to the assessee unless a lowehwiiting
tax certificate is obtained from the tax authostie
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LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Our Company is involved in various legal proceedimgnding before relevant Courts/statutory autiesrit
including tax-related litigation, civil matters, iminal matters, intellectual property related disgsu and
consumer disputes. Our Company does not expeat tegal proceedings to have a material adversedirga
our business, results of operations and financiatition.

Details of these legal proceedings are as below:

Our Company, our Subsidiaries, our Joint Ventuned &oint Ventures of our Subsidiariage involved in
certain legal proceedings and claims in relationcéotain civil, criminal and consumer litigation tteas
incidental to their business and operations. Thieggl proceedings are pending at different leveis o
adjudication before various courts and tribunalsiy Aadverse decision may render us/them liable to
liabilities/penalties and may adversely affect thaiisiness and results of operations. A classitinabf the
material legal and other proceedings institutedggainst our Company is given in the followinbléa

Type of Legal Total number of pending cases Amount involved (Rs. in million,
Proceedings Cases filed by our Cases filed against approximate amount)
Company our Company
Civil cases 21 22 100.00*
Quantifiable cases 8 7
Criminal cases 2 NIL Not quantifiable
Quantifiable cases 2 NIL
Consumer cases NIL 31 29.00
Quantifiable cases NIL 31

* The claim amount excludes the amount claimedasades in one case. The claim has been filed stgasn
and certain other parties in relation to one of pnajects, and the relief sought is either vacatibthe relevant
land or a monetary claim, which our Company comsid® be disproportionate, baseless, frivolous and
untenable. Our Company has initiated legal procegiagainst the counter party. We have spent aafum
approximately Rs. 210 million on the said projéttate.

A classification of these legal and other procegslimstituted by or against our Subsidiaries igiin the
following table:

Type of Legal Total number of pending cases Amount
Proceedings Cases filed by our Cases filed against our involved

Subsidiary Subsidiary (Rs. in million)
Civil cases 4 1 0.8 million
Quantifiable cases 1 NIL

A classification of these legal and other procegslimstituted by our Joint Ventures are given m fibllowing
table:

Type of Legal Proceedings Total number of pending cases Amount involved (Rs.)
Civil cases 2 Not quantifiable
Quantifiable cases NIL
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A classification of these legal and other procegsliinstituted by or against the Joint Ventures of o
Subsidiaries is given in the following table:

Type of Legal Total number of pending cases Amount involved
Proceedings Cases filed by our Cases filed against our (Rs.)

Subsidiary Subsidiary
Civil cases 5 4 Not quantifiable
Quantifiable cases NIL NIL

Note: The amounts as stated above are the amoxmpitsssly claimed, being the liability and finandialpact
that our Company/Subsidiary/joint venture may in€ut'they are unsuccessful in legal proceedirigswever,
it does not include those penalties, interests asds, if any, that may be imposed on our Companty aur
Directors that may have been pleaded but not digdhtin the course of legal proceedings, or whibb t
Court/Tribunal otherwise has the discretion to isgapon our Company. The imposition and amountiofi s
penalties/interest/costs are at the discretiorhefGourt/Tribunal where the case is pending. Siadfility, if
any, would become actual liabilities only on thderof the Court / Tribunal where the case is pegdAll the
aforesaid information in this chapter titled ‘Ledabceedings is as of August 21, 2009.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Our Company was incorporated as Akruti Nirman Revaimited on February 16, 1989. Our Company was
subsequently converted into a public limited conyan April 11, 2002. The name of our Company was
changed to Akruti City Limited on October 11, 2087d further changed to Ackruti City Limited on Juhe
2009. Our Company's Identification number is L4526{1989PLC050688.

Our Company's current corporate and registeredeof situated at Akruti Trade Centr&' Bloor, Road No. 7,
Marol MIDC, Andheri (East), Mumbai — 400093.

Our Company's main objects as set out in our Menuhra of Association are:

1.

To engage, undertake and execute any contract&ddks construction or projects involving civil,
mechanical and electrical engineering.

To undertake and execute contract for designing emwktructing bridges, ecqueducts, tunnels,
industrial sheds, cooling towers, foundations, tgnaeirs, dams, mass excavations, public utility
structures, buildings.

To carry on business of Builders, Contractors, Bxsain and manufacture of pre-fabricated and pre-
cast houses, buildings or erection and materialslst implements, machines and metalware in
connection therewith or incidental thereto fabiimator erection of steel or tubular structures.

To purchase, develop, take in exchange or on le@seor otherwise acquire, whether for investment
and or sale or working the same, any real or palsestate or property including land, mine business
building, factory, mill, houses, cottages, shopsaral, right concession, privilege, licenses, ¢eas

whatsoever for the purpose of the Company in cenattbn for a gross sum or rent or partly in or one
and partly in other or for sum other consideratom to carry on business as proprietor of flats and
buildings and to let on lease any houses, aparsnesterein and to provide for conveniences
commonly provided in flats, suites residential &odiness quarters.

To build, construct, commercialise, convert, depeltesign, demolish, deal, erect, establish, fabeic
finance, furnish, hire, improve, lease, licensenage, maintain, repair, remodel, recondition, retev
and sell Hotels, Taverns, Restaurants, Food Colutssheon counters, Cafeterias, Bars, Resorts,
Refreshment Rooms, Boarding and Lodging, House &mepMotels, Guesthouses, Clubs, Shopping
Malls, Theatres and Cinemas, Entertainment andt§@owmplex, Entertainment Multiplexes, Places
of amusement recreations, Amusement parks, Regne&@entres, Pubs, Discotheques, Swimming
Pools, Fitness and Health clubs, Banquet halls,ritge halls, Hospitals, Schools, Super markets,
Hyper markets, Departmental stores, Places of wordighways, Roads, Paths, Streets, Sideways,
Courts, Alleys, Pavements, Bridges, land and tottier similar construction leveling or paving work,
and for those purposes to purchase, take on learset)erwise acquire and hold any lands and peespar
layout thereon or buildings of any tenure or dggyn wherever situate and to do the businessaif re
estate developers, construction and estate agaojserty dealers and to carry out such other rélate
activities in India or any other part of the world.

This Issue was authorized and approved by the Bafdbdrectors on June 4, 2009. Further, the Issue i
authorized by a special resolution adopted by dwareholders pursuant to Section 81(1A) of the
Companies Act on July 21, 2009 in accordance wvhighgrovisions of Section 192A of the Companies
Act read with the Companies (Passing of the Resoisity Postal Ballot) Rules, 2001.

Subject to matters described and discussed ineitteoa entitled "Legal Proceedings”, our Company is
not involved in any litigation or arbitration praadings that have a significant adverse effect an ou
Company's financial position, and our Company isaveare that any such proceedings are pending or
threatened.

Our Company has also filed a copy of the PrelimirRlacement Document with BSE and NSE, and

has received in-principle approvals from BSE andEN®der Clause 24(a) of the listing agreement by
their letters dated August 31, 2009 and AugusB09, respectively.
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Our Company prepared its audited consolidated fimhrstatements for the years ended March 31,
2007, March 31, 2008 and March 31, 2009 as corddeeein in conformity with Indian GAAP.. The
unaudited financial results (limited reviewed) amates thereto for the first quarter ended June 30,
2009 have been prepared by our Company pursugdlaisse 41 of the Listing Agreements with the
Stock Exchanges in India.

Except as disclosed in the Placement Documentg thas been no significant change in our financial
position since March 31, 2009, the date of ourdastited financial results.

Our Joint Statutory Auditors, Dalal & Shah, ChaeterAccountants and Doshi Doshi & Associates,
Chartered Accountants, have consented to the ioclusf their report in the Placement Document
which includes the audited consolidated financidibimation for the years ended March 31, 2007,
March 31, 2008 and March 31, 2009 and the unaudiitedcial results (limited reviewed) for the first

quarter ended June 30, 2009.

Copies of our Memorandum and Articles of Associatiall be available for inspection during usual
business hours on any weekday (except Saturdaygja$s and public holidays) at our Registered
Office.

We have obtained all consents, approvals and dsétimns required in connection with the Issue,
except for consents from some lenders for whichheaxe applied for and are awaited.

Except as mentioned in the Placement Documente theg no litigation or arbitration proceedings
against or affecting us or our assets or revenugshware or might be material in the context of our
Company or the Issue of Equity Shares. Further veermt aware of any pending or threatened
litigation or arbitration proceedings, which arenoight be material in the context of our Company or
the Issue of Equity Shares.

We confirm that we are in compliance with the minimpublic shareholding requirements as required
under the terms of the listing agreements withSteek Exchanges.

Our Company and the GC-BRLM and Co-Manager acoeptesponsibility for statements made
otherwise than in the Placement Document and anydaeng reliance on any other source of
information, including our website www.ackruticitpm, would be doing so at his or her own risk.

The SEBI Floor Price for the Issue is Rs. 500.60Fguity Share of face value of Rs. 10 each. The
Floor Price is calculated in accordance with Clal@&.3 of the Erstwhile SEBI Guidelines.
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ACCOUNTANTS

The audited consolidated financial statements aasndffor the three years ended March 31, 2009, iMaig
2008 and March 31, 2007 were prepared in accordasitbethe Auditing Standards and Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles followed in India. Furthertlinaudited financial results (limited reviewed) fioe first
quarter ended June 30, 2009 (the "Unaudited Jurset€uResults”) that appear in the Placement Doaume
have been prepared by our Company pursuant to €#Lisf the Listing Agreements with the Stock Exues

in India. These financial statements / informatwmich were so included in reliance on the reporDafal &
Shah, Chartered Accountants and Doshi Doshi & Aases, Chartered Accountants, Joint Statutory Awiglijt
Mumbai for the years / periods given on the authiai such firm(s) in auditing and accounting.
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DECLARATION

The Company certifies that all relevant provisiaisChapter VIl of the SEBI ICDR Regulations haveeb
complied with and no statement made in this Plac¢éecument is contrary to the provisions of Chajtkl
of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and that all approwaisl permissions required to carry on this Issue lieeen
obtained, are currently valid and have been compligh. We further certify that all the statemeimsthis
Placement Document are true and correct.

Sd/-
Managing Director

Date: September 10, 2009
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Particulars

Consolidated Auditors Report on financial stages for FY 2009, FY 2008 and FY 2007
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DALAL & SHAH DOSHI DOSHI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
252, Veer Savarkar Marg, 203, Sharda Chambers No. 1
Shivaji Park, 31, Keshaviji Naik Road
Dadar, Narsi Natha Street
Mumbai — 400 028 Mumbai — 400 009
Phone : 6669 1000 Phone : 6631 4019/ 2377 5381

Auditors’ Report to the Board of Directors of Ackruti City Limited (Formerly known as Akruti City
Limited, Akruti Nirman Limited) on the Consolidated Fi nancial Statements of Ackruti City Limited

We, M/s. Dalal & Shah, Chartered Accountants and N¥gshi Doshi & Associates, Chartered
Accountants have jointly audited the attached ConsolidatddnBe Sheet of Ackruti City Limited
(formerly known as Akruti City Limited, Akruti Nirman itited) (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries, joint ventures / partnership firms and assecfhtgeinafter together referred to as “the
Group”) as at 3% March, 2009, 2008 and 2007, the Consolidated Profit and Lossuft for the years
ended on those dates and the Consolidated Cash Flow statemtet years ended 3March, 2009
and 2008, which we have signed under reference to this repoese Consolidated Financial
Statements are the responsibility of the management d¢hgpany and have been prepared by the
management on the basis of separate financial statenmghtgheer financial information relating to the
separate entities of the Group. Our responsibilityoisexpress an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit.

We have conducted our audit in accordance with the auditingastdsrgenerally accepted in India.

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audibtéon reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are prepared, in allrialtespects, in accordance with an identified
financial reporting framework and are free of materigstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and discldsuties financial statements. An audit also

includes assessing the accounting principles used and sighiisimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement prasiem. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

(a) The financial statements of Subsidiaries which have lmgtited by Doshi Doshi &
Associates, Chartered Accountants, reflect total asé&s.1,649.85 million as at 3March,
2009, Rs.2,826.61 million as at*3March, 2008 and Rs.2,541.84 million as ai' 34arch,
2007 and total revenues of Rs.33.10 million for the yeae@®f' March, 2009, Rs.257.92
million for the year ended $1March, 2008 and Rs.135.59 million for the year endel 31
March, 2007. The financial statements of a subsidiary whiske been audited by Dalal &
Shah, Chartered Accountants, reflect total assets of ®&22nillion as at 31 March, 2009
and Rs.251.05 million as at 3March, 2008 and total revenues of Rs.0.001 million for the
year ended 31March, 2009 and Rs.0.40 million for the year endetiNarch, 2008.

(b) The financial statements of Subsidiaries which havéeen audited by us, reflect total assets
of Rs.92.50 million as at $1March, 2009 and Rs.293.06 million as at'34arch, 2008, and
total revenues of Rs.0.67 million for the year endedl March, 2009 and Rs.Nil for the year
ended 3% March, 2008. These financial statements have been auditedhéy auditors,
whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion, iEsofarelates to the amounts
included in respect of these subsidiaries, is based/smiethe reports of the other auditors.

(a) The financial statements of Joint ventures / PartreefSinms which have been audited by
Doshi Doshi & Associates, Chartered Accountants, reftetat fissets of Rs.1,794.57 million
as at 31 March, 2009, Rs.2,142.70 million as at'3Warch, 2008 and total revenues of
Rs.0.51 million for the year ended®3March, 2009 and Rs.1.02 million for the year ended
31° March, 2008.
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(b) The financial statements of Joint ventures / Partneishins which have not been audited by
us, reflect total assets of Rs.2,359.00 million as #t\8arch, 2009 and Rs.531.96 million as
at 3f' March, 2008 and total revenues of Rs.36.26 million folytae ended $iMarch, 2009
and Rs.2.37 million for the year ended'3arch, 2008. These financial statements have been
audited by other auditors, whose reports have been furnishexj and our opinion, insofar as
it relates to the amounts included in respect of these snigidased solely on the reports of
the other auditors.

(a) The financial statements of Associates which have dedited by Doshi Doshi & Associates,
Chartered Accountants, reflect the Company’s (net) ptdfitss) of Rs.0.96 million for the
year ended 31March, 2009, (Rs.0.55) million for the year ended' 84arch, 2008 and
(Rs.0.07) million for the year ended®3Warch, 2007. The financial statements of an associate
which have been audited by Dalal & Shah, Chartered Accosntegftect the Company’s
(net) share of (loss) of (Rs.0.57) million for the year eng@&' March, 2009 and (Rs. 0.71)
million for the year ended $March, 2007.

(b) The financial statements of Associates which have neh lmudited by us, reflect the
Company’s (net) profit / (loss) of Rs.91.65 million fdretyear ended $1March, 2009,
(Rs.0.09) million for the year ended®3Warch, 2008 and Rs.0.40 million for the year ended
31% March, 2007. These financial statements have been auditethér auditors, including
Viral D. Doshi & Co., Chartered Accountants, the joindiéor (along with M/s. Dalal &
Shah, Chartered Accountants) for the year end&dV&irch, 2007. Our opinion, insofar as it
relates to the amounts included in respect of thesgesnis based solely on the reports of
these auditors, whose reports have been furnished to us.

We report that the Consolidated Financial Statement® hmeen prepared by the Company in
accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard (AB) ‘Consolidated Financial
Statements’, Accounting Standard (AS) 23, 'Accounting foestments in Associates in Consolidated
Financial Statements' and Accounting Standard (AS) 27 rEiah Reporting of Interests in Joint
Ventures’ and on the basis of separate audited financatkmstnts of the Company, its subsidiaries,
its joint ventures and its associates.

As indicated in Note No.11 of Schedule O to the Accountsadchempanying consolidated financials
statements have been prepared on the basis of the auditetdry consolidated financial statements
for the respective years, which have been adjusted for saksther income / expenditure in respect
of earlier years and subsequent events. These consolidatedidinstatements have been audited
jointly by M/s. Dalal & Shah, Chartered Accountants togethith (i) M/s. Doshi Doshi & Associates,
Chartered Accountants for the financial years endéd\&rch, 2009 and 2008 and (ii) M/s. Viral D.
Doshi & Co., Chartered Accountants, for the financial yeaded 3% March, 2007. The audited
statutory consolidated financial statements will contitmde the basis of annual reporting for the
Company without above referred adjustments.

On the basis of the information and explanations givers @nd on consideration of the separate audit
reports on individual audited financial statements hed Company and its aforesaid consolidated
entities, in our opinion, the Consolidated Financial Stateméwtsagtrue and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

(a) in the case of the Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the cdeiwalistate of affairs of the Group as at
31%' March, 2009, 2008 and 2007;

(b) in the case of the Consolidated Profit and Loss Accourtheotonsolidated results of operations
of the Group for the years ended ofi'84arch, 2009, 2008 and 2007; and

(c) in the case of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, aotisolidated cash flows of the Group
for the years ended 3March, 2009 and 2008.
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9. This report is solely for your information and for inctusin the offer document being issued by the
Company in connection with the proposed placement of equity sshamger Chapter XHIA of
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Disclosure andstavérotection) Guidelines, 2000 and is
not to be used, referred to or distributed for any opluepose without our prior written consent.

For and on behalf of For and on behalf of
DALAL & SHAH DOSHI DOSHI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
SHISHIR DALAL VIRAL DOSHI
Partner Partner
Membership No.: 37310 Membership No.: 105330

Mumbai: 28" August, 2009
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 °" MARCH 2009, 2008 AND 2007

Particulars
SOURCES OF FUNDS
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
Share Capital
Reserves and Surplus

Share Application Money
LOAN FUNDS

Secured Loans
Unsecured Loans

DEFFRRED TAX LIABILITY (Refer Note 4)
MINORITY INTEREST
TOTAL
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
FIXED ASSETS
Gross Block
Less:- Depreciation and Amortisation
Net Block
Capital Work — in — progress

INVESTMENTS

DEFFRRED TAX ASSET (Refer Note 4)
CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES
Inventories

Sundry Debtors

Cash and Bank Balances

Other Current Assets

Loans and Advances

LESS: CURRENT LIABILITIES AND
PROVISIONS

Current Liabilities

Provisions

NET CURRENT ASSETS

MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE (to the extent

not written off)

Loan Processing Fees and Other Finance Charges
TOTAL

Notes forming part of the Accounts

For and on behalf of For and on behalf of

Schedule

Rs. in million
2009 2008 2007

667.00 667.00 667.00
9,755.61 6,491.81 4,311.46
10,422.61 7,158.81 4,978.46
42.00 112.69 -
8,488.93 5,520.21 2,819.84
2,079.83 2,771.74  2,058.92
10,568.76 8,291.95 4,878.76

- - 1.32

1.85 19.78 1.19
21,035.22 15,583.23  9,859.73
759.90 1,256.47 1,037.34

109.55 212.13 144.53
650.35 1,044.34 892.81
331.22 104.72 2.67
981.57 1,149.06 895.48
3,025.41 2,276.47  2,746.84
103.72 316.95 -
7,729.94 4,351.21 1,584.27
4,517.39 45.41 716.02
109.75 402.84  1,333.47
740.83 323.73 2.58
6,153.15 8,926.58 3,570.58
19,251.06 14,049.77  7,206.92
2,142.71 1,548.84 659.72
240.03 660.18 329.79
2,382.74 2,209.02 989.51
16,868.32 11,840.75 6,217.41
56.20 -

21,035.22 15,583.23  9,859.73

For and on behalf of the Board

Dalal & Shah Doshi Doshi & Associates Hemant M. Shah
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Executiggr@an
Shishir Dalal Viral D. Doshi Chetan S. Mody
Partner Partner Company Secretary
M.No.: 37310 M.No0.105330

Mumbai Mumbai

Date: 28" August, 2009

Date: #8August, 2009

Vyomesh M. Shah
Managing Director

Bharat Mody

Chief Finance Officer
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2009,
2008 AND 2007

Rs. in million
Particulars Schedule  2008-09 2007-08 2006-07
Income
Sales and Income from Operations H 5,028.27 3,340.04 1,894.76
Surplus on Sale of Interest in Project executed through 376.90 - -
subsidiary company
Share of Profit from Joint Ventures and Partnership 0.02 49.55 -
Firms (Net)
Other Income 211.16 308.54 95.27
TOTAL 5,616.35 3,698.13 1,990.03
Expenditure
Cost of Construction J 4,185.85 2,398.46 1,031.53
(Increase) in Inventories K (4,439.31) (2,139.70) (459.73)
Purchase of Transferable Development Rights (TDR) - - 34.23
for Trade
Share of Loss from Joint Ventures and Partnership - - 5.28
Firms (Net)
Employment Costs L 148.70 69.67 67.33
Administrative, Selling and General Expenses M 369.16 223.92 169.36
Cost allocated to contractual interest in projects 58.51 - -
executed through Associates, etc. amortised
Project Expenses written off 36.20 - -
Interest and Finance Charges N 1,402.25 615.37 199.90
Depreciation and Amortisation 57.13 69.31 62.10
TOTAL 1,818.49 1,237.03 1,110.00
Profit Before Tax, Before Minority Interest And 3,797.86 2,461.10 880.03
Share Of Profit / (Loss) Of Associates
Add/ (Less) : Provision for Taxation
- Current Tax (340.78) (403.47) (115.09)
- Deferred Tax (Charge) / Credit (213.02) 314.51 5.12
- Fringe Benefit Tax (1.63) (1.66) (2.31)
- Wealth Tax (0.18) (0.25) (0.09)
Profit After Tax, Before Minority Interest And Share 3,242.25 2,370.23 767.66
Of Profit / (Loss) Of Associates
Add / (Less) :
Share of Profit / (Loss) from Associate Companies 92.03 0.88] (0.76)
Minority Interest 3.35 0.85 0.01
Profit For The Year 3,337.63 2,370.20 766.91
Add / (Less) :
Balance brought forward from previous year 1,895.43 20.31 460.95
Capitalised towards issue of Bonus Shares - - (52.50)
Amount Available For Appropriation 5,233.06 2,390.51 1,175.36
Appropriations :
Interim Dividend - 120.06 -
Tax on Interim Dividend - 20.40 -
Proposed Dividend 66.70 46.69 100.05
Tax on Proposed Dividend 17.11 7.93 17.00
General Reserve 0.12 300.00 38.00
Debenture Redemption Reserve - - 1,000.00
Balance carried to Balance Sheet 5,149.13 1,895.43 20.31
Earning per share of Rs. 10 each (Basic and Diluted) 50.04 35.54 12.56
(Refer Note 9) (in Rs.)
Notes forming part of the Accounts (0]
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For and on behalf of Forand on behalf of For and on behalf of the Board

Dalal & Shah Doshi Doshi & Associates Hemant M. Shah Vyomesh M. Shah
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Executig@gr@an Managing Director
Shishir Dalal Viral D. Doshi Chetan S. Mody Bharat Mody

Partner Partner Company Secretary Chief Finance Officer
M.No.: 37310 M.No.: 105330

Mumbai Mumbai

Date: 28" August, 2009 Date: #8August, 2009
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEARS ENDE D 31°" MARCH, 2009 AND

2008

Particulars
I CASH FLOW ARISING FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
Net Profit before Tax as per Profit and Loss Account
Add / (Deduct) :
Interest and Finance Charges
Project Expenses Written Off
Depreciation and Amortisation
Dividend from Current Investments
Profit on Sale of Current Investments
Interest Income
Minority Interest (Loss)
Provision for doubtful advances
Contractual Interest in projects executed through Assagiate. amortised
Loss / (Surplus) on Sale / Discardment of Fixed Asset$) (N

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes

Add / (Deduct) :

(Increase) in Inventories

(Increase) / Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables

(Increase) in Contractual Interests in Projects exechtedgh Associates, etc.

Increase in Trade Payables
Direct Taxes Paid

Net Cash Flow in the course of Operating Activities

I CASH FLOW ARISING FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Inflow / (Outflow) on account of :

Fixed Assets (Net)

Dividend from Current Investments

Profit on Sale of Current Investments

Interest Income

(Increase) in Loans and Advances (Including towards Skapécation)
Acquisition of Joint Ventures and Subsidiaries (Net)

Other Long term Investments Acquired (Net)

Current Investments Disposed off (Net)

Net Cash Flow in the course of Investing Activities

I CASH FLOW ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Inflow / (Outflow) on account of :

Increase in Secured Loans

Increase/(Decrease) in Unsecured Loans

Share Application Money

Interest and Finance Charges

Dividend Paid

Securities Premium Account

Tax on Dividend Paid

Share Issue Expenses

Net Cash Flow in the course of Financing Activities

Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalergtsli+IIl)

Add: Balance at the beginning of the year

Rs. in million
2008-09 2007-08
3,797,86 2,461.10
1,402.25 615.37
36.20 -
57.13 69.31
(4.75) (22.15)
- (15.44)
(180.70) (231.28)
3.35 0.85
80.59 -
58.51 -
29.72 (1.43)
1,482.30 415.23
5,280.16 2,876.33
(2,773.09) (2,739.88)
@827  1,453.92
(455.06) (321.15)
421.78 898.51
(313.29) (351.65)
(4,147.54) (3,968.09)
132.62 (1,091.76)
(233.16) (346.30)
4.75 22.15
- 15.44
180.70 231.28
(1,201.68) (1,831.85)
(361 (421.70)
(100.75) (1,446.64)
31.05 1,917.20
2(180.29) (1,860.42)
2,900.02 2,655.14
(729.76) 672.16
- 95.79
(1,402.30) (613.99)
(46.69) (220.01)
9.98 -
(13.71) (37.41)
- (48.07)
717.54 2,503.61
(330.13) (448.57)
350.08 761.09
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Particulars 2008-09 2007-08
Balances acquired on acquisition of Joint Ventures and $sidiaries 58.14 37.56
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the close of the year 78.09 031
Reconciliation of Cash and Bank Balances given in Schedigeal follows:-
Cash and Bank Balances 109.75 402.84
Less: Margin Money Balances (31.66) (52.76)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the close of the year 78.09 031

Note:

The Accounting Standard AS-21 on “Consolidated Financiaé®iants” became applicable to the Company for
the first time for the financial year ended®3¥arch, 2007. Hence, figures for the financial yeadezh3f
March, 2006 were not compiled and disclosed. As a consequénees not possible to present the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the financial y8@6-D7, since the opening balances which are relevant
for compilation of cash flow for 2006-07, were not avdaab

For and on behalf of Forand on behalf of For and on behalf of the Board

Dalal & Shah Doshi Doshi & Associates Hemant M. Shah Vyomesh M. Shah
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Executig@rgéan Managing Director
Shishir Dalal Viral D. Doshi Chetan S. Mody Bharat Mody

Partner Partner Company Secretary Chief Finance Officer
M.No.: 37310 M.No.: 105330

Mumbai Mumbai

Date: 28" August, 2009 Date: #8August, 2009
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SCHEDULES ‘A’ TO ‘O’ FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDAT ED BALANCE SHEET AS AT
AND THE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31°" MARCH 2009, 2008 AND

2007

Particulars

SCHEDULE 'A'

SHARE CAPITAL

AUTHORISED

125,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP

66,700,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up
[Of the above, 58,500,000 shares allotted as fully paid-
up bonus shares, by way of capitalisation of General
Reserve and Surplus in Profit and Loss Account
including 12,000,000 during financial year 2006-07.
Further, during the financial year 2006-07, Ackruti

City Limited allotted 6,700,000 Equity Shares under
Initial Public Offer (IPO)]

Per Balance Sheet

SCHEDULE 'B'

RESERVES AND SURPLUS

Securities Premium Account

Balance as per last Account

Add / (Less) :

Received during the year

Share Issue Expenses on IPO (incurred) / written back

Debenture Redemption Reserve

Balance as per last Account

Add / (Less) :

Transferred from Profit and Loss Account
Transferred to General Reserve

General Reserve

Balance as per last Account

Add / (Less) :

Amount capitalised towards issue of bonus shares
Transferred from Debenture Redemption Reserve
Transferred from Profit and Loss Account

Capital Reserve

Balance as per last Account
Add / (Less) :

Created during the year

Surplus in Profit and Loss Account
Per Balance Sheet

2009

1,250.00
1,250.00

667.00

667.00

3,247.03
9.98

3,257.01

1,338.00

0.12
1,338.12

11.35
11.35

5,149.13
9,755.61

Rs. in million
2008 2007
1,250.00 ,250.00
1,250.00 1,250.00
667.00 667.00
667.00 667.00
3,241.83 -
- 3,551.00
20 5. (309.17)
3,247.03 3,241.83
1,000.00 -
- 1,000.00
(1,000.00) -
- 1,000.00
38.00 67.50
- 67.50)
1,000.00 -
300.00 38.00
1,338.00 38.00
11.32 -
0.03 11.32
11.35 11.32
1,895.43 20.31
6,491.81 4,311.46
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SCHEDULES ‘A’ TO ‘O’ FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDAT ED BALANCE SHEET AS AT

AND THE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31°" MARCH 2009, 2008 AND
2007

Rs. in million

Particulars 2009 2008 2007
SCHEDULE 'C'

LOAN FUNDS

Secured Loans

a) 100 Privately Placed Non- Convertible Debentures of Rs.Q@0Q- each - - 1,000.00
redeemed in equal instalments of Rs.5,000,000/- each on 18the®2007
and 13th November 2007 respectively

b) Loans from Banks 3,004.75 1,136.61 794.63
Interest Accrued on above 31.41 5.31

3,036.16 1,136.61 799.94

¢) Loans from Financial Institutions 966.60 3,080.00 220.00
d) Loans from Banks against Future Lease Rentals 1,005.((B6.20 796.72
e) Vehicle Loans from Banks 0.31 1.42 3.18
f) Short Term and Working Capital Loans from Banks 300.00 - -
Interest Accrued on above 7.37 - -
307.37 - -
g) Loans from Other Companies 2,715.28 - -
Interest Accrued on above 22.34 - -
2,737.62 - -

8,053.06 5,354.23 2,819.84

Add : Share in Joint Ventures 435.87 165.98

Per Balance Sheet 8,488.93 5,520.21 2,819.84

Unsecured Loans

Fixed Deposits 187.26 72.26 -
Short Term Loans
From Body Corporates 1,843.89 1,854.61 2,055.00
From Others 3.92 841.30 3.92

1,847.81 2,695.91 2,058.92

2,035.07 2,768.17 2,058.92

Add : Share in Joint Ventures 44,76 3.57

Per Balance Sheet 2,079.83 2,771.74 2,058.92
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SCHEDULES ‘A’ TO ‘O’ FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDAT ED BALANCE SHEET AS AT
AND THE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31°" MARCH 2009, 2008 AND

2007

SCHEDULE ‘D’

FIXED ASSETS

Rs. in million
PARTICULARS 2009 2008 2007
Gross Deprec Net Gross Deprec Net Gross Deprec Net
Block iation Block Block iation Block Block iation Block

Freehold Land 0.80 - 0.80 0.80 - 0.80 - - -
Leasehold Land - - - - - - 4.23 0.14 4.09
Premises 7.85 1.12 6.73 14.96 1.10 13.86 18.68 0.99 17.69
Compound Wall 10.64 0.19 10.45 - - - - - -
Mivan System 30.33 551 2482 14.49 1.90 12.59 5.33 1.23 4.10
Generator 6.06 2.67 3.39 0.85 0.05 0.80 - - -
Laboratory 1.66 0.22 1.44 - - - - - -
Equipment
Air Conditioners 2.12 0.64 1.48 2.48 0.57 1.91 1.57 0.22 1.35
Computers 15.93 8.74 7.19 14.80 5.28 9.52 4.96 1.64 3.32
Office Equipment 7.30 2.05 5.25 6.63 1.39 5.24 3.64 0.57 3.07
Furniture and 28.29 11.97 16.32 98.88 45.83 53.05 95.40 32.95 62.45
Fixtures
Vehicles 36.86 18.54 18.32 34.35 13.00 21.35 25.30 9.08 16.22
Plant and Machinery - - - 28.79 2.77 26.02 - - -
Total (1) 147.84 51.65 96.19 217.03 71.89 145.14 159.11 46.82 2912.
Leased Assets@
Leasehold Land 281.54 11.79 269.75 430.43 28.28 402.15 238.69 1729876 2
Commercial Premises 73.18 17.73 55.45 518.02 70.36 447.66 550.35 48.83 501.52
$
Furniture and 27.84 16.52 11.32 89.19 41.51 47.68 89.19 30.95 58.24
Fixtures
Total (I1) 382.56 46.04 336.52 1,037.64 140.15 897.49 878.23 97.780.52
TOTAL (I +11) 530.40 97.69 432.71 1,254.67 212.04 1,042.63,037.34 144.53 892.81
Add: Share in Joint  229.50 11.86 217.64 1.80 0.09 1.70 - - -
Ventures
GRAND TOTAL 759.90 109.55 650.35 1,256.47 212.13 1,044.34 31,84 144.53 892.81
Capital Work-in- 331.22 104.72 2.67
progress
[Including

expenditure on
Development of
Software
(Intangible)]

Notes :

@

Leased Premises (including Furniture and Fixturésrnished premises and land acquired on lease)

given under operating lease are held by the Company irs#tie ordinary course of business. These
assets are disclosed under the Fixed Assets Scheduldepretiation is provided thereon only in
pursuance of the requirement of Accounting Standard 1@sdse [Refer Note 1 (V) (B)]

Includes cost of shares held in companietu@imy two subsidiaries and associates) aggregating Rs.

1.68 mn., Rs. 1.22 mn and Rs. 1.24 mn for the year e3tiemlarch, 2009 , 3 March,2008 & 31
March 2007, respectively, carrying the occupancy righthé premises.
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SCHEDULES ‘A’ TO ‘O’ FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDAT ED BALANCE SHEET AS AT AND
THE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31°" MARCH 2009, 2008 AND 2007

Particulars
SCHEDULE ‘F’
INVESTMENTS (Unquoted) (Trade, unless otherwise spefied)
Long Term Investments (At cost)
i) Companies (Fully paid Shares / Debentures)
A. Associate Companies
a) Infrastructure Ventures India Private Limited
(Formerly known as Infrastructure Ventures India
Limited)
2,666,619 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each [includes
Goodwill Rs. 483.31 mn.]
Consolidated as Subsidiary
1,666,520 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each [includes
Goodwill Rs. 3.39 mn.]
Share of Current Profit / (Loss)
b) Joyous Housing Limited(formerly knownasManga
Shrusti Gruh Nirmiti Limited)
25,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- each [includes
Goodwill Rs. 0.15 mn.]
Share of Accumulated Reserves / Profits / (Loss)
Share of Current Profit / (Loss)
c) Pristine Developers Private Limited
8,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
Share of Accumulated Reserves / Profits / (Loss)
Share of Current Profit / (Loss)
d) DLF Akruti Info Parks (Pune) Limited
659,997 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each [includes
Goodwill Rs. 0.04 mn.]
50,160 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each [includes
Goodwill Rs. 0.04 mn.]
Share of Accumulated Reserves / Profits / (Loss)
Share of Current Profit / (Loss)
e) Chaitra Realty Limited
3,198 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each [includes Goodwill
Rs. 878.75 mn.]
3,191 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each [includes Goodwill
Rs. 878.75 mn.]
Share of Current Profit / (Loss)
f)  Akruti Security Plates Private Limited (formerly
known as Almighty Impex Private Limited)
24,500 Equity shares of Rs 10/- each (Includes Goodwill
Rs. 5.87 mn.)
Share of Accumulated Reserves / Profits / (Loss)
Share of Current Profit / (Loss)
g) Akruti Security Plates Private Limited (formerly
known as Almighty Impex Private Limited)
10,208 Cumulative Convertible Preference shares of Rs
100/- each
h) Mutha Realty Private Limited
3,333 Equity Shares of Rs.100/- each
Share of Current Profit / (Loss)
i)  Broadway Integrated Private Limited
33,330Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each
Share of Current Profit / (Loss)

2009

656.14

(0.57)

2.50
(1.39)
0.70
0.08

(0.08)
6.74

6.60

1.20
89.54

881.06

0.25

4.90
(0.33)
(4.57)

1.02

2008

2.50
0.43
(1.83)

0.08
(0.08)

6.60
(0.07)

1.27

879.51
4.90
(0.33)
1.02
0.33

0.04

0.33

Rs. in million
2007

16.67
(1.05)

2.50
0.43
0.08

(o.oé_)

0.50

(o.oé_)
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SCHEDULES ‘A’ TO ‘O’ FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDAT ED BALANCE SHEET AS AT AND
THE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31°" MARCH 2009, 2008 AND 2007

k)

m)

Particulars
Zeus Infrastructure Private Limited
100,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each (Includes
Goodwill Rs. 0.15 mn.)
Share of Accumulated Reserves / Profits / (Loss)
Share of Current Profit / (Loss)
Glamorous Properties Private Limited
312,500 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each (Includes
Goodwill Rs. 30.02 mn.)
Share of Current Profit / (Loss)
Akruti City Bus Terminal (Vadodara) Limited
(Formerly known as Akruti City Bus Terminal
(Vadodara) Private Limited)
10,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
[includes Goodwill Rs.0.01 mn.]
Akruti City Bus Terminal (Mehsana) Limited
(Formerly known as Akruti City Bus Terminal
(Mehsana) Private Limited)
10,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
[includes Goodwill Rs. Rs.0.01 mn.]

SCHEDULE ‘E’ (Contd.)

n)

Multicity Bus Terminal (Surat) Limited (Formerly
known as Multicity Bus Terminal (Surat) Private
Limited)

10,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each

[includes Goodwill Rs. Rs.0.03 mn.]

Multicity Bus Terminal (Surat-Adajan) Limited
(Formerly known as Multicity Bus Terminal (Surat-
Adajan) Private Limited)

10,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each

B. Others

a)
b)
c)
d)
e)

f)

Citygold Investments Private Limited

693,770 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- Each
Citygold Management Services Private Limited
240 Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- Each
Janakalyan Sahakari Bank Limited

37,815 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- Each

Dharni Properties Private Limited

2,191 'A’ Class Equity shares of Rs.500/- each
Akruti Niharika Buildings Limited

6,000 'B' Class Equity Shares of Rs.50/- each
Shamrao Vithal Co-operative Bank Limited

2009
1.00

(0.03)
(0.04)

30.00

(0.02)

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

6.94
0.02
0.38
1.10

0.30

25 Equity Shares of Rs.29/- each and 125 Equity Shares

of Rs.25/- each)

Opulent Trading and Investment Private Limited
4,900 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each

Suraksha Realty Limited

2,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each

Mahanagar Co-operative Bank Limited
49,900 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each

Netzone Developers Private Limited

0.05

0.02

0.50

250,000 Optionally Convertible Debentures of Rs.5000 1,250.00

each

2008

1.00

(o.oé,_)

6.94
0.02
0.38
1.10

0.30

1,250.00

Rs. in million
2007

6.94

0.02

0.38

1.10

0.30
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SCHEDULES ‘A’ TO ‘O’ FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDAT ED BALANCE SHEET AS AT AND
THE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEARS ENDED 315" MARCH 2009, 2008 AND 2007
Rs. in million
Particulars 2009 2008 2007
k)  Akruti Security Plates Private Limited (formerly
known as Almighty Impex Private Limited)
9,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 1.80
I)  Gokulnivas Co-op. Housing Society Limited
5 Equity Shares of Rs. 50/- each

i) In Capital of Partnership Firms / Joint Ventures (bfet 90.00 90.00 769.06
Contribution outstanding) (Refer Note 3)

iii)  Mutual Funds (Other than Trade)
Growth Option
100,000 Units of Principal PNB Long Term Equity Fund of Rs.10/-

each [3 Year Plan] (NAV: Rs. 0.05 mn.) 1.00

100,000 Units of Principal PNB Long Term Equity Fund of Rs.10/-

each [3 Year Plan] (NAV: Rs. 1.00 mn.) 1.00 --
Sub-total Long term 3,025.41 2,245.41 798.59

iv)  Current Investment (Other than Trade) (At lower of cog and
fair value).
In Mutual Fund (Units of Rs. 10/- each)

Growth Option

27,064,088 Units of ING Vysya Liquid Fund Super Instl.Growth - -- 300.00
Option (NAV : Rs 301.76 mn.)

25,000,000 Units of Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund Il-Quarterly -- -- 250.00
Plan Series V-Instl. Growth Plan (NAV : Rs 251.57 mn.)

17,168,138 Units of Principal Floating Rate Fund-FMP- - -- 200.09
Institutional Option-Growth Plan (NAV : Rs 201.21 mn.)

Dividend Option -- 11.04 --
11,034,959 Units of HSBC Cash Fund-Institutional Plan (NAV Rs

11.04 mn.) -- 20.02 --
2,001,523.10 Units of Fidelity Mutual Fund Daily Dividend Plan

(NAV Rs 20.02 mn.) -- - 1.65
164418 Units of Birla Cash Plus-Institutional Premium Plan —

Daily Dividend (NAV: Rs 1.65 mn.) 1,196.51
119,584,463 Units of HSBC Cash Fund-Instl. Plus-Daily Dividend

(NAV Rs. 1,196.51 mn.)

- 31.06 1,948.25

Sub-total Current

Per Balance Sheet 3,025.41 2,276.47 2,746.84
SCHEDULE 'F
CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES
INVENTORIES (As taken, valued and certified by the Maragement)
[Refer Note 1 (V)]
Stock- in —trade (includes cost of Goodwill on acquisition,
representing value of Land / Rights)
Floor Space Index (FSI) 145.04 146.22 323.43
Incomplete projects 4,167.21 2,946.18 1,006.69
Finished Properties 33.44 131.36 254.15
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SCHEDULES ‘A’ TO ‘O’ FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDAT ED BALANCE SHEET AS AT AND

THE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31°" MARCH 2009, 2008 AND 2007

Particulars

Add : Share in Joint Ventures

SUNDRY DEBTORS (Unsecured, Considered Good)
Debts outstanding for a period exceeding six months
Other Debts

Add : Share in Joint Ventures

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash on hand

Bank Balances with Scheduled Banks
- In Current Accounts

- In Deposit Accounts *

- In Margin Money Accounts *

* Including Interest Accrued thereon

Add : Share in Joint Ventures

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Contractual Interests in Projects executed through Asss;ietc.
Income Tax Refund

LOANS AND ADVANCES (Unsecured, Considered Good, unks
specified)

Loans to Employees(Interest free)

Loans and advances to Others

Advance towards Share Application

Advance Recoverable in Cash or in Kind or for Value to begved
(Including advance against Land/Rights)

Good

Doubtful

Less: Provision

Taxes Paid / Deducted at Source
Add : Share in Joint Ventures

Per Balance Sheet

SCHEDULE ‘G'
CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Sundry Creditors
Advances from Customers

Rs. in million
2009 2008 2007
4,345.69 3,223.76 1,584.27
3,384.25 1,127.45 -
7,729.94 4,351.21 1,584.27
4,428.72 .6033 20.48
83.87 8.44 695.54
4,512.59 42.04 716.02
4.80 3.37 -
4,517.39 45.41 716.02
2.31 2.46 1.61
20.11 197.21 136.56
1.08 118.89 1,172.92
31.66 52.76 22.38
55.16 371.32 1,333.47
54.59 31.52 -
109.75 402.84 1,333.47
740.23 321.15 -
0.60 2.58 2.58
740.83 323.73 2.58
0.36 0.31 0.03
2,696.80 1,304.62 163.61
1,385.52 1,576.02 347.47
1,934.95 4,401.89 2,895.65
80.59 - -
(80.59) - -
10.07 502.91 163.82
125.45 1,140.83 -
6,153.15 8,926.58 3,570.58
19,251.06 14,049.77 7,206.92
438.21 296.53 253.86
726.47 847.34 265.59
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SCHEDULES ‘A’ TO ‘O’ FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDAT ED BALANCE SHEET AS AT AND
THE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31°" MARCH 2009, 2008 AND 2007

Rs. in million
Particulars 2009 2008 2007
Deposits from Customers 241.70 - -
Overdrawn Bank Balances as per books of accounts 75.06 1.84 6 62.7
Other Liabilities 252.30 310.36 69.82
Interest Accrued but not Due on Loans 9.41 14.38 7.69
1,743.15 1,470.45 659.72
Add : Share in Joint Ventures 399.56 78.39 -
2,142.71 1,548.84 659.72
SCHEDULE ‘G' (Contd.)
PROVISIONS
Income Tax 138.61 598.10 209.82
Fringe Benefit Tax 0.90 4.57 2.83
Wealth Tax 0.18 0.25 0.09
Employees’ Benefits 21.97 - -
Proposed dividend 66.70 46.69 100.05
Tax on proposed dividend 11.33 7.94 17.00
239.69 657.54 329.79
Add : Share in Joint Ventures 0.34 2.64 -
240.03 660.18 329.79
Per Balance Sheet 2,382.74 2,209.02 989.51
Particulars 2008-09 2007-08  2006-07
SCHEDULE 'H'
SALES AND INCOME FROM OPERATIONS
Sale of Properties / Rights 4,718.57 3,035.63 1,685.10
Sale of TDR/FSI (Traded) - - 37.46
Sale of Incomplete Projects 5.42 - 0.95
4,723.99 3,035.63 1,723.51
Project Management services in connection with Projectueee 38.17 - -
through Associates, etc.
Income from premises given on lease 250.35 304.27 171.25
5,012.51 3,339.90 1,894.76
Add : Share in Joint Ventures 15.76 0.14 -
Per Profit and Loss Account 5,028.27 3,340.04 1,894.76
SCHEDULE I
OTHER INCOME
Dividend from Current Investments 4.75 22.15 20.57
Profit on sale of Current investments - 15.44 1.64
Royalty Received - - 2.00
Interest
-Loans 141.37 204.70 31.04
-Bank Fixed Deposits 8.96 20.25 17.91
-Others 30.37 6.33 9.55
Surplus on Sale / Discardment of Fixed Assets (Net) - 143 -
Gain on Foreign Currency Fluctuation (Net) 0.87 1.76 -

Liquidated Damages Received - 20.20 -
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Miscellaneous Income

Add : Share in Joint Ventures
Per Profit and Loss Account

SCHEDULE 'J'
COST OF CONSTRUCTION

Construction Cost incurred during the year

Less: Transferred under Fixed Assets Schedule

Add : Written Down Value of Finished Properties transféifrom
Fixed Assets Schedule, on sale of property [ Refer Note (V)

Add : Share in Joint Ventures

Per Profit and Loss Account

2211 15.84 12.56
208.43 308.10 95.27
2.73 0.44 -
211.16 308.54 95.27

1,568.66 91891  1,060.22
- - 76.42
595.18 27.05 47.73

2,163.84 1,846.92 1,031.53
2,022.01 551.54 -

4,185.85 2,398.46 1,031.53
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SCHEDULES ‘A’ TO ‘O’ FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDAT ED BALANCE SHEET AS AT AND

THE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31°" MARCH 2009, 2008 AND 2007

Particulars 2008-09
SCHEDULE 'K'
(INCREASE) IN INVENTORIES
Opening Inventory

Floor Space Index (FSI) 146.22
Transferable Development Rights (TDR) -
Incomplete projects * 2,953.12
Finished Properties 131.36
3.230.70
Less: Project expenses written off 36.20
Less: Transfer to contractual interest on account ofidil of Subsidiary 22.38
to Associate
Less: Transfer to investment on account of dilutionudsiliary to 604.77
Associate
Less: Reduction of inventory on account of dilution in subsydi 267.25

Less: Advance Against FSI regrouped -
Less: Cancellation of TDR Purchased in earlier Year -
Less: Transferred under Fixed Assets Schedule (ReferI\\6}&B)) -
2,300.10

* Includes Rs. 6.94 mn, Rs. 78.63 mn, for a subsidiagyiaed during the

year 2008-09 and 2007-08 respectively.

Closing Inventory

Floor Space Index (FSI) 145.04

Transferable Development Rights (TDR) -

Incomplete projects 4,167.21

Finished Properties 33.44
4,345.69

(Increase) in Inventories (2,045.59)

Add : Share in Joint Ventures (2,393.72)

Per Profit and Loss Account  (4,439.31)

SCHEDULE 'L’
EMPLOYMENT COSTS
Salaries, Bonus, etc. 225.69
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 8.00
Staff Welfare Expenses 491
Other Fund Expenses 0.88
239.48
Less: Costs allocated to Contractual Interests in Psoge&tcuted through 91.95
Associates, eftc.
147.53
Add : Share in Joint Ventures 1.17
Per Profit and Loss Account 148.70

Rs. in million
2007-08 2006-07
323.43 336.42
- 68.32
1,085.32 643.06
254.16 177.09
1,662.91 1,224.89
1.89 -
- 68.32
- 32.03
1,661.02 1,124.54
146.22 323.43
2,946.18 1,006.69
131.36 254.15
3,223.76 1,584.27
(1,562.74) (459.73)
(576.96) -
(2,139.70) (459.73)
153.14 62.24
11.90 3.91
5.38 0.96
0.48 0.22
170.90 67.33
101.23 -
69.67 67.33
69.67 67.33
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SCHEDULE 'M'

ADMINISTRATIVE, SELLING AND GENERAL EXPENSES
Insurance

Rent

Rates and Taxes

Advertisement

Advances and other debit balances written off
Donations

Brokerage

Directors Fees and Travelling Expenses
Commission to Non Executive Directors

Bad Debts

Provision for Doubtful Advances

Repairs and Society Maintainence Charges
Legal and Professional Fees

Other Expenses

Loss on sale / discardment of Fixed assets (Net)
Liguidated Damages

Miscellaneous Expenditure written off

Less: Costs allocated to Contractual Interests in Psoge&tcuted through
Associates etc.

Add : Share in Joint Ventures
Per Profit and Loss Account

SCHEDULES ‘A’ TO ‘O’ FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDAT ED BALANCE SHEET AS AT AND
THE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31°" MARCH 2009, 2008 AND 2007

Particulars
SCHEDULE 'N'
INTEREST AND FINANCE CHARGES
Interest
- Debentures
- Fixed Loans

- Interest Others
Loan Processing Fees and Other Finance Charges Aeabrtis

Less: Costs allocated to Contractual Interests in Psogetcuted through
Associates etc.

Add: Share in Joint Ventures
Per Profit and Loss Account

6.35 4.69 2.77
3.84 5.25 1.03
11.05 11.57 -
26.28 35.47 18.50
3.66 0.19 4 0.1
30.17 8.39 15.97
6.98 5.64 24.99
2.06 1.34 1.09
1.80 2.00 -
0.40 - -
80.59 - -

29.01 40.74 16.91

123.65 77.27 32.80
80.15 78.57 47.84

29.72 - 7.31

- 70.17 -

- - 0.01
435.71 341.29 169.36
105.72 118.17 -
329.99 223.12 169.36

39.17 0.80 -

369.16 223.92 169.36

Rs. in million

2008-09 2007-08 2006-07

- 52.19 34.22
1,138.48 442.86 143.94
325.51 55.10 8.20
1,463.99 550.15 186.36
166.88 166.95 13.54
1,630.87 717.10 199.90
257.55 101.74 -
1,373.32 615.36 199.90
28.93 0.01 -
1,402.25 615.37 199.90
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SCHEDULE ‘O’

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31" March,
2009, 2008 and 2007.

A. PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION :

The Consolidated Financial Statements relate to Ackrity Cimited (‘the Company’) and its
Subsidiary companies, Associates and Joint Ventures. @hgolidated Financial Statements have been
prepared on the following basis :

@

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

V)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The Financial Statements of the Company and its subsilihaige been combined on a line-
by-line basis by adding together the book values &f ilikms of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses, after eliminating intra-group balances, intrapgi@nsactions and unrealized profits
or losses as per Accounting Standard (AS-21) — Consoliffatedcial Statements.

Investments in associate companies have been accounted uadequity method as per
Accounting Standard (AS-23) — Accounting for Investments §sogiates in Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Investments in Joint Ventures have been accounted under the jmogertconsolidation
method as per Accounting Standard (AS-27) — Financial Repgodininterests in Joint
Ventures, unless joint control is not established, wheng dhe accounted as per Accounting
Standard (AS-13) — Accounting for Investments.

The excess of the Company’s portion of equity of the submdiaas at the date of its
investment over the cost of its investment is treae€apital Reserve. The excess of cost of
investment over the Company’s portion of equity as atdéte of investment is treated as
Goodwill and the same is written off in the year in whichrises. However, where goodwill
arising on consolidation of entities acquired by the Group repteslue of land / rights held
by such entities, the same is considered as cost ofraotisn and accordingly treated as part
of cost of inventory of the group.

The difference between the proceeds from disposal of invastmea subsidiary and the

carrying amount of its assets less liabilities as of dhte of disposal is recognized in the
consolidated statement of Profit and Loss account as thet mmofioss on disposal of

investment in subsidiary.

Intra-group balances and intra-group transactions and irgsuitrealized profits have been
eliminated.

As far as possible, the consolidated financial statenagatprepared using uniform accounting
policies for like transactions and other events in singircumstances and are presented in the
same manner as the Company'’s separate financial statements.

(a) The Company has investments in Brain Point Infoteatited and Akruti Center Infotech
Limited where the shareholdings exceeded 50%. The saaria #re nature of temporary
investments and therefore not considered for consolidation.

(b) The Company has an investment in Gallant Infotech Privateitddmwhere the
shareholding exceeded 20%. The same is in the nature pbtam investment and is
therefore not considered as an associate for the purposg 28 A
The cost of these shares is included in the cost of Conahétemises under Fixed
Assets since they carry the occupancy rights in thoseiggem

B. Investments other than in Subsidiaries, Associates Joint Ventures, have been accounted as per
Accounting Standard (AS-13) on “Accounting for Investments”.
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C. The list of subsidiary companies considered for castestibn, and the Company’s holdings therein are
as under:
Name of the Subsidiaries Country of Proportion of ownership interest
Incorporation

2009 2008 2007
Adhivitiya Properties Limited India 100.0% 100.0% 100.00%
Agreem Properties Limited India 53.16% 53.16% 53.16%
Akruti Warehousing Limited India 100.00% 100.00% -
Arnav Gruh Limited (Formerly Known India 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
as Arnav Properties Limited)
Devkrupa Build Tech Limited India 90.00% 90.00% -

(Formerly known as Simon Buildcon

Private Limited, Devkrupa Consultancy

Private Limited)

E Commerce Magnum Solution Limited India 100.00% 100.00% 99.99%
(Formerly Known as E Commerce

Solutions (India) Limited)

Guijarat Akruti — TCG Biotech Limited India 74.00% 74.00% -
Infrastructure Ventures India Limited India - 50.02% -
(Associate in 2008 — 09

(from 24.11.2008 ) and 2006-07

New  Empire  Realtors Limited India 60.00% 60.00% -
(Formerly known as New Empire

Realtors Private Limited)

Sheshan Housing & Area Development India 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Engineers Limited

TDR Properties Limited India 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Vaishnavi Builders & Developers India 86.00% 86.00% 86.00%
Private Limited

Vama Housing Limited (Formerly India 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
known as Akulpita Construction

Limited)

Vishal Nirman (India) Limited India 51.02% 51.02% 51.02%
Vishal Techno Commerce Limited India 100.00% 100.00% 99.96%
(Formerly known as Vishal Tech (Civil)

Limited)

Hiemo Builders and Developers Private  India 100.00% 100.00% -
Limited (#)

Khem Buildcon Private Limited (#) India 100.00% 100.00% -
Akruti Middle East (FZE) UAE 100.00% 100.00% -
Urvi Build Tech Limited (Formerly India 95.00% - -
known as Nutritious Agro Foods

Limited)

Pushpak Healthcare Services Private India 80.00% - -
Limited

(#) Step down subsidiaries

D. The significant Associate companies and Joint Vestuwonsidered in the consolidated financial
statements are :
Name Country of Proportion of ownership interest
Incorporation
Associates: 2009 2008 2007
DLF Akruti Info Parks (Pune) Limited India 33.00% 33.00% 32.99%
Joyous Housing Limited (Formerly India 25.00% 25.00% 25.00%
known as Mangal Shrusti Gruh Nirmiti
Limited)
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Chaitra Realty Limited India 31.97% 31.90% -

Akruti Security Plates Private Limited India 36.24% BR -

Pristine Developers Private Limited India 40.00% 4%00 40.00%
Name Country of Proportion of ownership interest

Incorporation

Zeus Infrastructure Private Limited India 33.33% 33.33% -

Akruti City Bus Terminal (Vadodara) India 20.00% - -

Limited. (Formerly a Private Limited

Company)

Akruti City Bus Terminal (Mehsana) India 20.00% - -

Limited (Formerly a Private Limited

Company)

Infrastructure Ventures India Private India 40.00% - 33.33%

Limited (Formerly Infrastructure

Ventures India Limited) (Subsidiary upto

23.11.2008)

Multicity Bus Terminal (Surat) Limited India 20.00% - -

(Formerly a Private Limited Company)

Multicity Bus Terminal (Surat-Adajan) India 20.00% - -

Limited (Formerly a Private Limited

Company)

Glamorous Properties Private Limited India 25.00% - -

Muttha Realty Private Limited India - 33.33% -

Broadway Integrated Park Private India - 33.33% -

Limited

Partnerships / Joint Ventures :

Akruti Jay Chandan JV (Formerly known India 50.00% 50.00% 50.00%

as Akruti Chandan JV)

Akruti GM JV India 77.00% 77.00% 50.00%

Hiranandani Akruti JV India 50.00% 55.00% 55.00%

Niharika Shopping Mall JV India 50.00% 50.00% 50.00%

Akruti SMC JV (#) India 50.00% 50.00% 50.00%

Aarti Projects and Constructions India 33.00% 33.00% 33.00%

Akruti Kailash Constructions India 90.00% 50.00% 50.00%

Akruti Steelfab Corportéon India 55.00% 55.00% 55.00%

Akruti Jay Developers (Formerly Jairaj India 66.66% 66.66% 66.66%

Developers — Unit 9)

Gandhi Adhivitiya Combine (#) India 45.00% 45.00% 60.00%

Akruti Forefront Joint Venture India 75.00% - -

Akruti Realty Forefront Combine India 90.00% - -

Shreenath Realtors India 50.00% - -

Shree Swami Samarth Developers India 50.00% - -

Akruti P. Kumar JV India - 50% -

Mount Mary JV India - - 50.00%

Pristine Developers India - - 40.00%

(#) Interests through subsidiaries

The financial statements of the Associate companies ant\Jentures used in consolidation have been drawn
upto the same reporting date as that of the parent company.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
l. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements have been prepared and presentecthendhéstorical cost convention using the
accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the accoymtimgjples generally accepted in India and are
in accordance with the applicable Accounting Standards, Gueddotes and the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956.

Il. USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity wite generally accepted accounting principles

requires the management to make estimates and assuntpaodfect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities the date of financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting peribereBies between actual results and

estimates are recognized in the period in which the seatdtknown / materialized.

M. REVENUE RECOGNITION
A. Revenue from Construction Activity:

i Revenue from sale of finished properties / buildingstognized on transfer of property and
once significant risks and rewards of ownership have baesferred to the buyer. Similarly,
revenue from sale of Transferable Development Righ¥R(Tis recognized on transfer of the
rights to the buyer. Revenue recognition is postponed vdignédicant uncertainty exists.

ii. Revenue from sale of incomplete properties is recaghian the basis of percentage of
completion method, determined on the basis of phygiggortion of the work completed, as
certified by the Company’s technical personnel, in relatiom tontract or a group of contracts
within a project, only after the work has progressed toetktent of 40% of the total work
involved. Variations in estimates are updated periodidajiytechnical certification. Further,
revenue recognized in the aforesaid manner is restricted%ouddil the construction activity
and related formalities are substantially completexst€relating to construction / development
are charged to the Profit and Loss Account in proportion tliéghrevenue recognized during the
year. The balance costs are carried as part of ‘Incoeplegjects’ under inventories. Amounts
receivable / payable are reflected as Debtors / Addsafiom Customers, respectively, after
considering income recognized in the aforesaid mannecodmition of revenue relating to
agreements entered into with the buyers, which are sutgedilfilment of obligations /
conditions imposed by statutory authorities, is postpoileslich obligations are discharged.

iii. Sale of interests in projects executed through asEsgigtc. are recognized on transfer of
respective securities, net of carrying values of tlseserities.

B. Profit/ Loss from Partnership Firms / Joint Ventures:
Share of Profit / Loss from Partnership Firms / Joiehres is accounted in respect of the financial
year of the firm / venture, ending on or before the balaheet date, on the basis of their audited
accounts, as the case may be.

C. Income from Leased Premises

Income from providing facilities / lease of premises israed over the period mentioned in the
facility / leave and license agreement.

D. Others:

Other Revenues / Incomes and Costs / Expenditure areafigreccounted on accrual, as they are
earned or incurred.
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FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION / AMORTISATION

A. Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition or congmudéss accumulated depreciation /
amortisation. Attention is also invited to Accounting Ppiéo. (V) (B).

B. Depreciation is provided on the written down value methodeatates and in the manner specified in
Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956 or at rates detednziagper the useful life, whichever is
higher. Depreciation on additions to assets or on sale/dispbassets is calculated pro-rata from the
date of such addition, or upto the date of such sale/dis@sstie case may be.

C. Cost of Leasehold Land is amortised on a straight linis bager the primary lease period.

INVENTORIES

A. ‘Incomplete Projects’ are stated at Cost or Net Redbzatalue, whichever is lower. ‘Incomplete
Projects’ include cost of incomplete properties foriockhthe Company has not entered into sale
agreements, and in other cases where the revenue resogsitiostponed. ‘Incomplete Projects’ also
include initial project costs that relate directly tgpaospective) project, incurred for the purpose of
securing the project. These costs are recognized as experfdittine year in which they are incurred
unless they are separately identifiable and it is prolihbtethe respective project will be obtained.

B. Finished properties are stated at Cost or Net Realis@hle2, whichever is lower. Finished properties
given under operating lease are disclosed under the Fixets Axdeedule as Leased Assets. The costs
transferred to the Fixed Assets schedule are shown astideduftom the costs carried in opening
inventory and construction costs incurred during the yearseTlassets (including Furniture and
Fixtures in furnished properties and land acquired on Jea®e depreciated / amortised as per the
Accounting Policy given under Accounting Policy Nos. ([8) and (IV) (C). Although the Company
considers these assets as Inventories held for salte iordinary course of business, the disclosure
under the Fixed Assets Schedule and provision for depreciaimortisation is made to comply with
the requirements of Accounting Standard (AS — 19) — Ilsase

C. Floor Space Index (FSI) is stated at lower of Cost aadrdte prescribed in the Stamp Duty Ready
Reckoner issued by the State Government, for the yednighw Sl is generated.

D. All other inventory (viz. Transferable Development Rightsjteged at Cost or Net Realisable Value,
whichever is lower.

Cost included in inventory include costs incurred upto tmpetion of the project viz. cost of land / rights,
value of FSI, materials, services and other expenses (ingltadirrowing costs) attributable to the projects.
Cost formula used is average cost.

CONTRACTUAL INTERESTS IN PROJECTS EXECUTED THR OUGH ASSOCIATES, ETC.

Costs incurred by the Company allocable / attributableek@cution of development projects undertaken
through its Associates, etc. are carried at Codletr Realisable Value, whichever is lower. Such costs
incurred for execution of these projects, net of recoverniade there against, are carried as “Contractual
interests in projects executed through Associates etd&ruCurrent Assets. The manner of allocation of
costs to such projects and the basis / principles applifabftecognition of such costs are same as that of
costs incurred for projects executed solely by the Company.

INVESTMENTS

Investments are classified into current and long term inveggnCurrent investments are stated at lower of
cost and fair value. Long term investments are statecost. A provision for diminution is made to
recognize decline, other than temporary, in the value gf ferm investments.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS:
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A. Short term employee benefitare recognized as an expense at the undiscounted amounPiofibhe
and Loss Account for the year in which the relatediseri¢ rendered;

B. Post Employment Benefits

i Defined contribution plans: Company’s contribution to &tgdverned Provident Fund Scheme
is recognized during the year in which the related sersiceridered;

ii. Defined benefit plans: The present value of theuiiatobligation is determined based on an
actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Mdth&ctuarial gains and losses arising on
such valuation are recognized immediately in the Pumofid Loss Account. In the case of
gratuity which is funded with the Life Insurance Corpiana of India, the fair value of the plan
assets is reduced from the gross obligation under the ddfimeefit plan to recognize the
obligation on net basis;

C. Other long-term benefits (leave entitlement) are recognized in a manner sirtvlatefined benefit
plans;

D. Termination Benefits are recognized as an expense in the Profit and Loss Accoutlitefgrear in
which they are incurred.

IX. BORROWING COSTS

Interests and other borrowing costs attributable to quatjfgissets (including projects undertaken by the
Company directly or through its Associates, etc.) arecaléml as part of the cost of construction /
development of such assets. The borrowing costs incurrgtydbe period in which activities, necessary to
prepare the assets for their intended use or sale, predress, are allocated as aforesaid. Such allocation i
suspended during extended periods in which active developsaterrupted and, no costs are allocated
once all such activities are substantially complete. tFeoad fees, processing fees and other ‘one time’
charges are amortised over the period of the related bioagptut not exceeding a period of three years.
Other borrowing costs are charged to the Profit and Loss Atcou

X. SHARE ISSUE EXPENSES
Share issue expenses, if any, are first charged agaaikttde balance in the Securities Premium Account.
XI. FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

A. All transactions in foreign currency are recorded at thesraf exchange prevailing on the dates the
relevant transactions take place.

B. Monetary Assets and Liabilities in foreign currency, @anding at the close of the year, are converted
in Indian Currency at the appropriate rates of exchange ipngvan the date of Balance Sheet.
Resultant gain or loss is accounted during the year.
XIl. SEGMENT REPORTING
The company is engaged in the business of Real Estatdopment, which as per Accounting Standards
AS-17-'Segment Reporting’ is considered to be the only tapla business segment. The Company is also
operating within the same geographical segment (within IntHahce, disclosures under AS-17 are not
applicable.
Xlll.  PREMISES TAKEN ON LEASE
For premises taken on lease, lease rentals payableaagedtio revenue.

XIV.  TAXATION

Income tax expense comprises Current Tax, Fringe Behefi (FBT) and Deferred Tax charge or credit.
Provision for current tax is made on the basis of thesaabe income at the tax rate applicable to the
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relevant assessment year. Provision for FBT is made on $ieediahe fringe benefits provided/deemed to
have been provided during the year at the rates and valuesadplio the relevant assessment year. The
deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability is calculégdpplying tax rate and laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance SheeDéd¢ered tax assets arising mainly on account of
brought forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation under texdexwecognized, only if there is a virtual
certainty of its realization, supported by convincing evideDederred tax assets on account of other timing
differences are recognized only to the extent there is @mable certainty of its realization. At each
Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts of deferred tas asseeviewed to reassure realization.

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each Bal&meet date. If there is any indication of

impairment based on internal/external factors, i.e. whencétieying amount of the assets exceeds the
recoverable amount, an impairment loss is charged teribft and Loss Account in the year in which an

asset is identified as impaired. An impairment loss rezeghin prior accounting periods is reversed or
reduced if there has been a favorable change in the estinthgeretoverable amount.

PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTING ENT ASSETS

Provisions involving a substantial degree of estimation in amea®ent are recognized when there is present
obligation as a result of past events and its probable thél be an outflow of resources. Contingent
liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the &i@hrstatements. Contingent assets are neither
recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

A) Names of Related Parties and description of Relationgs

1) Subsidiary Companies

a) For the year 2008-09
Akruti Center Infotech Limited
Brain Point Infotech Limited

b) For the year 2007-08
Akruti Center Infotech Limited (Formerly known as Akr@enter Point Infotech Limited)
Brain Point Infotech Limited

c) For the year 2006-07
Akruti Centre Point Infotech Limited
Brain Point Infotech Limited

II) Associate Companies
a) For the year 2008-09
Akruti City Bus Terminal (Mehsana) Limited (Formerly eavate Limited Company)
Akruti City Bus Terminal (Vadodara) Limited (FormerlyPaivate Limited Company)
Akruti Security Plates Private Limited
Chaitra Realty Limited
DLF Akruti Info Parks (Pune) Limited

Gallant Infotech Private Limited
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b)

c)

Glamorous Properties Private Limited

Infrastructure Ventures India Private Limited (Formenfyastructure Ventures India Limited)
* (subsidiary upto 23.11.2008)

Joyous Housing Limited

Multicity Bus Terminal (Surat) Limited (Formerly a Pate Limited Company)
Multicity Bus Terminal (Surat-Adajan) Limited (FormerlyPaivate Limited Company)
Pristine Developers Private Limited

Zeus Infrastructure Private Limited

* became an associate with effect from 24-11-2008.

For the year 2007-08

Akruti Security Plates Private Limited

Chaitra Realty Limited

DLF Akruti Info Parks (Pune) Limited

Gallant Infotech Private Limited

Joyous Housing Limited ( Formerly Mangal Shrusti Grumiiti Limited)
Pristine Developers Private Limited

Muttha Realty Private Limited

Zeus Infrastructure Private Limited

For the year 2006-07

Akruti Security Plates Private Limited

DLF Akruti Info Parks (Pune) Limited

Gallant Infotech Private Limited

Mangal Shrusti Gruh Nirmiti Limited

Pristine Developers Private Limited

Infrastructure Ventures India Limited

Other Parties where relationship of control exists - Jmt Ventures (JV) / Partnership Firms

a)

For the year 2008-09

Aaarti Projects and Constructions

Akruti Jay Chandan JV (Formerly Akruti Chandan JV)
Akruti Forefront JV

Akruti GM JV

Akruti Jay Developers (Formerly Jairaj Developers — Qiit
Akruti Kailash Constructions

Akruti Realty Forefront Combine

Akruti Steelfab Corporation

Hiranandani Akruti JV

Niharika Shopping Mall JV

Shreenath Realtors
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b)

c)

Shree Swami Samarth Developers
For the year 2007-08

Aaarti Projects and Constructions
Akruti Chandan JV

Akruti Kailash Constructions
Akruti Steelfab Corporation
Jairaj Developers — Unit 9
Gandhi Adhivitiya Combine
Hiranandani Akruti JV

Niharika Shopping Mall JV

For the year 2006-07

Aaarti Projects and Constructions
Akruti Chandan JV

Jairaj Developers — Unit 9

Akruti Kailash Constructions
Akruti Steelfab Corporation
Hiranandani Akruti JV

Niharika Shopping Mall JV

Akruti GM JV

Mount Mary JV

Pristine Developers

Gandhi Adhivitiya Combine
Akruti SMC JV

Suraksha Realtors

IV) Key Management Personnel, Relatives of Key Management Persa@irand Enterprises where

these individuals exercise significant influence (to thextent of transactions entered into).

(a) Key Management Personnel

i For the year 2008-09

Mr. Hemant M. Shah (Executive Chairman, \Wtiole Director)

Mr. Vyomesh M. Shah (Managing Director)

Mr. Madhukar B. Chobe ( Wholetime Direcyor

ii. For the year 2007-08

Mr. Hemant M. Shah, Executive Chairman
Mr. Vyomesh M. Shah , Managing Director
Mr. Madhukar B. Chobe , Wholetime Director

Mr. Hemant Gulati
Mr. Ravindra Kamat
iii. For the year 2006-07
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Mr. Hemant M. Shah (Chairman, Wholetime Director)
Mr. Vyomesh M. Shah (Managing Director)
Mr. Madhukar B. Chobe (Wholetime Director)
(b) Relatives of Key Management Personnel
i. For the year 2008-09
Mrs. Falguni V. Shah
Mr. Khilen V. Shah
Mrs. Kunjal H. Shah
Mr. Kushal H. Shah
Mrs. Lata M. Shah
Mr. Rushank V. Shah

ii. For the year 2007-08
Mrs. Falguni V. Shah
Mr. Khilen V. Shah
Mrs. Kunjal H. Shah
Master. Kushal H. Shah
Mrs. Lata M. Shah
Mr. Rushank V. Shah

iii. For the year 2006-07
Mrs. Falguni V. Shah
Mrs. Kunjal H. Shah
Mrs. Lata M. Shah

(c) Enterprises where Key Management Personnel or tlrerelatives exercise
significant influence
i. For the year 2008-09

Hemant M. Shah HUF
Mabhipatray V. Shah (Estate)
Mabhipatray V. Shah HUF
Vyomesh M. Shah HUF
Akruti Campus of Research and Education Private Limited
Akruti City Farming Private Limited
Akruti City Knowledge Private Limited
Akruti City Venture Capital Management Private Limited
Akruti Guestline Private Limited
Akruti SMC JV
Citygold Education Research Limited
Citygold Farming Private Limited

Citygold Investments Private Limited

-212 -



sy Ackruti City Limited- Placement Document

Citygold Management Services Private Limited
Gandhi Adhivitiya Combine
Sanskriti Developers Private Limited
ii. For the year 2007-08
Akruti Campus of Research and Education Private Limited
Akruti City Farming Private Limited
Akruti City Knowledge Private Limited
Akruti City Venture Capital Management Private Limited
Akruti City Venture Capital Private Limited
Akruti Guestline Private Limited
Akruti SMC JV
Citygold Education Research Limited
Citygold Farming Private Limited
Citygold Investments Private Limited
Citygold Management Services Private Limited
Gandhi Adhivitiya Combine
Sanskriti Developers Private Limited
Suraksha Realtors
Roopkala Pictures Private Limited
Akruti SEZ( Pune) Private Limited
Akruti SEZ(Thane) Private Limited
Buildbyte.com(India) Private Limited
Ichha Construction Private Limited
Nutritious Agro Foods Limited
Mr. Hemant M. Shah- Karta , Hemant M Shah HUF
Mr. Vyomesh M. Shah - Karta , Vyomesh M. Shah HUF
Mr. Hemant M. Shah- Karta , Mahipatray V. Shah HUF
the year 2006-07
Akruti City Knowledge Private Limited

iii. Fo

=

Akruti City Farming Private Limited

Akruti Guest line Private Limited

Citygold Education Research Limited

Citygold Farming Private Limited

Citygold Investment Private Limited

Citygold Management Services Private Limited
Akruti Niharika Buildings Limited

Akruti SEZ (Mumbai) Private Limited
Buildbyte.Com (India) Private Limited

Ichha Constructions Private Limited
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Roopkala Pictures Private Limited
Akruti Foundation for Knowledge and Research
Rushank Constructions Private Limited
Hemant M Shah HUF
Vyomesh M. Shah HUF
Mahipatray V. Shah HUF
Note: Related party relationships are as identified byCthmpany and relied upon by the Auditors.

B) Transactions with Related Parties:

Rs. in million
Sr. Nature of Year Subsidiary Associate  Other Parties Key Management
No. transaction Companies Companies where Personnel,

relationship  Relatives and
of control their Enterprises

exists - Joint
Ventures /
Partnership
Firms
i. Loans and 2008-09 - 1,587.68 142.68 2,034.53
Advances 2007-08 - 4,117.64 35.10 1,059.41
Received/ 2006-07 - 23.74 55.85 134.05
Recovered
ii. Loans and 2008-09 - 2,233.56 222.80 1,310.92
Advances Given/ 2007-08 - 3,055.74 164.27 1,119.70
Repaid /Adjusted  2006-07 - 94.83 58.55 129.31
iii. Interest Received 2008-09 - 91.00 2.34 47.44
2007-08 - 208.41 6.32 7.32
2006-07 - 10.09 8.83 0.07
iv. Interest Paid 2008-09 - - - 116.70
2007-08 - - - 19.89
2006-07 - - - -
v. Advance against 2008-09 - 10.00 - 34.65
share Application ~ 2007-08 - - - 1,331.41
2006-07 - 39.63 - 283.78
vi. Advance again: 2008-09 - - - -
share Applicatio 2007-08 - 39.63 - -
Adjusted / refunded 2006-07 - - - -
vii. Services received/ 2008-09 21.03 - - 38.51
availed 2007-08 18.55 1.00 - 28.05
2006-07 8.81 1.40 - 22.43
viii. Service Rendered 2008-09 - 34.66 2.04 -
2007-08 - - - -
2006-07 - - - -
iXx. Reimbursement 2008-09 - - 0.78 4.84
Exp. 2007-08 - - - -
2006-07 - - - -
X. Rent received 2008-09 - - - 14.89
2007-08 - - - 14.13
2006-07 - - - 7.85
xi. Rent paid 2008-09 - - - 0.60
2007-08 - - - 0.60
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Xii.

Xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

XVil.

XViii.

XiX.

XX.

XXi.

XXii.

XXiii.

XXiV.

XXV.

XXVi

Directors’
remuneration

Purchase of TDR /
Project / Material

Sale of finished
Properties / FSI /
Material

Investments made

Investments
withdrawn at cost

Share of Profit
from
Partnerships/Joint
ventures

Share of Loss from
Partnerships/Joint
ventures
Payments made 1
behalf of thirc
parties

Collateral security
given against loan
availed by
Company

Deposit Received

Deposit Paid

Supervision /
maintenance
charges received
Royalty received

Directors’ sitting
fees

Balances
Outstanding

2006-07

2008-09
2007-08
2006-07

2008-09
2007-08
2006-07

2008-09
2007-08
2006-07

2008-09
2007-08
2006-07
2008-09
2007-08
2006-07

2008-09
2007-08
2006-07

2008-09
2007-08
2006-07
2008-09
2007-08
2006-07
2008-09

2007-08

2006-07

2008-09
2007-08
2006-07

2008-09
2007-08
2006-07
2008-09
2007-08
2006-07

2008-09
2007-08
2006-07
2008-09
2007-08
2006-07

Amount not
guantifiable
Amount not
guantifiable
Amount not
quantifiable

0.46
0.48

12.04

473.81
430.82
698.03
142.16

118.62

0.02
55.87
8.92

5.18
2.00
13.58

0.84

39.89
41.09
16.46

0.23

1.08
Amount not
quantifiable
Amount not
quantifiable
Amount not
guantifiable

102.38
69.50
0.70
12.00
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Receivable 2008-09 - 1,839.86 327.72 1,008.49
2007-08 - 1,042.74 160.80 1,412.31
2006-07 0.03 164.24 60.42 290.06

Payable 2008-09 16.46 - 2.63 1,219.30
2007-08 - 0.34 0.48 95.98
2006-07 - - 0.05 112

3 The details of investments made in capital of partnerfitips and joint ventures for the years ending' 31

March 2009, 2008 and 2007:
(A) Partnership Firms

[) M/s Akruti Steelfab Corporation

Name of the Partners

2009
A)  Ackruti City Limited (Formerly  55.00%
known as Akruti City Limited,
Akruti Nirman Limited)
B)  Steelfab Turnkey Projects Limited 45.00%
Total 100.00 %
II) M/s Akruti Kailash Constructions
Name of the Partners
2009
A)  Ackruti City Limited (Formerly  90.00%
known as Akruti City Limited,
Akruti Nirman Limited)
B) Ketan D. Shah 10.00%
C) Chirag A. Shah -
D) Deepak S. Shah -
E) Niranjan P.Shah -
F) Shanalal T. Shah (HUF) -
Total 100.00 %
1)) M/s Aarti Projects & Constructions
Name of the Partners
2009
A)  Ackruti City Limited (Formerly  33.00%
known as Akruti City Limited,
Akruti Nirman Limited)
B) Dilip Shingarpure 9.00%
Q) Surendra Sanas 33.00%
D) Classic City Infopark Private 25.00%
Limited
E) Madhav Patankar -
F) Smt. Daksha P. Patel -
Total 100.00 %

Share of Partner

2008 2007
55.00% 55.00%
45.00% 45.00%
100.00 % 100.00 %
Share of Partner
2008 2007
50.00% 50.00%
7.50% 7.50%
12.50% 12.50%
8.75% 8.75%
12.50% 12.50%
8.75% 8.75%
100.00 % 100.00 %
Share of Partner
2008 2007
33.00% 33.00%
9.00% 9.00%
33.00% 17.00%
25.00% 25.00%
- 16.00%
100.00 % 100.00 %

IV) M/s Akruti Jay Developers (Formerly known as Jairaj Develpers — Unit 9)
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Name of the Partners

Share of Partner

2009 2008 2007
A) Ackruti City Limited (Formerly  66.66% 66.66% 66.66%
known as Akruti City Limited,
Akruti Nirman Limited)
B) Jayant Hiralal Shah 15.00% 15.00% 15.00%
C) Malav Jayant Shah 15.00% 15.00% 15.00%
D) Jignesh Gunwant Gopani 3.34% 3.34% 3.34%
Total 100.00 % 100.00 % 100.00 %
V) M/s Shree Swami Samarth Developers
Name of the Partners Share of Partner
2009 2008 2007
A)  Ackruti City Limited 50.00% - -
(Formerly known as Akruti
City Limited, Akruti Nirman
Limited)
B) Farooq Y. Patel 25.00% - -
C) Shailesh R. Mahimtura 12.50% - -
D) Hiten R. Mahimtura 12.50% - -
Total 100.00 % -
VI) M/s Shree Nath Realtors
Name of the Partner Share of Partner
2009 2008 2007
A)  Ackruti City Limited (Formerly 50.00% - -
known as Akruti City Limited,
Akruti Nirman Limited)
B) Farooq Y. Patel 11.25% - -
C) Sailesh R. Mahimtura HUF 8.125% - -
D) Hiten R. Mahimtura HUF 8.125% - -
E) Dolbi Incon Private Limited 22.50% - -
Total 100.00% - -
VII) M/s Gandhi Adhivitiya Combine :
Name of the Partners Share of Partner
2009 2008 2007
A)  Adhivitiya Properties Limited 45.00% 45.00% 16.00%
B) Rajendra Gandhi 10.00% 10.00% 8.00%
Name of the Partners Share of Partner
C)  Ajitkumar Gandhi 10.00% 10.00% 8.00%
D) Kirankumar Gandhi 10.00% 10.00% 8.00%
E) Kiritkumar Gandhi 10.00% 10.00% 8.00%
F) Forefront Property Developers (P) 15.00% 10.00% -
Ltd
G) Hemanti Dilip Parekh - 5.00% -
) Kusumben Gandhi - - 8.00%
Total 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
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VIIl) M/s Pristine Developers :

Name of the Joint Ventures Share of Interest
2009 2008 2007

A)  Akruti Nirman Limited - - 40.00%

Topmost Construction Private - 10.00%
B) Limited -

Pristine Developers Private - 25.00%
C) Limited -
D) Parekh M. Parekh - - 25.00%

TOTAL - - 100.00%

IX) M/s Suraksha Realtors :

Name of the Joint Ventures Share of Interest
2009 2008 2007

A) T.D.R. Propretés Limited - - 11.00%
B) Vyomesh M.Shah - - 7.00%
C) Hemant M.Shah - - 7.00%

Karad Chemicals & Allied Prodt 37.50%
D) Private Limited -
E) Vijay Parekh - - 37.50%

TOTAL - - 100.00%

(B) Interests of the Company in joint ventures are as under

Name of the Joint Ventures Share of Interest
2009 2008 2007
[)  M/s. Hirandani Akruti JV 55 % 55 % 55 %
II)  M/s. Niharika Shopping Mall JV 50 % 50 % 50 %
)  M/s. Akruti GM JV 50 % 50 % 50 %
V) M/s. Akruti Jay Chandan . 50 % 50 %
(Formerly known as M/s. Akrt
Chandan JV) 50%
V) M/s Akruti Realty Forefror - -
Combine 90%
VI)  M/s Akruti forefront JV 75% - -
VIl)  M/s. Akruti SMC JV 50% 50% 50%
VII)  M/s. Akruti P. Kumar JV - 64 % -

- 50%
IX)  M/s. Mount Mary JV -
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Deferred Taxation for the years ending'34arch 2009, 2008 and 2007

Rs. in million
Deferred Tax Liability / (Asset) on account of :
2009 2008 2007

i. Depreciation (15.30) 7.11 2.13
ii. Unabsorbed Business Loss & - (0.76) -

Depreciation
iii. Expenses allowable / Income (88.42) (323.30) (0.81)

reversal for Tax Purpose in

subsequent year(s)

Net Deferred Tax Liability/(Asset) (103.72) (316.95) 1.32

Deferred tax (charge) / credit for (213.02) 314.51 5.12

the year (including adjustments

referred below)
Adjustments in respect of subsidiary acquired during 2008R0I8a subsidiary disposed off in 2008-09,
Rs. 3.76 mn and Rs. 0.21 mn, respectively.

During the year, 2007-08, Company had entered into sale agredirethis joint development of two of its
projects. However, during the year 2008-09, the other partyleddo withdraw from these projects and
entered into a Deed of Cancellation of the earlier sgleeaments. As a result of the same, on execution of
the said cancellation deeds, the revenues recognizedydberyear 2007-08, aggregating Rs. 1,057.50 mn,
have been reversed and the costs attributable to theset@rgyeor to the aforesaid sale, have been
recognized as inventory in the year 2007-08 itself.

The consolidated financial statements present the consoligetednts of the company with its Subsidiaries,
Joint Ventures and Associates, which incorporate AkruaréNousing Limited (AWL) a subsidiary of the

company that is yet to commence commercial operatitms.operations of this subsidiary would fall within

a segment separate from the existing one of builders and develbfrgver consolidated segment

information would be given once AWL commences operationgh&uthe group operates within a single
geographical segment (India).

‘Sundry Debtors’ as at $1March, 2009, include Rs.4,413.00 mn due from two partieshale, during the
financial year 2008-09, requested the Company for extertti@gcredit period originally granted in the
respective sale agreements entered into during the saidTyearequest was made on account of the severe
slow down and recessionary pressures faced by the rea estastry, which had led to a substantial fall in
both, the demand and property rates during the said year.

The management considers the debt to be good and fully rebteesince the parties have confirmed the
conditions originally agreed to and the Company has; affEMarch, 2009, recovered Rs.1,060.13 mn.

The Company carries out development activities oovits as also through various projects that are executed
/ undertaken through its Associates, etc. The developmenwitiastthrough Associates, etc. have increased
substantially from the financial year ended'34arch, 2008, which would henceforth continue to grow. The
company incurs substantial costs (including borrowing déstsexecution of such projects which are, on a
reasonable basis, allocated to these projects on thelsesise/ principles as that of allocation of expenditure
to its own development projects.

The Company before 2007-2008, recognized such expenditure Profit and Loss Account in the year in
which the expenses were incurred as the proportion of suckctgayas not significant. During the year
2007-08, based on a legal and accounting opinion, the Companyeduided to carry forward such
expenditure, to be recognized in the Profit and Lossofetin subsequent year(s), on the same basis /
principles applicable to its own development projects.

As a result of such change, the profit (before tax) ferysar 2007-08 is higher by Rs.321.15 mn.
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8 Upto 31st March, 2006, the Company recognised revenue fatena$ incomplete properties as per the

(b) completed building project method. Pursuant to the guidaateon ‘Recognition of Revenue by Real Estate
Developers’, issued by The Institute of Chartered Accoustaf India’ during the financial year 2006-07,
revenue from sale of incomplete properties (subject fidnigint of specified conditions), is recognised on
the basis of the percentage of completion method, \ifidetefrom 1st April, 2006 (only after the work has
progressed to the extent of 40% of the total work involved).
However, such change in the accounting policy did not resuftyinnapact on the financial statements for the
financial year ended $1March, 2007, as no project, incomplete as at this dateplagressed to the extent
of 40% of the total work involved for which revenue woblve to be recognised as per the percentage of
completion method.

9. Earnings per share
Particulars 2008-09 2007-08 2006-07
Net Profit as per Profit and Loss (Rs. in 3,337.63 2,370.20 766.91

Account available for Equity million)
Shareholders

Weighted average number of In Nos. 66,700,000 66,700,000 61,064,458
equity shares outstanding during

the year.

Earnings Per Share of Rs.10 InRs. 50.04 35.54 12.56

each (Basic and Diluted)

10. Contingent Liabilities (not provided for):
Rs. in million

Sr. No. Particulars As at 3T As at 37 As at 3T
March, 2009  March, 2008 March, 2007
(A) Claims against the Company, not

acknowledged as debts on account of: -

1. Income Tax matters under appeal
for Financial Year 1999-2000 - 68.16 -
(A.Y. 2000-2001)

2. Income Tax matters under appeal Amount not
for Financial Year 2000-2001 to 497.66 ascertainable -
2006-2007

3. Reassessment proceedings under - - Amount not
the Income tax Act, 1961, to be ascertainable
commenced in pursuance of
search and seizure operation
conducted during the year

4. Demand notice issued by
Brihanmumbai Municipal
Corporation for Land Under 41.20 32.89 30.41
Construction charges (property
tax).

5. Petition filed against the
Company, under the Maharashtra
Slum Area (Improvement,
Clearance and Redevelopment)
Act, 1971, in relation to a Project.

5.00 7.73 5.00
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6. Petition pending with the
Honourable High Court of
Bombay with regards to
Mahalaxmi  Car Project at
Bhulabhai Desai Road, Mumbai.

2.45 1.85 -

(B) On account of corporate guarantees
issued by the Company to Bankers on
behalf of other companies and joint 621.18 636.99 79.59
ventures for facilities availed by them
(amount outstanding thereagainst.)
Note: Further interest / penalty that may accrue orir@iglemands are not ascertainable, at present.
The Company has taken necessary steps to protect itfopaosith respect to the above referred claims,
which in its opinion, based on professional / legal adwoe not sustainable.

The figures disclosed in these financial statements arectedt from the audited statutory financial
statements for the financial years ended March 31, 20@B &3d 2009 approved by the Board of Directors
in their meeting held on‘h4JuIy, 2007, July, 2008 and 3bJune, 2009 respectively, which however have
been adjusted for taxes and other income / expenditure in tasfpearlier years and subsequent events.
Impact of the said adjustments are that, taxes in regfpetrlier years have been given effect to in the
respective year to which they relate and accordinglyinbeease/(decrease) in net profit after taxation is
(Rs.5.29) Million, Rs.5.34 Million and Rs. 62.49 Million forettyears ending 31March, 2007, 2008 and
2009, respectively. Further, revenue recognized in the y&ar-@8, and reversed in 2008-09 as detailed in
Note No.5 above, has also been adjusted in the year@@gelf and this has decreased the profit after
taxation in the year 2007-08 by Rs.627.85 Million and coreetty increased profit after taxation in the
year 2008-09 by Rs.627.85 Million. The above adjustmens am¢ have any impact on the reserves and
surplus position as at 3March, 2009 compared to the audited statutory consolidated fihatatiements for
the year then ended. Other items of income / expenditeraot significant.

Previous years figures have been regrouped / recast wheenessary.

-221-



ISSUER

7
il ACKRUTI CITY
< LIFE TIME VALUE
ACKRUTI CITY LIMITED
Registered Office of the Issuer
Akruti Trade Centre, Road No.7, Marol MIDC, AndhéE), Mumbai — 400093. India
Tel: +91-22-6703 7400 | Fax: +91-22-2821 8230

GLOBAL CO-ORDINATOR AND CO-MANAGER
BOOK RUNNING LEAD MANAGER

ANAND RATHI ADVISORSLIMITED PIONEER INVESTCORP LIMITED
11" Floor, Times Tower, Senapati Bapat Marg, 1218, Maker Chambers V, Nariman Point,
Lower Parel, Mumbai — 400 013. Mumbai — 400021
Tel: +91- 22 4047 7000 | Fax: +91- 22 4047 7070 Tel: +91 — 22 6618 6618

Contact Person: V. Prashant Rao / Akshay Bhandari Contact Person: Satish Acharya / Ojas Mody

L egal Advisor to the Issuer Legal Advisor to the Global Co-ordinator and
Book Running L ead Manager and the
Co-M anager
Rajani Associates M/s. Crawford Bayley & Co.
204-207, Krishna Chambers Advocates and Solicitors
59, New Marine Lines State Bank Buildings,"4floor
Churchgate N. G. N. Vaidya Marg
Mumbai 400 020 Fort, Mumbai 400023
Tel: +91-22-4096 1000 Tel : +91-22-2266 8000
Fax: +91-22-4096 1010 Fax: +91-22-2266 0355
E-mail: sangeeta@rajaniassociates.net E-mail: sanjay.asher@crawfordbayley.com

Website: www.rajaniassociates.net
Contact Person: Sangeeta Lakhi

International Legal Advisorstothe
Global Co-ordinator and Book Running L ead M anager and the Co-M anager
Dorsey & Whitney (Europe) LLP
21 Wilson Street, London, United Kingdom EC2M 2TD
Tel. No: +44 (0)20 7588 0800
Fax No: +44 (0)20 7588 0555
E-mail: chrisman.john@dorsey.com
Website: www.dorsey.com
Contact Person: John. N. Chrisman

Joint Statutory Auditors

Dalal & Shah Doshi Doshi & Associates
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
252, Shivaji Park, Dadar, 203, Sharda Chambers No. 1,
Mumbai — 400 028, 31, Keshaviji Naik Road, Narshi Natha Street,
India. Masjid Bunder, Mumbai — 400 009, India.
Tel: +91-22-2266 2110 Tel: +91-22-5631 4019 / 2377 5381
Fax: +91-22-2266 1503 Fax: +91-22-2649 4034

Email: shishirdalal@dalalandshah.com Email: viraldoshi@rediffmail.com



